Lowell Joint School District
11019 Valley Home Avenue, Whittier, CA 90603

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
September 11, 2023 — 7:30 p.m.

AGENDA

I Call to Order

Lowell Joint School District Character Education and Patriotic Education Focus of the

Month:

e Character Trait: Respect - The process and outcome of successfully adapting to
difficult or challenging life situations; toughness and flexibility.

e Patriotic Focus: Pledge of Allegiance & National Anthem

e Honoring Character & Patriotism In Action: Armed Forces & Declaration of
Independence

A. Comments from the Public

1.

Board Agenda Items: Any member of the audience may speak to any agenda
item by submitting a “Presentation Card” (supply located on the table near
double exit doors). Please hand the completed card to the secretary. When
the item is considered by the Board, individuals submitting presentation
cards will be called upon prior to Board action. Speakers must limit their
comments to three (3) minutes. The Board shall limit the total time for public
input on each item to 30 minutes. With Board consent, the president may
increase or decrease the time allowed for public presentation, depending on
the topic and the number of persons wishing to be heard.

Topics Not on Agenda: Anyone in attendance may address any issue by
following the same identification process as shown in I-A-1 above. Since the
Board cannot take action on items which are not on the agenda, such items
will be referred to the Superintendent for handling. Individuals interested in
speaking to items which are not on the agenda will be called upon under Item
IV.

B. Closed Session

1.

2.

Pupil Personnel Matters/Advice from Legal Counsel — Existing and
Anticipated Litigation (Disclosure of Case Name Would Jeopardize
Potential Settlement Negotiations)/Real Property/Liability
Claims/Negotiations/ Public Employee Appointments — Discipline —
Dismissal — Release (Government Code Section 54957)/
Employer/Employee Relations

Public Employee Negotiations — Certificated School Employees
Association (LJEA)/ Classified School Employees Association (CSEA);
Agency Negotiator: Mr. Coombs

6:30 p.m.

INFORMATION

INFORMATION

6:30 p.m.



IL.

I1I.

Meeting of the Board of Trustees

Superintendent’s Evaluation (Pursuant to Government Code Section
54957)

C. Regular Session

Preliminary Procedural — Board President

A. 9-11 Remembrance

B. Salute to the Flag

C. Reporting Out Action (if any) Taken in Closed Session

D. Introductions and Welcome of Guests

E. Comments from the Public

1.

Board Agenda Items: Any member of the audience may speak to any agenda
item by submitting a “Presentation Card” (supply located on the table near
double exit doors). Please hand the completed card to the secretary. When
the item is considered by the Board, individuals submitting presentation
cards will be called upon prior to Board action. Speakers must limit their
comments to three (3) minutes. The Board shall limit the total time for
public input on each item to 30 minutes. With Board consent, the president
may increase or decrease the time allowed for public presentation, depending
on the topic and the number of persons wishing to be heard.

Topics Not on Agenda: Anyone in attendance may address any issue by
following the same identification process as shown in II-E-1 above. Since
the Board cannot take action on items which are not on the agenda, such
items will be referred to the Superintendent for handling. Individuals
interested in speaking to items which are not on the agenda will be called
upon under Item IV.

F.  Acknowledgement of Correspondence to the Board

G. Approval of Agenda

H. Approval of Minutes from the August 7, 2023, Regular Board Meetings

Reports

A. Timely Information from Board and Superintendent — Board President

B.  School Reports
(School Reports will be the First Meeting of the Month)

September 11, 2023
Page 2

Approximately
7:30 p.m.

INFORMATION

INFORMATION
ACTION
ACTION

INFORMATION



Meeting of the Board of Trustees
September 11, 2023

Page 3
IV.

V.

VL

VIIL

VIIL

Topics Not on the Agenda
General — Jim Coombs

A.  Resolution 2023/2024 No. 900 Proclaiming September 17 — 23, 2023, as
“Constitution Week”

B.  Resolution 2023/2024 No. 901 Designating October 2023 as “Character
Education Month”

C.  Approval of the Lowell Joint School District’s Response to the 2022-23 Orange
County Grand Jury Report: “Russian Roulette: Fentanyl in Orange County”

Business Services — David Bennett

A.  Approval of Agreement with PQBids for Web-Based Program used to
Prequalify Contractors

B.  Approval of Piggyback Contract with CN School & Office Solutions, Inc. for
Furniture: Systems and Stand Alone (San Bernardino County Unified School
District Bid #23/24-0005)

C. Ratification of Agreement with Orbit Event Rentals, Inc. for the purchase and

installation of Lunch Shelter Canopy Lighting and Accessories at Maybrook
Elementary School (Temporary Housing for Rancho Intermediate School)

D.  Approval of Agreement with Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe, LLP, to provide
Bond and Disclosure Counsel Services for the Possible Issuance of Future
General Obligation Bonds

E.  Resolution 2023/2024 No. 902 for Approval to Delegate Authority to the
Superintendent of Schools, or Designee, to Certify Documents, Act as a
Liaison with the Office of Public School Construction and Staff to the State
Allocation Board

F. Resolution 2023/24 No. 903 Gann Amendment Appropriations Limit

Human Resources — Jim Coombs
No Items Except on Consent
Educational Services — Sheri McDonald

No Items Except on Consent

ACTION/
(RESOLUTION)

ACTION/
(RESOLUTION)

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)

ACTION

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)

ACTION

ACTION/
(RESOLUTION)

ACTION/
(RESOLUTION)



IX.

X.

Meeting of the Board of Trustees

Administrative Services — Carl Erickson
No Items Except on Consent

Consent Calendar

Action by the Board in adoption of the “Consent Calendar” means that all items
appearing in this section are adopted by one single motion, unless a Member of
the Board or the Superintendent requests that any such item be removed from
the “Consent Calendar” and voted upon separately. Generally, “Consent
Calendar” items are enacted upon in one action to conserve time and permit
focus on other-than-routine matters.

General - Jim Coombs

1. Approval of Consultant Agreement with Brianna Velarde to Provide
Graphic Design Work for District Communication of Programs and
Facilities for the 2023/24 School Year

2. Approval of Memorandum of Understanding Agreement between
Chapman University and Lowell Joint School District, Effective
August 1, 2023 through June 30, 2028

Business Services — David Bennett

1. Purchase Order Listing Report/Check Register 2023/2024 #2

2. Consolidated Check Register Listing Report 2023/2024 #2

3. Acceptance of Notice of Completion, Tricore Enterprises Inc., dba Quiel
School Signs for Marquee Installation at El Portal Elementary School

Human Resources — Jim Coombs

1. Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report 2023/2024 #2
Which Includes Hiring, Resignations, Contract Adjustments,
and Retirements for Certificated, Classified, and Confidential
Employees

2. Approval of the 2022-2023 Classified Management Salary Schedule,
Effective August 1, 2023, with the Addition of the Network and Data
Systems Technology Supervisor Position

3. Approval of the 2022-2023 Certificated Management and Supervisory
Salary Schedule, Including the Addition of the Board Certified
Behavioral Analyst position, effective September 1, 2023

September 11, 2023
Page 4

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)

ACTION

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)



Meeting of the Board of Trustees

September 11, 2023
Page 5

D. Educational Services — Sheri McDonald

1.

2. Approval of Agreement with Shane Twamley to Provide Intervention
and Saturday School Sessions during 2023-2024 School Year to
Rancho-Starbuck

3. Approval of Consultant Agreement with Summer Davis to provide
“Digging with Mrs. Davis” Gardening/Science Enrichment Classes for
PowerSource during the 2023-24 School Year

4. Approval of Ratification of Agreement #14082 with Thinking Maps Inc.
to Provide Professional Development During the 2023-24 School Year

5. Approval of Agreement #14179 with Thinking Maps Inc. to Provide
Professional Development on November 1, 2023

6. Approval of Short Term Rental Agreement with Whittier College

E. Administrative Services — Carl Erickson

1. Approval of Agreement with All American Officials to Provide Referee

Services for After School Sports Programs
XI. Board Member/Superintendent Comments

XII.  Adjournment

Approval of Agreement with Franchise Consulting/Derek Francis to
Provide Professional Development during 2023-2024 School Year to
Rancho-Starbuck Staff

ACTION

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)

ACTION

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)
ACTION

ACTION

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)

ADJOURNMENT

Recess and/or closed session to be called at the discretion of the Board. Meetings of the Board shall adjourn at or
before 11:00 p.m. unless approved by a majority vote of the Board.

Materials related to this agenda submitted to the Board of Trustees less than 72 hours prior to the meeting are
available for public inspection by contacting the Superintendent’s Office at 11019 Valley Home Avenue, Whittier,
CA 90603, or (562) 902-4203 during normal business hours.

The next scheduled Lowell Joint School District Board of Trustees Meeting is Monday, October 2, 2023.



1

Lowell Joint School District

11019 Valley Home Avenue, Whittier, CA 90603

MINUTES REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

August 7, 2023

Call to Order

Topics Not on the Agenda
Closed Session

Call to Order

Reporting out Action (if any)
Taken in Closed Session

Introductions and Welcome
of Guests
Acknowledgement of

Correspondence

Approval of Agenda

Approval of Minutes

Timely Information from
Board and Superintendent —

President Shaw called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. at Lowell Joint School
District, 11019 Valley Home Avenue, Whittier, CA 90603.

None.
President Shaw declared the meeting recessed to closed session at 6:31 p.m.
President Shaw reconvened the meeting to order at 7:36 p.m.

The flag salute was led by David Bennett, Assistant Superintendent of Business
Services.

Trustees Present: Karen L. Shaw, Anastasia M. Shackelford, Anthony A.
Zegarra, Christine J. Berg, Melissa A. Salinas

Trustees Absent: None

Staff Present: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools, Sheri McDonald,
Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services, and David
Bennett, Assistant Superintendent of Business Services, Carl
Erickson, Assistant Superintendent of Administrative
Services

Staff Absent: None

None.

President Shaw welcomed the guests in attendance, staff members present, Allison

Fonti, LJEA president, Margaret Palmer, LJEA co-president, Leslie Mangold,

LJEA lead negotiator.

None.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote, (5 — 0) to approve the

amended August 7, 2023, Board agenda.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote, (5-0) to approve the
minutes from the June 26, 2023, Regular Board Meeting.

None.



Board President
Topics Not on the Agenda

2023-24 45 Day Budget
Update

Approval to Delegate
Authority to the
Superintendent of Schools,
or Designee, to Award
Contracts for Construction,
Modernization, and
Maintenance Projects
Districtwide

CalPERS Resolution
2023/24 No. 899 Approving
Delegation of Authority to
Request Disbursements for
Other Post-Employment
Benefits (OPEB) with the
California Employers'
Retiree Benefit Trust
(CERBT) through
California Public
Employees Retirement
System

Ratification of Additive
Change Order No. 2, Elite
Modular and Sales,
Additional Portable
Classroom Ramp

Meeting of the Board of Trustees
August 7, 2023
Page 2

Education Code Section 42147(h) states: “Not later than 45 days after the Governor
signs the annual Budget Act, the school district shall make available for public review
any revisions in revenues and expenditures that it has made to its budget to reflect the
funding made available by that Budget Act.” While this language does not specifically
require that districts revise their budgets at this time, it does require making the
revisions public if the district decides to make revisions based on the Enacted State
Budget.

The Governor signed the 2022-23 State Budget into law on June 27, 2023, beginning
the 45-day period, which ends on August 11, 2023. The Board adopted the District
budget on June 26, 2023. The Enacted State Budget contained minor changes from the
Governor’s May Revision. Because the May Revision was used to present the 2023/24
Adopted Budget, and the changes to the Adopted Budget are minor, it is advisable that
the District update the Adopted Budget to reflect the changes at the First Interim
budget presentation on December 11, 2023, at which time the budget will reflect the
most current figures available.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote, (5-0) to approve the annual
Delegation of Authority to the Superintendent of Schools, or Designee, to Award
Contracts for the Construction, Modernization, and Maintenance Projects District
wide, and that the Superintendent, or designee, be authorized to execute the necessary
documents.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous roll call vote, (5-0) to adopt
Resolution 2023/24 No. 899 Approving Delegation of Authority to Request
Disbursements for Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) with the California
Employers' Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) through California Public Employees
Retirement System, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute
the necessary documents.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote, (5-0) to ratify an additive
change order for an amount not to exceed $3,500 with Elite Modular Leasing & Sales,
Inc., for the additional ramp modifications provided during the Maybrook Phase II for
the Rancho Starbuck project, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to
execute the necessary documents.



Meeting of the Board of Trustees

August 7, 2023
Page 3

Modification, Maybrook
Phase II for Rancho
Starbuck

Approval of Deductive
Change Order No. 4 from
Erickson Hall Construction
for Meadow Green
Elementary School Project

Ratification of Agreement
with Orbit Event Rentals,
Inc. for the purchase and
installation of a Lunch
Shelter Canopy at
Maybrook Elementary
School (Temporary Housing
for Rancho Intermediate
School)

District Local Control
Accountability Plan Update

Approval of the 2023/24
Consolidated Application

Approval of the Lowell
Joint School District’s
Response to the 2022-23
Orange County Grand Jury
Report: “The ABC’s of
Educating Children
Experiencing Homelessness
in Orange County”

Consent Calendar

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote, (5-0) to approve the Deductive
Change Order No. 4, Erickson Hall Construction Company, Lease-Leaseback General
Contractor, Meadow Green Elementary School, effective August 7, 2023, not to exceed
($5,110.00), (21.0-00000-0-00000-85000-6230-0080000) Measure LL (21.0 Bond
Fund), and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary
documents.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote, (5-0) to approve the ratified
agreement with Orbit Event Rentals, Inc., for the Purchase and installation of a Lunch
Shelter Canopy, Financial Impact: $36,250.62, Funding Source: Measure LL General
Obligation Fund — Fund 21.0, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to
execute the necessary documents.

As part of the LCAP process, the Board approved the LCAP on June 26, 2023 and it
was submitted to OCDE for county approval. Some revisions for updated budget items
and metrics were made based on feedback from OCDE.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote, (5-0) to approve the
revisions for the updated budget items and metrics of the District Local Accountability
Plan, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute all necessary
documents.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote, (5-0) to approved the
2023/24 Consolidated Application, and its submission to the California Department of
Education, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute all
necessary documents.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote, (5-0) to approve the
responses of the Lowell Joint School District recommendations in the 2022-2023
Orange County Grand Jury report entitled “The ABC’s of Educating Children
Experiencing Homelessness in Orange County” published on May 25, 2023, and that
the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by a unanimous vote, (5 — 0), to approve/ratify
the following items, under a consent procedure.



Purchase Order Listing
Report/Check Register
2023/2024 #1

Consolidated Check
Register Listing Report
2023/2024 #1

Approval of Agreement
with School Services of
California, Inc., to Provide
Consulting Services Related
to Fiscal Budget for the
2034/24 School Year

Ratification of Acceptance
of Certificate of Substantial
Completion, Erickson-Hall
Construction,
Modernization and HVAC
Upgrades at Meadow Green
Elementary School

Employer-Employee
Relations/Personnel Report
2023/2024 #1Which
Includes Hiring,
Resignations, Contract
Adjustments, and
Retirements for Certificated,
Classified, and Confidential
Employees

Approval of Consultant
Agreement with Brennen
Logan to provide Dance and
Theatre Workshop Classes
for Expanded Learning
Opportunities Program for
the 2023-24 School Year

Approval of Consultant
Agreement with Camille
Vargas to provide Dance
and Theatre Workshop
Classes for Expanded
Learning Opportunities

Meeting of the Board of Trustees
August 7, 2023
Page 4

Approved the Purchase Order Listing Report/Check Register 2023/2024 #1, issued
June 01, 2023, through June 30, 2023, as attached, and that the Superintendent or
designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Approved the Consolidated Check Register Listing Report 2023/2024 #1, issued June
1, 2023, through June 30, 2023, as attached, and that the Superintendent or designee
be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Approved the agreement with School Services of California, Inc., to provide
consulting services related to fiscal budget for the 2023/24 school year, in an amount
not to exceed $4,500 (plus expenses as defined in the contract), and that the
Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Ratified the acceptance of a Certificate of Substantial Completion, Erickson-Hall
Construction Company, Meadow Green Elementary School, Fire Alarm Upgrade,
Measure LL Bond Fund, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to
execute the necessary documents.

Ratified Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report 2023/24 #1, as attached,
which includes hiring, resignations, contract adjustments, and retirements for
certificated, classified, and confidential employees.

Approved the consultant agreement for Brennen Logan to be Dance and Theatre
Workshop Class Teacher(s) for the PowerSource Expanded Learning for Lowell Joint
School District during the 2023-24 school year, at an amount not to exceed $2,500, to
be paid by the 6762-Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary One Time
Block Grant and Fund 12 ELOP funds, and that the Superintendent or designee be
authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Approved the consultant agreement for Camille Vargas to be Dance and Theatre
Workshop Class Teacher(s) for the PowerSource Expanded Learning for Lowell Joint
School District during the 2023-24 school year, at an amount not to exceed $2,500, to
be paid by the 6762-Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary One Time
Block Grant and Fund 12 ELOP funds, and that the Superintendent or designee be
authorized to execute the necessary documents.



Meeting of the Board of Trustees

August 7, 2023
Page 5

Program for the 2023-24
School Year

Approval of Consultant
Agreement Tana
Carmichael to be a Costume
Designer for the Lowell
Joint Youth Theatre for the
2023-24 School Year —
Macy and Meadow Green

Approval of Consultant
Agreement Tana
Carmichael to be a Costume
Designer for the Lowell
Joint Youth Theatre for the
2023-24 School Year —
Olita and Jordan

Approval of Before and
After School Childcare
Services Effective August
16, 2023, through May 31,
2024, at Various Sites in
Lowell Joint School District

Approval of Agreement
with Mosaic Network, Inc.
to Provide Services during
the 2023/24 School Year

Approval of Agreement
#14082 with Thinking Maps
Inc. to Provide Professional
Development During the
2023-24 School Year

Approval of Agreement
with West Coast Protection,
LLC, dba:Interquest
Detection Canines, to
Provide Contraband
Inspection

Approval of Contract with
Whittier Christian High
School, for Student

Approved the consultant agreement for Tana Carmichael to be a costume designer for
the Lowell Joint Youth Theatre for Lowell Joint School District during the 2023-24
school year for Macy and Meadow Green, at an amount of $25.00 per hour for the 2
spring shows (Macy/Meadow Green), not to exceed $2000.00 total, to be paid by the
One Time Art & Music Block Grant and Fund 12 ELOP funds, and that the
Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Approved the consultant agreement for Tana Carmichael to be a costume designer for
the Lowell Joint Youth Theatre for Lowell Joint School District during the 2023-24
school year for Olita and Jordan, at an amount not to exceed $1000 per fall show, to
be paid by the One Time Art & Music Block Grant and Fund 12 ELOP funds, and
that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary
documents.

Approved the agreement with Boys & Girls Club La Habra effective August 16,
2023, through May 31, 2024, at various sites in Lowell Joint School District, at no
cost to the district, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute
the necessary documents.

Approved the Agreement with Mosaic Network, Inc., not to exceed $8,117, funded
by ESSER III, and the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the
necessary documents.

Approved the agreement with Thinking Maps Inc. to provide on-site Professional
Development during the 2023-24 school year at a cost NTE $3,500 per Agreement
#14082, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the
necessary documents.

Approved the contract with West Coast Protection, LLC, dba: Interquest Detection
Canines, to Provide Contraband Inspection, for the period August 2023 through June
2024, and the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary
documents.

Approved the Contracted Services Agreement with Whittier Christian High School,
for student transportation to and from the Rancho Starbuck and Maybrook Campuses,
effective August 8, 2023 through August 12, 2024, not to exceed $68,250, Measure



Transportation to and from
the Rancho Starbuck
Intermediate and Maybrook
Campuses during Rancho
Starbuck Modernization
(Bond Fund)

Board
Member/Superintendent
Comments

Adjournment

Date Approved:

Meeting of the Board of Trustees
August 7, 2023
Page 6

LL General Obligation Fund (21.0), and that the Superintendent or designee be
authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Mrs. Shackelford wished everyone a great start to the new school year. Ms. Shaw
asked if the staff in the audience were glad to be back at Meadow Green. Staft said
that they were glad and hoping it to be cleaned before they begin. Ms. Shaw
mentioned her grandson enjoying a Jordan preschool party.

President Shaw adjourned the meeting at 7:56 p.m. in accordance with Government
Code Section 54956.9 (a, b, ¢) and indicated no further public action would be taken

Clerk/President/Secretary to the Board of Trustees



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION 2023/24 No. 899

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT OF LOS ANGELES AND
ORANGE COUNTIES, CALIFORNIA, DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY
TO REQUEST DISBURSEMENTS THROUGH CALIFORNIA PUBLIC
EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the Lowell Joint School District established an
irrevocable trust in 2022; and,

WHEREAS, the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) has
established the California Employers' Retirement Benefit Trust Fund (CERBT) for California Public
Agencies to use to prefund future retiree health and other post-employment benefit costs; and;

WHEREAS, to request disbursements from the Other Post Employment Benefits Prefunding
Plan, CalPERS requires that the Governing Board delegate authority to request on behalf of the
Distrjct.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Governing Board of the Lowell Joint
School District, hereby delegates to the incumbents in the positions of Superintendent, Assistant
Superintendent of Business Services, and the Director of Fiscal Services authority to request on
behalf of the District disbursements from the Other Post Employment Benefits Prefunding Plan
and;

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any said disbursements are certified as to the
purpose for which the disbursed funds will be used.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 7" day of August 2023, by the following vote:
AYES:Karen Shaw, Anastasia Shackelford, Anthony Zegarra, Christine Berg, Melissa Salinas
NOES: Nomne
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN:None
I, Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School District of
Los Angeles and Orange Counties, California, hereby certify that the above and foregoing resolution
was duly and regularly adopted by the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held on the 7" day of
August 2023, and passed by a vote of those present.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 7" day of August, 2023.

N

S\lc i Jim Coombs
retary to the Board of Trustees




Elite Modular Leasing & Sales, Inc.

June 26, 2023
Lowell Joint School District

Attn: David Bennett (email: dbennett@/jsd.org)

Item | — Lease #1671253 PCR #2 at Maybrook Phase |l

a) Ramp Modification $ 3,500.00

Total PCR #2 $ 3,500.00

item ll = Inclusions

¢« As noted above

If the above is acceptable, please sign below and return by June 28, 2023

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me on my cell at (480) 486-5302

Sincerely, ACCEPTED i , DATE L Y. 25
A

Elite Modular Inc. //

: ',’/4-7’;”7- ._/(Z(l/'/'(/ )/ [ j 5\
TITLE /JS’S /n/) (A JLL

Arturo Ibarra
Transportation Coordinator

PO Box 78447 Corona, CA 92877 | Office (951) 422-2500



s PCCO #004

Erickson-Hall Construction

An Employee Owned Compary

Erickson-Hall Construction Co. Project: 4204 - Meadow Green ES
500 Corporate Drive 12025 Grovedale Drive
Escandido, California 92029 Whittier, California 90604

Phone: +17607967700

Prime Contract Chaﬂge Order #004: Creditin% Contingfncies

TO: Lowaell Joint School District FROM: Erickson-Hall Construction Co

11537 Grovedale Dr. 500 Corporate Drive

Whlttler Callfornla 90604 Escondido, California 92029
PCCO ' 004/0 - ' CONTRACT FOR;  4204:Meadow Green ES Prime Contract
NUMBERIREVISION
DATE CREATED:  6/07/2023 - ~ SUBMITTED DATE o ' -
SCHEDULE IMPACT: TOTAL AMOUNT: ($5 110 00)
DESCRIPTION:

Crediting Contingencies
The fallowing pricing is for crediting the construction contingency and errors and omission contingency for the Meadow Green ES project.

ATTACHMENTS:

Potentlal Change Orders in this Change Order

PCO # Title Schedule Impact Amount

57 Crediting Contingencies $-5,110.00
Total: $(5,110.00)

The original (Contract Sum) $5,732,107.00
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders $407,905.00
The contract sum prior to this Change Order was $6,140,012.00
The contract sum would be changed by this Change Order In the amount of ($5,110.00)
The new contract sum including this Change Order will be $6,134,902.00

Execution of this Potential Change Order will revise the contract value as indicated and may change the contract duration.
Contractor reserves it's right to request additional time and/or cost once the full extent or cumulative nature of the contract change(s) become known.

Ghataode Bannon Architects Lowell Joint School District Erickson-Hall Construction Co
760 W 16th Street Unit B 11537 Grovedale Dr. 500 Corporate Drive
Costa Mesa, California 92627 Whittier, Cai; rnia 9PE04 Escondido, California 92029
pterr o
Ve L.7. / 7 &
M toner 7.23 73 y 2%
| SIGNATURE DATE DATE / SIGNATURE DATE

Erickson-Hall Construction Co. page 1 of 1 Printed On; 6/7/2023 10:27 AM




Z10°0b1'9$ (1101 PEQUOD pasiey

(3110Mm 40 8doog peppy 1euUONIPPY) 692° Lp2S ZH €4 8BuBUD WeUeD
(9SW 2oe|day) 980"} .§ ‘24 s6uByD oEAUOD

. (%s1y 810pyng) 0G6'¥8S 114 ABUBHD 19BAUOD

20176 £'6$ JunoWy peiod BUtuo

:Aeuwing Penquon

00'000°00L $ |00 TFOFLE 5] - HIE His $[0019ry S ooGee 5] 00 S Jldro ull ONINIVWSH ADONSONLLNOD
E 3| - §| DOGOOSL S| 00000GZ S| 0000005 S| COBGZGS2 § | DOLOZ 032 § | 0006 599 [IN3d5 AONIONILNOD
§ [00Z8S9 5 [00eAsS $ JB|BUS LOUIT) PUB @189 W0Id Wied] L2/l SIS VN £
€202 [ [ AOGES) 5 | eemis Vi !u
THEON 0D EZ0Z AT > OBEE L1 3 0 50g 3 PUn G ) g ¥_| E2ven VM| VNS
2UEDE 0D EZ0E 0058 3 DUIpIIng U 00D U)-HIOM 0) JOWOd| TLBLY | EEYER Nl YNJLUES
2E0# 00 E202 79I 0026416 B BUM 580 VBA| cziaeiy | ERIveR VN VIN[iEES
PIOA ET0E 00902 GIY VL0 000 80 IUA [EopREerd pUs amanselU EnoeE| exmziy | EZveR WiN| W0L0 ODOLS
THEDS 0O FZaz e OO FEL Bl PIBOUEIMG LIV 0] FERE NTID| eLpey | EbeR YMN|  YN[EHOS
UEOH OO €202 Mew 2 00556 28 PIECQUIME WY M| €202y | Gelvile 7y T (77
2UE0H 0D £202 JN z DO02Z5SL 10 G DuB WL 10 Qo0 J2d 3 Buipiig 18 nD| cemey | EQvie | wiioooo| tosiay
Q3t0# 00 EZOZAOW | Z DO'LB5 62 B0 -t 10d IpUnT) BENBaS wining| teuely | ecere [T T 1717
€202 ) 00ieltz S |00VELET F50 174 150 UjEig UIolS pus NS (nes @ BUpiing Jo nos| e/l EUBE wg T g
| T O01EAE G01E8°E ¥60 13x] 190 O] QNS Josy GUeA EeAIL cZhe B3
EZ0Z W Z 0’188 00166 60 150 PONPUGT UDOH ELI I SRR ao _uE g =3
£202 = DOYEEE] € [l00voe) 3 €60 134 390 YD) [[BMPE0H (DNl T/t EEA €60 129
EZOZ UST | | 00DLELE Z (00002212 500 [ J90 AQUISESY FHUIASL] MOBYORE]  E2/2h EZE/L BEOLEl WM
T34 0% PUIE _ TZ02 0w 7 TOGIEEL 006188 B0L0 Q00 480 [[EMPBeH WoUG-A| CEiZL 2T VN[ 8010 003[EF
E202 G0 (T ] 0066 LF 820 |32 160 S9BUBL) SUOHBAC[] UEI] UBGIS 10 BUDKVE|  EZ/ZV] S2/Gl) nB g viNig
A SR OO FIBE 002 250 PIEA EoiUEE0R 3 BOpIng [0 01D BNl e/Elil | Eavil JEETY) )
£202 uer [ = D009L 11 £90 |48 199 UIIT] jesUnpunD Hun JvAH 3 buping|  ezwie | sellEE) _.m«s [ T
£Z0Z10T 00°ZI0T S| - DOZLOL [FEEZE] VS unspe 3 =T Te0 e VNLE
§207 Qo Lt = 00S0Lr _ 5|00S0L ﬂa_mz Q OUp{InG Uf UORBI0IeH UBI| t2ibjt | ZZIvbiZL E0jd]  VINIS
€20z Aol 00G0L 08 00" |00 UEG BS 220 BE0AG0 POWINOW JoWENa|  ezib ZeBEL ISOLH| VNS
220z 090 = 069, %I 190 1= _..8 PUS BAEA OIS iy | zRrt [CTIET]
[FAEE E (D0SE¥E 5 |00SurE V800 4O2) 794 BUBIS 1 MBN 3 Bupling] ZZ0elbk | i £60 L[ 'v900 GO
CEAE OO 2682y SEs 00268 LY WIO0 000 253 SDUIPUNE 8 Ul 8I008I00 190H| CZOLILE | EZiLelh V€0 || Wi00 000
220290 = DUGLSS  $|00BISS 850 134 250 PEND 1B UBEE USie) P it | zezen 590 (58, VR[iE
BZOZUOT e - [E 150 141100 5 BUIPHRE |8 S0URea)0 | ZERILL | Zenzit 190 =34 vm|oe:
£Z0Z 9% = S| oozlen Zhg 950 194 194 SOAUOO $481903 er3| Zitertl | zeitdl D) w6z
EZ0Z MO BEE LY - 00Ez8 21 050 14 J6d swinsAs ehaiop wo Dufiena| Zapi/El | Zand 050 1 ViN[ez
e [WERES = = D = 00 /86 62 040 134 100 BJ0I] E1eq 3 pue 8 DUPINE| ZZ/celts | Z2mLl 010 1Y) N
E20Z A0V = = = _mcq-uem (D) 3 10 135 2o VORSIeG SUTT BEsURRIO0 O BUAPINE| ZEIEZibh | LML P10 Y| LTE
S0z uup 009691% - x 0 el DiUEh ve VHO0 00D bW |56 390 0 7 ¥ Lpia S LoD DUpera| Ze/teits | geril 1¥0 1 Y800 003z
€202 001 = = o01S6% 007158 V200 000 ¥ 110 138 100 B baping 8 640 Uiy 3| Z2iil ZZL 110 | weoo aoofie
7Z0C o0 ODZIE_ - DOZLE 820134 N[y &inpxid |1 edAl| Zzah 2RIl Ai0IN] - VINJEZ
AL Sﬁ_. ¥ = {00SLLE 500 003 7 860 L0 SU0GY 01 EET] TEEIIL 20 [/H] 9500 A0
E202 993 [T 00808 GE 1= 190 WOoH (GO9S Ul BleuBd S6600Y Vi | eaen BE0 198 VINILEZ
ZE0E 000 3 = 00ELY 500 144 01 DOOOULCONY BU%) JOTEGH JSTEA g buping| eseil | eelll H0G L4 VN[O
ZIDZ N0 = OULELVL S |[DOZLLPL V0 1 160 BINpeLES [ied pue Gild 10014 5 jue Q0 g% Bl ZZieeli) | EaiLlh CEHET] K 3
222 G O0VIEOE S |00 ¥L6 6L To ¥ Ly 0e0 ISy [ __.nza [ DEQIE] — WNIEL
ZZozoo0 FerE - H@m 040 58 190 BRang Mo Ping] ~ZzEil) | eavelt 020 194] Wiy
(AL — GOSSE T 00565 0 13y 160 DUUO16d BOUW o PINE| gelzii) | CEIVEDL BE0LHl WIS
R [T A A ES0 |9 /84 RO U DUfloas G01s Y| ZZi90iy | SLvbilk [T I [T
. - i3 ; 3 B fo FEAT GEOIH]  WN[FL
; Teoe o [TV O0LLLY Iv0 (38 ; B0 .8 Zel ZahiL ] T
| VSE04S PONT 4 = B0 PR BED LId T a8 gy CUIpinG U] ZZiviL Sl U NNIEE
ZZ0Z AON ODBEB S DOBEE’ 120 1 q i M SIS I UIERE WD e [FONEL] R
©zug uer GO0z 8L S |00EDZEE VZ00 009 190 3 Dulpjing 0 oRu| Zeml | Tendt | 7200 GO0|0k
(226200 | O0CLLD S |DOELL F e P 119 UDQEIS BURISUAA Ui0 Jo) U] BURepcl| 22/zuiol | Zeicele Zealdd]  WM[E
I T 7 el [T OB 8200 GO0 PUN 620 |38 100 0 BUIPING 10 M08 UEEE UaiD| Zefeelll | 2ezife. 620 94| 8400 QUO{IHE
- 0z 00Eds ¥ o0eiaE 20 103 190 ] O] put [ACLIGY SUrEE UaD ZEVLE | ZELEE Zzoid| W
8L = e GOZVLEE_ $|O00ZLL E0 1 S9%00 B Ul NOE B80)| ZEMEILL | zavee Cl0IH] YN[k
ZE PO 00005* S 00005 020 135 720 [BAGWSY oio8 DUpaPa|_ zoivel | celced | OcolZdl WIS
A G0EZrE O0EZY 220 13 J90 Sonunn BunsiT yiva BURAIYUOD UTEIQ WisiS L Gi VA | zemis PELET] Y] (2
= e (R 240 B e ) Zioid]  YA[E
£202 e fooelsver 5| - G025 PEL 200 |1 100 $peDT SIBNBRIg WNAID)| ZULEIL | - Zeiddl 200138 WA
Zeoeunt | 0| - S = = DO 000 05 = [T TEg 20 Wooey UeUeEG Y POTIAGY JBd [UmUeIeqy|  Z2em | Zed L7 T [
000 i L LT T L s ¥ v | oopss'onr ¢ WAORDY AU
SINZWMOD onrria (s AR MG S R O - & B e o NOLLIPIS0 poNosay | PAIMNANS | gngnay | 000 e
yeasq.oun ZUET] Bugqen Meg Jjedey Jooy weweleay pue eyl ORINAIELC] sra elea

807 Adud8uiluo) - §3 UIBID) MOPEBIA - YOTZY




Status: Quote

9525 Sorensen Ave. ‘ Quote #: q38532
Santa Fe Springs, CA 80670
- www.orbiteventrentals.com 9 Event Beg: Tue 8/ 1/2023
562-696-8875 Phone .
(_)ﬂ=| ] o S Wl o Return: Wed 8/ 2/2023
EVERIT EErITALS ) Operator: Guerrero. Nori
| Cust #: 22819 |
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT Phone 562-902-4290
11018 VALLEY HOME AVE. Job Descr:  50x100 CANOPY PURCHASE

WHITTIER, CA 90603
Get your Party Off The Ground and into ORBIT!

Ordered By: DENISE M. SOTO 562 631-5440
Sales Rep: Nori Guerrero  562-686-2247  nori@orbiteventrentals.com

Qty | Key items Each Statue Event End Date Price
50X100X8 CANOPY PURCHASE
1| MSS 50x100x8 JUMBO ALUMINUM $30,195.00 Retail Fri 7/21/2023 $30,195.00
FRAME
INCLUDES: 50X100 WHITE CANOPY TOP, PIPE, FITTINGS, STAKES, PINS. TENT WALLS, TIE
DOWNS AND WATER BARRELS ADDITIONAL.
30 | WB55B-1 WATER BARREL 55 GALLON $49.95 Sold Asset Tue 8/ 1/2023 $1,498.50
(BLUE)
FOR SAFE ANCHORING OF CANOPY
30 | CSTRAP-1 CANOPY STRAP $22.00 Sold Asset Tue 8/ 1/2023 $660.00
FOR ANCHORING TENT TO WATER BARRELS.
1 | |000DEL FREIGHT/DELIVERY/INSTALLATI $500.00 Delivery Tue 8/ 1/2023 $500.00
ON

Delivery Fri 7/14/2023
DENISE SOTO 562-902-4293

MAYBROOK SCHOOL
11019 VALLEY HOME AVE.
WHITTIER, CA 90603 —

DELIVERY & INSTALL CANOPY TUES. AUG 1

WATER SOURCE REQUIRED WITHIN 50FT OF TENT

- QUOTE IS BASED ON PURCHASE OF TENT ONLY, NOT RENTAL.

- USED/AS IS CONDITION. ALL SALES ARE FINAL.

- DELIVERY & INSTALLATION NOT INCLUDED WITH SALE OF CANOPY BUT AVAILABLE FOR ADDITIONAL FEE.
- ONCE DELIVERED OR INSTALLED, CANOPY BECOMES PROPERTY OF LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT.

- OER WILL NOT BE HELD LIABLE FOR BODILY HARM OR PROPERTY DAMAGE DUE TO PURCHASED TENTS.

- IF TENT CANNOT BE STAKED IN THE GROUND, 55 GAL WATER DRUMS REQUIRED FOR ANCHORING TENT.

- 55 GAL WATER DRUMS AVAILABLE @50.00 EACH. MINIMUM 30 BARRELS RECOMMENDED FOR ACHORING A

50X100 TENT.

**WILL CALL HRS 8:30-11 AM & 12-4 PM**
*CLOSED 11AM-12PM**

ALL SALES FINAL

Modification #4

Contract-Params.rpl (1)

~Mon-Fri 8:30am-4:30pm-~
Printed On Mon 7/10/2023 4:53:05PM Software by Point-of-Rental Software www.poinl-of-rental com



Quote #: 38532 LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT Page 2 of 2

Sales: $32,353.50
Delivery Charge: $500.00
Subtotal; $32,853.50
Sales Tax: $3,397.12
Total: $36,250.62
Paid: $0.00
Signature:
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT Amount Due: $36,250.62
~Mon-Fri 8:30am-4:30pm~ Modification #4

Printed On Mon 7/10/2023 4:53:05PM Software by Point-of-Renlal www.point-of-renial.com Conlraci-Params.rpt (1)



Lowell Joint
School District

A Tradition afExraHeum Since 1906

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Lowell Joint School District
CDS Code: 30-64766-0000000

School Year: 2023-24

LEA contact information:

Jim Coombs

Superintendent

jcoombs@ljsd.org

562.902.4203

School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding Formula
(LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of funding for all LEAs
and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based on the enroliment of high
needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students).

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 1 of 123




Budget Overview for the 2023-24 School Year

Projected Revenue by Fund Source

All federal fu
$3,026,538

All Other LCFF funds,
1,589,087, 73%

Total LCFF funds
$35,414,827

LCFF s@&p%menta &
concentration grants,

$3,825,740, 9

All local funds,
$3,670,976 , 8%

All other sta
$1,252,484 , 3%

This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Lowell Joint School District expects to receive in the coming
year from all sources.

The text description for the above chart is as follows: The total revenue projected for Lowell Joint School District
is $43,364,825, of which $35,414,827 is Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $1,252,484 is other state funds,
$3,670,975 is local funds, and $3,026,539 is federal funds. Of the $35,414,827 in LCFF Funds, $3,825,740 is
generated based on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learner, and low-income

students).

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 2 of 123



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school districts
must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and Accountability
Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students.

Budgeted Expenditures in the LCAP
$ 44,000,000
$ 42,000,000
Total Budgeted
$ 40,000,000 General Fund
Expenditures,
$ 38,000,000 $42,039,422
$ 36,000,000 Total Budgeted
Expenditures in
$ 34,000,000 the LCAP
$35,558,702
$ 32,000,000

This chart provides a quick summary of how much Lowell Joint School District plans to spend for 2023-24. It
shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the LCAP.

The text description of the above chart is as follows: Lowell Joint School District plans to spend $42,039,422 for
the 2023-24 school year. Of that amount, $35,558,702 is tied to actions/services in the LCAP and $6,480,720 is
not included in the LCAP. The budgeted expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be used for the
following:

There is just over six million dollars in general fund monies not included in the LCAP. There is approximately
$300,000 in maintenance and custodial expenses with another $275,000 in insurance costs. Also not identified in
the LCAP are substitute costs for both certificated and classified ($915,700), supply budgets for various
departments ($988,000), and some additional licenses and contracts from departments that don't have specific
action items identified within an existing goal ($266,000). OPEB benefits for retirees make up another $373,000.
There are also some transfers of indirect costs for Fund 12 (Child Development) and Fund 13 (Cafeteria) for
$156,000. The bulk of the remaining funds not tied specifically to an LCAP Action ltem are one-time dollars (2.9
million).

Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the
LCAP for the 2023-24 School Year

In 2023-24, Lowell Joint School District is projecting it will receive $3,825,740 based on the enroliment of foster
youth, English learner, and low-income students. Lowell Joint School District must describe how it intends to
increase or improve services for high needs students in the LCAP. Lowell Joint School District plans to spend
$4,328,254 towards meeting this requirement, as described in the LCAP.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 3 of 123



2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 4 of 123



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs
Students in 2022-23

Prior Year Expenditures: Increased or Improved Services for High
Needs Students

[ Total Budgeted Expenditures for
High Needs Students in the $3,816,108
LCAP
O Actual Expenditures for High
Needs Students in LCAP $3,653,866
$0 $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $3,000000  $4,000,000 $5,000,000

This chart compares what Lowell Joint School District budgeted last year in the LCAP for actions and services
that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students with what Lowell Joint School District
estimates it has spent on actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs

students in the current year.

The text description of the above chart is as follows: In 2022-23, Lowell Joint School District's LCAP budgeted
$3,816,108 for planned actions to increase or improve services for high needs students. Lowell Joint School
District actually spent $3,653,866 for actions to increase or improve services for high needs students in 2022-23.

The difference between the budgeted and actual expenditures of $-162,242 had the following impact on Lowell
Joint School District’s ability to increase or improve services for high needs students:

There was not a significant impact in terms of services for High Needs Students. The actual allocation for
Supplemental funds for these students was just shy of 3 million, so the additional $800,000 was budgeted over
and above the required expenditures. The $162,000 projected for expenditures and unspent were costs shifted to
other funding sources such as one-time dollars.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 5 of 123



Lowell Joint
School District

A Tradition afExreHaure Since 1906

Local Control and Accountability Plan

The instructions for completing the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) follow the template.

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone
Lowell Joint School District Jim Coombs jcoombs@ljsd.org
Superintendent 562.902.4203

Plan Summary [2023-24]

General Information
A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades transitional kindergarten—12, as applicable to the LEA.

The Lowell Joint School District was established in 1906 and encompasses 8 square miles in the cities of La Habra, La Habra Heights,
Whittier, and portions of unincorporated Los Angeles County. The District serves the educational needs of approximately 3,050 students in
Transitional Kindergarten through eighth grade at five TK-6 elementary schools and one intermediate school. There is also a special needs
preschool at one elementary site with two additional preschools at Jordan and Olita. The district is proud of its diverse student population,
which includes students from a variety of cultural, ethnic, and socio-economic backgrounds. The LJSD recognizes the importance of
providing a safe and supportive learning environment for all students and works to create a culture of respect, inclusivity, and equity. The
race/ethnic break down of the student population reported for the 2022-2023 California Dashboard includes significant student groups for
Hispanic at 69.2% and White, non-Hispanic at 19.4%. There are also 4.5% Asian, 1.6% Filipino, and 1.4% African American with a few
students in other ethnicities. Within the overall student population, approximately 12% qualify for Special Ed services, 7.5% for English
Learners, 1.3% McKinney Vento, with 53.7% low income. This is still a significant increase in families qualifying for free/reduced lunch from
two years ago at 41%. While we do not have a significant number of Foster Youth (less than 1%), we monitor all of these student groups to
provide targeted support based on need in our overall Multi-Tiered System of Supports or MTSS. All six schools received a Pivotal Practice
Award in the 2021-22 school year as well as recognition as California Distinguished Schools and Gold Ribbon schools in prior years. Rancho
Starbuck Intermediate was also designated as a School To Watch in the 2016-17 school year and was redesignated in the 2020 and 2023

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 6 of 123



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#PlanSummary
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#generalinformation

school years. The District is committed to providing strong academics, basic skills, and a well-rounded program of traditional subject
offerings. Our focus is on our five cornerstones: Reading, Writing, Math, Character Education, and Patriotic Education. We emphasize the
importance of education, the family, and traditional American values: higher education, personal integrity, social responsibility, Character
Education, and an appreciation of our national heritage are all stressed at District schools. All students have access to Chromebooks as part
of our 1:1 Chromebook Initiative along with professional development for teachers in instructional practices for technology integration. All
students have access to technology through STEAM activities either within the classroom or in the STEAM Lab including 3D printers, Virtual
Reality, Strawbees, Spheros, Green Screen set-ups, and Ozobots. Both Rancho Starbuck and El Portal have been honored with California
School Board Association Golden Bell Awards, and the District as a whole has received six Golden Bell Awards in the last six years. El Portal
is also a No Excuses University site. The district has been honored with two very prestigious Magna awards from the National School Boards
Association on a national level for it's Blue Ribbon Special Education team and Arts for All: Let the Music Play (2022-Grand Prize winner).
Overall, the Lowell Joint School District is committed to providing a high-quality education to all students to prepare them for success in high
school and beyond.

With the support of our community, Lowell Joint was able to pass a bond measure (Measure LL) in 2019 that is allowing the district to tackle
some much needed improvements to the aging facilities since most schools were built in the 1950s and 60s. Work has already been
completed at Maybrook (for temporary housing), Olita, El Portal, Macy, and Jordan with Meadow Green finishing up in June of 2023. The
scope of work includes roofing, HVAC systems, associated electrical, sewer lines, replacement of wood affected by termites and/or wood rot,
and various other projects related to bringing our schools into the 21st century. Rancho Starbuck will undergo updates in the 2023-2024
school year. Additional district funds have been able to add to the scope of work including painting, marquees, and water-bottle filling stations
as examples.

Annually, the Board of Trustees approves the District Core Values and the Guiding Goals and accompanying descriptions which serve as the
overarching vision for the Lowell Joint School District. The Mission, Core Values and Board Goals are listed below:

Mission: The Lowell Joint School District is committed to providing a strong academic program of 21st Century Skills with a well-rounded
program of diverse and innovative subject offerings. All District Schools emphasize the importance of education, the family, and traditional
values. We stress the value of personal; integrity, social responsibility, and a respect for our national heritage. The Lowell Joint School
District envisions a culture where technology empowers all members of the school community to achieve success and expand learning
beyond the walls of the classroom. All stakeholders will utilize technology to become highly competent in a technological world through
continuous improvement in academics, career, and life.

Core Values
EXCELLENCE: Exhibits patience and hard work in achieving goals; works, learns, and pursues constructive goals, even in the face of
adversity.

PERSONAL INTEGRITY: Exhibits sound moral principles, virtues, and good character demonstrating honesty and trustworthiness in the
community.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 7 of 123



SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY & RESPECT: Treats others justly, fairly, and with dignity; shows high regard for others and treating them as they
would like to be treated. Affirms the worth of self, others, property, and the environment through attitudes and actions. Accepts the necessity
of being accountable and the consequences of individual actions, reactions, and decisions; honors commitments; demonstrates an active
commitment to the welfare of self and others.

RESPECT FOR NATIONAL HERITAGE: Exhibits a value of and commitment to our American National Heritage and the public good; works
for the community and cooperates with others; respects and participates in the democratic process; observes all laws and rules; and resolves
conflicts peacefully.

FAMILY — TEAMWORK: Works well together combining individual talents and strengths, supporting each other, and then working
cooperatively to achieve mutual objectives. Demonstrates caring, concern, and sensitivity; exhibits tolerance; treats others politely, mercifully,
and with respect and dignity; and renders service when needed.

TRADITIONAL VALUES: Tells truth; does not cheat, intentionally mislead, or steal; possesses the courage to behave and conduct
interactions with integrity; exhibits consistency between words and actions; behaves in a fair and straightforward manner; and
conscientiously pursues and scrutinizes evidence that supports the truth.

Guiding Goals

DISTRICT GOAL 1: ACADEMIC EXCELLENCE - LEARNING FOR ALL STUDENTS

Vision: Every student experiences educational success at the highest levels of achievement. We believe that each student has a unique
ability to learn in an environment that is enriched with a challenging curriculum, where learning is modeled and expectations are both known
and high. We expect all students to demonstrate continued and improved academic achievement, through Collaboration, Communication,
Critical thinking, and Creativity, to be college and career ready, and to become lifelong learners.

DISTRICT GOAL 2: SAFE, ORDERLY, POSITIVE, RESPECTFUL LEARNING ENVIRONMENTS

Vision: All campuses provide an aesthetic, orderly environment that is organized to ensure learning. We believe in a collaborative spirit of
place where all feel safe, welcomed, valued, and respected. We foster a culture that promotes the emotional health, safety, well-being and
involvement of students, staff, family and community.

DISTRICT GOAL 3: HIGH QUALITY STAFF PROVIDING HIGH QUALITY SERVICE

Vision: All staff possesses the appropriate knowledge, skills, and attitudes needed to provide high quality services leading to high quality
results. We believe that high quality service is achieved when staff is well trained, proactive, responsive, and collaborative. We attract, train,
and retain high performing staff that actively engage, collaborate, and support students in effective instruction and the use of current
technologies.

DISTRICT GOAL 4: SCHOOL/ FAMILY/ COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS & COMMUNICATION

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 8 of 123



Vision: High quality student learning is supported by partnerships. We believe these partnerships are enhanced through effective
communication and collaboration. We establish a culture which encourages positive relationships among our students, staff, and families as
well as educational, business, and community partners. We believe these partnerships and communication must be nurtured to optimize
opportunities for learning ad personal growth for students.

DISTRICT GOAL 5: ACQUISITION & ALLOCATION OF RESOURCES TO SUPPORT FISCAL EXCELLENCE

Vision: Resources are focused to achieve district goals. We believe that public schools deserve sufficient resources to achieve high quality
student learning. We believe that efficiency, transparency, and cost-effective practices must characterize District and school operations to
ensure that resources are aligned and applied to achieve established goals. We are committed to remaining fiscally solvent by effectively
managing resources and pursuing new revenue sources.

Reflections: Successes
A description of successes and/or progress based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data.

As a District, the focus on early learning supported by a grant from First Five OC and the influx of state funds under Universal Pre-
Kindergarten (UPK) has allowed us to really expand offerings and supports for families in this area. The Learning Link we opened in January
of 2022 has been open for it's first full year now. The Learning Link is a space for parents to come with their child age 0-5 and engage in
activities to build school readiness in areas such as gross and fine motor skills, cooperation with other kids, following routines, letters and
sounds, and so forth. It allows for support of parents in activities they can do at home as well to continue to develop a strong foundation for
learning. When it opened in January of 2022 it was just two days a week to begin serving approximately 24 families. The response was so
overwhelmingly positive that we added a third day almost immediately. Fun, Physical Fridays were added in March and split into two
sessions to accommodate the growing demand servicing over 40 families. For the 2022-2023 school year, approximately 96 families have
participated and connected with each other to create a community over the four days a week it is open. We received recognition from the
Senate for our program and have been excited to welcome colleagues from around the county to visit as part of the Communities of Practice
facilitated through the Orange County Department of Education. The parents have asked us to continue the Learning Link through the
summer. We are exploring the possibilities for this summer, but we can definitely plan for that in the future. We applied for and received
funding for two state funded preschools: one at Olita and one at Jordan. We opened both full day and part day options on a small scale as
we increase our services for early learners and plan for the expanded learning opportunities required by the state. With the growing desire of
families for full-day options, we are licensing a third site (Macy) to open a for-fee, full-day program. The state did not open applications for
additional state funded slots, so we are working with our current analyst to determine if we can shift some of the existing unused slots over to
the new site at Macy.

We have hired Coordinators for both Early Learning and Expanded Learning to support the growth of programs in these two areas, which is
very exciting. Lowell Joint doesn't qualify for after school funding from the state (ASES), so this new funding under the Expanded Learning
Opportunities-Program (ELO-P) will allow us to service students needing academic supports as well as enrichment while supporting families
who are in need of additional hours of child care. The Expanded Learning program called PowerSource has been overwhelmingly positive for
2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 9 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#ReflectionsSuccesses

families in supporting both the practical side of child care issues while affording students unique and exciting opportunities for enrichment in
everything from the Lowell Joint Youth Theater modeled after the Disney Musical in Schools program at El Portal to things like coding and
cooking, art, YMCA and Boys and Girls Club programs, and intervention support. Beginning all of this from scratch has been a huge
undertaking, so we are excited to make some refinements to streamline processes in the the upcoming year.

While Lowell Joint continues to be a high performing district, there is still a need to address students not succeeding in the traditional
program. The district has worked closely with each of the sites to determine the areas of greatest need and how to address those needs.
Rancho Starbuck has an award-winning intervention program that provides additional support for students struggling with reading,
mathematics, or language development. Two sections each of reading and math intervention, and an ELD support class provide targeted
assistance to students needing a little extra help to be successful academically. Additional STEAM offerings provide enrichment and
engagement for students including a pathway that leads to AP Computer Science. Rancho Starbuck was honored as a National School to
Watch in 2016 initially and again in 2018 and 2023 for their ongoing efforts in creating an engaging environment for learning that supports all
students in high levels of achievement. For all sites, providing intervention opportunities within the school day has been an ongoing focus.
Refining our Multi-tiered System of Support (MTSS) to meet the needs of all students and close performance gaps is an ongoing process
based on changes in data each year. For 2022, we were still above state and Los Angeles county proficiency levels with 56% meeting or
exceeding in English language arts and 40% in mathematics compared to 47% for the state in ELA and 33% for mathematics. LA county was
at 47% for ELA and 33% for mathematics. For both areas, we were below the Orange county levels of proficiency at 57% and 45%. This is
not entirely surprising given the extended period of time students were in distance learning due to LA county requirements. We have, in fact,
almost closed the gap for ELA with a 1% difference (we increased 5% while the county decreased 4%). For mathematics, performance
increased by 5% with the county increase at only 2%, so we are again closing that gap. We continued with iReady this year, so we are
relying heavily on that data to inform instructional practice throughout the year. The placements in the program for mathematics show a 24%
increase (compared to 12% last year) in the number of students in the "mid on-grade or above" category with another 7% increase
(compared to 3% last year) in "early on-grade" This gives us a total of 52% in these two levels compared to the beginning of the year with
only 21%. For ELA, the growth was from 40% to 62% in these same two categories from the beginning to the end of the year.

The Special Education Blue Ribbon Action Team was formed to completely revamp Board policies and procedures to better serve our
students with disabilities. This committee included teachers, district personnel, SELPA representation, a lawyer from OCDE, and a professor
from BIOLA in order to ensure that best practices and education code were all forefront in discussions. All policies and procedures were
reviewed, revised, and submitted for Board approval. As a result of all this work, the district was honored with the very prestigious Magna
award from the National School Boards Association in 2021 and a subsequent Golden Bell award in 2022. Members of this committee
presented at the ACSA Region 17 Administrator Conference and are sharing at a staff meeting for each of the six sites during the 2021-2022
school year to develop a better understanding of these policies and procedures for all staff. On the heels of this award, the district received a
Golden Bell award and a second Magna award in 2022 for the arts program Arts for All: Let the Music Play. In the category for small schools,
Lowell Joint was actually the grand prize winner for 2022. Each of the six schools received a Pivotal Practice award from the state in 2022 as
well which highlights effective strategies for supporting students during the 2020-21 school year when California required schools to offer
distance learning due to the COVID-19 pandemic. These are just a few examples of the recognition received through outside agencies that
helps to validate the incredibly dedicated staff in Lowell Joint who strive to make things better in service of our students.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 10 of 123



We hired 12 paid interns for the 2022-2023 school year (six counseling and six psych) to work directly with current personnel to increase
services through our C.R.E.W. (Creative Response to Emotional and Educational Wellness) program . This was the fourth year of this
program, which continues to be a success. These services are in addition to the existing partnership with the Gary Center (no cost), a
partnership with Supervisor Hahn's Office for limited counseling support (no cost), an existing counselor and existing Psych services. The
response to C.R.E.W. has been overwhelmingly positive on all school campuses. The vast majority of counseling done through the interns
has been personal/social counseling. The next largest counseling type has been academic counseling and "other" with over 200 meetings
each. As we know, those two issues go hand-in-hand. If a student is struggling personally, there is a good chance there are academic issues
as well. And if there are academic issues, there are usually personal struggles present. Staff continue to appreciate that there are more
hands on deck to help students in all areas from academic to personal/social needs. It has been helpful to provide more personalized
supports for students. For example, when an SST is held for a student, it is now feasible to offer weekly check-ins with a
counseling/psychologist intern as a way to support student progress. The interns have done presentations in classes on topics such as “how
to be a good friend” and career interest inventories. They have held group sessions for students struggling with grief or for students who
struggle to complete homework. They work with students that have trouble controlling their anger, which can play out in aggression in the
classroom or with their peers. They work with students suffering from anxiety and overwhelming emotional issues, which has been especially
helpful during the pandemic. The interns have helped with supervision, a key role in the job of a school counselor, as well as helped with
FLEX classes when students were on campus. The counseling interns have also sat in on SST’s and IEPs and helped with the College
Planning Night for parents at Rancho. Teachers and staff have appreciated the support as we continue to meet the needs of students, and
students are continuing to benefit from the support and encouragement that the interns provide. Overall, the implementation of C.R.E.W. is a
continued success and will only continue to grow. The addition of Care Solace as a 3rd-party vendor to support families in navigating mental
health supports has also been a success.

The community passed Measure LL in November of 2018 with overwhelming support for our Lowell Joint schools. The bond has allowed for
the upgrade and modernization of facilities that were constructed in the 1950s and 60s. With the school closures during the pandemic, the
work was started earlier than expected with no students on campus and accelerated without having to manage temporary housing. This
allowed for completion of construction in a more timely manner, which moved up the timelines. This continues to save on construction costs
and the repayment schedule. Maybrook (temporary housing), Olita, El Portal, Macy, and Jordan are completed with Meadow Green finishing
up in June of 2023. That leaves only Rancho Starbuck in 2023-24 to complete the scope of the work identified in the Measure LL bond.

While Chronic Absenteeism is one of the priority areas identifying the district for Differentiated Assistance, it is still an area of success as we
recover from the pandemic. Our average attendance as of May 2022 was 94.2% with a range from 91.84% to 95.76% between the six sites.
We have been actively monitoring our chronic absentee rates for the last six years internally. In the 2018-19 school year, Lowell Joint had a
chronic absentee rate of 4.8% in comparison to the State at 9%. Attendance data was skewed with the closures in March of 2020 and
distance/hybrid learning for the 2020-2021 school year. Dataquest reports our Chronic Absentee percentage at 4.9% for 2020-2021 which is
well below the state at 14.3% and LA County at 12.9%. With the number of students in quarantine and isolation during the 2021-2022 school
year, this was still an area of concern entering 2022-2023. We experienced a shift in the number of parents wanting short-term independent
study for things like travel with more families working remotely, which was not expected. Dataquest reports our Chronic Absentee rate at
16.6% for the 2021-2022 school year, which is a significant increase from 2020-2021; however, the comparable state and county
percentages at 30.8% and 21.3% respectively, indicate that our systems and supports are still working in this different climate relatively

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 11 of 123



speaking. Having said that, we will still be looking for ways to improve overall attendance to bring the rates down. For the current year, the
average attendance is approximately 92% compared to pre-Covid rates of around 97%. While most anticipated attendance rates would
bounce back to pre-Covid levels, this has not been the case. We are looking for strategies to re-engage parents with the importance of
students being at school regularly since the students identified have missed more than 10% of their enrolled days. For most students enrolled
the entire year, this means 18 or more absences which equates to an entire month of schooling missed.

Reflections: Identified Need

A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including any areas of low
performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any steps taken to address those areas.

As a District, we are in Differentiated Assistance for two of our student groups. For this year, since only Status was being reported, there are
no “colors” to the Dashboard to identify “red” areas of concern. Normally, you can qualify for Differentiated Assistance in a few ways based
on areas of “red”. This year, the state has slightly different criteria in determining the list for Differentiated Assistance based on Status only.
We qualified in two areas: Students With Disabilities (SWD) qualified due to Very Low in Math/ELA and Very High in Absenteeism and the
African American (AA) student group qualified under Very High in Suspension and Very High in Absenteeism. Because the number of
students suspended in this student group is so small (only 5 students), the Principals are working with staff to identify potential triggers for
behavior and goal set individually. Socioeconomically Disadvantaged, English Learners, and Homeless were all “very high” for Absenteeism,
but they do not qualify for Differentiated Assistance since it was in only one priority area. Five of the six school sites also qualified for
Targeted Assistance for having a student group low in two priority areas as well. For all elementary sites except El Portal, the students with
disabilities (SWD) were Very High in Absenteeism and Very Low in Mathematics/English Language Arts. El Portal is not in Targeted
Assistance. For Rancho, the student group was English Learners in the same two priority areas (Absenteeism and English/Mathematics).
Each of the sites in Targeted Assistance have included specific actions in their Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) to address
these priority areas. As a District, we are continuing to focus on existing Action Items within Goal 4 related to attendance.

Refining our Multi-tiered System of Support (MTSS) to meet the behavior and social-emotional needs of all students continues to be a
priority. Echoed in feedback from all stakeholder groups, there continues to be a serious concern for the social-emotional well-being of
students, staff, and families. There is still a need to increase the focus on social emotional learning in the classroom on a daily basis. Data
from Covitality, a universal social-emotional screener for grades 4-8, was used to identify students at risk that could be supported by interns
and other school personnel. The limited scope of Covitality is being augmented by adding Care Solace as a partner. Care Solace developed
a website for our district to connect students, families, and staff to mental health supports in the area, help them navigate issues such as
insurance and referrals, and check in to determine if the services are meeting the need. Individuals can use the site themselves or district
personnel can refer individuals to the site for support. We purchased the Social Emotional Learning (SEL) curriculum from Studies Weekly for
students in grades TK-6 again this year to support classrooms along with the Calm Classroom materials. There are still varying levels of
implementation, so we will continue to provide additional support where needed. Overall, social-emotional and other mental health needs
continue to be an area for us to grow in.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 12 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#ReflectionsIdentifiedNeed

Chronic absenteeism is still an area of concern given our status in Differentiated Assistance as well as the Targeted Assistance for most
sites. This will remain an area of focus for us until we can determine more consistent data to see real growth. One of the strategies for
increasing attendance is providing engaging opportunities for students to participate in that keep them connected to their classroom. Both
parents and staff have expressed a desire for more art instruction for students, so we partnered with the Muckenthaler Cultural Center to
provide art opportunities for all elementary sites this year. This was in addition to the variety of before and after school offerings developed as
part of the Expanded Learning Opportunities program. The Lowell Joint Youth Theater was also started for students in grades 3-8 based on
student interest. These enrichment opportunities are a vital part of engaging students and creating a space students want to be a part of.
Along side intervention for academic support, the goal is to connect students in ways that spark their creativity and passions. As mentioned
above, our Chronic Absentee rates are well below state and county levels, which is a relative success. We realize, however, that the
expected return to normal attendance levels has not happened. We have added information and strategies for increasing overall attendance
to the District's MTSS Handbook for the coming year, and this will continue to be an area of discussion with Instructional Cabinet to support
sites.

Since not having Dashboard data for tracking Status and Change and the various color bands to show progress, there is still no direct
comparison point for much of our Academic data. However, we are able to analyze the data from what CAASPP scores we have for 2022 in
addition to the overall iReady data for the year mentioned above. Our overall percentage of students with Standard Met and Above for
English Language Arts was at 56% with mathematics at 40%. Our most significant student group populations are Hispanic (69.2%) and
White, non-Hispanic (19.4%). Following that as student groups are Asian (4.5%), Filipino (1.6%), and African American (1.4%) with a few
remaining in other race and ethnicity groupings or 2 or more race and ethnicities. For Language Arts, the Hispanic student group was at 52%
(up 3%), White at 63% (up 5%), Asian at 82% (up 6%), Filipino at 79% (up 8%), and African American at 37% (up 5%). In comparison to all
students, this puts our Hispanic and African American student groups behind.

For mathematics, the Hispanic student group was at 36% (up 6%), White at 49% (up 9%), Asian at 73% (the same), Filipino at 62% (up
12%), and African American at 13% (down 24%). In comparison to all students with Standard Met and Above at 40%, the Hispanic and
African American student groups are behind. Other student group data to be mindful of in the planning for our LCAP includes the academic
data for our students with disabilities, English learners, and students on free/reduced lunch. Our Foster Youth population is small enough that
the results are not reported, so we will pull those individual students for monitoring under MTSS. Our students with disabilities is an area of
concern given the significant decrease last year that qualified us for Differentiated Assistance. They were at 13% and 10% respectively for
Standards Met and Above in ELA and mathematics. For 2022, they increased to 19% and 15%, which is a positive sign while not closing the
gap sufficiently. For English learners, our Redesignated Fluent English Proficient students are at 59% for ELA which is above the English
Only (EO) at 58%. This is exciting as it means our students exiting English learner status are maintaining at a rate consistent with non-
English learners. For mathematics, the same was true with RFEP students at 41%, which is about the same as EO at 42%. Our current
English learners were struggling significantly with only 10% with Standard Met or Above for ELA and 5% for mathematics. Compared to the
English Only numbers this is a 48% gap for English language arts and a 37% gap for math.

Our economically disadvantaged student group (those on free/reduced lunch) were at 47% Standard Met or Above (up 7%) compared to
66% for those not economically disadvantaged. For mathematics the comparison is 31% (up 6%) to 51%. This represents about a 20% gap
in both cases where historically our economically disadvantaged students have been extremely close to our non-economically

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 13 of 123



disadvantaged. Clear areas of focus include support for our economically disadvantaged, African American, English learners, Hispanic, and
students with disabilities for both ELA and math. These identified gaps will help drive the services and resources provided under MTSS
outlined primarily in Goal 4. Two examples of high impact strategies for closing these achievement gaps include goal setting with targeted
students as well as a second intervention person for each site to work with students in small groups on targeted skill development.

LCAP Highlights

A brief overview of the LCAP, including any key features that should be emphasized.

The LCAP has five identified goals to address both the eight State priorities and the five local Board goals. The first goal focuses on the
basic conditions of learning necessary to ensure student success. The second goal highlights Early Literacy, which continues to be an area
of growth for us. Over the last few years, we have been working toward adding state-funded preschool and additional services to support
school readiness for children ages 0-5 within our district boundaries. We continued with our Learning Link this year that creates a space
where parents can come with their child to engage in activities designed to support school readiness. We received state funding for a
preschool and have developed a fee structure for a fee-based program. We have opened preschool sites at both Olita and Jordan and plan
to open another site at Macy in the coming year. The Universal Pre-Kindergarten (UPK) requirements from the state are also supporting
movement around this goal. With some of our youngest learners in TK-2nd grade having the greatest issues with attendance and
engagement during distance learning, there is a significant need to address gaps in skill development. Students have shown significant
growth this year, and the additional resources and services we are planning for now under UPK will help support this. The third goal centers
around the need to modernize facilities for the safety and well-being of staff and students. The community passed Measure LL in November
of 2018 with overwhelming support for our Lowell Joint schools. This bond is supporting the upgrade and modernization of facilities that were
constructed in the 1950s and 60s. With the closing of the private school at the district's Maybrook site, that space is being used for housing
students temporarily as we rotate sites through over the next few years. This has allowed for completion of construction in a more timely
manner without having to work around students on campus, which is less disruptive for their educational experience. With the additional bond
monies for identified upgrades to roofing, HVAC, and associated plumbing and electrical, district funds for maintenance will be available to
expedite much needed repairs and/or upgrades to the sites outside of the scope of the bond. Olita, Macy, Jordan, El Portal and Meadow
Green have already been completed with Rancho Starbuck moving to the Maybrook site for the 2023-24 school year. Goal four includes the
expansion of our Multi-Tiered System of Support (MTSS), which truly drives the overall vision of the district in meeting the Academic
Excellence goal where "every student experiences educational success at the highest levels of achievement...[and] each student has a
unique ability to learn in an environment that is enriched with challenging curriculum, where learning is modeled and expectations are both
known and high". MTSS encompasses the academic, behavioral, and social emotional well being of each and every student as we strive to
create an environment with supports and enrichment for all students to reach their full potential. The academic gaps noted in the Plan
Summary: Reflections section will be addressed within our Multi-Tiered System of Support for students. The fifth goal is designed to focus on
another continued area of growth for us in building enrichment opportunities and developing 21st century skills in our students. This again is
a reflection of the mission of the district that "envisions a culture where technology empowers all members of the school community to
achieve success and expand learning beyond the walls of the classroom". It has been another challenging year, but our staff and students
have done well in adjusting and moving forward. We know that there will continue to be academic, behavioral, and social emotional needs
that we will need to evaluate and determine the best support for through MTSS.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 14 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#LCAPHighlights

Comprehensive Support and Improvement
An LEA with a school or schools eligible for comprehensive support and improvement must respond to the following prompts.

Schools Identified
A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement.

We do not have any schools identified for CSI at this time. As a district, we are in Differentiated Assistance for two student groups: students
with disabilities (SwD) for Academics and Chronic Absenteeism and African American for Suspension and Chronic Absenteeism. Four of the
five elementary sites are in ATSI for students with disabilities for Academics and Chronic Absenteeism. Rancho Starbuck is in ATSI for
English Learners also in the area of Academics and Chronic Absenteeism. El Portal is not in ATSI.

Support for Identified Schools
A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans.

We do not have any schools identified for CSI at this time; however, all schools complete a School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA)
whether they receive Title | funding or not. As part of the development of that plan, schools conduct a needs assessment and work with the
School Site Council to develop goals based on the analysis of that data. As part of the overall Multi-Tiered System of Support, schools
identify specific, evidence-based interventions to support the targeted needs of students. A universal screener is used at each site with
additional assessments as needed to determine flexible groupings which shift on a regular basis based on student need. In addition to clear
expectations for first, best instruction in Tier I, the district continues to refine supports in Tier 2 and 3 each year based on analysis of the data
to determine gaps and the greatest areas of need. District personnel have worked with the site administrators to embed actions for
addressing the student groups identified for additional support both for Differentiated Assistance and ATSI.

Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness
A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement.

Again, while we have no schools in CSI, we do require a plan from each site that is monitored throughout the year by the School Site Council
including a mid-year and end-of-year review to determine if student needs are being met and if adjustments need to be made to the plan. Site
administrators meet regularly with district personnel to discuss progress and review data sets to determine growth and need. District
personnel are also able to monitor progress on goals within the SPSA through monitoring documentation uploaded to Tltle | Crate.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 15 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#SchoolsIdentified
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#SupportforIdentifiedSchools
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#MonitoringandEvaluatingEffectiveness

Engaging Educational Partners

A summary of the process used to engage educational partners and how this engagement was considered before finalizing the LCAP.

Each year, the Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services meets with educational partners to gather input for the Local Control
Accountability Plan (LCAP). After analyzing assessment data from the prior year and information released on the California Dashboard, an
LCAP Advisory Committee is formed that includes parents, staff, union representation, and SELPA representation. Meetings are scheduled
from January-April to gather input from the LCAP Advisory Committee, the Parent Advisory Committee, DELAC, Cabinet, Instructional
Leadership, staff, parents, students, and the unions for both certificated and classified staff. Regular updates are provided to the Board of
Trustees and annual surveys are sent out in February to parents, staff, and students to gather additional information to develop the LCAP.
Goals and Actions within the LCAP are regularly discussed at Administration meetings and as Principals develop their Single School Plan for
Achievement (SPSA) to support the district in meeting its goals. Ultimately, the LCAP is posted on the district website for public input as well
as presented for Public Hearing in June prior to LCAP approval by the Board of Trustees. In addition to the meetings and surveys this year,
an online document (a Padlet) was created for stakeholders to post input on from February through May. Educational Partners were
encouraged to email the Assistant Superintendent directly as well, and then the suggestions from these emails were added to the online
document.

Input from all the various Educational Partners was shared with the LCAP Advisory Committee, and as a public document, the Padlet was
available for all to see, comment on, and add to.

The following represents the formal meetings to gather input from various educational partners:

LCAP Advisory Committee: January 25, February 22 and March 15th, 2023 with the Letter from the Superintendent to be mailed after Board
approval.

Parent Advisory Committee: January 25, February 22 and March 15th, 2023 with the Letter from the Superintendent to be mailed after Board
approval.

DELAC: February 16, 2023

PTA: February 15, 2023 (Jordan), February 16, 2023 (El Portal), February 16, 2023 (Rancho Starbuck), February 16, 2023 (Olita), February
2, 2023 (Meadow Green), February 2, 2023 (Macy)

Staff Meetings: March 9, 2023 (El Portal), March 13, 2023 (Jordan), April 3, 2023 (Rancho Starbuck), April 6, 2023 (Meadow Green), March
27, 2023 (Qlita), May 4, 2023 (Macy)

CSEA: January 18, 2023

LJEA: Survey conducted by LJEA for input and included in feedback for prioritizing at LCAP Advisory meetings.

SELPA: Attended the LCAP Advisory meeting on February 22, 2023

STUDENTS: Survey with 357 student responses

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 16 of 123



These are in addition to the survey, regular updates at Board meetings, and discussion at regularly scheduled Instructional Leadership
meetings which include Cabinet and all Principals. This year, the certificated union (LJEA) sent out an additional survey to gather input for
the LCAP that was included in the padlet as teacher input that was shared throughout the process.

A summary of the feedback provided by specific educational partners.

A common theme for all Educational Partners continues to center around the need to address the social emotional learning of students with
the continued difficulties in the 2022-23 school year related to trauma and the pandemic. Being disconnected from peers and the routines of
school life in addition to experiencing the potential traumas associated with the pandemic (loss, food insecurity, change in living situation,
unemployment, lack of supervision, etc.) has taken a toll on our students and families. Understandably, there is great concern around
reconnecting kids and being sure their mental health and social emotional needs are being met. This was expressed by certificated and
classified staff as well as parents in the desire for more counselors and psychologists to support the growing needs of students. It was
echoed by students in two questions on their survey where 29% of students responding did not feel like they knew an adult they could talk to
if they needed help and 23% do not feel like school is a place where they feel safe. Since 84% feel successful at school and 89% teachers
treat them with respect, the connection issues seem to center around issues not entirely related to the academics of school. This is also
reflected in the types of visits recorded by counseling interns to receive support related to areas other than academics. This is addressed by
actions in Goal 4 under MTSS.

Another common theme from staff and parents was the need to support intervention for students who still need extra support in developing
skills they are lacking. The flip side to this is supporting the students who may also need enrichment opportunities both to challenge and
engage them in extending what they have learned or already know even through the disrupted learning for their peers. All students need to
find a “school family” to connect and bond with. Both parents and staff members are excited about the Expanded Learning Opportunities
(PowerSource) that will provide greater access and resources before and after school, which also allows us to use existing funds on similar
opportunities in the day. Having structured Fine Arts (Visual and Performing) and Physical Education programs that can support social
emotional learning was again brought up multiple times as an important part of offerings in the planning for next year. Intervention is
addressed in Goal 4 while the enrichment and engagement including the expansion of the ARTS FOR ALL opportunities are reflected in Goal
5.

Parents continue to voice the need for preschool and additional early learning opportunities. The desire for expanded hours in the Learning
Link from the first day it opened is a good indication of how important the need is for these types of opportunities as is the request to have it
open all summer long. This is reflected in Goal 2 along with the expansion of preschool based on enrollment and State funding. Parents also
expressed the desire for increased enrichment activities around STEAM and the more formalized GATE identification and opportunities for
students, which are both reflected in Goal 5.

Some of the priorities for teachers included classroom furniture, books for the classroom and libraries, and finally, art and physical education
support. These are being addressed under Goal 3 (furniture) and Goal 5 (books, art, PE). There are a number of other items on the survey
that can be addressed without specific reference in the LCAP such as access to supplies.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 17 of 123



A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific input from educational partners.

With the above in mind, the district is maintaining specific goals around enrichment (Goal 5), early literacy (Goal 2), and social emotional
well-being (part of Goal 4) to focus on these areas over the next few years. Parents have requested formal identification to streamline
services for GATE students under the Horizons program, which is reflected in Goal 5. The ongoing request of parents for preschool
opportunities is the continued focus of Goal 2. With the pandemic, all stakeholders continue to express concerns over the mental health and
well being of students and even staff, which is reflected in Goal 4. This is in addition to the goals that describe maintenance of basic
operations, facilities upgrades which have been and continue to be in the forefront of the community, and the overall Multi-Tiered System of
Support (MTSS) that continues to expand in order to meet the needs of every student within the Lowell Joint community. Parents and
teachers again expressed the ongoing need for intervention to support students and that will continue in the identified actions in Goal 4. The
LCAP continues to prioritize funding for Early Literacy under Goal 2 that includes the two new preschools (including state-funded slots) with a
third planned for 2023-2024. The Learning Link will continue under the funding from First Five, and we will look for ways to increase the
number of families served. Both of these provide opportunities for students to develop the school-readiness skills needed to be successful
academically and socially, which is again a pattern in the input provided by educational partners (especially parents and teachers). The
continued focus on social emotional health and well-being through the use of counseling and psych interns along with resources for teachers
in the classroom is reflected in Goal 4 under the Multi-Tiered System of Support. Students, parents, and teachers have all expressed the
need for additional enrichment opportunities for students including all pathways of ARTS FOR ALL (instrumental, choral, theater, dance, fine
art, and digital/video). This includes a broad range of offerings to challenge gifted and high achieving students as well as engage students
who may otherwise struggle. Some of the intervention and enrichment supports are documented in Goals 4 and 5 while much of this is being
developed as part of the Expanded Learning Opportunities Plan through PowerSource. As this unfolds over the next year, additional offerings
will be reflected in the LCAP based on the needs assessment of our families for programs and supports. Some items have already been
addressed. The District has been researching furniture for months to begin systematically replacing classroom furniture over the next few
years. Additional books were purchased for school libraries this year with new titles under review. The entire list of feedback has been
provided to the Board and Cabinet so that while prioritized items from the LCAP Advisory Committee are directly reflected in the LCAP,
additional suggestions can also be managed.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 18 of 123



Goals and Actions

Goal
Goal #

Description

1 All students of the Lowell Joint School District will have appropriate conditions for successful learning outcomes.

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.

This goal addresses the basic conditions necessary to open the doors of our schools and support the successful learning of our students.
Staffing and basic operations are accounted for here to address the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) State Priority #1, which is Basic
(Conditions for Learning). In addition, evidence for the sufficiency of materials to address the LCFF State Priority #2 Implementation of State
Standards (Conditions for Learning) is also included. Beyond just having materials, staff are surveyed each year to determine their level of
comfort with implementing state standards. Additionally, given the need for proficiency in technology, digital resources as part of core
programs, and the changes in instructional practice due to the recent school closures, access to devices and the internet have become a part
of ensuring that students have access to the resources they need to be successful with state standards. Partnering with parents is a critical
component to ensuring success for our students, which is LCFF Priority #3 Family Engagement. Parents are actively involved in the school
community through School Site Council, PTAs, volunteer opportunities, and parent training. This also addresses all five Board Goals: Fiscal
Excellence, Academic Excellence, High quality staff providing high quality service, and Safe, orderly, positive, respectful learning
environments, and School/Family/Community Partnerships and Communication.

Measuring and Reporting Results

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

Credential Audit and
data from CBEDS

One teacher has an
Internship Credential
working on a full
credential with
another on a short-
term Staffing Permit
working toward an
Internship Credential
and then a full
credential. All
remaining teachers
were fully credentialed

All teachers were fully
credentialed and
appropriately
assigned in the 2021-
2022 school year.

All continuing
teachers were fully
credentialed and
appropriately
assigned in the 2022-
2023 school year.
There is one new
teacher on a permit
and one teacher on
Local Assignment.

All teachers will be
fully credentialed and
appropriately
assigned.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 19 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

and appropriately
assigned in the 2020-
2021 school year.

Board minutes for
William's sufficiency

Every student has
standards-aligned
materials as
measured by Williams
compliance
documentation.

Every student has
standards-aligned
materials as
measured by Williams
compliance
documentation. This
was affirmed at the
Board meeting in
October of 2021 and
the minutes are
posted on the district
website.

Every student has
standards-aligned
materials as
measured by Williams
compliance
documentation. This
was affirmed at the
Board meeting in
October of 2022 and
the minutes are
posted on the district
website.

All students will
continue to have
standards-aligned
materials.

Certificated staff
survey on
implementation of
standards

94% of certificated
staff members who
teach core content
areas said they Agree
or Strongly Agree with
the statement "l am
comfortable in my
understanding and
implementation of
California State
Standards" as
measured by the
annual teacher
survey.

The district average
dropped to 88% this
year which in part may
be due to the piloting
and focus on new
science materials with
NGSS. Based on
survey results, 100%
of teachers at Rancho
are comfortable with
state standards with
the average for the
elementary sites being
86%.

The data from this
particular question on
the staff survey is
unfortunately
unavailable for this
year; however,
information used to
inform the Local
Indicators indicates
that teachers are still
feeling confident
overall. We had
Science Coordinators
from the Orange
County Department of
Education provide
multiple trainings
along with some
professional

95% of certificated
staff members who
teach core content
areas will Agree or
Strongly Agree with
the statement "l am
comfortable in my
understanding and
implementation of
California State
Standards".

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 20 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

development from the
publishers to support
implementation with
NGSS standards. We
completed the final
trainings in Write from
the Beginning, which
has been a district-
wide initiative for the
last four years. The
professional
development focus for
the 2023-2024 school
year will continue to
focus on mathematics,
ELA, and Science to
support
implementation of
California State
Standards.

Distribution of devices
and hot spots (as
needed) to ensure
access to instructional
resources to support
the development of
proficiency in state
standards.

All students were
provided a device in
the 2020-2021 school
year due to distance
learning. When
students are back on
campus, a system has
been created to
assign devices for
those in need while
continuing to provide
devices within each
classroom for student
use. Qualifying
families will also be

All students were
provided a device in
the 2021-2022 school
year for use in the
classroom with
devices checked out
to 7th and 8th grade
students. TK-6th
grade students
needing access at
home were able to
check out a device.
Qualifying families
were also able to
check out a hot spot

All students were
provided a device in
the 2022-2023 school
year for use in the
classroom with
devices checked out
to 7th and 8th grade
students. TK-6th
grade students
needing access at
home were able to
check out a device.
Qualifying families
were also able to
check out a hot spot

All students will have
access to devices and
internet to support
progress on state
standards and
proficiency in 21st
century sKkills.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 21 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

able to check out a
hot spot and/or be
connected with low-
cost internet
providers.

and/or be connected
with low-cost internet
providers. 99.3% of
families stated they
had access to
technology and
received
communication from
the district.

and/or be connected
with low-cost internet
providers. Again, over
99% of families stated
they had access to
technology and
received
communication from
the district.

Documentation of
training for SSC and
DELAC members
including the minutes,
sign ins, and
presentation materials

Parent involvement in
the LCAP process as
documented through
sign-in sheets to
ensure representation
of parents of UDPs
along with regularly
scheduled meetings
for parent input in
"Coffee with Coombs"
at each site.

Attendance at PTA

meetings by district

staff to connect with
parents and support
efforts to involve the
parents of UDPs .

SSC and DELAC
training was
conducted in the year
prior to COVID.
Training will be
scheduled for the fall
of 2021 for each site
as part of parental
input into the decision-
making process for
the development of
SPSAs and the LCAP.

Virtual meetings were
calendared in the
2020-2021 school
year with limited
participation. Digital
sign in sheets were
maintained to
document
participation.

Sign in sheets
document the
participation of district

At the beginning of the
year, Principals
reviewed roles and
procedures with their
respective School Site
Councils. The role of
the DELAC in
providing input in the
decision-making
process for the LCAP
was discussed at the
DELAC meeting in
April where input for
the LCAP was
solicited in addition to
information on the
Consolidated
Application and Title
[l funding specifically.

Principals reviewed
roles and procedures
with their respective
School Site Councils
at the beginning of the
year. The role of the
DELAC in providing
input in the decision-
making process for
the LCAP was
discussed at the
DELAC meeting in
April where input for
the LCAP was
solicited in addition to
information on the
Consolidated
Application and Title
[Il funding specifically.
The Assistant
Superintendent
attends PTA meetings
at each site to gather
input for the LCAP,
and the
Superintendent

SSC and DELAC
training is conducted
every other year to
ensure parent
participation in the
decision-making
process.

Meetings will be
calendared each
school year including
the potential for
reaching a wider
audience by
continuing with virtual
options. Sign in
sheets will be
maintained to
document
participation.

Sign in sheets will
document the
participation of district
staff at regularly
scheduled PTA

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 22 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

staff at regularly
scheduled PTA
meetings along with
the PTA Council
meetings for La
Habra.

regularly meets with
PTA representatives
to discuss what's
happening in the
district in addition to
the "Coffee with
Coombs" at each site.

meetings along with
the PTA Council
meetings for La Habra

Survey Results

95% of the parent
respondents marked
“Agree” or “Strongly
Agree” with the
statement, “I feel
welcome at my
student’s school.

97% of the parent
respondents marked
“Agree” or “Strongly
Agree” with the
statement, “| receive
information about my
student’s academic
performance through
report cards, progress
reports, email, parent-
notification letters,
and/or parent
conferences/phone
calls”.

93% of the parent
respondents marked
“Agree” or “Strongly
Agree” with the
statement, "Our

94.6% of the parent
respondents marked
“Agree” or “Strongly
Agree” with the
statement, ‘I feel
welcome at my
student’s school”.

95% of the parent
respondents marked
“Agree” or “Strongly
Agree” with the
statement, “| receive
information about my
student’s academic
performance through
report cards, progress
reports, email, parent-
notification letters,
and/or parent
conferences/phone
calls”.

93.9% of the parent
respondents marked
“Agree” or “Strongly
Agree” with the
statement, "Our

Again, approximately
94% of the parent
respondents marked
“‘Agree” or “Strongly
Agree” with the
statement, I feel
welcome at my
student’s school”.

95.78% of the parent
respondents marked
“‘Agree” or “Strongly
Agree” with the
statement, “I receive
information about my
student’s academic
performance through
report cards, progress
reports, email, parent-
notification letters,
and/or parent
conferences/phone
calls”.

91.58% of the parent
respondents marked
“Agree” or “Strongly
Agree” with the

95% or more of
parent respondents
marking “Agree” or
“Strongly Agree” with
the statement, “| feel
welcome at my
student’s school”.

97% or more of
parent respondents
marking “Agree” or
“Strongly Agree” with
the statement, “I
receive information
about my student’s
academic
performance through
report cards, progress
reports, email, parent-
notification letters,
and/or parent
conferences/phone
calls”.

93% or more of parent
respondents marking
“Agree” or “Strongly
Agree” with the

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 23 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

school is safe, orderly,
and well disciplined".

88% or more of
students will “Agree”
or “Strongly Agree”
with the statement ‘I
feel safe at school”
and “l have
opportunities to
connect with my
school”.

school is safe, orderly,
and well disciplined".

76.9% of students
"Agree” or “Strongly
Agree” with the
statement “| feel safe
at school” and “I have
opportunities to
connect with my
school”.

statement, "Our
school is safe, orderly,
and well disciplined".

82% of students
"Agree” or “Strongly
Agree” with the
statement “| feel safe
at school” and “I have
opportunities to
connect with my
school”.

statement, "Our
school is safe, orderly,
and well disciplined".

92% or more of
students will “Agree”
or “Strongly Agree”
with the statement ‘|
feel safe at school”
and “l have
opportunities to
connect with my
school”.

Survey Results

Sign Ins

94% of parents
responded Agree or
Strongly Agree to the
statement "l am aware
of parent involvement
opportunities such as
School Site Council,
English Learner
Advisory Committee
(ELAC), Parent
Teacher Association
(PTA), Back-to-School
Night and Open
House, and | have
multiple opportunities
to be involved in my
child’s education".

Monitor sign ins and
participation for
SELPA involvement,

88% of parents
responded Agree or
Strongly Agree to the
statement "l am aware
of parent involvement
opportunities such as
School Site Council,
English Learner
Advisory Committee
(ELAC), Parent
Teacher Association
(PTA), Back-to-School
Night and Open
House, and | have
multiple opportunities
to be involved in my
child’s education"”.

We were able to
disaggregate this data
by school site this
year, and overall, this
is much improved. For
the statement "l am
aware of parent
involvement
opportunities such as
School Site Council,
English Learner
Advisory Committee
(ELAC), Parent
Teacher Association
(PTA), Back-to-School
Night and Open
House, and | have
multiple opportunities
to be involved in my
child’s education”, the
break down for

95% or more of parent
respondents marking
Agree of Strongly
Agree with the
statement "l am
aware of parent
involvement
opportunities such as
School Site Council,
English Learner
Advisory Committee
(ELAC), Parent
Teacher Association
(PTA), Back-to-School
Night and Open
House, and | have
multiple opportunities
to be involved in my
child’s education".

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 24 of 123



Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Deswezdogéjiczcime ier
meeting attendance, parents responding Once a baseline is
and the percentage of Agree or Strongly established (since the
families of UPPs Agree is: El Portal data is not currently
engaged in activities 96.9%; Jordan 91.2%, aggregated across
and decision-making Macy 94.3%, Meadow multiple meetings),
committees. Green 93.7%, Olita there will be a 5%

100%, and Rancho increase in the
Starbuck 96.3%. number of families
actively involved in
activities and
committees across the
district.
Actions
Action #  Title Description Total Funds Contributing
1.1 Certificated Staffing- | Fully credentialed teachers will be employed and appropriately $16,479,066.00 No
Teachers assigned. This includes some teachers that support unduplicated
pupils; however, those services are documented elsewhere within the
Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP). Where the documentation
of services is provided, the expense is identified as a repeated
expenditure.
1.2 Certificated Staffing- | This includes certificated personnel working at the district office, $2,872,876.00 No
Administration and Principals, the Assistant Principal at Rancho Starbuck, School
other Support Staff | Psychologists, and SLPs (Speech and Language Pathologists).
1.3 Classified Staffing- | The Technology Department, consisting of three full-time and one $442,721.00 No

Technology
Department

part-time employee, will oversee the District's technology needs. This
includes monitoring the networks and infrastructure for access to the
internet and online testing for the state. With the Chromebook

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 25 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#actions

Action #  Title Description Total Funds Contributing

Initiative, maintenance and support of devices is an ongoing need. Go
Guardian was implemented as well across the district to allow
teachers the ability to monitor students on their Chromebooks for
added safety. Communication tools such as websites, phone, and
email systems will also be maintained by the Tech Department as will
safety and security measures such as Raptor which was purchased
for implementation in the 2018-19 school year. Raptor is an electronic
check in system for all people visiting a campus that alerts staff to
potential issues with a visitor. Catapult is an emergency management
system for communication during emergency situations such as a lock
down, which is also managed by the Tech Department. It allows for
better coordination with outside emergency personnel such as police
and fire as well as internally for teachers to account for students. Tech
staff also work with students in specialized opportunities to learn about
technology such as drones, programming, and robotics.

1.4 Classified Staffing- | Provide basic custodial, maintenance, and grounds services. $2,144,680.00 No
Custodial,
Maintenance, and
Grounds
15 Basic Utilities Basic utilities including electrical and water. $1,050,552.00 No
1.6 Instructional In order to ensure that all students have standards-aligned $195,425.00 No
Materials-Textbooks |instructional materials, the district has a Textbook Adoption timeline to
and Software plan for the expenditure of funds to stay in alignment with the release

of new frameworks under the state adoption cycle. This also includes
the purchase of any necessary supplemental materials and software
programs that are part of the overall instructional program designed to
support progress on mastery of state standards. For the 2021-2022
school year, we anticipate the purchase of new science materials
since the pilot was interrupted in the 2020 school year. Software items
included here are those purchased by the district that directly impact
student progress on standards and/or tools teachers use for

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 26 of 123



Action #

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

Title

Site Technology
Allocation

Instructional
Supplies-Per Pupil
Site Allocation

Maintenance of
Chromebooks

Classified Staffing-
Data Systems
Analyst

Description

instructional purposes within the classroom including Lexia, ST Math,
SeeSaw, Kami, and Google Enterprise.

Each school is provided with a technology allocation to update and
expand equipment inventory with a priority placed on any teacher
computer that is five or more years old. After those replacements have
been made, the sites work with their site leadership teams to
determine how best to use the funds in alignment with their identified
needs and goals in their School Plan for Student Achievement
(SPSA).

Each school was provided with a per pupil allocation for the purchase
of instructional supplies. This allocation is based on overall enrollment
at the site as calculated from CBEDS data in October. It is adjusted
each year in alignment with the Consumer Price Index (CPI).

Maintain and refresh devices from the first cycle of purchasing in
2015-16. As new Chromebooks are purchased, we have been able to
expand the 1-1 Chromebook initiative for grades 3-8 to include the TK-
2nd grade classrooms. With sending home devices during the
pandemic, there is a greater need for replacement of devices in the
coming year in addition to the anticipated need to refresh the older
devices. The refresh of devices at Rancho Starbuck in 2021-2022 will
allow distribution of those current devices into the lower grades. There
is not an expectation for any large-scale expenditures in this area for
2022-2023. Funding for necessary maintenance and purchases for
2023-24 will be designated at First Interim.

With the increase in state-required reporting through CalPads in
addition to the need for the management of the Student Information
System (Aeries), it is necessary to maintain a classified position for the
data input and monitoring. As a small district, this position also

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Total Funds

$45,000.00

$287,375.00

$0.00

$58,846.00

Contributing

No

No

No

No

Page 27 of 123



Action#  Title Description

supports the monitoring of our unduplicated pupils in running queries
and reports for English learners, Foster Youth, McKinney-Vento
Youth, and low income families. That portion of the salary is
accounted for under Goal 4, Action 14.

1.11 Single Plan for SPSA goals will be shared at a regularly scheduled Board meeting
Student Achievement | including conclusions drawn from data analysis to highlight the unique
(SPSA) needs of each individual school site. Each school will provide

opportunities for parents to engage with the school community, attend
trainings or parent nights designed to support the Home School
Connection. These are outlined in the site's Single School Plan for
Student Achievement (SPSA). As part of managing and tracking the
action items and expenditures in the SPSA, we are looking to
purchase Title 1 Crate from 806 Technologies to support the
monitoring of services for our Unduplicated Pupils who drive the
development of goals in the SPSA.

1.12 School Site Council | Continue to provide annual training and/or refreshers for School Site

and DELAC Council members on their roles and responsibilities. Each Title |
school will hold a Title | meeting to inform parents of opportunities for
advisory groups and volunteerism. Schools will continue to implement
an English Language Advisory Council (ELAC) or transfer the
responsibilities to the School Site Council. The ELAC representative
from the site along with other parents of English learners attend
District English Language Advisory Committee (DELAC) meetings to
provide input on services for English learners at the district level. This
is a vital part of involving parents in the decision-making process.

1.13 Parent Teacher Each school will continue to form a Parent Teacher Association (PTA)
Associations (PTA)  with district support to reach out to the parents of UDPs. Meetings are
scheduled both in the morning and in the evening to allow for greater

attendance. PTAs strive to include parents in meaningful ways from

event planning to roles within the PTA. At least once a year, district

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Total Funds

$5,000.00

$0.00

$0.00

Contributing

No

No

No

Page 28 of 123



Action # Title

1.14 Family Engagement

1.15 Classified Staff-
Administration and
other Support

Description Total Funds

personnel attend meetings to discuss the LCAP in addition to parent
meetings held by the Superintendent known as "Coffee with Coombs".
Site Principals regularly attend meetings to provide information and
receive feedback for planning purposes. The District will support the
efforts of the La Habra PTA Council and each school will send a
representative to the council meetings.

Fund tools to support parent outreach: phone outreach system and $34,647.00
websites for the district, sites, and teachers. The District will continue

to offer trainings and/or institutes designed to partner with parents in

supporting student success. An annual parent survey will be

administered to provide parents with an opportunity for feedback and

ideas for enhancing educational programs. The Director of Special

Education will continue to support families in accessing resources and

training through the SELPA to ensure our students with special needs

are being supported.

The costs associated with Office Managers, Fiscal Services, $3,093,966.00
Attendance Clerks, and other classified support staff necessary for the
basic operations at the district office and sites are included here.

Goal Analysis [2022-23]

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year.
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions.

Contributing

No

No

The bulk of this goal is related to basic operations for the school district, which is predominantly salary and benefits. There are a few action
items that are related to parental engagement, instructional materials, Chromebooks, communication resources, and so forth. With additional
one-time dollars in the 2022-2023 school year, there are some action items that were partially funded from other sources, but all actions were
completed. In the area of parent engagement, there has been some added focus in early learning driven by Goal 2. This includes parent
training, parent involvement, and input around actions and services predominantly related to services for our 0-5 year olds served through
the Learning Link and preschools. Details are provided in the description of services under Goal 2.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 29 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services.

Salary costs were down overall for certificated staffing with offsetting costs in more classified positions. This is in part due to declining
enrollment from an instructional standpoint while filling some long-time vacant positions in classified. The addition of both the Expanded
Learning program and Universal Pre-Kindergarten initiatives (preschools and TK aides) also increased the overall number of classified
employees dramatically. Certificated staffing costs are down on this goal by approximately $800,000 while classified are up over $800,000.
There are additional certificated staffing costs reflected throughout the LCAP where some one-time funding is helping to offset staffing costs.
Certificated staffing costs in goal 4 for are up almost $400,000 just in intervention (4.8) and teacher planning time with music instruction (4.9).
Dual Language costs for additional staffing with an added grade and additional classes are up approximately $268,000 (4.4), which accounts
for the majority of the decline on 1.1 when including the costs of step and column as well. Utility costs were also up approximately $100,000.

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal.

All basic school functions were carried out over the course of the year. There are a few action items not related to salary that we need to
continue to work on more effectively. We continued with Title | Crate this year to better organize documentation related to federal programs.
There is still a need to add to the folders for collection to organize documentation, but we continue to make progress with that. There is still
some difficulty in identifying a representative from each site for the District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC). So while we
provide training for SSC members, we need to support schools in strategies for increasing parent involvement (Goal 1.12). This feeds into
another action item (1.14) around family engagement. We have made great connections with our Learning Link families again this year in
creating a community of support for the program. Our PTAs do a phenomenal job of partnering with us in support of our schools also. And
yet, while we have many parents involved on site and in providing input for things like the LCAP, we frequently struggle with finding
representatives for DELAC. We had some great conversation this year with two parent representatives on some things we can try to better
communicate with English learner families. One suggestion included better translation for meetings, which could either be through meetings
specifically for English learner parents or using headsets so there is no delay in translation.

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from
reflections on prior practice.

We had purchased translation headsets previously, but we found that parents did not want to use them. Historically, we have had the
bilingual clerk from the District Office provide translation at meetings. She left the district in November, so we had one of our bilingual aides
from a school site provide translation with the headsets available at a parent meeting. Because she has a strong connection with the families
she serves, we had parents use the headsets for the first time ever. As she connected with parents she knew to make the offer, other parents
were more interested in using them. This was surprising, but it speaks to the importance of that personal connection in creating a safe
environment for our English learner parents to engage more effectively in the educational process. An additional set of headsets was
purchased for the future, and we will continue to work at building those connections between bilingual staff and parents.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 30 of 123



A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update
Table.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 31 of 123



Goals and Actions

Goal

Goal # Description

2 Early Literacy

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.

As the community needs have shifted over the last few years, it has become evident that Lowell Joint needs to provide more opportunities to
develop school readiness skills for incoming students. In addition to being an expressed desire of educational partners, the data from the
Early Developmental Index (EDI) also shows the need. Over the last few years, Transitional Kindergarten classes have been opened at each
elementary site. The district also runs a preschool to service students with special needs. Prior to the school closures in March of 2020, the
district had applied for and received a fundable score for a state-funded preschool program. With two preschools in the area closing even
before the pandemic, this was identified as a need from our families. With the freezing of funding to new programs in March of 2020, we were
unable to move forward with a preschool at that time. We became involved with the First Five Orange County: Children and Families
Commission when asked to administer the Early Developmental Index (EDI) to Kindergarten students in order to provide comprehensive data
for the city of La Habra. This led to discussions about using the information for our district with the need to include our Los Angeles county
schools as well. First Five LA and First Five OC were able to work together to fund this for our district prior to the pandemic. First Five OC
provided consultants to support the writing of our application for a state-funded preschool, and ultimately, First Five OC included us in their
last round of funding so that we received an Early Childhood grant to develop programs and services to better support early literacy. So while
the district is still on hold with state-funding for a preschool, we have continued to move forward with planning to better meet the early literacy
needs of our community. A Teacher on Special Assignment (TOSA) was hired to support the deliverables for the grant and provide
professional development around early literacy needs within the district. During the school closures, our primary grades were the most
impacted in terms of attendance and engagement. Our Kindergarten student had a chronic absentee rate of over 9% with both 1st and 2nd
grades above 6%. This is significantly higher than the other grade levels that ran between 2-4% for a district average of 4.34%. Given that we
may have additional students that postponed entry into schooling due to the pandemic along with the disrupted schooling for many of our
local preschools, we are anticipating this will be an area of greater focus through the cycle of this LCAP at minimum. This goal helps to
address the LCFF State Priority #2 Implementation of State Standards (Conditions for Learning) as well as State Priority #4 Pupil
Achievement (Pupil Outcomes). This also addresses the Board Goals of Academic Excellence and School/Family/Community Partnerships
and Communication.

Measuring and Reporting Results

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 32 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

Early Childhood
Accountability Plan
and quarterly updates
on progress.

The Early Childhood
Leadership Team has
met to develop the
beginnings of the
Early Childhood
Accountability Plan.
Quarterly updates
were provided during
the 2020-2021 school
year; however,
progress on some
goals was delayed
due to school closures
including the opening
of a state-funded
preschool. The hope
is to complete the plan
in the coming year
with programs and
services beginning in
the 2021-2022 school
year.

The Early Childhood
Leadership team has
monthly meetings to
revisit goals and
determine next steps
to enhance our work
with programs and
resources to support
families in early
childhood. The
Learning Link, Fun
Physical Friday,
Young Essential
Scholars (YES)
Newsletter, Early
Developmental Index
(EDI) brochure,
Ready4K mobile
application, Help Me
Grow parent forums
(both in English and
Spanish) and LJSD
Learning Link website
are programs and
resources that are
currently in place and
examples of ways we
serve our families in
the 2021-2022 school
year. The ECLT also
uses the Program
Guidance Tool and
Early Childhood
Accountability Plan to
celebrate

The Early Childhood
Leadership Team
(ECLT) continues to
meet as a group and
individually with the
lead on the First 5
Grant to discuss ways
of enhancing our
resources and
programs to meet the
needs of our families
with children ages
newborn to five years
old. We continue to
diversify our group
with more members
with various lenses to
support our
conversations. We
have added a
preschool teacher and
a grandparent who
participated in the
Learning Link. As we
look at the data on
both the Early
Childhood
Accountability Plan
(ECAP) and Strategic
Direction
Questionnaire (SDQ),
we find that we are
well on our way to
meeting the First 5
deliverables and

The three-year plan
will have been
developed and
implemented including
quarterly updates to
the plan.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 33 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

accomplishments and
determine next steps
in ongoing efforts to
support families that
are aligned with the
First 5 deliverables.

continued growth with
the First 5
deliverables. This
year we focused on
health and working
with various
organizations to
provide screenings
and education for our
young scholars. We
had the UCI eye
mobile to screen
vision and provide
glasses for identified
scholars, Healthy
Smilies for dental
screenings, and the
Priority Center to
provide the Ages and
Stages Questionnaire
(ASQ) around the
developmental
domains that align
with the Early
Developmental Index
(EDI) and
Foundations
(standards for
preschool) for our
preschool scholars.
We continue provide
the Learning Link,
Young Essential
Scholars (YES)
Newsletter, Early

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 34 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

Developmental Index
(EDI) brochure,
Ready4K mobile
application, Help Me
Grow parent forums
(both in English and
Spanish) and LJSD
Learning Link website
as programs and
resources to serve
our families in the
2022-2023 school
year. We are excited
to see growing
numbers participate in
all areas, especially
our Learning Link.

We also held our first
parent professional
development on
Gross and Fine More
Skill that was selected
based on a vulnerable
area for readiness
according to our EDI
data.

Agendas and Minutes
from the Early
Childhood Leadership
Team.

The agendas and
minutes from the
2020-2021 school
year reflect the initial
planning of this group
for reaching out to
engage stakeholders
to help develop the
vision and plan for

The 2021-2022
agenda and minutes
are ongoing
reflections of the work
completed with the
diverse Early
Childhood Leadership
Team. With the new
Universal Pre-

The 2022-2023
agenda and minutes
are ongoing
reflections of the work
completed by our
ECLT. We met both
as a group and within
smaller groupings to
assess data and

The Early Childhood
Leadership Team will
continue to assess
data around the needs
of our early learners
and their families to
develop programs and
connect families with

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 35 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

early literacy within
Lowell Joint. The
committee includes
primary teachers, a
principal, the district
nurse, various other
district personnel,
parents, and
community members
to support outreach to
families with children
ages 0-5 that are not
enrolled within our
school system.

Kindergarten plan, the
team has added new
members to include
educators and staff
representative of the
P-3 alignment. An
Early Childhood
Program Coordinator
has been hired to
oversee the planning
and implementation of
UPK in LJSD for the
2022-2023 school
year including the
support for opening of
two preschools,
learning link and other
resources to support
families and with
children ages 0-5.
The California State
Preschool Program
application has been
submitted with hopes
to offer both fee based
and state funded
preschools.

discuss ways to
enhance programs
and resources to
support our families
with children ages
newborn to five. Our
newly hired Early
Childhood Program
Coordinator worked
with Early Learning
Specialist and
Preschool Team to
support both the fee
based and state
funded preschools at
two our our
elementary settings.
Based on parent
need, we shifted one
preschool to be full
school day while the
other was part day
with morning and
afternoon classes. In
the 2022-223 school
year we had 52 total
scholars at our
preschool. We had 93
families participate in
the Learning Link. We
had 23 families
participate in our
Family Night. Based
on data from our Early
Developmental Index

resources to support
school readiness.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 36 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

(EDI), the team
members focused on
health as well. We
used organizations to
help with vision
checks, dental
screening and
presentations, as well
as developmental
screenings. We held
a parent night based
on data around EDI to
support families with a
increased knowledge
around gross and fine
motor skills. We
developed a skill
builder kit for families
that provided activities
to support gross motor
skills. We will
continue to use our
data to enhance
programs and
resources in the 2023-
2024 school year.

Data from Constant
Contact for
Newsletters and
Brochures with Early
Literacy Information;
Participation with
Ready4K

The Early Literacy
Teacher on Special
Assignment (TOSA)
has begun sending
out newsletters
through Constant
Contact and is
developing a brochure
to support parents

The Early Literacy
Teacher on Special
Assignment (TOSA)
uses the Young
Essential Newsletter
(YES) to share
programs and
resources to support
families. We have

We continue to offer
both the Young
Essential Scholars
(YES) Newsletter and
Ready4K text
messaging application
to our families. We
have 80 families
receiving the

Data from Constant
Contact and Ready4K
will show an increase
in the number of
families subscribed to
these resources.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 37 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

with understanding
developmental
milestones for early
learners. There are 58
participants signed up
to receive monthly
newsletters after initial
emails to staff and
parents. Ready4K
licenses have been
purchased with 47
people currently
signed up to receive
weekly texts with
activities and
information for parents
targeting the specific
ages of their children.

increased to 70
participants. We went
from a monthly
newsletter to a
quarterly newsletter
and strategically
provided activities,
community based
programs, information
linked to the Early
Developmental Index
(EDI) to inform
families on ways to
support their child with
age appropriate
kindergarten
readiness resources.
Using data from the
Early Developmental
Index (EDI), a
informational brochure
on a domain (Gross
and Find Motor Skills)
was developed to
support families in
both English and
Spanish. This
brochure also offers
easy activities linked
to various ages to
guide
parents/guardians in
ways to support their
child in this area. This
brochure is shared at

newsletter and over
11000 text messages
and 600 custom
messages delivered to
our Ready4K families.
The Newsletter
continues to provide
activities, community
opportunities and
information about
developmentally
appropriate resources
for our families with
children ages
newborn to five. We
highlight the
vulnerable areas
outlined our EDI data
with helpful
information about the
domains (Physical
Health & Well Being,
Social Competence,
Emotional Maturity,
Language & Cognitive
Development, and
General Knowledge &
Communication) along
with various ways to
support their child with
school readiness
skills. Similarly, the
text messaging
application aligns with
the developmental

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 38 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

our Learning Link, our
collaborative and
community providers
build awareness
around the current
data. The data for
Ready 4K indicates
that over 4000 text
messages and 500
custom messages
have been delivered
to our participants
related to curriculum
developed for their
child.

domains and provides
families with 3
messages a week
linked to the age of
their child/children,
with a fact, tip and
activity for a specific
domain. Using
information from our
surveys on the
newsletter we also
developed a skKill
builder and parent
night focused on
interest around gross
and fine motor skills.

Sign-ins to document
parent involvement in
the Learning Link.

The Learning Link has
not opened yet, so we
have no data.

A google form for
registration of
participation in the
Learning Link is used
to collect information
about families and
their child. Our Aeries
data base tracks
attendance of families
attending the Learning
Link, We currently
have 50 families
participating in our
Learning Link on a
regular basis. Due to
high levels of
participation and
limited space we have
12 families a day with

In the 2022-2023
school year we used
google survey for
registration of the
Learning Link. We
decided to have 6
week sessions in
order to maximize the
number of slots we
could offer families in
the district and
surrounding areas.
We then used google
documents as a
tracking of
attendance. The
google documents
and survey are
housed in a shared

Parents will regularly
make use of the
Learning Link to build
school readiness skills
in children ages 0-5.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 39 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

outdoor Fun Physical
Fridays with a focus
on gross and fine
motor skills with 30
participating families.
We have increased
our Instructional aide
form 10 hours to 15
hours and now 18
hours to meet the
demand and hope to
increase next year at
various school sites.

drive for the team.
We had 94 families
participate in our
Learning Link this
year. We offered 6
sessions throughout
the year with 2
classes on
Monday/Wednesday
and 2 classes on
Tuesday/Thursday.
We also had a Hop
Into Spring (38
families in attendance)
and End of the Year
Celebration (42
families in attendance)
at the park and had
similar Fun Friday
activities that we did in
the 2021-2022 school
year. We did an end
of the year survey for
families to gather
more data with 46
participating of the 94
to get feedback. Due
to increase in
numbers, we are
looking at ways to
open a second
Learning Link in the
new school year. We
are also considering
the use of Aeries

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 40 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

again to track families
and will work with our
analyst to compare
data collection and
determine the best
system to utilize.

Enrollment in the
preschool program.

The preschool
program has not
opened yet. A for-fee
option is being
developed for the
beginning of the 2022
year with the potential
for a state-funded
preschool should
funding become
available.

Two preschool
locations have been
strategically
determined by
leadership for the
2022-2023 school
year. There will be 48
spaces at both
campuses with a goal
of 24 fee based and
24 state funded
spaces for our LJSD
families. (LJSD re-
applied for a state
funded program) We
did open a Learning
Link in October of
2022 to serve families
with spaces limited to
12 using some of the
First 5 funds to hire an
instructional aide to
facilitate learning with
parents/guardians and
their children in
activities linked to
Kindergarten
readiness. With
growing demand our

Because the demand
from families was
more for a full-day
program, we enrolled
the 4 year olds in
CSPP slots at one site
in order to extend the
time using ELOP
funds to provide more
of a full day option.
This meant limiting the
number of CSPP slots
we used at the one
site. We did not
receive the contract
from the state until
November which also
made enrollment
challenging. Of the 96
slots available, we
eliminated 24 with the
more full day option.
We had approximately
60 students with
capacity for 72.

All slots within a for-
fee and/or state-
funded preschool will
be filled to provide
support for our earliest
learners.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 41 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

Learning Link plus
Fun Physical Friday is
up to 12 families a day
and is serving 48
families with children
ages 0-5 years old.

Attendance at and
implementation of
professional
development around
language acquisition
as measured by sign-
in sheets, classroom
observation and
ongoing coaching.

While many of the
teachers attended
training in OCDE
Project GLAD in 2013-
14 and 2014-15, there
has not been any
follow up. Additionally
with many new staff in
the district over the
last 6 years, a number
of people need to
attend the initial 2-day
training and the 4-day
demo. Eight teachers
attended the 2-day in
June of 2021.

A google site was
started to provide
resources across
grade levels that is
specific to the

In the 2021-2022
school year there has
been a shortage of
substitute teachers
thus having an impact
on the opportunities
for professional
development. We
were able to have
another 2 Day
Research and Theory
training for GLAD with
8 additional
participants. In
addition, we continue
to provide resources
and support through
the TOSA Newsletter
and Google Site
specifically focusing
on high impact
strategies to support

In the 2022-2023
school year we
continue to face a
shortage of substitute
teachers thus having
an impact on
professional
development. We
continue to provide
resources and support
using the TOSA
Newsletter and
Google Site with
specific strategies that
are part o the GLAD
(Guided Language
Acquisition Design)
focusing on listening,
speaking, reading and
writing strategies
across the grade
levels. We did

All teachers will have
attended both the
initial 2-day training
and the 4-day
demonstration for
OCDE Project GLAD.
In addition, regularly
scheduled follow up
sessions will be
provided along with in-
class modeling and
coaching by the Early
Literacy TOSA who is
also a trainer for
OCDE Project GLAD.
Implementation by
teachers is clearly
evident through
artifacts within the
room and shared
resources developed
by teachers in on the

implementation of listening, speaking, provide 2 after school google site.

OCDE Project GLAD |reading and writing professional

within Lowell Joint across the grade developments for the
levels. Planning middle school
efforts for the 2022- | educators around
2023 school year are |language acquisition
to have opportunities | specifically around

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 42 of 123



Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Deswezdogéjiczcime ier
to offer the initial 6 designate and
day training and follow | integrated English
up during the summer ' Language
and school year as Development In
well as after school. | additions, we did use
The TOSA has the Early
specific time allocated | Development Index
for teacher support, data to determine that
modeling of strategies | both language skills
and coaching in daily |related to social
schedule. competence and
communication were
vulnerable areas for
our children. We had
a professional
development for our
preschool and TK
instructional aides that
was provided by
professor Jennifer
Kinkle to support
educators on ways to
enhance
communication and
social skills.
Actions
Action #  Title Description Total Funds Contributing
21 Early Literacy The Early Literacy Teacher on Special Assignment (TOSA) is $148,556.00 Yes
Teacher on Special |responsible for coordinating the development of the Early Childhood
Assignment (TOSA) | Accountability Plan and its deliverables while also supporting teachers
with strategies for the development of literacy. This includes the
actions specifically identified within the LCAP as well as those in the
Early Childhood Accountability Plan that is required by the grant
2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 43 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#actions

Action # Title

2.2 Early Literacy
Committee

2.3 Early Literacy-
Community
Engagement

Description

funding from First Five Orange County. The Early Literacy TOSA will
work with teachers on identifying areas of need through the data
gathered in the Early Developmental Index and district-wide
benchmarks. This is especially important in returning from disrupted
schooling to ensure that the foundational skills developed in the
primary grades are addressed in supporting students with proficiency
in reading and writing.

Convene an Early Childhood Leadership Team that will develop an
Early Childhood Accountability Plan (ECAP) with evidence of
implementation and support.

The following include strategies identified for engaging with community
providers, parent groups and individuals to support early learners with
a primary focus on our families needing support with community
resources and navigating school readiness:

e Establish relationships with neighboring community providers,
parent groups and individuals in the LJSD district boundaries.

e Develop ongoing communication with existing providers,
parent groups and individuals to work collaboratively in
supporting early learning.

e Ultilize YES (Young Essential Scholars) Newsletter to
showcase community providers, parent groups and
individuals that support early learners.

e Provide a Learning Link for families to engage in meaningful
activities linked to early learning.

e Provide access to Ready4K to target resources to existing
families and those with children ages 0-5 within our
community.

e Ultilize quarterly informational brochure documenting early
childhood milestones for familes supporting children ages 0-
5.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Total Funds

$1,000.00

$30,002.00

Contributing

No

No

Page 44 of 123



Action #  Title Description Total Funds Contributing

2.4 Early Literacy- With approximately 55% of our families within Lowell Joint meeting the $37,344.00 Yes
Preschool Program |requirements for free and reduced lunch, there is a tremendous need
and Learning Link to support our community with access to quality preschool at no

charge. As the discussion began around opening a state-funded
preschool, many additional families expressed an interest in having a
fee-based program as well since we would be able to offer a program
at less expensive rates than some of the local alternatives. We have
applied for two preschool licenses so that we are able to move forward
with a state-funded preschool as funds become available and a fee-
based option. We will continue to run a Learning Link: a space where
parents come with their children ages 0-5 to engage in activities
designed to develop and support school readiness skills. The goal was
to have the space open for 10 hours a week, which we were able to do
in the spring of 2021. So we are exploring options to increase hours
and potentially offer a second site. With all of the additional offerings
under Universal Pre-Kindergarten, we will examine the feasibility once
we have enrollments for both TK and preschool completed.

2.5 Transitional Transitional Kindergarten is not currently compulsory, however, those $1,048,155.00 Yes

Kindergarten students who would not otherwise be enrolled in preschool or other
school readiness programs prior to entry into Kindergarten are at a
serious disadvantage without the opportunity to participate in activities
designed to nurture and develop foundational skills. This is especially
true for frequently underserved student groups. Providing
opportunities in both TK and preschool programs at no cost for UPPs
helps to level the playing field in developing school-readiness skills.
This includes the addition of Instructional Aides in order to maintain
the required 12-1 ratio under Universal Pre-Kindergarten along with
the TK teachers that were already funded. This Action is principally
directed at UPPs.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 45 of 123



Goal Analysis [2022-23]

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year.
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions.

All actions and services were implemented. The Early Learning TOSA continues to support the First Five grant in terms of deliverables
including the operation of the Learning Link. We were ale to service over 96 families this year through the various sessions of the Learning
Link. The parents have become a tight-knit community, which has been amazing to see over the course of the year. They are taking the
initiative to organize events to support each other while creating opportunities for their children to socialize and develop gross and fine motor
skills. While there were significant delays in receiving the contract from the state for our CSPP slots, we were able to open two preschool
sites. Through the enrollment process, it became clear that many parents were looking for a full day option. We had initially planned to offer
only AM/PM sessions to maximize the Part Day/Part Year slots for CSPP. We were able to adjust and offer a more full day option at Olita
Elementary. With the introduction of Expanded Learning funds and the requirement to service four year-olds, we were able to fill the part day
slots in the AM and extend the time to the end of the school day when most families wanted to pick up their preschooler along with an older
sibling. We were only able to offer this option for four year olds since the afternoon was not funded through CSPP. While we have continued
to focus on literacy trainings in the area of writing, it has been difficult to schedule the full Project GLAD training due to sub shortages. A
group of teachers were trained on the 2-day portion and need to complete the 4-day demonstration component. It was not possible to
schedule an opportunity for this summer, so the goal is to offer the full 6 days of training and follow up during the school year. The TOSA will
also have specific time allocated on her schedule to support teachers with modeling, coaching or co-teaching with GLAD strategies.

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services.

The unused slots at Olita from the CSPP contract will create some surplus in funds in this year only due to the hold harmless status in state
contracts. We will not be required to return the funds even though we are not at full capacity. We are hoping that we will be able to move
those slots to the new site; however, the contract will be adjusted to fewer slots in the future if we are not able to utilize all 96 half day slots.
There were approximately $230,000 in additional costs for preschool and other early learning program items. Much of this is associated costs
for the program such as room set up since we did not receive planning funds, additional staffing to manage summer enroliment, and a
coordinator position to oversee these new programs. There was an additional $67,000 in expenses for Action 2.1 to reflect total salary costs
for the TOSA position and not just the portion covered by the First Five grant. Many of these costs include both step and column increases in
addition to added staffing.

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal.

Using information from our surveys on the newsletter we also developed a skill builder and parent night focused on interest around gross and
fine motor skills. We had over 20 families participate and it was incredibly well received. We continue to have an overflow of parents
interested in attending our Learning Link, so we are exploring the possibility of opening a second one. Now that the year has ended, we will
be able to pull some data on the initial group of students in the Learning Link who completed TK to determine some of the effects of
participation in the Learning Link. We will be setting up a system for tracking this information to evaluate effectiveness moving forward. We
have a small number of students from the 2021-2022 school year when we opened on January for 5 months. Now that we have a larger
2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 46 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis

group to follow for next year, we want to organize the data collection for evaluation. Having a TOSA to manage the deliverables of the First
Five grant continues to be invaluable. This year, she was able to connect with community partners to provide glasses for students, dental and
vision screenings, and other supports and resources for our youngest learners. She continues to facilitate the Early Childhood Leadership
Team (ECLT), which drives the priorities for implementation of the grant through analysis of the Early Developmental Index (EDI) data.
Additional community partners and parent/grandparents have been added to the group to provide more feedback on how we can best meet
the needs of the 0-5 age span. The programs and services continue to grow, which is exciting to see. With the addition of an Early Learning
Coordinator to oversee the preschool programs and other elements of UPK (Universal Pre-Kindergarten), we are able to provide a strong
foundation in early literacy that we anticipate impacting the school readiness levels of our incoming TK and Kindergarten students over the
next few years.

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from
reflections on prior practice.

As mentioned above, we had our first early literacy parent night based on feedback from the survey opportunity in the newsletter. It was an
interactive night for parents to experience stations that demonstrated activities and skills they can help develop to support school readiness.
Each family was able to take some resources to replicate the stations at home. We recognize the need to increase the opportunities we have
for training of parents. While we are providing resources through the newsletter and texts, we are looking to increase the parent nights in
support of some hands-on experiences to support families in developing school readiness in their children. This is reflected in the updated
goals for the First Five grant. Because of the situation with the desire for full-day preschool, we also intend to open a third preschool location
that will allow us more flexibility with for-fee students. We are in conversations with our state analyst to see if we are able to move some of
our unused, existing slots to a new site, but in the meantime, we are planning to open a preschool at Macy. The state did not open an
application for additional CSPP slots this year, but we will continue to explore every avenue to support our families in need of preschool and
early learning experiences.

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the

Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update
Table.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 47 of 123



Goals and Actions

Goal
Goal #

3 Modernization and Maintenance of Facilities

Description

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.

The schools in Lowell Joint were built in the 1950s and 60s and are in desperate need of major maintenance and modernization. The District
continues to prioritize facility needs, and with the passing of a bond in 2018 (Measure LL), there will be additional monies available to begin
the modernization and upgrading of all sites over the next few years. The primary focus of the bond is related to roofing and HVAC with the
associated electrical and plumbing. These additional dollars will allow District funds for maintenance to be used on other needs in the
prioritized list. Facilities projects were identified beginning with the Olita Major Maintenance project that began in 2020. There was an
unexpected vacancy at the Maybrook site within the district that had been leased to a private school. This allowed for the consideration of
using that site as temporary housing for the six schools as the repairs to roofing and HVAC systems are completed. No students present on
site allows for a faster construction timeline, which decreases the overall cost of the project. It also means students will not be disrupted
during the day by construction. Olita was technically moved to the Maybrook campus at the beginning of the 2020 school year while we were
still in distance learning. Because we were not able to return to in-person instruction until March of 2021, there was little disruption for
students who were meeting virtually. Construction was completed on the Olita site and Macy was moved to Maybrook mid-year. With the
work at El Portal being done over the summer, three of the six schools were able to complete major construction and modernization within
about a year. This allowed the district to complete the issuance of the bonds, which ultimately saved the tax payers approximately five million
dollars in addition to some construction savings. Jordan is being moved to the Maybrook site for the 2021-2022 school year. Meadow Green
and Rancho Starbuck will follow after construction is completed at Jordan. Given that the primary purpose of the bond was to upgrade basic
necessities (roofing, HVAC, electrical and plumbing), there is still much work to be done. The district will continue to address major areas for
improvement in conjunction with the projects identified in the scope of work for the bond. This goal helps to address the Local Control
Funding Formula (LCFF) State Priority #1, which is Basic (Conditions for Learning).

Measuring and Reporting Results

Desired Outcome for

Year 3 Outcome 202324

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome

Board agendas and
minutes

Bond Oversight
Committee agendas
and minutes

The Facilities Master
Plan will be Board
approved and
implementation will
begin with regular

The Facilities Master
Plan was Board
approved and
implementation is
monitored with regular

Implementation of the
Facilities Master Plan
is monitored with

regular updates to the

Identified timelines for
priorities within the
Facilities Master Plan
will be met including

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 48 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

updates to the Board
of Trustees on
progress.

updates to the Board
of Trustees on
progress.

Board of Trustees on
progress.

projects completed
under the bond.

SARCs and FIT
Reports

All school sites were
inspected using the
Facilities Inspection
Tool (FIT) to ensure
that facilities are in
“Good Repair" or
higher.

All school sites were
inspected using the
Facilities Inspection
Tool (FIT) to ensure
that facilities are in
“Good Repair" or
higher.

All school sites were
inspected using the
Facilities Inspection
Tool (FIT) to ensure
that facilities are in
“Good Repair" or
higher. Two received
"Exemplary" status.

All school sites will
continue to receive a
"Good Repair" or
higher marking on the
annual FIT reports
that are then reported
in the School
Accountability Report
Cards (SARCs)

Board agendas and
minutes

Bond Oversight
Committee agendas
and minutes

Three of the sites
have completed the
scope of work
identified in the bond
with some additional
district-funded work
being completed in
the summer of 2021

(marquees, painting).

Jordan is now
completed (4th of 6
sites) and Meadow
Green is moving to
the Maybrook site for
the 2022-23 school
year.

Meadow Green is now
completed (5th of 6
sites) and Rancho
Starbuck is moving to
the Maybrook site for
the 2023-24 school
year.

All schools will have
completed the work
identified in Measure
LL including new
roofing, HVAC
systems, and the
associated electrical
and plumbing. Some
sites also required
updated piping for
sewer lines. Additional
district-funded
projects will be
completed including
marques, painting,
and water bottle filling
stations.

Actions

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 49 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#actions

Action#  Title Description

3.1 Facilities Master Plan  Given the scope of work necessary to support the aging facilities
within the district, a Facilities Master Plan needs to be approved to
prioritize the major maintenance projects in conjunction with the work
being done through Measure LL. The primary focus of the bond is
related to roofing and HVAC with the associated electrical and
plumbing. These additional bond dollars will allow District funds for
maintenance to be used on other needs on the prioritized list within
the Facilities Master Plan. The plan will set the vision for the next 20
plus years as "Caretakers of a Legacy". The plan was developed over
the last few years and is ready to be submitted for Board approval.
Once approved, there will be regular updates to the Board. There are
$2,056,000 dollars budgeted for non-personnel expenses out of Fund
14, 25, and 40. These are not included in the general fund budget.

3.2 FIT Reports Continue to inspect all school sites to ensure that facilities are in
“Good Repair.”
3.3 Measure LL-Bond In November of 2018 the community passed a bond to support the

much needed facilities work at each of the six sites. The scope of
work is outlined in the Master Plan and the expenditures are
documented here to support the ongoing work in meeting this goal
beyond the use of general fund monies. There is $13,267,359
budgeted in non-personnel for major maintenance and modernization
for the 2021-2022 school year with an additional $115, 392 in
personnel. These costs are not included in the general fund budget
since they are a reflection of the bond monies.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Total Funds
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Contributing
No

No

No

Page 50 of 123



Goal Analysis [2022-23]

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year.
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions.

There were no substantive differences and the actions outlined in the bond measure and Facilities Master Plan are being completed and
monitored regularly. Work is actually ahead of schedule because of the construction that was completed during Covid with no students
present on campus. The HVAC systems have been updated at 5 of 6 sites with the final site being completed in the 2023-2024 school year.
The associated electrical and plumbing have also been completed at all elementary sites with Rancho scheduled for completion in June of
2024. The Facilities Master Plan is revised regularly to leverage additional projects as other work is completed ahead of schedule and under
budget. Marquees have been placed at completed sites that have also been painted for an overall upgrade to the facilities.

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services.

None of the Action Items in this particular goal are contributing to increased and/or improved services. While there are always fluctuations in
budgeted expenses and actual expenditures with large construction projects, these are documented in Board agenda items on a regular
basis for things like change orders and/or monitored by the Citizens Oversight Committee for the bond. Because the construction has
proceeded at a faster pace than originally planned with the ability to work during Covid on campuses with no students present, the costs
related to the bond are actually well under budget, which is saving taxpayers approximately 5 million in costs over the life of the bond.

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal.

The Bond Oversight Committee monitors the progress and expenditures of bond monies to ensure that the district is on target with meeting
goals identified within the bond. The work at five sites has been completed ahead of schedule. All schools were in "Good Repair" or higher
on the current School Accountability Report Cards. Regular updates on the Facilities Master Plan are provided to the Board at both Board
meetings and through weekly communication. The updated HVAC systems along with electrical and plumbing upgrades have been vital to
the overall functioning of the schools on a day to day basis. The addition of new buildings at Jordan was a critical component in creating
space for both the Dual Language program and the additional TK and preschool classrooms.

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from
reflections on prior practice.

There continue to be additions to the scope of work outlined in various plans as projects come in under budget. This frees up funding to
support things like additional water bottle filling stations that might otherwise be delayed based on higher priority items. Two required state
initiatives, Universal Pre-Kindergarten and Expanded Learning Opportunities, are still creating space issues throughout the district due to
high demand. The addition of another preschool classroom (3 total now) and the need for space to run before and after school programs is
requiring the sharing of spaces for multiple uses, which is not always conducive to the various programs using the space. Where this is an
issue, we need to look at viable options for how to potentially increase space on campus while working within required guidelines from DSA

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 51 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis

or reconfigure spaces for better usage. This will continue to be an issue if the state moves forward with plans for a 10-1 ratio for Transitional
Kindergarten.

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update
Table.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 52 of 123



Goals and Actions

Goal

Goal # Description

4 In order to meet the unique academic, behavioral, and social emotional needs of all students, a Multi-Tiered System of
Support (MTSS) will continue to be expanded and refined.

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.

In order to meet the unique needs of all students within the Lowell Joint School District, there has been a focus on developing clear levels of
support for students in academics, behavior, and social emotional learning over the last few years under the larger umbrella of a Multi-Tiered
System of Support (MTSS). The work began with identifying district-wide initiatives to support first, best instruction in the classroom that
would meet the needs of the maijority of students. This is also known as Tier 1. Then additional supports (Tier 2 and Tier 3) were developed
and layered in to address smaller, more targeted groups of students based on need. As those systems were put in place, we began to tackle
the supports for Behavior and now Social Emotional/Mental Health needs. The overall system is constantly being refined based on data and
the ever-changing needs of our student population. All stakeholders have expressed concern for student's growth and well-being as we
return to campuses full time in the 2021-2022 school year. Specific, more targeted goals have been identified for the Social Emotional and
Mental Health needs of students and for Early Literacy. While these fall within the Multi-Tiered System of Support, it was important to
spotlight these areas given the current context for our students and the increased need in these areas. Just as important is the attention to
potential changes in that first, best instruction that may need to take place to provide opportunities for learning around skill sets that may not
have been fully developed due to interrupted schooling, changes in instructional practice in distance learning, and other barriers making
learning difficult. So represented in this goal are some of the ongoing practices that have been successfully supporting students prior to the
pandemic as well as additional actions designed to address both the greater number of students needing intervention and the varied
challenges facing students in the coming years.

Refining our overall Multi-Tiered System of Support continues to be an ongoing means of addressing the needs of students at all levels. We
are developing additional services and interventions for our English Learners and Students with Disabilities. While we maintained the
supports from the prior year, there is clearly a need to provide additional intervention for students to close the achievement gap as opposed
to maintaining growth. We are adding some additional counseling and psychological supports for our UDPs, which will allow for more
targeted support and monitoring for these student groups that are below the overall average for the district. This is especially true for our
English learners and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students. We want to continue to monitor both the academic and socio-emotional
needs of our Foster Youth as well. We are currently evaluating the data from the LAS Links assessment to determine the focus for our
English learners next year. We had hoped to have the data in February for planning purposes, however, delays due to COVID and school
closures did not allow for this. With the close out of the year, we will look at the data as baseline information to plan with over the summer for
beginning the 2021-2022 school year with any necessary adjustments to our English learner supports. This will also allow us to analyze
current SBAC data and ELPAC Summative data, which is becoming available now, to make decisions for the coming year.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 53 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription

This addresses the LCFF State Priorities 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning), Priority 5: Student Engagement (Engagement), Priority
6: School Climate (Engagement), Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning), and Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes).
On a local level, this goal is designed to meet Board expectations around Academic Excellence, School/Family/Community Partnerships and
Communication, High quality staff providing high quality service, and Safe, orderly, positive, respectful learning environments.

Measuring and Reporting Results

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

California School
Dashboard
English Learner
Progress Indicator
(ELPI)

ELPAC Data

Las Links

iReady Data

Roughly 48% of
English learner
students were making
progress towards
English Language
proficiency in 2019 on
the English Learner
Progress Indicator. In
the 2018-2019 year,
we had 19% scoring
well-developed (4) on
the ELPAC and
another 44% at
moderately developed
(3). We have current
data for our 3rd-8th
grade students with
19% still at the well-
developed (4) on the
ELPAC and another
36% at moderately
developed (3) for
2021. We do not have
the TK-2nd grade
scores for 2021 from
the state as of yet.

Students took 3
Diagnostic Tests this
year. In a sampling of
our EL students, 91%
of our students have
increased
performance from
Diagnostic 1 to
Diagnostic 3. 40% of
the students
exceeded the typical
growth, and of those,
32% exceeded the
stretch growth, which
works to support
closing the
achievement gap.

For students in grades
3-8, 33% scored at
the moderately
developed level with
21% well-developed.
This is an overall of
54%, which is about
the same as our
baseline year.

In a sampling of our
EL students, 91% of
our students have
increased
performance from
Diagnostic 1 to
Diagnostic 3. 40% of
the students
exceeded the typical
growth, and of those,
32% exceeded the
stretch growth, which
works to support
closing the
achievement gap.

On the 2021-22
ELPAC for students in
grades 3-8, 36%
scored at the
moderately developed
level with 16% well-
developed. This is an
overall of 52%. On
the 2022-23 ELPAC
for students in grades
3-8, initial results

60% of English
Learners will be
making progress
towards English
language proficiency
with 25% scoring well-
developed and 50% at
moderately
developed. For the
summative ELPAC,
we would like to
increase the number
of students scoring at
the well-developed
range by 5% while
also increasing those
in the moderate range
by 5%

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 54 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults

Desired Outcome for

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 202324

show that 42% scored

at the moderately

developed level with

16% well-developed.

This is an overall of

60%.

29% of our students

maintained ELPI

Levels and 45% of our

students progressed

at least one ELPI

level.

SBAC Data For ELA, 23% of Current data is not For 2022, ALL To close the

English learners met |available for SBAC. students scored 47% achievement gap
or exceeded the Using our benchmark |who met or exceeded while still raising
standard with only iReady data, we show |the standard on the achievement levels for
16% in mathematics. |that 91% of our EL CA Dashboard in ELA all students, English
This is in comparison |students increased and 33% in Math. learners will need to
to English only performance in ELA | English Learners gain 5% each year
students with 64% and 70% increased in |performed with 12% with English only
meeting or exceeding |their performance in | met or exceeded in students gaining at
the standard for ELA | Math. ELA and 10% in Math. least 2% in both ELA
and 56% for When Spring of 2023 and mathematics.
mathematics. data becomes

available, new data

will be analyzed to

determine if additional

actions are necessary.

Dataquest- 19% of students were |We don't have new DataQuest reports a Reclassification rates

Reclassification Rates

reclassified in the
2020-2021 school
year, which is well

RFEP rates for 2021-
22 from Dataquest at
this time. We

2021-22
Reclassification Rate
of 15.5%. Based on

will remain above both
county and state
rates.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 55 of 123



Desired Outcome for

assessment system.
From this, both goals
and stretch goals will
be determined for
each student.

IReady data will allow
us to track Spanish
proficiency for our
Dual Language
students, which we
have not done in the
first 2 years of the
program with a formal
assessment tool.

substantial growth. In
ELA:

August: 17% Above
Grade Level

Most Recent: 39%
Above Grade Level
August: 21% On
Grade Level

Most Recent: 20% On
Grade Level

Total moved from
37% on or above
grade level to 60%
MATH:

August: 5% Above
Grade Level

Most Recent: 27%
Above Grade Level
August: 14% On
Grade Level

Most Recent: 21% On
Grade Level

substantial growth.
ELA

August 2022: 19%
scored above grade
level

Most Recent: 42%
scored above grade
level

August 2022: 20%
scored on grade level
Most Recent: 20%
scored on grade level
Total moved from
39% on or above
grade level to 62%
MATH:

August 2022: 7%
scored above grade
level

Most Recent: 31%
scored above grade
level

August 2022 14%
scored on grade level

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 202324
above LA county at reclassified 59 current ELPAC
8.1% and the state at |students with the reports, our RFEP
8.6%. potential for a few rate for the 2022-23
more in the next few |school year is 16%.
weeks as CAASPP
scores become
available.
iReady Data An initial diagnostic Students took 3 Students took 3 80% of students will
will be administered Diagnostic tests Diagnostic tests meet their goals with
by September of 2021 throughout the year  |throughout the year 30% completing
since this is a new and showed and showed stretch goals. These

numbers will be re-
evaluated upon
training within the
system and
monitoring growth
over the first year of
implementation.

60% of Spanish
learners will be
making progress
towards Spanish
Language proficiency
in alignment with our
goal for developing
English proficiency
with our English
learners. This may be
adjusted after
baseline data is
gathered in the fall of
2021.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 56 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

Total moved from
19% on or above
grade level to 48%

Most Recent: 21%
scored on grade level
Total moved from
21% on or above
grade level to 52%

Professional
Development records
Classroom
Observations

All teachers hired
before the pandemic
have been trained in
Thinking Maps with 2
additional days in
Write from the
Beginning.

8 teachers hired after
2015 were trained in
the 2-day Research
portion of Project
GLAD with the 4-day
Demonstration
scheduled for the fall
since all elementary
teachers were trained
in 2013-3015.

All teachers hired
before the school
closures were trained
in Explicit, Direct
Instruction (EDI).

Teachers continue to
utilize Thinking Maps
and Write from the
Beginning to support
student growth in the
the area of writing and
organizing thoughts.

All trained teachers
demonstrate the
ability to implement
GLAD strategies in
their classroom as a
way to support
language acquisition
based on classroom
observations by
Principals.

Teachers continue to
use EDI strategies in
the classroom to best
support their
instructional practices.
This is something that
is used in teacher
evaluations to show
teacher effectiveness
and stay in line with

Teachers continue to
be go through
professional
development to be
GATE certified and
integrate depth and
complexity strategies.

They utilize Thinking
Maps and Write from
the Beginning to
support student
growth in the the area
of writing and
organizing thoughts.

All trained teachers
demonstrate the
ability to implement
GLAD strategies in
their classroom as a
way to support
language acquisition
based on classroom
observations by
Principals.

Teachers continue to
use EDI strategies in

All teachers will be
trained in both
Thinking Maps and
Write from the
Beginning.

All teachers will have
been through both the
2-day and 4-day
portions of Project
GLAD training and a
system of ongoing
follow-up and
coaching will be in
place to support
implementation.

All teachers will be
trained in Explicit,
Direct Instruction
(EDI).

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 57 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

the CA standards for
teaching.

the classroom to best
support their
instructional practices.
This is something that
is used in teacher
evaluations to show
teacher effectiveness
and stay in line with
the CA standards for
teaching.

Absentee letters
SARB packets
Monthly Chronic
Absentee lists
Attendance rates
Chronic absenteeism
Middle school drop
out rate

Letters are
automatically
generated in Aeries
on the 3rd, 5th, 7th,
9th, and 13th absence
to notify parents for
both truancy and
chronic absenteeism.

One student was
taken through the
SARB process prior to
school closures.

Principals are given
monthly Chronic
Absentee lists to
follow up with
students. This is
monitored along with
the percentage of
students chronically
absent, the overall
attendance rate, and

Letters were
automatically
generated in Aeries
on the 3rd, 5th, 7th,
9th, and 13th absence
to notify parents for
both truancy and
chronic absenteeism.
Some adjustments
were made with the
number of students
required to
quarantine/isolate
multiple times due to
Covid regulations,
which would otherwise
have resulted in
identification as
chronically absent.

Principals were
regularly given
Chronic Absentee lists

Chronically Absent
Letters were
automatically
generated in Aeries
on the 3rd, 5th, and
9th absence to notify
parents for both
truancy and chronic
absenteeism. At that
time, the School
Attendance Review
Team puts the student
on an attendance
contract. Schools
used tiered
intervention strategies
to support students
and families. SARB
Meetings are
scheduled after the
12th absence.

Dataquest reports our
Chronic Absentee rate

Continue to generate
letters and monitor
student attendance.

All students who are
severely chronically
absent (more than
25% of days enrolled)
will begin the SARB
process.

Principals will
continue to receive
monthly lists of
chronically absent
students as well as
those in danger of
becoming chronically
absent to engage in
preventative
measures.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 58 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

the middle school
drop out rate to
measure student
engagement.

With the change in
attendance protocols
for the 2019-2020
school year, no P2
data was available,
However, prior to the
school closures in
March we were on
target in month 7 with
about 96% attendance
based on a query of
attendance within
Aeries.

Because of the school
closures in March of
2019, there is not a
direct comparison
point for Chronic
Absenteeism on the
CA Dashboard.
However, SARB
documentation for the
county shows a rate of
4.34%. This is an
average across all
grade levels.

to follow up with
students.

Current attendance
data within Aeries as
of May 2022 shows an
average attendance of
94.2% with a range
from 91.84% to
95.76% between the
six sites. Given the
extreme number of
students who
experienced one or
more
quarantine/isolation
experiences due to
Covid, this is not
surprising.

We had no drop outs
in the 2021-2022
school year.

at 16.6% for the 2021-
2022 school year,
which is a significant
increase from 2020-
2021; however, the
comparable state and
county percentages at
30.8% and 21.3%
respectively, indicate
that our systems and
supports are still
working in this
different climate
relatively speaking.
The 2022-23 data is
not available on
Dataquest as of yet:
however, we had
approximately 550
students (including
those who left the
district) who were
chronically absent.
This is about the
same as 2021-2022
so we anticipate the
percentage will be
similar for 2022-23.

Principals were
regularly given
Chronic Absentee lists
to follow up with
students.

Attendance rates will
continue to be at 96%
or higher.

The Chronic Absentee
rate will be less than
3% overall with
significant student
groups being no more
than 5%.

Maintain the drop out
rate at less than 1%
for middle school
students.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 59 of 123



Desired Outcome for

EL Goal Sheets
(Intervention
Coordinators)

income (specifically
Homeless), and our
English learners,
support personnel
check-in regularly with
these students and
document contacts
and any necessary
supports to ensure
both student
engagement and
success. Quarterly
reports are generated
to summarize the
meetings held and
review any identified
needs.

provided by support
personnel through
phone calls home,
emails, work with
students on campus,
intervention
throughout the school
day, counseling, and
peer tutoring.

provided by support
personnel through
phone calls home,
emails, work with
students on campus,
intervention
throughout the school
day, counseling, and
peer tutoring.

Students have also
been offered a tuition
free extension of the
school day through
the Expanded
Learning
Opportunities
Program in which
intervention and
enrichment have been
provided.

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 202324
We had no drop outs Current attendance
in the 2019-2020 data within Aeries as
school year. of May 2023 shows an
average attendance of
92% districtwide.
We had no drop outs
in the 2022-2023
school year.
CREW logs To focus on the Support of our Foster | Support of our Foster Support staff will
Nurse Documentation |specific needs of our |Youth, Homeless, and | Youth, Homeless, and continue to meet
of supports Foster Youth, low EL students was EL students was regularly with Foster

Youth, low income
(specifically
Homeless), and
English learners to
monitor progress
academically,
behaviorally, and
socially to make any
necessary
adjustments to
supports.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 60 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

Suspension and
Expulsion Rates

Due to school
closures in March of
2019, there is not a
direct comparison
point on the CA
Dashboard for
suspensions and
expulsion rates.
However, we had no
expulsions and a
1.6% Suspension
Rate reported on
Dataquest for the
2019-2020 school
year.

There were no
expulsions in the
2020-2021 data
reported from
Dataquest with only 6
suspensions across
the district for a .2%
suspension rate. This
is partly driven by
distance learning with
no students in person
for a significant chunk
of the year.

There were no
expulsions in the
2021-2022 data
reported from
Dataquest. There
were 90 suspensions
across the district for
a 2.3% suspension
rate. This is lower
than the state average
and 0.1% above the
County average.

The overall
suspension rate for
the district will be less
than 3% with no
significant student
group being higher
than 6%. The district
will continue to
maintain less than 1%
in expulsions.

Actions
Action #  Title Description
41 Professional

Development
(District-wide)

Provide non-student work days for professional development
opportunities beyond early-release Mondays. These days are focused
on intensive professional development to close the achievement gap

Total Funds

Contributing

$420,000.00 Yes

for unduplicated pupils. The focus prior to the pandemic was on

Thinking Maps as a foundation to the Write from the Beginning

program since writing is an identified need for Unduplicated Pupils
across the district. Having the ability to use nonlinguistic
representations of complex thinking to remove language barriers is a

critical component in supporting our English learners. Another training
component will be the new iReady assessment system to support the
identification of student needs for both intervention support and
enrichment opportunities. Woven within these days will also be
training for the social emotional side of our most vulnerable students in
reconnecting after the pandemic. This includes our students from low
income households along with our English learners who were
especially impacted by the school closures. Early-release Mondays

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 61 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#actions

Action # Title

4.2 Professional
Development-
English Learners

4.3 Progress Monitoring
and Support of
English Learners

Description

will also be used for training in social emotional learning, iReady, and
Thinking Maps, along with collaborative planning time. A consultant
was also hired to provide ongoing professional development for new
teachers in induction.

Continue to provide ELD training so that EL students will be provided
appropriate access to the California Content Standards based on data
analysis of ongoing needs for our students in alignment with best
practices. This includes support for the district-wide initiative in
implementing OCDE Project GLAD (Guided Language Acquisition
Design). Training will also include support for teachers in
understanding the ELD Standards along with strategies for both
Designated and Integrated ELD.

In addition to teachers who provide Designated English Language
Development (ELD) and Integrated ELD on a daily basis as part of
Tier 1 instruction, four Bilingual Aides provide additional support to
both students and parents. All 3-8 grade English learners track their
own academic and language progress with goal sheets, and teachers
will monitor the progress of English learners every trimester and/or
quarter with interventions implemented as appropriate. Our Bilingual
Aides work directly with students under the supervision of certificated
staff in addition to supporting teachers with pulling the data from
Aeries for monitoring and tracking student progress. Teachers meet
with students and parents during conference time to discuss English
learner progress. The aides complete the basic data portion
(assessment scores, enrollment, etc.) Intervention Coordinators at
each site meet one-on-one with English learners to support the
development of their goals after discussing progress data on local
measures and/or state assessment data. All English learners
(including those reclassified that are still being monitored for
progress), are given a language assessment to track language
proficiency and provide additional supports as needed. This has been

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Total Funds

$35,000.00

$250,376.00

Contributing

Yes

Yes

Page 62 of 123



Action#  Title
4.4 Dual Immersion
Program

4.5 ELD, Reading
Intervention, and
Spanish Elective at
Rancho

4.6 Before and After
School Intervention

Description

done through Las Links as an additional assessment specific to our
English learners.

The district developed a Dual Immersion Program two years ago both
to support our English learners and provide the opportunity for English
only students to develop a second language. There are currently 4
grades available (TK-3rd grade) with 4th being added in the 2022-23
school year. iReady also includes assessments in Spanish that will
allow us to better track students on their Spanish language
proficiency. Spanish fluency will be assessed using Las Links in the
coming year. All new core materials have been purchased for the
program to better address Spanish language standards and support
differentiation based on student needs.

In addition to a double block of English for all students, English
learners at Rancho Starbuck are included in an English Language
Development elective to increase language proficiency before entering
high school. We typically have less than 15 long-term English learners
across the entire district, but the added support helps to prepare
students for the increased language demands at both the intermediate
and high school levels. A Spanish elective allows for a cognitive break
in the day for English learners who are also in need of developing
Spanish language proficiency. Some English only students are also in
the class to develop beginning Spanish, which also allows native
Spanish speakers the opportunity to support their English only peers.

Continue to hire staff to provide for extended day intervention classes
principally directed toward the needs of our UPPs. We are looking at
ways to increase the number of staff available and/or to partner with
outside agencies to provide targeted support for our students needing
tutoring.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Total Funds

$1,003,806.00

$68,355.00

$80,000.00

Contributing

Yes

Yes

Yes

Page 63 of 123



Action #
4.7

4.8

4.9

410

Title

Intervention
Coordinators

Intervention Support
During the Day

Teacher
Planning/Choir
Teacher

Classified Staff-
Instructional
Assistants & Special
Ed Support Aides

Total Funds
$21,273.00

Description

Continue to fund stipends for each school to hire an intervention
coach. Coaches meet throughout the year with district personnel to
discuss MTSS and needed adjustments to support our Unduplicated
Pupil needs. They have been trained in llluminate to run reports to
facilitate the analysis of data in monitoring our subgroup populations to
determine groupings for intervention and to identify gaps in supports
with a primary focus on our English learners, Foster Youth, Homeless,
and low income students.

As part of differentiation within the classroom, teachers provide $370,796.00
support to students in making progress toward identified goals. For our

English learners, Bilingual Aides provide push-in support for language

development. Elementary sites with Title | funds have hired an

Intervention Aide in addition to other intervention supports within the

day. The District had provided an aide for each site during the 2021-22

school year with one-time dollars to support the most struggling

students in closing some of the gaps created from the prior year. With

some additional one-time dollars, the District will fund an aide per site

again for the 2023-2024 school year.

Teachers will collaborate regularly to monitor student progress, $215,953.00
dialogue about best practices, and design intervention programs. This

includes an FTE for a music teacher, which allows for additional

collaboration time at the elementary level during music instruction

while also increasing student access to the Arts.

These assistants and aides provide direct support to our students with $1,526,399.00
special needs. This can include one-on-one instruction or guided
practice, small group support, support for a specific student while

mainstreamed, and work within a self-contained classroom.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Contributing
Yes

Yes

No

No

Page 64 of 123



Action #
4.11

412

413

414

Title

Math Intervention-
Rancho Starbuck

llluminate

Description

Maintain Math intervention sections at the intermediate school for
targeted students (one seventh grade section and one eighth grade
section). This Action is principally directed at UPPs.

Continue to fund a technology program/system to assist teachers in
monitoring student progress and analyzing data to close achievement
gaps for UPPs (llluminate). We are in the process of evaluating the
need for this with the addition of iReady. Aeries is our student
information system, so Illuminate is an additional resource.

Reading Intervention- | As needed, maintain sections to the Rancho Starbuck master

Rancho Starbuck

Coordination of
Services

schedule for reading intervention (one for grade 7 and one for grade
8). There has not been a need for additional sections outside of
expense in Goal 4 Action 5. The site has managed intervention in
Reading through the one section and the FLEX program based on
targeted student needs. This Action is principally directed at UPPs.

Coordination and administration of all programs funded through
Supplemental Grant dollars. This includes monitoring the progress of
Unduplicated Pupils (UPPs) by certificated personnel at the District
Office. With the growing supports and services from the inception of
LCFF for our Unduplicated Pupils (from just over $230,000 to over $2
million), there is a need to add an additional classified person in fiscal
services related to the administration of program actions and
expenditures. This also includes half of the classified salary for our
Data Systems Analyst position to provide aggregated and
disaggregated data for the LCAP, reports to principals each month on
attendance, chronic absenteeism, and suspensions, and support for
monitoring each of the unduplicated pupil groups so that students are
receiving appropriate services. The remainder of that salary is in Goal
1, Action 10.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Total Funds
$49,956.00

$25,000.00

$0.00

$260,959.00

Contributing
Yes

Yes

No

Yes

Page 65 of 123



Action #
415

4.16

417

4.18

Title Description

ABA Class and Both a Program Specialist and an ABA Teacher are funded to
Program Specialist  |increase overall services and opportunities for students struggling with
Position behavior. The primary goal is to re-engage students in meaningful

learning opportunities by providing intervention for behavior, mental
health, and other nonacademic barriers to learning.

Learning Hubs- School libraries will continue to be open additional hours to provide

Libraries homework and tutoring help. This is in addition to their regular duties
as Library Media Techs to support our students needing a place to do
homework, get help with tutoring, and/or access to technology they
may not have at home. This also allows for before and after school
intervention to be housed in the school library so that students are
able to receive the targeted support they need in flexible groupings.
Additional funds were expended in the 2022-23 school year to refresh
school libraries with additional titles and replacements where needed.
This Action is principally directed at UPPs.

MTSS Coordination | District personnel will coordinate, revise and update the LJSD district-

and Monitoring of wide Multi-Tiered System of Support (MTSS) for intervention and

UPPs remediation with Intervention Coordinators. Additional funds are used
to target struggling and/or advanced students. As part of MTSS, our
Homeless/Foster Youth Liaison supports the overall monitoring of
support for and achievement of our Homeless students in coordination
with sites and the counselor at Rancho Starbuck. The Director of
Educational Services is the Homeless and Foster Youth Liaison as
well as the Attendance Supervisor for the district.

Assessment System | In order to assess unduplicated pupils and provide appropriate
supports, the district needs to invest in a more comprehensive system
that will allow for benchmarks, language proficiency assessments and
intervention content targeted to student need. A group of teachers
were brought together to evaluate the iReady program along with
district personnel and Principals. We will be introducing the new

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Total Funds
$298,903.00

$263,256.00

$339,343.00

$160,000.00

Contributing
No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Page 66 of 123



Action # Title

4.19 Classified Staff-
Custodial Support

4.20 Attendance
Monitoring

4.21 Creative Response to
Emotional and
Educational Wellness

Description Total Funds

system in the 2021-2022 school year, which will necessitate new
baseline data for benchmarks as well as training for staff. The data
provided from the system will better allow us to assess and monitor
our unduplicated students although it will benefit all. The Dashboard
will allow for filtering based on high need student groups so that
English learners, Foster Youth and low income students can be readily
identified in terms of both need and targeted supports. This is funding
for a two-year implementation along with some one-time professional
development costs.

Continue to fund additional night custodians beyond base needs to $274,737.00
provide daily cleaning of classrooms. This allows for a safe and

positive school environment when increasing the demands on existing

custodial staff due to before and after school interventions, parent

engagement activities, extended professional development,

collaboration meetings, and other events funded by supplemental

monies. This Action is principally directed at UPPs.

Student absences will be monitored regularly and attendance letters $12,000.00
sent out for students with signs of chronic absenteeism. The district

will continue with the attendance incentive program to encourage sites

to explore unique ways to promote attendance. The Director of

Educational Services is also the Attendance Supervisor for the district

and will continue to work through the SARB process with principals as

needed. Attendance rates are monitored as well as the middle school

drop out rate as indicators of overall student engagement.

The Creative Response to Emotional and Educational Wellness or $1,071,703.00
C.R.E.W. has been an overwhelming success. During the pandemic,

counseling and psych interns were able to check in and connect with

students, provide social emotional lessons during class sessions, and

support the overall mental health of students. This has continued

during the 2021-22 school year. The counselor and interns monitor the

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Contributing

Yes

No

Yes

Page 67 of 123



Action #  Title Description Total Funds Contributing

social emotional needs of our UPPs along with a Program Specialist
funded through the SELPA and four school psychologists to ensure
that both counseling and psychological needs are being met. These
services continue to be critical in meeting the social emotional needs
of those students still experiencing the effects of trauma from the
pandemic. Contacts with Foster Youth, ELs, and low income students
(primarily Homeless) are documented weekly to ensure timely
supports.

In 2021-22, we added services through Care Solace, a third-party
vendor who operates as a resource for connecting students, families,
and staff with mental health resources. This includes finding the right
support, navigating insurance, and checking in to determine if the
issues are being addressed. We continue to hire counseling interns to
expand support services to our students with only one counselor for
the district. Having interns allows every site to provide much needed
services. These services are in addition to the existing partnership
with the Gary Center (no cost) and a partnership with Supervisor
Hahn's Office for limited counseling support. This was a high priority in
feedback on the LCAP, so we have increased the number of interns
for the coming year with 5.5 counseling interns and six psych interns.
The pay was also slightly increased to remain competitive in attracting
the best candidates. A consultant was also hired to oversee the
program and provide ongoing support to the interns.

4.22 Nurse and LVNs Collaborate with key staff at the county child welfare agency, mental $344,990.00 Yes
health agency, and other entities providing care and services to foster
youth and other UPPs (partial funding for the District Nurse). Offsetting
the cost for support to these students along with other local funds has
allowed us to hire a nursing assistant who checks in with Foster Youth
specifically each week. There is a focus on monitoring the specific
needs of our low income families who may need assistance with no or
low cost healthcare, screeners, immunizations, or other healthcare
supports. An additional LVN position was created to support the

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 68 of 123



Action #  Title Description Total Funds Contributing

district and adjustments were made to the Health Tech position for the
2022-23 school year. These will continue for 2023-2024.

Goal Analysis [2022-23]

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year.
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions.

All actions and services were implemented. We continued to add services and supports for MTSS. With ongoing training on CERS and
iReady, teachers and administrators are getting better at analyzing CAASPP data and benchmarks to look at student groups. We continued
with iReady training as a major focus for this year. Teachers are now able to use this more consistent measure of student growth for every
grade level to be able to track progress over the course of the year. Once all CAASPP data is available, we will again analyze iReady
progress along side CAASPP data to give us a good indication of how the benchmarks predict proficiency on state standards measured
through state testing. As we identify those predictors, it will allow us to better plan for intervention and support for students throughout the
year. We have also added a level of social emotional support for our more at risk student groups. Academic and social-emotional check-ins
are implemented, and students are experiencing success with school work and relationships. The added nursing support has again been
critical in being able to check in with high risk students (our UPPs). We also worked with community agencies for vision and dental
screenings (described in Goal 2), which freed up nursing staff to monitor the needs of our UPPs more closely and provide services or
referrals as needed. The district has been able to hire a retired administrator with a counseling background as a consultant to support
C.R.E.W (Action 21), which will be renamed CARE in the coming year. This allows for ongoing training and support of those staff providing
much needed social emotional and mental health services for students. A second consultant, who is also a retired administrator and former
employee of the district, was also hired to oversee induction. This is a critical piece for supporting new teachers in developing their skill sets
to support all aspects of that first, best instruction and support for behavioral and social emotional needs.

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services.

There was a significant increase in the expenses for the Dual Language program with adding an additional grade and additional classes at
lower grade levels due to high demand. There were approximately $268,000 in additional staffing costs and supplies such as textbooks that
are a reflection of higher enroliment in this program. With some of the one-time pandemic funds still available, there was an additional
$260,000 spent on staffing for intervention within the school day. The additional reading sections were not needed at Rancho with alternative
support provided through the FLEX program for intervention. There were also some additional staffing costs for supporting the expanded
music program at the elementary level with movement and music, recorders, and band for 5th graders (approximately $129,000). Additional
aide costs for special education were up by about $47,000. Many of these costs include both step and column increases in addition to added
staffing. Coordination of MTSS services was up about $78,000 with an increase of $146,000 in costs for mental health staff (4.21). Our
nursing costs have also increased about $33,000 with the need for support after school and the additional 30 days of intersession (4.22).

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 69 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal.

Overall, students are making progress. The two grade levels that are showing the greatest need in English Language Arts are fourth and fifth,
which is not totally surprising given the learning loss during their formative years for reading development. The same is true for mathematics.
Compared to last year, seventh grade is down 9% overall in ELA with fourth down 11% and fifth grade down 1%. The other grades are up
anywhere from 4-10%. For mathematics, fourth grade is down 3%, while fifth remained the same. Fifth also remained the same on the CAST
for science. The additional intervention support will target these grade level gaps to better support those struggling students. The same will
be done by student group as we continue to analyze the CAASPP data being released for the spring of 2023. Chronic absenteeism continues
to be an area that we need to evaluate. Since returning from pandemic conditions, some families are more inclined to take vacations at off
times or avail themselves of travel opportunities while working remotely. This is in addition to an increased desire to keep students home
when sick, which all add to higher levels of absenteeism. We will continue to provide Principals with monthly lists of students who are
chronically absent for early intervention. This monitoring frequently provides important context for absences due to extended illness or
illuminates families that need support from the district's Attendance Monitor to avoid the SARB process. Our Tier 1 supports are meeting the
needs of the majority of our students. This summer we revised the MTSS handbook for the district to identify supports that have been piloted
and are now incorporated into the overall system. This information will be shared with all new teachers during orientation, administrators at
our first instructional meeting of the year, and then all teachers across the district. The handbook clearly outlines the elements of the district-
wide initiatives in support of differentiating instruction to meet the needs of students: Explicit, Direct Instruction; Project GLAD, Thinking
Maps; Write from the Beginning; and Depth and Complexity prompts. Additional refinements for Behavioral and Social Emotional supports
were added, and the first professional development day will include sessions on Behavior, Inclusion, and applying district-wide initiatives to
mathematics instruction. Subsequent professional development throughout the year will do the same in relation to language arts.

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from
reflections on prior practice.

Our intermediate school, Rancho Starbuck, is in ATSI for their English Learner student group. With this in mind, we are providing more
targeted support to the Rancho staff around English Language Development (ELD) for the coming year. District staff provided two sessions
on the basics of Designated and Integrated ELD at the end of the 2022-2023 school year as preparation for more extensive work in the 2023-
2024 school year. The sessions included specific strategies for integrated ELD that teachers could try out between sessions. There was a lot
of positive feedback, so we will continue to provide specific strategies while deepening teacher’s understanding of working with English
Learners and their specific language needs. There continues to be a need for more targeted support for students with gaps. With this in mind,
the District is funding an additional intervention person for each of the elementary sites who currently have an existing person out of Title 1
funds. One is also being funded for Rancho Starbuck who does not currently have a person for intervention during the day.

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the

Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update
Table.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 70 of 123



Goals and Actions

Goal
Goal #

Description

5 Enrichment and 21st Century Skill Development

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal.

With more than 55% of our students coming from low income homes in 2021-2022 (up 15% from the prior year), it continues to be evident
that not all students have equal access to opportunities outside of school to experience and develop 21st century skills which often require
access to pathways that some families are able to provide and some are not. As a district, Lowell Joint has continued to add programs to
support enrichment and talent development without a formalized GATE program. Both staff and parents have provided feedback that we
need to develop more opportunities and a more cohesive program while not limiting access to just formally identified GATE students. With
this in mind, the district is developing a comprehensive identification system that includes multiple measures and local norms for GATE
identification, training all teachers in best practices for working with GATE students to impact instruction within the day, and creating
enrichment opportunities that do not require GATE identification for participation. We continue to believe that all students should have access
to music and the arts, coding and STEAM, leadership opportunities and outlets to showcase their unique talents and abilities. With the
addition of on-going funds for Expanded Learning Opportunities, the district is developing a wide variety of offerings to support both
enrichment and 21st century skill development. Harnessing student interest to support development of the whole child through this new
program will truly allow for much greater access and participation of students.

Measuring and Reporting Results

Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

Completion of GATE
Certification

Three staff members
have currently
completed GATE
certification (meeting
the requirements
outlined by the OCC
GATE consortium).
There are an
additional 30 plus
teachers scheduled to

An additional 64 staff
members have
completed GATE
certification this year.
There are 30
additional staff
scheduled to be
certified in the 2022-
2023 school year. The
64 teachers who have
completed GATE

There are a total of 83
GATE certified
teachers in our
district. An additional
19 teachers
completed GATE
certification in Fall
2022. The 19
teachers who
completed the Fall
certification were

All teachers within the
district will be GATE
certified.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 71 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalsandActions
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#goalDescription
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#MeasuringandReportingResults

Desired Outcome for

and Local Norms

of purchasing
assessments and
developing local
norms.

chosen to be the
assessment to use as
the Universal
Screener. This
assessment was
purchased and
second-grade
teachers were trained
to proctor within the
classroom. The
CogAT was given to
all second-grade
students throughout
the district in the
Spring of 2022 with
the exception of
students whose
families decided to opt
out of any GATE
identification. A team
of teachers and staff
is being developed in
order to develop more
specific local norms

CogAT was given to
all second grade
students throughout
the district. Fourth
grade teachers were
trained to proctor the
CogAT within the
classroom. Fourth
grade students
throughout the district
were given the CogAT
for the first time in
Spring 2023. Two
measures were added
this year for GATE
identification, the test
of creativity and
teacher
recommendation. A
team of teachers and
staff was created to
review multiple
measures and assist
in the identification

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 202324
be trained in the 2021- certification have a given a Byrdseed.com
2022 school year. subscription to subscription as a
Byrdseed.com- a resource to help
resource to help incorporate GATE
teachers incorporate | standards into their
GATE standards into | daily lessons. There
their classrooms. are 38 teachers
scheduled to be
certified in the 2023-
2024 school year.
GATE Assessments | We are in the process | The CogAT was Spring 2023 the Appropriate staff will

be trained on
administering
assessments and
evaluating criteria for
GATE identification
using local norms.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 72 of 123



Desired Outcome for

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 202324
as the identification process. A final list of
process continues. An |approximately 16 - 20
additional assessment | GATE identified
for creativity is being | students (per grade),
identified as part of based on local norms,
the multiple measures |the test of creativity,
and will be and teacher
administered in the fall recommendations will
of 2022. be completed
Summer 2023. The
2021-2022 school
year had 18 students
GATE identified based
on local norms. .
TOSA Calendar Supports in the 2020- |During the 2021-2022 | Our TOSA support The TOSA's calendar

2021 school year
focused on the
elements necessary
for distance learning
with a heavy
emphasis on
technology support,
software resources,
and blended learning
models. With the first
GATE training this
summer, the TOSA
will be able to
schedule time to
support teachers with
implementation of
strategies within the
classroom in the
2021-2022 school
year.

school year, TOSA
support transitioned
back to in-person
support. TOSAs were
able to schedule time
with teachers,
students, and parents
with an emphasis on
early literacy, STEAM
integration,
technology support,
and software
resources following
hybrid learning. GATE
training has continued
with in class support
offered and executed.
The implementation of
ViewSonic Boards
within classrooms

was reconfigured
during the 2022-2023
school year, allowing
for a deeper focus on
our GATE
identification and
implementation.
TOSAs were able to
assist teachers with
the implementation of
GATE strategies
within their curriculum.
The identification
process was built
upon and now
includes screening in
second and fourth
grade. Building upon
enrichment activities
for students, the

will reflect in-class
support of teachers in
implementing
strategies, facilitation
of the identification
process with the
GATE Advisory
Committee, and equal
time developing and
supporting the
STEAM program.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 73 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

began with district-
wide training followed
by individual follow
through training.

TOSAs have
continued to support
21st-century skill
development through
various STEAM
activities both during
and after school.

STEAM lab purchases
and activity logs
Professional
Development records

3 of the 5 elementary
sites have access to a
STEAM lab with
varying levels of
usage that is not really
tracked to determine
equal access from all
students.

All 5 elementary
school STEAM labs
are now outfitted with
furniture and supplies
to provide a positive
and enriching
environment for
students to participate
in STEAM activities. A
signup sheet is in
process of
development for sites
to use during the
2022-2023 school
year.

STEAM labs have
received matching
equipment and
furnishing, and setup
has been completed
at all sites. Principals
have been able to
schedule time with
TOSAs for training
with desired pieces of
equipment focused on
building the capacity
of their staff in
connection with
STEAM and its
integration into their
core curriculum.

All sites will have a
STEAM lab built out
with resources on
hand for STEAM
activities. Teachers
will have toured the
labs and received
professional
development on how
to integrate the lab
into their core
curriculum.

STEAM Participation-
Students have
multiple opportunities
to participate in
STEAM activities:
Within their
classrooms, Computer
Science club, AP
Computer Science
and/or Robotics

Activity logs for the
elementary STEAM
labs reflect some
teacher participation
in bringing students to
the lab for activities
(about 20%).

Sign in
sheets/Attendance

Now that students are
back on campus full
time, school sites
have resumed the in-
person coding and
robotics clubs after
school or on
Saturdays. With the
furniture and materials
added to STEAM labs,

With the addition of
our extended school
day, our participation
in coding and robotics
activities has
continued to grow.
STEAM labs have
seen continued use
throughout the school
day, and students

Activity logs will reflect
all students having
multiple opportunities
to access the lab and
participate in
enrichment activities
during the school day
in addition to after
school enrichment
opportunities.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 74 of 123



Metric

Baseline

Year 1 Outcome

Year 2 Outcome

Year 3 Outcome

Desired Outcome for
2023-24

during the school day
and as part of after
school enrichment.

show 300 students
participated in the
Computer Science
club, AP Computer
Science, and/or
Robotics during the
20/21 year.

participation in
bringing students to
the STEAM labs for
activities has
increased to 30%.

have had the
opportunity to utilize
newer technology
introduced at the
beginning of the
school year,
increasing their

Participation in
Computer Science
club, AP Computer
Science and/or
Robotics will increase
by 5%.

participation.

Actions

Action # Title

5.1 Professional
Development-GATE
Certification

Description

Training teachers in depth and complexity to support critical thinking
and high levels of rigor in the classroom benéefits all students. As a
small district with typically two teachers at a grade level per site, it is
important to train all teachers. This ensures that all students will have
access to a highly qualified teacher who understands the unique
needs of gifted and talented learners and can differentiate instruction
accordingly. A portion of the Teacher on Special Assignment who will
coordinate trainings and provide coaching support to teachers around
implementation of strategies is included here along with the costs for
training and resources.

Total Funds Contributing
$108,000.00 No

5.2 GATE Identification | The primary goal of developing comprehensive identification criteria is $55,718.00 Yes
to ensure that typically under-represented student groups (including

English learners, low income, and Foster Youth) are afforded access

to GATE services. Measures of leadership and creativity along with a

non-verbal assessment will be included along with more traditional

measures. Training all teachers in the characteristics of gifted and

talented students is to ensure teachers are not just identifying students

who are doing well in school. The Universal Screener was

administered to all 2nd graders this year, and the data is being

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 75 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#actions

Action #  Title Description Total Funds Contributing

evaluated to determine further assessments as part of the multiple
measures.

5.3 STEAM Enrichment | Continue to expand access to STEAM programs at the elementary $58,883.00 No
level above offerings within the classroom as part of traditional
science. This becomes increasingly important as we develop College
and Career Pathways for our elementary sites to feed into Rancho
Starbuck programs such as the AP Computer Science course or the
Conservatory of the Fine Arts (CoFA). This is especially true for our
unduplicated pupils who lack access to technology and STEAM
experiences outside of the school system. In evaluating STEAM labs
at each of the sites, there are some costs for resources such as
equipment and tables at a few sites with some additional costs for
materials at all sites. This also includes an ongoing partnership with
Fullerton Joint Union High School District to develop pathways that
feed into high school programs. Included here is a portion of the cost
for the Teacher on Special Assignment who is developing the STEAM
program along with overseeing GATE. Many of the new offerings
through the Expanded Learning Opportunities funding will support
STEAM enrichment: coding, robotics and art for example.

5.4 Technology Continue to fund a Teacher on Special Assignment (TOSA) to assist $268,085.00 Yes
Integration-21st staff in the integration of technology with the content standards to
Century Skills provide access to specialized support programs and resources for

differentiating instruction for UPPs. The TOSA also provides support
for llluminate and training teachers on reports for data analysis to
monitor progress for English learners, students from low income
families, and Foster Youth. This often means supporting parents of
these students as well who need training in navigating digital
resources for use in the home. With the completion of the
Chromebook initiative, we are developing training for interactive
displays that will allow for more student interaction to support the use
of visuals as well as anchoring academic vocabulary within the room
through the use of sentence stems, concept maps, and Thinking Maps

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 76 of 123



Action #  Title Description Total Funds Contributing

for example in support of our English learners. Includes stipend for
work outside contracted days.

Goal Analysis [2022-23]

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year.
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions.

GATE certification for teachers was only available in the fall with an additional cohort being trained this summer. The last group of teachers
should be completed in 2023-2024. With input from parents who wanted more opportunities for GATE identification, a screener has been
added to fourth grade. Our Tech TOSA was able to provide training for teachers in integrating Viewsonic Boards with their classroom
instruction. Additional support was also available for using Virtual and Augmented Reality as an instructional tool while increasing overall
opportunities for students to engage with technology in meaningful ways as part of their learning. A group of students learned coding in order
to showcase robotics at the local Citrus Fair in a friendly competition with La Habra City schools as a real world opportunity to apply what
they were learning. The arts are thriving with the development of the Lowell Joint Youth Theater at each elementary site in addition to the
existing dance (at Rancho), band and choir programs.

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services.

With the addition of a screener for 4th grade and ongoing training with staffing, there was about a $10,000 increase to costs associated with
5.2. The costs associated with training for 5.1 were mostly covered by other professional development funds including some one-time dollars,
Educator Effectiveness, and Title Il. Costs for the STEAM enrichment are down about $59,000 with the modification of the TOSA position to
encompass more work around MTSS. Some of the salary expense was moved to Goal 4 under MTSS. The remainder of all expenses were
within a few thousand dollars of projections.

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal.

There has been tremendous growth in this area over the last year with the addition of Expanded Learning Opportunities (PowerSource) and
the continued focus on GATE certification for teachers. PowerSource includes the before and after school programming required by the
state, but concerted efforts have been made by the Coordinator to provide a wide variety of enrichment opportunities as outlets for gifted and
talented students to showcase their abilities. This includes everything from the Lowell Joint Youth Theater where students participate in
singing, drama, band, and dance to more tech related interests in coding and robotics with other art, cooking, and sport activities as well.
This is in addition to academic supports. The universal screener was administered last year in second grade for GATE identification and
fourth grade was added this year as mentioned above. Teachers provided feedback last year on the screener and it was determined that the
complete battery was not necessary for all students. Each section was still administered with a group of students identified for completion of

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 77 of 123


http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#GoalAnalysis

the full battery. A test of creativity was also added this year to be sure that multiple measures are evaluated in the identification process
along with teacher input. The final identifications will be made within the next few weeks and then parents will be notified. That information
will then be communicated with teachers for supporting students in the GATE/Horizons program during the 2023-2024 school year.

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from
reflections on prior practice.

Now that the majority of teachers have been certified, we are developing the ongoing professional development requirements to maintain that
certification within the district as part of OCC GATE. This will consist of 10 hours of professional development over every two years through
things like Byrdseed TV, book studies, and attendance at conferences.

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update
Table.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 78 of 123



Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students [2023-24]

Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants Projected Additional LCFF Concentration Grant (15 percent)
3,825,740 $73,459

Required Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the LCAP Year

Projected Percentage to Increase Total Percentage to Increase or
or Improve Services for the LCFF Carryover — Percentage LCFF Carryover — Dollar Improve Services for the Coming
Coming School Year School Year

12.34% 0.00% $0.00 12.34%

The Budgeted Expenditures for Actions identified as Contributing may be found in the Contributing Actions Table.

Required Descriptions

For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of
(1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in
meeting the goals for these students.

The Actions and Services best support our UDPs because they are integrated services as part of a Multi-Tiered System of Support. With
1,274 students counted as low income and as few as 17 Foster Youth, 80 Homeless and 210 English learners across six schools, it is not in
the best interest of these students to isolate supports outside of MTSS. We realize this allows access for other students while maximizing
resources although the services are principally directed toward one or more unduplicated pupil group.

English Learners

A unique need for our English learner population includes the communication with and opportunities for parents in their primary language,
which we have built into the LCAP. In the California Department of Education's Improving Education for English Learners: Research-Based
Approaches (2010), there are 8 guidelines in Chapter 4 for "Effective English Literacy Instruction for English Learners". Guideline 8 relates to
honoring the home language. Increased communication and opportunities for both parents and students in their primary language support
this research. Guidelines 1 and 5 are related to essential components of literacy and oral language development, which are addressed
through both first, best instruction in the classroom and intervention with Lingual Learning materials through small group instruction during
intervention as part of the overall MTSS program. Guideline 2, "effective instruction for English learners is similar to effective instruction for
native speakers" and Guideline 7, "well prepared teachers" are addressed in the research chart for all students. This is also true for
Guidelines 3 (instruction adjusted to meet their needs) and 6 (instruction is differentiated) as part of both the overall MTSS program with the
specific focus on Universal Design for Learning to meet the needs of all students-including English learners and first, best instruction

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 79 of 123



http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#IncreasedImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#IncreasedImprovedServices
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/23LCAP/Instructions/23LCAPInstructions.htm#RequiredDescriptions

practices. The comprehensive and multidimensional approach recommended in Guideline 4 will be enhanced this year through an expansion
of MTSS services with a focus on Universal Design for Learning. This focus will allow teachers to improve classroom instruction in literacy for
English learners. With the addition of an Early Literacy TOSA, we are also able to provide much needed professional development around
language acquisition through Project GLAD training and follow up. This is principally directed at meeting the needs of our English learners,
however, all students in need of language development support will benefit.

English Learners

Goal 4, Action 1: 75% Professional Development on Thinking Maps and Write from the Beginning which focuses on nonlinguistic
representations of thinking with scaffolded supports for writing to support English learners.

Goal 4, Action 2: 100% Professional Development on CCSS and ELD standards including specific strategies for working with ELs in both
Integrated and Designated ELD (Project GLAD).

Goal 4, Action 3: 100% Progress Monitoring and Support of English learners (Bilingual Aides) including communication with and outreach to
parents.

Goal 4, Action 4: 100% Dual Immersion program which supports the development of truly biliterate students.

Goal 4, Action 5: 75% ELD and Spanish electives at Rancho. This is in addition to an ELA class with Designated ELD and Integrated ELD
within other subject area courses. We have also added a Spanish elective to support primary language fluency.

Monitor language progress with iReady

Multi-Tiered System of Support
English learners, Foster Youth, and Low-income students

Universal Design for Learning (UDL) is an educational framework based on research in the learning sciences, including cognitive
neuroscience, that guides the development of flexible learning environments that can accommodate individual learning differences. Working
within this framework allows teachers to plan for and use the most effective strategies for students with different learning needs, which is
especially important for our English learners in literacy. In the context of our Multi-Tiered System of Support, in addition to the unique
academic needs of our students, we are addressing the social-emotional and behavioral needs, which include supports for our Foster Youth,
low income, Homeless, and English learners as appropriate. Prior to the 2015-16 school year, there were no interventions offered within the
school day. Much of the work from 2015 to 2019 has been in creating the structures and supports to provide intervention within the school
day. Additional training and resources for teachers to be able to analyze data for placement into intervention and then provide instruction for
intervention has also been a priority. This is in line with the research to provide comprehensive intervention to students, especially with
increased access during the day, while the existing before and after school offerings to provide extended learning opportunities have been
expanded. Hattie's research also supports the need for decreasing disruptive behaviors (ES=.53), the climate of the classroom (ES=.52), and
staff and student relationships (ES=.72). Counseling and psych services along with EMHRS support have been identified as actions to
develop safe, school climates conducive to learning. Rtl, the intervention component embedded within our MTSS program, has an effect size

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 80 of 123



of 1.07 in Hattie's research. For that reason, it has been and continues to be a priority of the district to develop the necessary supports and
systems of a comprehensive, MTSS model to ensure the needs of all our students are being met with a primary focus of supports for our
UDPs through the use of Supplemental funds.

Goal 2, Action 1: 100% Early Literacy TOSA-The majority of our English learners are in TK-2nd grade. This position was created in the
2020-2021 year to begin addressing issues of school readiness as two local preschools closed. As we began working with First Five, Orange
County and the Early Developmental Index data on school readiness, it became clear that we needed a person to coordinate efforts in
building those strong early literacy skills to set the stage for academic success.

Goal 2, Action 4: 100% Preschool-Again, with the closure of two local preschools and an increased awareness of the deficits some of our
incoming students were facing, the district has begun the process to open a preschool in service of our those students most impacted by the
lack of access to school readiness opportunities.

Goal 2, Action 5: 80% Transitional Kindergarten-There was only a single TK classroom prior to LCFF funding and the program has
continued to grow as the importance of building foundational skills for Kindergarten preparedness has become a priority.

Goal 4, Action 5:100% ELD, Reading Intervention, and Spanish-This section allows for targeted support to the students needing ELD and/or
Reading intervention to be successful in their English course. There is also one section of Spanish offered as an elective that allows for a
cognitive break in the day for our English learners while building additional literacy in their primary language. This is directed at UDPs with
the potential for other students to participate in the course should space allow.

Goal 4, Action 6: 100% Before and After School Intervention-This is principally directed at meeting the academic needs of our UDPs.
Students are monitored for participation and using the library allows access to devices and the internet for those who may not have access in
the home.

Goal 4, Action 7: 100% Intervention Coordinators-This represents the stipends paid to one teacher per site for the purposes of organizing
intervention, tracking student data, and monitoring English learners and our most struggling students. These stipends would not be available
without the use of supplemental dollars.

Goal 4, Action 8: 100% Intervention Support During the Day- This allows for the targeted support of our UDPs in small group intervention
throughout the day with qualified personnel. Students are flexibly grouped and moved regularly based on need as part of the overall MTSS.

Goal 4, Action 11: 100% Math Intervention-Rancho Starbuck-This section allows for targeted support to the students needing math
intervention to be successful in their math course. This is directed at UDPs with the potential for other students to participate in the course
should space allow.

Goal 4, Action 12: 100% llluminate-While the district uses Aeries as it's student information system, llluminate was purchased to allow
teachers to access data in more meaningful ways to monitor the progress of both student groups and individual students. ELPAC and other
language proficiency data is housed in llluminate as are results from benchmarks and IABs to provide a comprehensive view of student
progress. This is especially needed to monitor our UDPs in targeted supports for intervention.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 81 of 123



Goal 4, Action 13:100% As referenced in the explanation for Goal 4, Action 5, the Reading Intervention section at Rancho is targeted
support for students needing extra assistance for success in their English Language Arts course. This is directed at UDPs with the potential
for other students to participate in the course should space allow.

Goal 4, Action 14: 50% Coordination of Services-This reflects a portion of the salaries of one certificated and one classified staff for
coordinating services directly related to the reporting, monitoring, and development of services for our UDPs. There is one additional fiscal
person who was added to manage the increase in POs, payroll, substitute costs for trainings, extra hours for summer trainings, and so forth.

Goal 4, Action 16:100% Learning Hubs-Libraries- This reflects the cost for an additional 10 hours per site of the Library Media Tech to keep
the library open and provide a space for our UDPs to receive homework help, tutoring, and access to internet.

Goal 4, Action 17: 80% MTSS Coordination and Monitoring of UDPs-A portion of the salary of the Director of Educational Services who
monitors and supports all Foster Youth, Homeless, and English Learners within the district. This position did not exist prior to the 2015-16
school year and was developed to support the Educational Services department in meeting all requirements connected with servicing our
UDPs.

Goal 4, Action 18: 50% Assessment System-This is a new system explored in the 2020-2021 school year and purchased for the whole
district in 2021-2022. Without access to state assessment data, it became clear that the varied systems at the sites did not easily allow for
the aggregation of data at the district level. This made it very difficult to monitor progress on standards for our various student groups since
our benchmarks in grades 3-8 were from the state system (IABs). Other data was nor consistent across the district although used to monitor
at the site level. So the use of iReady will allow for better measurement of progress for our UDPs across the district while also providing
intervention and supports based on individual student need.

Goal 4, Action 19: 100% Classified Staff-Custodial Support-This reflects only the portion of salary identified to address the demands on
custodial staff related to those items increasing or improving services for our UDPs. For example, keeping the library open an additional 10
hours shifts the cleaning and sanitizing of the space onto the next custodial shift. Parent trainings and other night time events targeting our
UDPs also increase the need for additional custodial support.

Goal 4, Action 21: 100% Creative Response to Emotional and Educational Wellness-With only one counselor and 3 school psychologists to
support the district. the ongoing need for additional services was a common thread from all stakeholders. The CREW program was designed
to meet this need by partnering with local universities to hire interns. Anywhere from 8-12 interns are hired each year to focus on our UDPs
through weekly check-ins and small group sessions as needed. The prioritized list of contacts for the interns each week is Foster Youth and
Homeless with additional students seen as space allows.

Goal 4, Action 22: 20% Nurse and Nursing Assistant- Only a small percentage of the Nurse's salary is included in supplemental funds to
ensure that coordination with community partners to support families with low or no cost healthcare, screeners, and referrals can be done in
a timely manner. The Nursing Assistant is not included in supplemental dollars; however, this position is responsible for checking in with
Foster Youth each week for support with any potential needs for these students. This allows us to improve our services to Foster Youth
without additional cost to the supplemental budget.

Parents and Community Engagement

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 82 of 123



Hattie's research shows an effect size of of .51 for parent involvement in learning. This is echoed in the research from Proven Interventions
to Increase Student Achievement of Poor and Minority Students where engaging families, parents, and the community is vital to the success
of students. Supporting parents is also identified by the National Education Association (NEA) as researched- based, best practices in
Strategies for Closing the Achievement Gap.

Goal 1, Action 12: 100% School Site Council and DELAC-There is no additional cost for these committees since they are facilitated by
existing staff; however, the training of our parents is vitally important to ensuring that we have the parent voice reflected in our Goals and
Actions designed to meet the needs of our UPPs. Low income and English learner families often struggle with connecting to the school and
availing themselves of available resources. The SSC is a requirement under Title | (monies provided to meet the needs of low income
families); however, we have all schools complete a School Plan for Student Achievement. While not limited to Unduplicated Pupils and this
specific action, the Parent Teacher Associations (PTA) also provides an important avenue to address the needs of these students by
engaging parents in meaningful ways. It is important in building relationships between the PTA and staff that we support the focus of
increasing the number of parents of our UPPs with involvement in the PTA. This allows for representation in the decision-making process as
well as a stronger community of stakeholders.

Goal 2, Action 1: 100% Early Literacy TOSA- The Early Literacy TOSA is directly responsible for supporting the language development of
our English learners through training teachers and modeling in the classroom, connecting with community and parent organizations to
facilitate the distribution of resources for our UDPs, and managing the deliverables identified in the First Five grant to support school
readiness and foundational skills for those students without access to other preschool programs.

Goal 2, Action 4: 100% Learning Link Program-As part of the Early Literacy TOSA's responsibilities, we are opening a new Learning Link to
connect with families of kids ages 0-5. Parents are trained to work with their child through activities that help develop school readiness skills
for student success upon entering Transitional Kindergarten or Kindergarten. This is specifically targeting our low income families that do not
have access to preschool options.

Access to Technology, Student Engagement, Rigorous Curriculum, College and Career Readiness (21st century skills)
English learners, Foster Youth, and Low-income students

Again pulled from Hattie's research, Problem Based Learning (ES=.65), Goals (ES=.56), and High Expectations (ES=.43) are all effective
strategies in engaging students at high levels and providing access to career paths that might otherwise be out of reach for our UDPs. This
same finding is echoed in Proven Interventions to Increase Student Achievement of Poor and Minority Students, which talks about having
high expectations and providing a rigorous curriculum and also in Strategies for Closing the Achievement Gap. The actions and services
outlined below are designed to provide both access and opportunities principally directed at our UDPs to meet this need.

Goal 5, Action 2: 40% GATE Identification-We have spent over a year developing an identification system that will target traditionally
underrepresented student groups, which are our UDPs (Foster Youth, low income, and English Learners). The district has not had a formal
identification system in well over 10 years. Identifying an appropriate non-linguistic assessment for English learners, a measure of creativity

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 83 of 123



and leadership along with traditional assessments using local norms has been a key first step. Another is moving toward the training of all
teachers within the district so that the qualities of gifted and talented students are readily recognized regardless of formal identification. This
has the added benefit of increasing the level of rigor and critical thinking for all students regardless of gate identification.

Goal 5, Action 4: 40% Technology Integration-21st Century Skills-Similar to the STEAM enrichment, students today would be hard pressed to
compete at high levels in the workplace without the ability to integrate the use of technology in meaningful ways. This includes exposure to
technology tools for productivity (email, presentation programs, documents, spreadsheets, and so forth) as well as tools for learning (3-D
printers, green screens, video production, coding, virtual reality, Viewsonic boards, IPevo cameras, etc.) While some families are able to
provide access to these types of tools, they are frequently non-existent in our low income households. The tools and activities designed to
use the tools support all students, but they are principally directed at our low income students who would not otherwise have access to these
types of experiences.

A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage
required.

The Lowell Joint School District’s (LJSD) Unduplicated Pupil Percentage projected for 2023-24 is 12.34%. The actions and services
developed in the LJSD LCAP will be principally directed toward unduplicated student groups through Supplemental funding for the 2023-24
LCAP including the following continuing actions:

Targeted Supports for English Learners Only

Goal 1, Action 12: DELAC

Goal 4, Action 1: Professional Development on Thinking Maps and Write from the Beginning which focuses on nonlinguistic representations
of thinking with scaffolded supports for writing to support English learners.

Goal 4, Action 2: Professional Development on CCSS and ELD standards including specific strategies for working with ELs in both Integrated
and Designated ELD (Project GLAD).

Goal 4, Action 3: Progress Monitoring and Support of English learners (Bilingual Aides)

Goal 4, Action 4: Dual Immersion

Goal 4, Action 5: ELD and Spanish electives at Rancho.

Targeted Supports for Low Income Only
Goal 1, Action 12: School Site Council

Targeted Supports for English learners, Foster Youth, and Low-income students
Goal 2, Action 1: Early Literacy TOSA

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 84 of 123



Goal 2, Action 4: Preschool

Goal 2, Action 5: Transitional Kindergarten

Goal 4, Action 5: ELD, Reading Intervention, and Spanish
Goal 4, Action 6: Before and After School Intervention

Goal 4, Action 7: Intervention Coordinators

Goal 4, Action 8: Intervention Support During the Day

Goal 4, Action 11: Math Intervention-Rancho Starbuck

Goal 4, Action 12: llluminate

Goal 4, Action 13: Reading Intervention at Rancho

Goal 4, Action 14:Coordination of Services

Goal 4, Action 16: Learning Hubs-Libraries

Goal 4, Action 17: MTSS Coordination and Monitoring of UPPs
Goal 4, Action 18: Assessment System

Goal 4, Action 19: Classified Staff-Custodial Support

Goal 4, Action 21: Creative Response to Emotional and Educational Wellness
Goal 4, Action 22: Nurse and Nursing Assistant

Our Foster Youth, Homeless (a portion of our low-income families) and English learners are all monitored on a weekly basis by various
support personnel, which allows us to increase and improve services based on the individual needs of these students under the umbrella of
our MTSS. These support positions would not be available without the supplemental dollars designated for our unduplicated pupils. Goals
for Early Literacy and 21st Century Skills and Enrichment were designed with an eye toward predominantly supporting the 56% of students
who qualify as low income and our English learners who would not otherwise have access to these types of programs to support career
paths and language development outside of the general classroom. These added layers to our overall MTSS represent additions to
supplemental expenditures for the 2022-2023 school year along with ongoing programs developed with supplemental funding in the prior
LCAP.

A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the number of staff
providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, English learners, and low-
income students, as applicable.

For the 2023-2024, we received concentration monies for the first time (approximately $318,000), which means we received an additional
concentration grant add-on of $73,459. There are 5 sites with percentages above 55% and one at 47%. Currently, the funds are budgeted for
targeted intervention during the school day based on Differentiated Assistance and ATSI for 5 of our sites. This includes targeted academic
support for English Learners at one site and special needs students at four sites. Once all student group data from both CAASPP and iReady
is analyzed, the focus of this targeted intervention will be adjusted as necessary.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 85 of 123



Staff-to-student ratios by
type of school and
concentration of
unduplicated students

Schools with a student concentration of 55 percent or
less

Schools with a student concentration of greater than 55
percent

Staff-to-student ratio of 38.22 37.78
classified staff providing

direct services to students

Staff-to-student ratio of 20.90 22.64

certificated staff providing
direct services to students

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 86 of 123



2023-24 Total Expenditures Table

Totals LCFF Funds RliCHaate Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds | Total Personnel UL T
Funds personnel

Totals $27,751,007.00 $918,299.00 $4,563,860.00 $2,325,536.00 $35,558,702.00 $33,329,641.00 $2,229,061.00
m Action Title M LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds

1 Certificated Staffing- $14,229,524.00 $0.00 $1,784,522.00 $465,020.00 $16,479,066.00
Teachers

1 1.2 Certificated Staffing- All $1,733,911.00 $0.00 $1,138,965.00 $0.00 $2,872,876.00
Administration and
other Support Staff

1 1.3 Classified Staffing- All $442,721.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $442,721.00
Technology
Department

1 1.4 Classified Staffing- All $2,144,680.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,144,680.00
Custodial,
Maintenance, and
Grounds

1 1.5 Basic Utilities All $1,050,552.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,050,552.00

1 1.6 Instructional All $195,425.00 $195,425.00

Materials-Textbooks
and Software

1 1.7 Site Technology All $45,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $45,000.00
Allocation
1 1.8 Instructional All $287,375.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $287,375.00

Supplies-Per Pupil
Site Allocation

1 1.9 Maintenance of All $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Chromebooks

1 1.10 Classified Staffing- All $58,846.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $58,846.00
Data Systems Analyst

1 1.1 Single Plan for All $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00
Student Achievement
(SPSA)

1 1.12 School Site Council  English Learners and $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
and DELAC Title |

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 87 of 123



mm Action Title M LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds

1 1.14
1 1.15
2 21
2 2.2
2 23
2 24
2 2.5
3 3.1
3 3.2
3 3.3
4 4.1
4 4.2
4 4.3
4 4.4
4 4.5

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Parent Teacher
Associations (PTA)

Family Engagement

Classified Staff-
Administration and
other Support

Early Literacy
Teacher on Special
Assignment (TOSA)

Early Literacy
Committee

Early Literacy-
Community
Engagement

Early Literacy-
Preschool Program
and Learning Link

Transitional
Kindergarten

Facilities Master Plan
FIT Reports
Measure LL-Bond

Professional
Development
(District-wide)
Professional
Development- English
Learners

Progress Monitoring
and Support of
English Learners

Dual Immersion
Program

ELD, Reading
Intervention, and

Spanish Elective at
Rancho

All

All

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

All

All

English Learners
Low Income

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

All
All
All

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

English Learners

English Learners

English Learners

English Learners
Low Income

$0.00

$34,647.00

$2,765,864.00

$10,000.00

$0.00

$0.00

$28,053.00

$1,048,155.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$420,000.00

$20,000.00

$171,822.00

$405,988.00

$68,355.00

$0.00
$0.00

$138,881.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$163,772.00

$67,141.00

$1,000.00

$30,002.00

$9,291.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$58,554.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$25,449.00

$71,415.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$15,000.00

$20,000.00

$597,818.00

$0.00

$0.00
$34,647.00

$3,093,966.00

$148,556.00

$1,000.00

$30,002.00

$37,344.00

$1,048,155.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$420,000.00

$35,000.00

$250,376.00

$1,003,806.00

$68,355.00

Page 88 of 123



mm Action Title M LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds

4

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

414

4.15

4.16

417

418

4.19

Before and After
School Intervention

Intervention
Coordinators

Intervention Support
During the Day

Teacher
Planning/Choir
Teacher

Classified Staff-
Instructional
Assistants & Special
Ed Support Aides

Math Intervention-
Rancho Starbuck

llluminate

Reading Intervention-
Rancho Starbuck

Coordination of
Services

ABA Class and
Program Specialist
Position

Learning Hubs-
Libraries

MTSS Coordination
and Monitoring of
UPPs

Assessment System

Classified Staff-
Custodial Support

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

English Learners

All

Students with
Disabilities

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income
English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income
Targeted students
needing Reading
support
English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

All

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

English Learners
Foster Youth

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

$80,000.00

$21,273.00

$339,480.00

$215,953.00

$122,372.00

$49,956.00

$25,000.00

$0.00

$178,617.00

$0.00

$91,815.00

$281,620.00

$40,000.00

$266,610.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$92,847.00

$171,441.00

$0.00

$120,000.00

$8,127.00

$0.00

$568,522.00

$0.00

$0.00

$206,056.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$31,316.00

$835,505.00

$0.00

$82,342.00

$0.00

$0.00

$57,723.00

$0.00

$80,000.00

$21,273.00

$370,796.00

$215,953.00

$1,526,399.00

$49,956.00

$25,000.00

$0.00

$260,959.00

$298,903.00

$263,256.00

$339,343.00

$160,000.00

$274,737.00

Page 89 of 123



mm Action Title M LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds

a1 o

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

4.20

4.21

4.22

5.1

5.2

5.3
5.4

Attendance
Monitoring

Creative Response to
Emotional and
Educational Wellness

Nurse and LVNs

Professional
Development-GATE
Certification

GATE ldentification

STEAM Enrichment

Technology
Integration-21st
Century Skills

Low Income
All

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

Foster Youth
Low Income

All

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

All
English Learners

Foster Youth
Low Income

$12,000.00

$533,214.00

$24,493.00

$65,000.00

$55,718.00

$13,883.00
$168,085.00

$2,454.00

$196,549.00

$43,000.00

$0.00

$45,000.00
$100,000.00

$536,035.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$123,948.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$12,000.00

$1,071,703.00

$344,990.00

$108,000.00

$55,718.00

$58,883.00
$268,085.00

Page 90 of 123



2023-24 Contributing Actions Table

1. Projected 2. Projected 3. Projected LCFF Total 4. Total 5. Total Planned
LCFF Base LCFF Percentage to | Carryover — | Percentage to Planned Planned Percentage to
Grant Supplemental | Increase or Percentage Increase or | Contributing | Percentage of | Increase or
and/or Improve (Percentage Improve Expenditures Improved Improve
Concentration | Services for from Prior Services for | (LCFF Funds) Services Services for To_lt_alseby Tolt:auInIaC;FF
Grants the Coming Year) the Coming (%) the Coming yp
School Year School Year School Year
(2 divided by (3 + Carryover (4 divided by
$30,995,214 3,825,740 12.34% 0.00% 12.34% $4,328,254.00 0.00% 13.96 % Total: $4,328,254.00
LEA-wide
Total: $3,803,955.00
Limited Total: $0.00
Schoolwide
Total: $524,299.00

Planned
Expenditures for
Contributing
Actions (LCFF

Planned
Percentage of
Improved
Services (%)

Contributing to
Increased or
Improved
Services?

Unduplicated

Student Group(s) Location

Action Title

2 21 Early Literacy Teacher on Yes LEA-wide English Learners  All Schools $10,000.00
Special Assignment (TOSA) Foster Youth
Low Income
2 2.4 Early Literacy-Preschool Yes LEA-wide English Learners Specific Schools: $28,053.00
Program and Learning Link Low Income Jordan
Ages 0-5
2 2.5 Transitional Kindergarten Yes LEA-wide English Learners Specific Schools: $1,048,155.00
Foster Youth Elementary sites
Low Income Transitional
Kindergarten
4 4.1 Professional Development Yes LEA-wide English Learners  All Schools $420,000.00
(District-wide) Foster Youth
Low Income
4 4.2 Professional Development- Yes LEA-wide English Learners  All Schools $20,000.00
English Learners
4 4.3 Progress Monitoring and Yes LEA-wide English Learners  All Schools $171,822.00

Support of English Learners

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 91 of 123



Planned
Expenditures for
Contributing
Actions (LCFF

Planned
Percentage of
Improved
Services (%)

Contributing to
Increased or
Improved
Services?

Unduplicated
Student Group(s)

Action Title

Location

4 4.4
4 4.5
4 4.6
4 4.7
4 4.8
4 4.11
4 412
4 4.14
4 4.16
4 417
4 4.18
4 419

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Dual Immersion Program

ELD, Reading Intervention,
and Spanish Elective at
Rancho

Before and After School
Intervention

Intervention Coordinators

Intervention Support During
the Day

Math Intervention-Rancho
Starbuck

llluminate

Coordination of Services

Learning Hubs-Libraries

MTSS Coordination and

Monitoring of UPPs

Assessment System

Classified Staff-Custodial
Support

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Schoolwide

Schoolwide

LEA-wide

LEA-wide

LEA-wide

Schoolwide

LEA-wide

LEA-wide

LEA-wide

LEA-wide

LEA-wide

LEA-wide

English Learners

English Learners
Low Income

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income
English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

English Learners

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income
English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income
English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

Specific Schools:

Jordan Elementary

TK-3rd grade

Specific Schools:
Rancho
7th and 8th grade

All Schools

All Schools

All Schools

Specific Schools:

Rancho Starbuck
7th and 8th

All Schools

All Schools

All Schools

All Schools

All Schools

All Schools

$405,988.00

$68,355.00

$80,000.00

$21,273.00

$339,480.00

$49,956.00

$25,000.00

$178,617.00

$91,815.00

$281,620.00

$40,000.00

$266,610.00

Page 92 of 123



Action #

Action Title

Contributing to
Increased or
Improved
Services?

Unduplicated
Student Group(s)

Location

Planned
Expenditures for
Contributing
Actions (LCFF

Planned
Percentage of
Improved
Services (%)

4 4.21 Creative Response to
Emotional and Educational
Wellness

4 4.22 Nurse and LVNs

5 5.2 GATE Identification

5 5.4 Technology Integration-21st

Century Skills

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

LEA-wide

LEA-wide

LEA-wide

LEA-wide

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

Foster Youth
Low Income

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

English Learners
Foster Youth
Low Income

All Schools

All Schools

All Schools

All Schools

$533,214.00

$24,493.00

$55,718.00

$168,085.00

Page 93 of 123



2022-23 Annual Update Table

Lastredns Total Estimated

Total Planned

Totals Expenditures Expenditures
Total Funds (Total Funds)
Totals $36,491,449.00 $36,354,052.00
Last Year's | Last Year s Action Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased Last Year's Planned Estimated Actual
Goal # or Improved Services? Expenditures Expenditures
Total Funds Input Total Funds
Certificated Staffing-Teachers $16,991,483.00 $16,897,859
1 1.2 Certificated Staffing-Administration No $3,172,344.00 $2,816,854
and other Support Staff
1 1.3 Classified Staffing-Technology No $465,378.00 $465,378
Department
1 1.4 Classified Staffing-Custodial, No $2,309,830.00 $2,309,830
Maintenance, and Grounds
1 1.5 Basic Utilities No $972,184.00 $925,432
1 1.6 Instructional Materials-Textbooks No $205,770.00 $203,438
and Software
1 1.7 Site Technology Allocation No $45,000.00 $62,117
1 1.8 Instructional Supplies-Per Pupil Site No $287,375.00 $581,580
Allocation
1 1.9 Maintenance of Chromebooks No $0.00 $241,313
1 1.10 Classified Staffing-Data Systems No $59,092.00 $59,092
Analyst

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 94 of 123



Last Year's | Last Year's Action Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased
Goal # # or Improved Services?

1 1.11
1 1.12
1 1.13
1 1.14
1 1.15
2 21
2 2.2
2 23
2 24
2 2.5
3 3.1
3 3.2
3 3.3

Single Plan for Student
Achievement (SPSA)

School Site Council and DELAC

Parent Teacher Associations (PTA)

Family Engagement

Classified Staff-Administration and
other Support

Early Literacy Teacher on Special
Assignment (TOSA)

Early Literacy Committee
Early Literacy-Community

Engagement

Early Literacy-Preschool Program
and Learning Link

Transitional Kindergarten
Facilities Master Plan

FIT Reports

Measure LL-Bond

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

No

No

No

No

No

Yes

No

No

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

Last Year's Planned

Expenditures
Total Funds

$5,000.00

$0.00

$0.00

$34,647.00

$3,745,808.00

$81,582.00

$1,000.00

$30,002.00

$291,942.00

$1,055,582.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Estimated Actual

Input Total Funds

Expenditures

$0

$0

$0

$9,000

$3,846,082

$62,380

$0

$0

$318,310

$1,056,182

$0

$0

$0
Page 95 of 123



Last Year's | Last Year's Action Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased Last Year's Planned Estimated Actual
Goal # # or Improved Services? Expenditures Expenditures
Total Funds Input Total Funds

4 4.1 Professional Development (District- Yes $420,000.00 $420,000
wide)

4 4.2 Professional Development- English Yes $35,000.00 $0
Learners

4 4.3 Progress Monitoring and Support of Yes $243,940.00 $223,940
English Learners

4 4.4 Dual Immersion Program Yes $736,047.00 $736,047

4 4.5 ELD, Reading Intervention, and Yes $68,889.00 $68,889
Spanish Elective at Rancho

4 4.6 Before and After School Yes $80,000.00 $24,765
Intervention

4 4.7 Intervention Coordinators Yes $18,245.00 $29,340

4 4.8 Intervention Support During the Day Yes $110,000.00 $100,000

4 4.9 Teacher Planning/Choir Teacher No $87,143.00 $221,711

4 4.10 Classified Staff-Instructional No $1,479,434.00 $1,479,434
Assistants & Special Ed Support
Aides

4 4.11 Math Intervention-Rancho Starbuck Yes $50,518.00 $50,518

4 4.12 llluminate Yes $25,000.00 $23,906

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

Page 96 of 123



Last Year's | Last Year s Action Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased Last Year's Planned Estimated Actual
Goal # or Improved Services? Expenditures Expenditures
Total Funds Input Total Funds
$0

Reading Intervention-Rancho $40,000.00
Starbuck
4 414 Coordination of Services Yes $262,491.00 $262,491
4 415 ABA Class and Program Specialist No $304,980.00 $304,980
Position
4 4.16 Learning Hubs-Libraries Yes $254,685.00 $254,685
4 417 MTSS Coordination and Monitoring Yes $261,571.00 $261,571
of UDPs
4 4.18 Assessment System Yes $160,000.00 $160,000
4 419 Classified Staff-Custodial Support Yes $268,036.00 $268,036
4 4.20 Attendance Monitoring No $12,000.00 $6,960
4 4.21 Creative Response to Emotional Yes $945,788.00 $1,039,122
and Educational Wellness
4 4.22 Nurse and Nursing Assistant Yes $311,554.00 $311,554
5 5.1 Professional Development-GATE No $108,000.00 $14,102
Certification
5 5.2 GATE lIdentification Yes $15,000.00 $20,934
5 5.3 STEAM Enrichment No $169,919.00 $47,030

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 97 of 123



Last Year's | Last Year's Action Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased Last Year's Planned Estimated Actual

Goal # # or Improved Services? Expenditures Expenditures
Input Total Funds
5.4 Technology Integration-21st Yes $269,190.00 $169,190
Century Skills

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 98 of 123



2022-23 Contributing Actions Annual Update Table

6. Estimated 7. Total Estimated Difference 5. Total Planned Difference
LCFF Expenditures for | Between Planned Percentage of

8. Total Estimated | Bétween Planned

Supplemental 4. Total Planned Contributing and Estimated Improved Percentage of and Estimated
and/or Contributing Actions Expenditures for Services (%) Im rovge d Percentage of
Concentration Expenditures (LCFF Funds) Contributing SeF:"vices Improved
Grants (LCFF Funds) Actions (%) Services
(Input Dollar (Subtract 7 from ¢ (Subtract 5 from
Amount
$2,995,814 $3,816,108.00 $3,653,866.00 $162,242.00 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Last Year's Planned | Estimated Actual Estimated Actual
Contributing to Expenditures for Expenditures for | Planned Percentage
. . . . o o Percentage of
Prior Action/Service Title Increased or Contributing Contributing of Improved Improved Services
Goal # | Action # Improved Services? Actions (LCFF Actions Services P
(Input Percentage)
2 2.1 Early Literacy Teacher on Yes $10,000.00 0.00
Special Assignment (TOSA)
2 24 Early Literacy-Preschool Yes $1,000.00 0.00
Program and Learning Link
2 2.5 Transitional Kindergarten Yes $1,055,582.00 $1,056,182.00
4 4.1 Professional Development Yes $420,000.00 $420,000.00
(District-wide)
4 4.2 Professional Development- Yes $20,000.00 0.00
English Learners
4 4.3 Progress Monitoring and Yes $167,826.00 $167,826.00
Support of English Learners
4 4.4 Dual Immersion Program Yes $395,601.00 $356,878.00
4 4.5 ELD, Reading Intervention, Yes $68,889.00 $68,889.00
and Spanish Elective at
Rancho
4 4.6 Before and After School Yes $80,000.00 $49,435.00
Intervention
4 4.7 Intervention Coordinators Yes $9,040.00 $9,040.00
4 4.8 Intervention Support During Yes
the Day

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 99 of 123



Goal # | Action #

Prior Action/Service Title

Contributing to

Increased or

Improved Services?

Last Year's Planned
Expenditures for

Contributing

Actions (LCFF

Estimated Actual
Expenditures for

Contributing
Actions

Planned Percentage

of Improved
Services

Estimated Actual
Percentage of

Improved Services
(Input Percentage)

4 4.11
4 4.12
4 413
4 414
4 4.16
4 417
4 4.18
4 4.19
4 4.21
4 4.22
5 5.2
5 5.4

Math Intervention-Rancho
Starbuck

llluminate

Reading Intervention-Rancho
Starbuck

Coordination of Services
Learning Hubs-Libraries

MTSS Coordination and
Monitoring of UDPs

Assessment System

Classified Staff-Custodial
Support

Creative Response to
Emotional and Educational
Wellness

Nurse and Nursing Assistant

GATE Identification

Technology Integration-21st
Century Skills

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District

$50,518.00
$25,000.00
$40,000.00
$179,625.00
$87,225.00

$203,116.00

$260,279.00

$535,010.00

$23,207.00
$15,000.00

$169,190.00

Input LCFF Funds

$50,518.00
$23,906.00
0.00
$179,625.00
$79,650.00

$212,850.00

$220,710.00

$535,010.00

$29,207.00
$24,950.00

$169,190.00

Page 100 of 123



2022-23 LCFF Carryover Table

10. Total

Percentage to 7. Total 8. Total 11. Estimated
. 6. Estimated LCFF Increase or Estimated o Actual 12. LCFF
9. Estimated Estimated
Actual LCFF | Carryover — Improve Actual Actual Percentage of | Carryover —
Supplemental | Percentage Services for | Expenditures Increased or | Dollar Amount

13. LCFF
Carryover —
Percentage
(12 divided by
9)

Actual LCFF

Base Grant

(Input Dollar
Amount)

Percentage of
and/or (Percentage the Current for ———y Improved (Subtract 11

Concentration | from Prior School Year | Contributing Services Services from 10 and
Grants Year) (6 divided by 9 Actions (%) (7 divided by | multiply by 9)
+ Carryover | (LCFF Funds) y 9, plus 8)

$29,376,488 $2,995,814 0.00% 10.20% $3,653,866.00 0.00% 12.44% $0.00 0.00%

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 101 of 123



Instructions

Plan Summary

Engaging Educational Partners

Goals and Actions

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students

For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) template,
please contact the local county office of education (COE), or the California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support
Office, by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at Icff@cde.ca.gov.

Introduction and Instructions

The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) requires local educational agencies (LEAs) to engage their local educational partners in an annual
planning process to evaluate their progress within eight state priority areas encompassing all statutory metrics (COEs have 10 state priorities).
LEAs document the results of this planning process in the LCAP using the template adopted by the State Board of Education.

The LCAP development process serves three distinct, but related functions:

o Comprehensive Strategic Planning: The process of developing and annually updating the LCAP supports comprehensive strategic planning
(California Education Code [EC] Section 52064[e][1]). Strategic planning that is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to teaching and
learning performance data. LEAs should continually evaluate the hard choices they make about the use of limited resources to meet student and
community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all students.

e Meaningful Engagement of Educational Partners: The LCAP development process should result in an LCAP that reflects decisions made
through meaningful engagement (EC Section 52064[e][1]). Local educational partners possess valuable perspectives and insights about an LEA's
programs and services. Effective strategic planning will incorporate these perspectives and insights in order to identify potential goals and actions to
be included in the LCAP.

¢ Accountability and Compliance: The LCAP serves an important accountability function because aspects of the LCAP template require LEAs to
show that they have complied with various requirements specified in the LCFF statutes and regulations, most notably:

o Demonstrating that LEAs are increasing or improving services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students in proportion to
the amount of additional funding those students generate under LCFF (EC Section 52064[b][4-6]).

o Establishing goals, supported by actions and related expenditures, that address the statutory priority areas and statutory metrics (EC
sections 52064[b][1] and [2]).

o Annually reviewing and updating the LCAP to reflect progress toward the goals (EC Section 52064[b][7]).

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 102 of 123


mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov

The LCAP template, like each LEA’s final adopted LCAP, is a document, not a process. LEAs must use the template to memorialize the
outcome of their LCAP development process, which should: (a) reflect comprehensive strategic planning (b) through meaningful engagement
with educational partners that (c) meets legal requirements, as reflected in the final adopted LCAP. The sections included within the LCAP
template do not and cannot reflect the full development process, just as the LCAP template itself is not intended as a tool for engaging
educational partners.

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of education and the governing board of
the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single LCAP consistent with the requirements in EC sections 52060, 52062,
52066, 52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of schools) all
budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned.

The revised LCAP template for the 2021-22, 2022-23, and 2023-24 school years reflects statutory changes made through Assembly Bill
1840 (Committee on Budget), Chapter 243, Statutes of 2018. These statutory changes enhance transparency regarding expenditures on
actions included in the LCAP, including actions that contribute to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for foster youth,
English learners, and low-income students, and to streamline the information presented within the LCAP to make adopted LCAPs more
accessible for educational partners and the public.

At its most basic, the adopted LCAP should attempt to distill not just what the LEA is doing for students in transitional kindergarten through
grade twelve (TK-12), but also allow educational partners to understand why, and whether those strategies are leading to improved
opportunities and outcomes for students. LEAs are strongly encouraged to use language and a level of detail in their adopted LCAPs intended
to be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s diverse educational partners and the broader public.

In developing and finalizing the LCAP for adoption, LEAs are encouraged to keep the following overarching frame at the forefront of the
strategic planning and educational partner engagement functions:

Given present performance across the state priorities and on indicators in the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), how is the
LEA using its budgetary resources to respond to TK—12 student and community needs, and address any performance gaps, including
by meeting its obligation to increase or improve services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students?

LEAs are encouraged to focus on a set of metrics and actions that the LEA believes, based on input gathered from educational partners,
research, and experience, will have the biggest impact on behalf of its TK—12 students.

These instructions address the requirements for each section of the LCAP, but may include information about effective practices when
developing the LCAP and completing the LCAP itself. Additionally, information is included at the beginning of each section emphasizing the
purpose that each section serves.

Plan Summary
Purpose

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 103 of 123



A well-developed Plan Summary section provides a meaningful context for the LCAP. This section provides information about an LEA’s
community as well as relevant information about student needs and performance. In order to provide a meaningful context for the rest of the
LCAP, the content of this section should be clearly and meaningfully related to the content included in the subsequent sections of the LCAP.

Requirements and Instructions

General Information — Briefly describe the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades TK-12, as applicable to the LEA. For example,
information about an LEA in terms of geography, enroliment, or employment, the number and size of specific schools, recent community
challenges, and other such information as an LEA wishes to include can enable a reader to more fully understand an LEA’s LCAP.

Reflections: Successes — Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the
Dashboard, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, input from educational partners, and any other information, what
progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success? This may include identifying specific
examples of how past increases or improvements in services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students have led to improved
performance for these students.

Reflections: Identified Need — Referring to the Dashboard, identify: (a) any state indicator for which overall performance was in the “Red” or
“Orange” performance category or any local indicator where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating AND (b)
any state indicator for which performance for any student group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance.
What steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas of low performance and performance gaps? An LEA that is required to include
a goal to address one or more consistently low-performing student groups or low-performing schools must identify that it is required to include
this goal and must also identify the applicable student group(s) and/or school(s). Other needs may be identified using locally collected data
including data collected to inform the self-reflection tools and reporting local indicators on the Dashboard.

LCAP Highlights — |dentify and briefly summarize the key features of this year's LCAP.

Comprehensive Support and Improvement — An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSlI)
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts:

e Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.

e Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA has or will support the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included
a school-level needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed
through the implementation of the CSI plan.

e Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of
the CSI plan to support student and school improvement.

Engaging Educational Partners

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 104 of 123



Purpose

Significant and purposeful engagement of parents, students, educators, and other educational partners, including those representing the
student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Consistent with statute, such
engagement should support comprehensive strategic planning, accountability, and improvement across the state priorities and locally
identified priorities (EC Section 52064[e][1]). Engagement of educational partners is an ongoing, annual process.

This section is designed to reflect how the engagement of educational partners influenced the decisions reflected in the adopted LCAP. The
goal is to allow educational partners that participated in the LCAP development process and the broader public understand how the LEA
engaged educational partners and the impact of that engagement. LEAs are encouraged to keep this goal in the forefront when completing
this section.

Statute and regulations specify the educational partners that school districts and COEs must consult when developing the LCAP: teachers,
principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the LEA, parents, and students. Before adopting the LCAP, school
districts and COEs must share it with the Parent Advisory Committee and, if applicable, to its English Learner Parent Advisory Committee. The
superintendent is required by statute to respond in writing to the comments received from these committees. School districts and COEs must
also consult with the special education local plan area administrator(s) when developing the LCAP.

Statute requires charter schools to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in
developing the LCAP. The LCAP should also be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, schoolsite-level advisory groups, as
applicable (e.g., schoolsite councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between
schoolsite and district-level goals and actions.

Information and resources that support effective engagement, define student consultation, and provide the requirements for advisory group
composition, can be found under Resources on the following web page of the CDE’s website: https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/.

Requirements and Instructions

Below is an excerpt from the 2018-19 Guide for Annual Audits of K—12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, which is
provided to highlight the legal requirements for engagement of educational partners in the LCAP development process:

Local Control and Accountability Plan:
For county offices of education and school districts only, verify the LEA:

a) Presented the local control and accountability plan to the parent advisory committee in accordance with Education Code section
52062(a)(1) or 52068(a)(1), as appropriate.

b) If applicable, presented the local control and accountability plan to the English learner parent advisory committee, in accordance
with Education Code section 52062(a)(2) or 52068(a)(2), as appropriate.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 105 of 123


https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/

c) Notified members of the public of the opportunity to submit comments regarding specific actions and expenditures proposed to
be included in the local control and accountability plan in accordance with Education Code section 52062(a)(3) or 52068(a)(3),
as appropriate.

d) Held at least one public hearing in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(1) or 52068(b)(1), as appropriate.

e) Adopted the local control and accountability plan in a public meeting in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(2) or
52068(b)(2), as appropriate.

Prompt 1: “A summary of the process used to engage educational partners and how this engagement was considered before finalizing the
LCAP.”

Describe the engagement process used by the LEA to involve educational partners in the development of the LCAP, including, at a minimum,
describing how the LEA met its obligation to consult with all statutorily required educational partners as applicable to the type of LEA. A
sufficient response to this prompt must include general information about the timeline of the process and meetings or other engagement
strategies with educational partners. A response may also include information about an LEA’s philosophical approach to engaging its
educational partners.

Prompt 2: “A summary of the feedback provided by specific educational partners.”

Describe and summarize the feedback provided by specific educational partners. A sufficient response to this prompt will indicate ideas,
trends, or inputs that emerged from an analysis of the feedback received from educational partners.

Prompt 3: “A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific input from educational partners.”

A sufficient response to this prompt will provide educational partners and the public with clear, specific information about how the engagement
process influenced the development of the LCAP. The response must describe aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by or developed in
response to the educational partner feedback described in response to Prompt 2. This may include a description of how the LEA prioritized
requests of educational partners within the context of the budgetary resources available or otherwise prioritized areas of focus within the
LCAP. For the purposes of this prompt, “aspects” of an LCAP that may have been influenced by educational partner input can include, but are
not necessarily limited to:

Inclusion of a goal or decision to pursue a Focus Goal (as described below)

Inclusion of metrics other than the statutorily required metrics

Determination of the desired outcome on one or more metrics

Inclusion of performance by one or more student groups in the Measuring and Reporting Results subsection
Inclusion of action(s) or a group of actions

Elimination of action(s) or group of actions

Changes to the level of proposed expenditures for one or more actions

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 106 of 123



Inclusion of action(s) as contributing to increased or improved services for unduplicated services
Determination of effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the goal

Determination of material differences in expenditures

Determination of changes made to a goal for the ensuing LCAP year based on the annual update process
Determination of challenges or successes in the implementation of actions

Goals and Actions

Purpose

Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to educational partners what the LEA plans to accomplish, what the LEA plans to do in order to
accomplish the goal, and how the LEA will know when it has accomplished the goal. A goal statement, associated metrics and expected
outcomes, and the actions included in the goal should be in alignment. The explanation for why the LEA included a goal is an opportunity for
LEAs to clearly communicate to educational partners and the public why, among the various strengths and areas for improvement highlighted
by performance data and strategies and actions that could be pursued, the LEA decided to pursue this goal, and the related metrics, expected
outcomes, actions, and expenditures.

A well-developed goal can be focused on the performance relative to a metric or metrics for all students, a specific student group(s), narrowing
performance gaps, or implementing programs or strategies expected to impact outcomes. LEAs should assess the performance of their
student groups when developing goals and the related actions to achieve such goals.

Requirements and Instructions

LEAs should prioritize the goals, specific actions, and related expenditures included within the LCAP within one or more state priorities. LEAs
should consider performance on the state and local indicators, including their locally collected and reported data for the local indicators that
are included in the Dashboard in determining whether and how to prioritize its goals within the LCAP.

In order to support prioritization of goals, the LCAP template provides LEAs with the option of developing three different kinds of goals:

o Focus Goal: A Focus Goal is relatively more concentrated in scope and may focus on a fewer number of metrics to measure improvement. A Focus
Goal statement will be time bound and make clear how the goal is to be measured.

o Broad Goal: A Broad Goal is relatively less concentrated in its scope and may focus on improving performance across a wide range of metrics.

¢ Maintenance of Progress Goal: A Maintenance of Progress Goal includes actions that may be ongoing without significant changes and allows an
LEA to track performance on any metrics not addressed in the other goals of the LCAP.

At a minimum, the LCAP must address all LCFF priorities and associated metrics.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 107 of 123



Focus Goal(s)

Goal Description: The description provided for a Focus Goal must be specific, measurable, and time bound. An LEA develops a Focus Goal
to address areas of need that may require or benefit from a more specific and data intensive approach. The Focus Goal can explicitly
reference the metric(s) by which achievement of the goal will be measured and the time frame according to which the LEA expects to achieve
the goal.

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal. An explanation must be
based on Dashboard data or other locally collected data. LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including
relevant consultation with educational partners. LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to
pursue a focus goal.

Broad Goal

Goal Description: Describe what the LEA plans to achieve through the actions included in the goal. The description of a broad goal will be
clearly aligned with the expected measurable outcomes included for the goal. The goal description organizes the actions and expected
outcomes in a cohesive and consistent manner. A goal description is specific enough to be measurable in either quantitative or qualitative
terms. A broad goal is not as specific as a focus goal. While it is specific enough to be measurable, there are many different metrics for
measuring progress toward the goal.

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA developed this goal and how the actions and metrics grouped
together will help achieve the goal.

Maintenance of Progress Goal

Goal Description: Describe how the LEA intends to maintain the progress made in the LCFF State Priorities not addressed by the other goals
in the LCAP. Use this type of goal to address the state priorities and applicable metrics not addressed within the other goals in the LCAP. The
state priorities and metrics to be addressed in this section are those for which the LEA, in consultation with educational partners, has
determined to maintain actions and monitor progress while focusing implementation efforts on the actions covered by other goals in the LCAP.

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain how the actions will sustain the progress exemplified by the related metrics.

Required Goals
In general, LEAs have flexibility in determining what goals to include in the LCAP and what those goals will address; however, beginning with
the development of the 2022-23 LCAP, LEAs that meet certain criteria are required to include a specific goal in their LCAP.

Consistently low-performing student group(s) criteria: An LEA is eligible for Differentiated Assistance for three or more consecutive years
based on the performance of the same student group or groups in the Dashboard. A list of the LEASs required to include a goal in the LCAP
based on student group performance, and the student group(s) that lead to identification, may be found on the CDE’s Local Control Funding
Formula web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aallc/.

o Consistently low-performing student group(s) goal requirement: An LEA meeting the consistently low-performing student group(s) criteria must
include a goal in its LCAP focused on improving the performance of the student group or groups that led to the LEA’s eligibility for Differentiated
2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 108 of 123


https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/

Assistance. This goal must include metrics, outcomes, actions, and expenditures specific to addressing the needs of, and improving outcomes for,
this student group or groups. An LEA required to address multiple student groups is not required to have a goal to address each student group;
however, each student group must be specifically addressed in the goal. This requirement may not be met by combining this required goal with
another goal.

¢ Goal Description: Describe the outcomes the LEA plans to achieve to address the needs of, and improve outcomes for, the student group or
groups that led to the LEA’s eligibility for Differentiated Assistance.

o Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA is required to develop this goal, including identifying the student
group(s) that lead to the LEA being required to develop this goal, how the actions and associated metrics included in this goal differ from previous
efforts to improve outcomes for the student group(s), and why the LEA believes the actions, metrics, and expenditures included in this goal will help
achieve the outcomes identified in the goal description.

Low-performing school(s) criteria: The following criteria only applies to a school district or COE with two or more schools; it does not apply
to a single-school district. A school district or COE has one or more schools that, for two consecutive years, received the two lowest
performance levels on all but one of the state indicators for which the school(s) receive performance levels in the Dashboard and the
performance of the “All Students” student group for the LEA is at least one performance level higher in all of those indicators. A list of the LEAs
required to include a goal in the LCAP based on school performance, and the school(s) that lead to identification, may be found on the CDE'’s
Local Control Funding Formula web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aallc/.

o Low-performing school(s) goal requirement: A school district or COE meeting the low-performing school(s) criteria must include a goal in its
LCAP focusing on addressing the disparities in performance between the school(s) and the LEA as a whole. This goal must include metrics,
outcomes, actions, and expenditures specific to addressing the needs of, and improving outcomes for, the students enrolled at the low-performing
school or schools. An LEA required to address multiple schools is not required to have a goal to address each school; however, each school must
be specifically addressed in the goal. This requirement may not be met by combining this goal with another goal.

¢ Goal Description: Describe what outcomes the LEA plans to achieve to address the disparities in performance between the students enrolled at
the low-performing school(s) and the students enrolled at the LEA as a whole.

o Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA is required to develop this goal, including identifying the schools(s)
that lead to the LEA being required to develop this goal; how the actions and associated metrics included in this goal differ from previous efforts to
improve outcomes for the school(s); and why the LEA believes the actions, metrics, and expenditures included in this goal will help achieve the
outcomes for students enrolled at the low-performing school or schools identified in the goal description.

Measuring and Reporting Results:

For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs are encouraged to
identify metrics for specific student groups, as appropriate, including expected outcomes that would reflect narrowing of any existing
performance gaps.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 109 of 123


https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/

Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year
of the three-year plan. LEAs may use data as reported on the 2019 Dashboard for the baseline of a metric only if that data represents the
most recent available (e.g., high school graduation rate).

Using the most recent data available may involve reviewing data the LEA is preparing for submission to the California Longitudinal Pupil
Achievement Data System (CALPADS) or data that the LEA has recently submitted to CALPADS. Because final 2020-21 outcomes on some
metrics may not be computable at the time the 2021-24 LCAP is adopted (e.g., graduation rate, suspension rate), the most recent data
available may include a point in time calculation taken each year on the same date for comparability purposes.

The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP.

Complete the table as follows:

Metric: Indicate how progress is being measured using a metric.

Baseline: Enter the baseline when completing the LCAP for 2021-22. As described above, the baseline is the most recent data
associated with a metric. Indicate the school year to which the data applies, consistent with the instructions above.

Year 1 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2022-23, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the
data applies, consistent with the instructions above.

Year 2 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2023-24, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the
data applies, consistent with the instructions above.

Year 3 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2024-25, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. The 2024-25 LCAP will be the first year in the next three-year cycle. Completing
this column will be part of the Annual Update for that year.

Desired Outcome for 2023—-24: \When completing the first year of the LCAP, enter the desired outcome for the relevant metric the LEA
expects to achieve by the end of the 2023—-24 LCAP year.

Timeline for completing the “Measuring and Reporting Results” part of the Goal.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 110 of 123



Metric

Enter information
in this box when

Baseline

Enter information
in this box when

Year 1 Outcome

Enter information
in this box when
completing the

Year 2 Outcome

Enter information
in this box when
completing the

Year 3 Outcome

Enter information
in this box when
completing the

Desired Outcome
for Year 3
(2023-24)

Enter information
in this box when
completing the

completing the completing the LCAP for 2021-
pieting pieting LCAP for 2022— | LCAP for 2023— | LCAP for 2024—
LCAP for 2021- LCAP for 2021- 22 or when
23. Leave blank 24. Leave blank 25. Leave blank i
22. 22. . . . adding a new
until then. until then. until then. metric

The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative; but at minimum, an LEA’'s LCAP must include goals that are measured using all of the
applicable metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA. To the extent a state priority does not
specify one or more metrics (e.g., implementation of state academic content and performance standards), the LEA must identify a metric to
use within the LCAP. For these state priorities, LEAs are encouraged to use metrics based on or reported through the relevant self-reflection
tool for local indicators within the Dashboard.

Actions: Enter the action number. Provide a short title for the action. This title will also appear in the action tables. Provide a description of the
action. Enter the total amount of expenditures associated with this action. Budgeted expenditures from specific fund sources will be provided
in the summary tables. Indicate whether the action contributes to meeting the increase or improved services requirement as described in the
Increased or Improved Services section using a “Y” for Yes or an “N” for No. (Note: for each such action offered on an LEA-wide or
schoolwide basis, the LEA will need to provide additional information in the Increased or Improved Summary Section to address the
requirements in California Code of Regulations, Title 5 [5 CCR] Section 15496(b) in the Increased or Improved Services Section of the LCAP).

Actions for English Learners: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant English learner student
subgroup must include specific actions in the LCAP related to, at a minimum, the language acquisition programs, as defined in EC
Section 306, provided to students and professional development activities specific to English learners.

Actions for Foster Youth: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant Foster Youth student
subgroup are encouraged to include specific actions in the LCAP designed to meet needs specific to Foster Youth students.

Goal Analysis:

Enter the LCAP Year.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 111 of 123



Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions were effective in
achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as instructed.

e Describe the overall implementation of the actions to achieve the articulated goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and
successes experienced with the implementation process. This must include any instance where the LEA did not implement a planned
action or implemented a planned action in a manner that differs substantively from how it was described in the adopted LCAP.

e Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and between the Planned
Percentages of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services, as applicable. Minor variances in
expenditures or percentages do not need to be addressed, and a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required.

e Describe the effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. In some cases, not all
actions in a goal will be intended to improve performance on all of the metrics associated with the goal. When responding to this
prompt, LEAs may assess the effectiveness of a single action or group of actions within the goal in the context of performance on a
single metric or group of specific metrics within the goal that are applicable to the action(s). Grouping actions with metrics will allow for
more robust analysis of whether the strategy the LEA is using to impact a specified set of metrics is working and increase transparency
for educational partners. LEAs are encouraged to use such an approach when goals include multiple actions and metrics that are not
closely associated.

e Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard or other local data, as applicable.

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students

Purpose

A well-written Increased or Improved Services section provides educational partners with a comprehensive description, within a single
dedicated section, of how an LEA plans to increase or improve services for its unduplicated students in grades TK—-12 as compared to all
students in grades TK—12, as applicable, and how LEA-wide or schoolwide actions identified for this purpose meet regulatory requirements.
Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be sufficiently succinct to promote a broader understanding of educational partners to
facilitate their ability to provide input. An LEA’s description in this section must align with the actions included in the Goals and Actions section
as contributing.

Requirements and Instructions

Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Specify the amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grant funds the
LEA estimates it will receive in the coming year based on the number and concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner
students.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 112 of 123



Projected Additional LCFF Concentration Grant (15 percent): Specify the amount of additional LCFF concentration grant add-on funding,
as described in EC Section 42238.02, that the LEA estimates it will receive in the coming year.

Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: Specify the estimated percentage by which services
for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated
pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7).

LCFF Carryover — Percentage: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover
percentage is not identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%).

LCFF Carryover — Dollar: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Dollar amount identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover amount is not
identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify an amount of zero ($0).

Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: Add the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve
Services for the Coming School Year and the Proportional LCFF Required Carryover Percentage and specify the percentage. This is the LEAs
percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all students in
the LCAP year, as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7).

Required Descriptions:

For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or COE, an explanation of (1) how the needs
of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in meeting
the goals for these students.

For each action included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement for unduplicated
pupils and provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis, the LEA must include an explanation consistent with 5 CCR Section 15496(b). For
any such actions continued into the 2021-24 LCAP from the 2017-2020 LCAP, the LEA must determine whether or not the action was
effective as expected, and this determination must reflect evidence of outcome data or actual implementation to date.

Principally Directed and Effective: An LEA demonstrates how an action is principally directed towards and effective in meeting the LEA’s
goals for unduplicated students when the LEA explains how:

e |t considers the needs, conditions, or circumstances of its unduplicated pupils;

e The action, or aspect(s) of the action (including, for example, its design, content, methods, or location), is based on these
considerations; and

e The action is intended to help achieve an expected measurable outcome of the associated goal.

As such, the response provided in this section may rely on a needs assessment of unduplicated students.
2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 113 of 123



Conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection or further explanation
as to how, are not sufficient. Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enroliment percentage of a specific student group or groups does
not meet the increase or improve services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students.

For example, if an LEA determines that low-income students have a significantly lower attendance rate than the attendance rate for all
students, it might justify LEA-wide or schoolwide actions to address this area of need in the following way:

After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our low-income students, we learned that the attendance rate of our low-
income students is 7 percent lower than the attendance rate for all students. (Needs, Conditions, Circumstances [Principally Directed])

In order to address this condition of our low-income students, we will develop and implement a new attendance program that is
designed to address some of the major causes of absenteeism, including lack of reliable transportation and food, as well as a school
climate that does not emphasize the importance of attendance. Goal N, Actions X, Y, and Z provide additional transportation and
nutritional resources as well as a districtwide educational campaign on the benefits of high attendance rates. (Contributing Action[s])

These actions are being provided on an LEA-wide basis and we expect/hope that all students with less than a 100 percent attendance
rate will benefit. However, because of the significantly lower attendance rate of low-income students, and because the actions meet
needs most associated with the chronic stresses and experiences of a socio-economically disadvantaged status, we expect that the
attendance rate for our low-income students will increase significantly more than the average attendance rate of all other students.
(Measurable Outcomes [Effective In])

COEs and Charter Schools: Describe how actions included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement on an
LEA-wide basis are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as
described above. In the case of COEs and charter schools, schoolwide and LEA-wide are considered to be synonymous.

For School Districts Only:
Actions Provided on an LEA-Wide Basis:

Unduplicated Percentage > 55 percent: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55 percent or more, describe how
these actions are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as
described above.

Unduplicated Percentage < 55 percent: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55 percent, describe how
these actions are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. Also
describe how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this
determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience, or educational theory.

Actions Provided on a Schoolwide Basis:

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 114 of 123



School Districts must identify in the description those actions being funded and provided on a schoolwide basis, and include the required
description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis.

For schools with 40 percent or more enroliment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these actions are principally directed to and
effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities.

For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40 percent enroliment of unduplicated pupils:
Describe how these actions are principally directed to and how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for foster
youth, English learners, and low-income students in the state and any local priorities.

A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the
percentage required.

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved
by at least the percentage calculated as compared to the services provided for all students in the LCAP year. To improve services means to
grow services in quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity. Services are increased or improved by those actions in
the LCAP that are included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement, whether they
are provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis or provided on a limited basis to unduplicated students. A limited action is an action that
only serves foster youth, English learners, and/or low-income students. This description must address how these action(s) are expected to
result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated pupils as compared to the services the LEA provides
to all students for the relevant LCAP year.

For any action contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement that is associated with a Planned Percentage of
Improved Services in the Contributing Summary Table rather than an expenditure of LCFF funds, describe the methodology that was used to
determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional percentage. See the instructions for determining the Planned Percentage of
Improved Services for information on calculating the Percentage of Improved Services.

A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the
number of staff providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth,
English learners, and low-income students, as applicable.

An LEA that receives the additional concentration grant add-on described in EC Section 42238.02 is required to demonstrate how it is using
these funds to increase the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that
is greater than 55 percent as compared to the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enroliment of
unduplicated students that is equal to or less than 55 percent. The staff who provide direct services to students must be certificated staff
and/or classified staff employed by the LEA; classified staff includes custodial staff.

Provide the following descriptions, as applicable to the LEA:

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 115 of 123



An LEA that does not receive a concentration grant or the concentration grant add-on must indicate that a response to this prompt is not
applicable.

Identify the goal and action numbers of the actions in the LCAP that the LEA is implementing to meet the requirement to increase the number
of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent.

An LEA that does not have comparison schools from which to describe how it is using the concentration grant add-on funds, such as an LEA
that only has schools with an enroliment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, must describe how it is using the funds to
increase the number of credentialed staff, classified staff, or both, including custodial staff, who provide direct services to students at selected
schools and the criteria used to determine which schools require additional staffing support.

In the event that an additional concentration grant add-on is not sufficient to increase staff providing direct services to students at a school with
an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, the LEA must describe how it is using the funds to retain staff providing
direct services to students at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent.

Complete the table as follows:

o Provide the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students with a concentration of unduplicated students that is 55
percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of unduplicated
students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA. The LEA may group its schools by grade span (Elementary, Middle/Junior High,
and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA. The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of full time equivalent (FTE) staff and the
number of enrolled students as counted on the first Wednesday in October of each year.

¢ Provide the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of unduplicated students
that is 55 percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of
unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA. The LEA may group its schools by grade span (Elementary,
Middle/Junior High, and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA. The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of FTE staff and the
number of enrolled students as counted on the first Wednesday in October of each year.

Action Tables

Complete the Data Entry Table for each action in the LCAP. The information entered into this table will automatically populate the other Action
Tables. Information is only entered into the Data Entry Table, the Annual Update Table, the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table, and
the LCFF Carryover Table. With the exception of the Data Entry Table, the word “input” has been added to column headers to aid in identifying
the column(s) where information will be entered. Information is not entered on the remaining Action tables.

The following tables are required to be included as part of the LCAP adopted by the local governing board or governing body:

e Table 1: Total Planned Expenditures Table (for the coming LCAP Year)

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 116 of 123



e Table 2: Contributing Actions Table (for the coming LCAP Year)

e Table 3: Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year)

e Table 4: Contributing Actions Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year)
e Table 5: LCFF Carryover Table (for the current LCAP Year)

Note: The coming LCAP Year is the year that is being planned for, while the current LCAP year is the current year of implementation. For
example, when developing the 2022-23 LCAP, 2022-23 will be the coming LCAP Year and 2021-22 will be the current LCAP Year.

Data Entry Table

The Data Entry Table may be included in the LCAP as adopted by the local governing board or governing body, but is not required to be
included. In the Data Entry Table, input the following information for each action in the LCAP for that applicable LCAP year:

e LCAP Year: Identify the applicable LCAP Year.

e 1. Projected LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount of LCFF funding the LEA estimates it will receive for the coming school year,
excluding the supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Grant Program and
the Home to School Transportation Program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8).

See EC sections 2574 (for COEs) and 42238.02 (for school districts and charter schools), as applicable, for LCFF apportionment
calculations.

e 2. Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration
grants the LEA estimates it will receive on the basis of the number and concentration of unduplicated students for the coming school
year.

e 3. Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is
calculated based on the Projected LCFF Base Grant and the Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants, pursuant to 5
CCR Section 15496(a)(8). This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as
compared to the services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year.

e LCFF Carryover — Percentage: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table from the prior
LCAP year. If a carryover percentage is not identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%).

e Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is calculated
based on the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year and the LCFF Carryover —

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 117 of 123



Percentage. This is the percentage by which the LEA must increase or improve services for unduplicated pupils as compared to the
services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year.

e Goal #: Enter the LCAP Goal number for the action.
e Action #: Enter the action’s number as indicated in the LCAP Goal.
e Action Title: Provide a title of the action.

e Student Group(s): Indicate the student group or groups who will be the primary beneficiary of the action by entering “All,” or by
entering a specific student group or groups.

e Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?: Type “Yes” if the action is included as contributing to meeting the increased or
improved services; OR, type “No” if the action is not included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services.

e If “Yes” is entered into the Contributing column, then complete the following columns:

o Scope: The scope of an action may be LEA-wide (i.e., districtwide, countywide, or charterwide), schoolwide, or limited. An action
that is LEA-wide in scope upgrades the entire educational program of the LEA. An action that is schoolwide in scope upgrades
the entire educational program of a single school. An action that is limited in its scope is an action that serves only one or more
unduplicated student groups.

o Unduplicated Student Group(s): Regardless of scope, contributing actions serve one or more unduplicated student groups.
Indicate one or more unduplicated student groups for whom services are being increased or improved as compared to what all
students receive.

o Location: Identify the location where the action will be provided. If the action is provided to all schools within the LEA, the LEA
must indicate “All Schools.” If the action is provided to specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must
enter “Specific Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans.” Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all
high schools or grades transitional kindergarten through grade five), as appropriate.

e Time Span: Enter “ongoing” if the action will be implemented for an indeterminate period of time. Otherwise, indicate the span of time
for which the action will be implemented. For example, an LEA might enter “1 Year,” or “2 Years,” or “6 Months.”

e Total Personnel: Enter the total amount of personnel expenditures utilized to implement this action.

e Total Non-Personnel: This amount will be automatically calculated based on information provided in the Total Personnel column and
the Total Funds column.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 118 of 123



e LCFF Funds: Enter the total amount of LCFF funds utilized to implement this action, if any. LCFF funds include all funds that make up
an LEA’s total LCFF target (i.e., base grant, grade span adjustment, supplemental grant, concentration grant, Targeted Instructional
Improvement Block Grant, and Home-To-School Transportation).

o Note: For an action to contribute towards meeting the increased or improved services requirement it must include some
measure of LCFF funding. The action may also include funding from other sources, however the extent to which an action
contributes to meeting the increased or improved services requirement is based on the LCFF funding being used to implement
the action.

e Other State Funds: Enter the total amount of Other State Funds utilized to implement this action, if any.
e Local Funds: Enter the total amount of Local Funds utilized to implement this action, if any.
e Federal Funds: Enter the total amount of Federal Funds utilized to implement this action, if any.

e Total Funds: This amount is automatically calculated based on amounts entered in the previous four columns.

e Planned Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis to
unduplicated students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the planned quality improvement anticipated for
the action as a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%). A limited action is an action that only serves foster youth, English
learners, and/or low-income students.

o As noted in the instructions for the Increased or Improved Services section, when identifying a Planned Percentage of Improved
Services, the LEA must describe the methodology that it used to determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional
percentage. The percentage of improved services for an action corresponds to the amount of LCFF funding that the LEA
estimates it would expend to implement the action if it were funded.

For example, an LEA determines that there is a need to analyze data to ensure that instructional aides and expanded learning
providers know what targeted supports to provide to students who are foster youth. The LEA could implement this action by
hiring additional staff to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students, which the LEA estimates would cost
$165,000. Instead, the LEA chooses to utilize a portion of existing staff time to analyze data relating to students who are foster
youth. This analysis will then be shared with site principals who will use the data to coordinate services provided by instructional
assistants and expanded learning providers to target support to students. In this example, the LEA would divide the estimated
cost of $165,000 by the amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data Entry Table and then convert the quotient to a
percentage. This percentage is the Planned Percentage of Improved Service for the action.

Contributing Actions Table

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 119 of 123



As noted above, information will not be entered in the Contributing Actions Table; however, the ‘Contributing to Increased or Improved
Services?’ column will need to be checked to ensure that only actions with a “Yes” are displaying. If actions with a “No” are displayed or if
actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the “Yes” responses.

Annual Update Table

In the Annual Update Table, provide the following information for each action in the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year:

o Estimated Actual Expenditures: Enter the total estimated actual expenditures to implement this action, if any.

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table

In the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table, check the ‘Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?’ column to ensure that only
actions with a “Yes” are displaying. If actions with a “No” are displayed or if actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use
the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the “Yes” responses. Provide the following information for each contributing action in
the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year:

o 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration
grants the LEA estimates it will actually receive based on of the number and concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year.

o Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions: Enter the total estimated actual expenditure of LCFF funds used to implement this
action, if any.

o Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis only to
unduplicated students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the total estimated actual quality improvement anticipated
for the action as a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%).

o Building on the example provided above for calculating the Planned Percentage of Improved Services, the LEA in the example implements
the action. As part of the annual update process, the LEA reviews implementation and student outcome data and determines that the action
was implemented with fidelity and that outcomes for foster youth students improved. The LEA reviews the original estimated cost for the
action and determines that had it hired additional staff to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students that estimated
actual cost would have been $169,500 due to a cost of living adjustment. The LEA would divide the estimated actual cost of $169,500 by the
amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data Entry Table and then convert the quotient to a percentage. This percentage is the Estimated
Actual Percentage of Improved Services for the action.

LCFF Carryover Table

e 9. Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount of LCFF funding the LEA estimates it will receive for the current
school year, excluding the supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Grant
Program and the Home to School Transportation Program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8).

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 120 of 123



e 10. Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School Year: This percentage will not be entered. The
percentage is calculated based on the amounts of the Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant (9) and the Estimated Actual LCFF
Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants (6), pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8), plus the LCFF Carryover — Percentage from
the prior year. This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the
services provided to all students in the current LCAP year.

Calculations in the Action Tables

To reduce the duplication of effort of LEAs, the Action Tables include functionality such as pre-population of fields and cells based on the
information provided in the Data Entry Table, the Annual Update Summary Table, and the Contributing Actions Table. For transparency, the

functionality and calculations used are provided below.

Contributing Actions Table
o 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds)

o This amount is the total of the Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) column

o 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services

o This percentage is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column

¢ Planned Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the coming school year (4 divided by 1, plus 5)

o This percentage is calculated by dividing the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) by the Projected LCFF Base Grant (1), converting
the quotient to a percentage, and adding it to the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5).

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table

Pursuant to EC Section 42238.07(c)(2), if the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) is less than the Estimated Actual LCFF
Supplemental and Concentration Grants (6), the LEA is required to calculate the difference between the Total Planned Percentage of
Improved Services (5) and the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (7). If the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4)
is equal to or greater than the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants (6), the Difference Between Planned and

Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services will display “Not Required.”

e 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants

o This is the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grants the LEA estimates it will actually receive based on of the number
and concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year.

o 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds)

o This amount is the total of the Last Year's Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds)

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 121 of 123



7. Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions

o This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds)

Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (Subtract 7 from 4)

o This amount is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) subtracted from the Total Planned Contributing
Expenditures (4)

5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (%)

o This amount is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column

8. Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (%)

o This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services column

Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (Subtract 5 from 8)

o This amount is the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5) subtracted from the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved
Services (8)

LCFF Carryover Table
e 10. Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School Year (6 divided by 9 + Carryover %)

o This percentage is the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants (6) divided by the Estimated Actual LCFF Base
Grant (9) plus the LCFF Carryover — Percentage from the prior year.

o 11. Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (7 divided by 9, plus 8)

o This percentage is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) divided by the LCFF Funding (9), then converting the
quotient to a percentage and adding the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (8).

e 12. LCFF Carryover — Dollar Amount LCFF Carryover (Subtract 11 from 10 and multiply by 9)

o If the Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (11) is less than the Estimated Actual Percentage to Increase or
Improve Services (10), the LEA is required to carry over LCFF funds.

The amount of LCFF funds is calculated by subtracting the Estimated Actual Percentage to Increase or Improve Services (11) from the

Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (10) and then multiplying by the Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant (9).
This amount is the amount of LCFF funds that is required to be carried over to the coming year.

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 122 of 123



o 13. LCFF Carryover — Percentage (12 divided by 9)

o This percentage is the unmet portion of the Percentage to Increase or Improve Services that the LEA must carry over into the coming LCAP
year. The percentage is calculated by dividing the LCFF Carryover (12) by the LCFF Funding (9).

California Department of Education
January 2022

2023-24 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Lowell Joint School District Page 123 of 123



California Department of Education Consolidated Application

Lowell Joint (30 64766 0000000) Status: Cerﬁﬁeld
Saved by: Sheri McDonald

Date: 7/31/2023 10:30 AM

2023-24 Certification of Assurances

Submission of Certification of Assurances is required every fiscal year. A complete list of legal and program
assurances for the fiscal year can be found at hitps://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/ca21assurancestoc.asp.

CDE Program Contact:
Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, CenAppnSupport@cde.ca.qov, 916-319-0297

Consolidated Application Certification Statement

I hereby certify that all of the applicable state and federal rules and regulations will be observed by this applicant;
that to the best of my knowledge the information contained in this application is correct and complete; and |
agree to participate in the monitoring process regarding the use of these funds according to the standards and
criteria set forth by the California Department of Education Federal Program Monitoring (FPM) Office. Legal
assurances for all programs are accepted as the basic legal condition for the operation of selected projects and
programs and copies of assurances are retained on site. | certify that we accept all assurances except for those
for which a waiver has been obtained or requested. A copy of all waivers or requests is on file. | certify that actual
ink signatures for this form are on file.

Authorized Representative's Full Name £ KSQeri McDonalgﬂ
= — 5 s v
Authorized Representative's Signature ] JWMMﬁ/M%/(f/
Authorized Representative’s Title Assistant Superintendent
Authorized Representative's Signature Date 07/31/2023

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:7/31/2023 violation of both:éite and federal law. Page 1 of 4



California Department of Education Consolidated Application

Lowelt Joint (30 64766 0000000) . Status: Dra‘ft
Saved by: Sheri McDonald
Date: 7/31/2023 10:28 AM

2023-24 Protected Prayer Certification

Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) Section 8524 specifies federal requirements regarding constitutionally
protected prayer in public elementary and secondary schools. This form meets the annual requirement and
provides written certification.

CDE Program Contact:
Miguel Cordova, Title | Policy, Program, and Support Office, MCordova@cde.ca.gav, 916-319-0381

Protected Prayer Certification Statement

The local educational agency (LEA) hereby assures and certifies to the California State Board of Education that
the LEA has no policy that prevents, or otherwise denies participation in, constitutionally protected prayer in
public schools as set forth in the "Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer in Public Elementary and
Secondary Schools."

The LEA hereby assures that this page has been printed and contains an ink signature. The ink signature copy
shall be made available to the California Department of Education upon request or as part of an audit, a
compliance review, or a complaint investigation.

The authorized representative agrees to the above statement Yes
Authorized Representative's Full Name Sheri McDonald
Authorized Representative's Title Assistant Superintendent
Authorized Representative's Signature Date 07/31/2023
Comment

If the LEA is not able to certify at this time, then an explanation must be

provided in the comment field. (Maximum 500 characters) |

**Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:7/31/2023 violation of bothus.t.e.a.te and federal law. Page 2 of 4



California Department of Education Consolidated Application

Lowell Joint (30 64766 0000000) Status: Draft
Saved by: Sheri McDonald
Date: 7/31/2023 10:41 AM

2023-24 LCAP Federal Addendum Certification

CDE Program Contact:
Local Agency Systems Support Office, LCAPAddendum@cde. ca.gov, 916-323-5233

Initial Application

To receive initial funding under the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), a local educational agency (LEA) must
have a plan approved by the State Educational Agency on file with the State. Within California, LEAs that apply
for ESSA funds for the first time are required to complete the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), the
LCAP Federal Addendum Template (Addendum), and the Consolidated Application (ConApp). The LCAP, in
conjunction with the Addendum and the ConApp, serve to meet the requirements of the ESSA LEA Plan.

In order to initially apply for funds, the LEA must certify that the current LCAP has been approved by the local
governing board or governing body of the LEA. As part of this certification, the LEA agrees to submit the LCAP
Federal Addendum, that has been approved by the local governing board or governing body of the LEA, to the
California Department of Education (CDE) and acknowledges that the LEA agrees to work with the CDE to
ensure that the Addendum addresses all required provisions of the ESSA programs for which they are applying
for federal education funds.

Returning Application

If the LEA certified a prior year LCAP Federal Addendum Certification data collection form in the Consolidated
Application and Reporting Systemn, then the LEA may use in this form the same original approval or adoption
date used in the prior year form.

County Office of Education (COE) or District 08/23/2019

For a COE, enter the original approval date as the day the CDE approved
the current LCAP. For a district, enter the original approval date as the day
the COE approved the current LCAP

Direct Funded Charter
Enter the adoption date of the current LCAP

Authorized Representative's Full Name Sheri McDonald

Authorized Representative's Title Assistant Superintendent

\Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

jolati deral taw.
Report Date:7/31/2023 violation of bothft?te and federal law Page 3 of 4




California Department of Education Consolidated Application
Lowell Joint (30 64766 0000000) Status: Draft

Saved by: Sheri McDonald
Date: 7/31/2023 10:31 AM

2023-24 Application for Funding

CDE Program Contact:
Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, CanAppSupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0287

Local Governing Board Approval

The local educational agency (LEA) is required to review and receive approval of their Application for Funding
selections with their local goveming board.

By checking this box the LEA certifies that the Local Board has approved Yes
the Application for Funding for the listed fiscal year

District English Learner Advisory Committee Review

Per Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 11308, if your LEA has more than 50 English learners,
then the LEA must establish a District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) which shall review and
advise on the development of the application for funding programs that serve English learners.

By checking this box the LEA certifies that parent input has been received Yes
from the District English Learnar Committee (if applicable) regarding the
spending of Title Il funds for the listed fiscal year

Application for Categorical Programs

To receive specific categorical funds for a school year, the LEA must apply for the funds by selecting Yes below.
Only the categorical funds that the LEA is eligible to receive are displayed.

Title I, Part A (Basic Grant) Yes

ESSA Sec. 1111 et seq.
SACS 3010

Title Il, Part A (Supporting Effective Instruction) Yes

ESEA Sec. 2104
SACS 4035
Title . English Learner—- Yes
ESEA Sec. 3102
SACS 4203
Title Il Immigrant Yes

ESEA Sec. 3102
SACS 4201

Title IV, Part A (Student and School Support) Yes

ESSA Sec. 4101
SACS 4127

tiiwarningi—t*
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

iolati tat f [ taw.
Report Date:7/31/2023 violation of bothf e{a e and federal law Page 4 of 4



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

August 7, 2023

To:
From:

Subject:

Approval of the Lowell Joint School District’s

President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees

Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

ACTION

Response to the 2022-23 Orange County Grand Jury
Report: “The ABC’s of Educating Children
Experiencing Homelessness in Orange County”

Lowell Joint School District’s Response to the 2022-23 Orange County Grand Jury Report: “The
ABC’s of Educating Children Experiencing Homelessness in Orange County”.

In accordance with California Penal Code sections 933 and 933.05, the Orange County
Grand Jury has requested that the Lowell Joint School District respond to findings and
recommendations in the 2022-2023 Orange County Grand Jury report entitled “The ABC’s of
Educating Children Experiencing Homelessness in Orange County” published on May 25, 2023.
Below are the responses of the Lowell Joint School District, as approved by the Board of Education

on August 7, 2023.

F # | Finding Agree/ Disagree Response And Explanation (if Required)
F1 Many children experiencing Respondent LJSD provides opportunities throughout the year to be
homelessness are not disagrees wholly or identified as McKinney Vento. We use our Data
identified as such, and partially with the Confirmation process to complete the housing

therefore do not receive the | finding. questionnaire. School sites and our District Office also
support and benefits have a paper form for families that come into the
authorized by the McKinney- office or do not have online access. When families are
Vento Act. identified, the school site, teacher, and district liaison
are given the information. Families are notified about
their rights and supports.
F2 | The lack of mandatory Respondent

McKinney-Vento Act training
of school site office staff,
counselors, and teachers
contributes to a failure to
identify children experiencing
homelessness.

disagrees wholly or
partially with the
finding.

The LJSD Homeless liaison connects with each school
principal and office staff to provide annual information.
Principals partner with the McKinney-Vento Liaison to

present information to the staff

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

VIII-C1-1




Respondent

F3 There is disparity in the
application of McKinney- disagrees wholly or  |LJSD participates in OCDE and CDE training on the
Vento reguiations across partiaily with the McKinney Vento rights, regulations, and benefits to
Orange County public schooi | finding. support students experiencing homelessness.
districts which results in LJSD ensures that all families complete the McKinney-
unequal access to Vento Declaration Form as a mandatory component of
educational benefits for our data confirmation process. All Mc Kinney-Vento
children experiencing identified students are given the same access to
homelessness. educational programs and benefits.

F4 | The majority of McKinney- Respondent agrees
Vento Liaisons are in full- with the finding
time positions, but because
their work inciudes multipie
non-McKinney-Vento
responsibilities, most do not
have sufficient time to do the
work required by the
McKinney-Vento Act.

F5 Many McKinney-Vento Respondent The Lowell Joint School District's McKinney-Vento
Liaisons lack needed disagrees wholly or  |Liaison has been in her position for 5 years. She is
experience due to a high partially with the well-trained due to her participation in a variety of
turnover rate in those finding. opportunities, including Orange County Department of
positions. Education (OCDE) Homeless Outreach Promoting

Educational Success (HOPES) meetings, CA
Homeless Education Technical Assistance Center
(HETAC) webinars, and CA Department of Education
conferences. The District Homeless Liaison
collaborates with the OCDE and CDE Homeless
Liaisons for questions and support when needed.

F6 McKinney-Vento Act training | Respondent The Federal Program Monitoring Program Instrument

is not mandatory for the
majority of McKinney-Vento
Liaisons.

disagrees wholly or
partially with the
finding.

for Homeless Education states that the LEA Liaison
duties (3.0) include: (h) School personnel, including
principals and other school leaders, attendance
officers, teachers, enrollment personnel, and
specialized instructional support personnel, that
provide services to homeless children, youths, and their
families receive professional development and other
support. (42 U.S.C. Sections 11432[g][1][D],
11432[g][6][A][ix]; EC Section 48852.5[c]) To effectively
conduct this professional development and support, the
McKinney-Vento Liaison must also attend training. The
Consolidated Application and Reporting System
(CARS) also asks if the Homeless Liaison has attended
or participated in training within the past two years,
which implies that this is required. The District
Homeless Liaison attends National Center for
Homeless Education (NCHE), Homeless Education
Technical Assistance Center (HETAC), the annual

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

VIII-C1-2




National Association for the Education of Homeless
Children and Youth (NAECHY) conference, and the
OCDE Network meetings all provide opportunities to
receive ongoing training.

F7

Students experiencing
homelessness who are
enrolled in an elementary
district often do not continue
to receive McKinney-Vento
benefits when they move to
a high school district
because the Federal
Educational Rights and
Privacy Act (FERPA)
prevents the sharing of this
information between districts.

Respondent
disagrees wholly or
partially with the
finding.

While LJSD does not have a high school in our district,
we partner with our local high school district to ensure
articulation and continuity of services. Participation is
not based on the previous school district's records. It is
based on the current living situation and a new
questionnaire is filled out each year regardless of
continuing in the same school/district or
moving/promoting.

F8

McKinney-Vento funds
depend on school districts
submitting grant proposals,
but not all districts have
employees trained in writing
grant applications, resulting
in missed funding
opportunities.

Respondent
disagrees wholly or
partially with the
finding.

LJSD receives Title |, Part A funding and must reserve
a portion to provide services to homeless children and
youth. Training in grant writing is not necessary to
complete the CARS report to receive Title | funding.
The CARS report is simple and requires a district to
mark "yes” to receiving Title |, Part A. Homeless
program reports include yes and no questions about
training, expenditure data, and homeless services
provided. LJSD does not depend on grants for funding
but will be using a newly hired grant writer to submit
proposals in the upcoming year.

F9

School districts that do not
apply for grants which fund
programs benefiting children
experiencing homelessness
miss potential revenue
opportunities.

Respondent agrees
with the finding

F10

McKinney-Vento is an
unfunded federally mandated
program; however, school
districts that qualify and
apply for Title |, Part A funds
may obtain revenues that
can be used for children
experiencing homelessness.
These funds are insufficient
to meet the needs of the
school districts supporting
children experiencing
homelessness.

Respondent
disagrees wholly or
partially with the
finding.

If the funds are insufficient, LJSD can opt to increase
the amount of Title | funding set aside for homeless
services. We have not had to do this in the past, but
given economic uncertainty and one-time funding
expiration, the district will reexamine as needed.

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

VIII-C1-3




A lack of reliable
transportation for children
experiencing homelessness
often results in chronic
tardiness and absenteeism.

Respondent
disagrees wholly or
partially with the
finding.

Transportation is a barrier for some McKinney-Vento
families. The District connects with local resources for
getting McKinney-Vento students on public bus routes,
deploying OCTA bus passes, and providing parent
mileage reimbursement.

F12

Chronic Absenteeism Rates
of Homeless Students are
disproportionately high in
comparison with the Chronic
Absenteeism Rates of All
Students and Socio-
Disadvantaged Students.

Respondent agrees
with the finding

LJSD chronically absent rates:

Homeless students is 33%

Socio-Economically Disadvantaged students is 20%
All Students is 17%

F13

Children experiencing
homelessness in Orange
County perform at a lower
level on standardized tests
and have a lower graduation
rate than All Students and
Socioeconomically
Disadvantaged Students.

Respondent
disagrees wholly or
partially with the
finding.

As an elementary school district, LJSD does not
graduate students.

Lowell Joint's Academic Performance rates:
Homeless students: ELA = Low Band
Homeless student Math = Low Band

Socic-Economically Disadvantaged students ELA =
Low Band
Socio-Economically Disadvantaged students Math =
Low Band

All Students is ELA = Medium Band
All Students is Math = Low Band

ELA has a discrepancy in performance, but there is not
a significant difference in MATH.

F14

The percentage of Homeless
Students graduating who
failed to meet state
standards on English
Language Arts and Math
tests is significantly higher
than it is for All Students and
Socioeconomically
Disadvantaged Students.

Respondent
disagrees wholly or
partially with the
finding.

LJSD is a TK-8 district and does not graduate students.

F15

There is a tendency by
school districts to operate in
isolation, which prevents
productive collaboration on
addressing the issue of
children experiencing
homelessness and the
challenges of their
education.

Respondent
disagrees wholly or
partially with the
finding.

Lowell Joint School Districts collaborates with
community-based agencies to serve homeless
students. The McKinney-Vento Liaison makes referrals
to Friends and Family for resources including food,
clothing, supplies, and counseling services,
respectively. The District Homeless Liaison attends the
OCDE Homeless Liaison meetings and networks with
other district Homeless Liaisons. The District Homeless
Liaison communicates and collaborates with other

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

VIII-C1-4




district Homeless Liaisons to serve McKinney-Vento
students when needed.

F16

A significant lack of
affordable permanent
housing contributes to many
families being caught in the
cycle of homelessness.

Respondent agrees
with the finding

Please see below for the responses to each required Recommendation as requested in
the Orange County Grand Jury report and attached cover letter dated May 19, 2023.

R # | Recommendation Implementation | Response And Explanation
(if Required)
R1 | All Orange County school districts Recommendation
should develop a "Back to School" has not yet been
plan that includes mandatory implemented but
McKinney-Vento Act training for all will be with a time | The LJSD McKinney-Vento liaison will continue
district and school administrators, frame for to meet with each school staff to provide training
teachers, office staff, and counselors implementation. and resources. By December 31, 2023, the
by December 31, 2023, and annually liaison will expand her training to include
thereafter. recommended other staff.
R2 | Participation in Orange County Recommendation
Department of Education (OCDE) has been
McKinney-Vento Act training implemented.
programs for all Local Education
Agencies (LEA) McKinney-Vento
Liaisons should be mandated by
October 1, 2023, and annually McKinney-Vento liaison participates in OCDE
thereafter. and CDE training programs
R3 Given that most LEA McKinney-Vento | Recommendation
Liaisons are responsible for a number | has been
of other duties, and do not have implemented.
sufficient time to do their McKinney-
Vento required work, school districts The LJSD McKinney-Vento Liaison partners with
should identify ways to increase its nursing staff, psychologists, and counseling
support and/or staff to address the interns to provide support for families and
numerous tasks of the Liaisons by students experiencing homelessness through
October 1, 2023. weekly check in phone calls and home visits.
R4 | By January 1, 2024, for children Recommendation LJSD will continue with its existing forms.

experiencing homelessness to receive
uninterrupted McKinney-Vento
benefits, Orange County school
districts should add a section to their
mandatory enrollment school form

will not be
implemented
because it is not
warranted or
reasonable.

Participation is not based on the previous school
district's records. It is based on the current living
situation and a new questionnaire is filled out
each year regardless of continuing in the same
school/district or moving/promoting. Information

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

VIII-C1-5




enabling parents/guardians to give
permission for their school to share
information regarding their child's
McKinney-Vento status with other
districts that their child may be
attending.

also becomes part of the student record so it is
available for future schoals or districts.

Board of Education, a plan to improve

in English Language Arts and Math.

the performance of homeless students

R5 | By October 1, 2023, each Orange Recommendation
County school district should develop | has been
and maintain a centralized list of implemented.
aistrict employees with grant
application writing capability so that LJSD has applied for and received small grants
they are prepared to apply for in the past. We have hired a grant writer for the
available grants to assist in educating beginning of the 2023-2024 school year who will
children experiencing homelessness. continue with this.

R6 | By October 1, 2023, a joint task force | Recommendation LJSD will participate in the OCDE-sponsored
should be formed by the OCDE has been joint task force (AKA: "Steering Committee”)
comprised of a district-level implemented. beginning in September 2023.
administrator from each Orange
County schoo! district and leadership
from non-profit organizations who
serve homeless families, to address
absenteeism, low test scores, and low
graduation rates of children
experiencing homelessness.

R8 | By May 1, 2024, each Orange County | Recommendation Actions refated to Chronic Absenteeism are
school district administration should has been already included in the 2023-2024 LCAP.
develop, and present to the District implemented. Additional actions will be developed based on the
Board of Education, a plan to lower annual reviews of current data. Actions and plans
the Absenteeism Rates of homeless will be revised and Board approved if necessary
students. for the 2024-2025 school year.

RS | By May 1, 2024, each Orange County | Recommendation Actions related to Academic Performance in ELA
school district administration should has been and Math are already included in the 2023-2024
develop, and present to the District implemented. LCAP. Additional actions will be developed based

on the annual reviews of current data. Actions
and plans will be revised and Board approved if
necessary for the 2024-2025 school year.

It is recommended to approve the responses of the Lowell Joint School District recommendations in the
2022-2023 Orange County Grand Jury report entitled “The ABC’s of Educating Children Experiencing
Homelessness in Orange County” published on May 25, 2023, and that the Superintendent or designee
be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

VIII-C1-6




$¥:9T:01 {OUIL, JUSLINY) <€0L0TO 1PA>  VOA 0100d :dl Modey
£202/97/L0 oje( UBLIND 1 YON93ed HANVNYTHA :dIesn
$30UGIRJUOY) PuUT [9ABLY, 10¥00000-19-011Z-0000-007S-0-SE0¥-1010  00°000°C 007000 SSAUIXA NVOIIAINY  €8E0N66S
sojddng pue sfeuoiEIN 00000000-Z1 1-001L-0000-00€¥-0-0000-1010  00°801 00801 SSTAIXA NVOIIANY  T8E0N66S
sorddng pue s[eLole Nl 00000000-C1 1-001£-0000-00€¥-0-0000-1010  0£'81S°T 0€'81S°T SSTUIXA NVORIAINV  I8E€0IN66S
$00UBIOJUOD) PUE [9ABIT, (00000000-C10-01ZL-0000-00TS-0-0IES-ETET  00°09€°E 00°09€°€ SSAYIXA NVOTIANY  08E0IN66S
$20UBIRJUOY) PUT [9ABIL, 00000000-C10-017L-0000-00ZS-0-01ES-E1ET  00°000°T 00°000° SSHAIXA NVOIIAWY  6LEOING6S
$30USIOJUOD) PUE ALY, (0000000-Z10-01TL-0000-00Z5-0-0TES-EIET 00008 00008 SSHYAXA NVORIAINY  8LEOING66S
$30URISFUOD) PUE [3AB1L (0000000-C11-001L-0000-00Z5-0-0000-1010  00°001 00001 SSTAIXA NVORIAINY  LLEOING6S
$20USIRJUOD) PUT [3ABIL, 00000000-C11-001L-0000-002S-0-0000-1010  00'869°C 00'869°C SSTUIXA NVORIAINV  9LEOINGGS
sorpddng pue sjeoleIN 00000000-Z10-0001-0111-00£4-0-8880-1010  LS'TTI LS'TTT SSTAIXTA NVORIAINY  SLEOING6S
$90URISFUO)) PUE [2ALIL T0¥00000-C19-0112-0000-0025-0-SE0¥-1010  66'L1 66'L1 SSAYIXA NVOIIANY  PLEOING6S
sarjddng pue s[euelzI 00000000-C11-001L-0000-00€5-0-0000-10T0  69°80¢ 69°80¢€ SSAYIXA NVOTIANY  €LEOING6S
$30UIOJUOD) PUE [2ARIL 00000000-C11-001L-0000-00Z$-0-0000-1010 06°€TS 06°€1S SSAAIXA NVOIIAWY  TLEOW66S
$90UBISFUOD) PUE [9ABIL, 00000000-T11-001L-0000-00Z$-0-0000-1010 000§ 00°0$ SSHYIXA NVORIAINY  ILEOING66S
soueuolIElA 10 s1reday 00000000-800-0118-0000-0£95-0-0000-1010  00'¥9€'C 00'P9€ HOWATI % SSVTID YALLLIHM LSV 0110466S
suwoyiun) 00000000-$20-0118-0000-5685-0-0000-1010  L§'0S LS'0S SSANISNE ¥Od THIVAIY ADVINL 8010466

sorjddng pue s[eua1e[N 00000000-S20-0118-0000-00£5-0-0000-1010  00°891 00891 XA aad  LOLOA66S
3p1g Jo 1uowaaoiduw % 3piF 00000000-00-008-0000-0079-0-0000-¥1¥1  00°0ET'T 00°0€T°T ONI ONILTINSNOD HOALV  SOT0466S
aougUAIUIEIA 10 si1eday 00000000-510-0118-0000-0€95-0-0000-1010  09°CST 09751 ANVJINOD ADIAYAS SO F0T0466S
soueusjuIEA 10 sireday  00000000-100-0118-0000-0€95-0-0000-1010  06'8ZC 06872 ANVJINOD ADIAYAS SD1  €010466S
soyddng pue s[eLIEA 00000000-700-0118-0000-00€7-0-0000-1010  TT'081°C TT08IT "ONI'0D TYVMAIVH NOLONLINOH 2010466
soueudUIEA 10 siteday (0000000-800-0118-0000-0€95-0-0000-¥1¥1  00°5L8 00°SL8 ONI ONINOILIANOD dIV ALITA  T010466S
$90URIAFUOD) PUE [2ABIL 00000000-520-0118-0000-00Z$-0-0000-1010  L6'SEY L6'SEY STTIONV SOTJ0 ALNNOD 0010466

99,1 Ma1ASY ue[d HAD 00000000-100-0058-0000-6129-0-0000-121T 157106 15°106 vONQd 40 INTFWILAVIAd VINJOIITVD  £500966S
NOILJITIDSAd I3Ard TAGANN INNOWY  TVIOL JOANIA  JIIWON

INNODJV INNOJDV od od

€207/0€/900L €207/10/90 NOYUA £707/L0/80 ONILITN STALSNYL 40 MAVOd

LIOdTd TIVLAd YH@IO ASYVHOAN
ds INIOf TTHMO'T



$¥:9T°01 ‘euIL] JULIIND <€0L0Z0 1°A> VO4 0100d :Al Hodoy
€202/97/L0 91e(] JuaLIND T ON93ed AANVNIFHA 113980
8pi Jo Juswonoidwy 29 3pIg 00000000-800-0058-0000-0029-0-0000-0v0F  00'6TH 66L
soueuaUIRIy 10 SITedSY 00000000-800-01 18-0000-0£95-0-0000-¥1¥1  00°000°00€  00'6Z¥660°T  NILOVALNOD ® ONIMIAANIONT VAHOd  TSSOU66S
dxg 19d029A1egBUNNSUOD/J0Id £0T00000-S19-C001-1000-008$-0-€509-C1ZT  00°¢9¢ 00°€9€ SADIAYAS TVIDOS 40 "LdAA VD 0SS0U66S
dxg 10dQrpA19gBuNSUODF0Id $0T00000-709-C001-1000-008S-0-€509-CIZT  00°THT 00°T¥e SADIAYAS TVIOOS 40 INAWLAVIAA  6+S0U66S
dxg 1edoapasegBuninsuo)goid $0700000-609-2001-1000-0085-0-€S09-21Z1  00°THC 00°TYe SADIAYAS TVIOOS 40 INAWNLIAVIAA  8FSOU66S
(dwrguoN)si030enu0D PUIAISIOD 00000000-C19-0S12-0000-0585-0-99T9-1010  00°008' 00°008°T AAD0  LSOU66S
$90UAISJUOD) PUE [9ABLL, 00000000-210-0001-0111-00T$-0-S£0¥-1010  00°00§ 00°00S "ONI NOILVONAd ALVNINNTIL  9¥S0U66S
A30[ouyoo/598U0T 1010090Z-€10-6101-0TT1-0185-0-91Z€-1010  00°SLT'CE 00°SLI‘TE OTTONINYUVATANIOVINL  SHSOU66S
dxg 19dQ29A1983UNINSUOD/J01d 00000000~ 110-0€0T-0TTT-0085-0-1160-1010  SL'ISL'T SLISLY LSIA SH NOINN INIOf NOLIATINA  TrS0U66S
dxg Jedorpasos3unInsu0)/30Id 00000000-110-0€01-01T1-0085-0-1160-1010  9T9EIT 97'9£9°T LORILSIA TOOHDS VITVIINID  1$S0U66S
senddng pue sjeu21EIN 00000000-10-0012-0000-00€5-0-0000-1010  00°0$$ 00°0SS MAVINVIAV  0PS0d66S
sorjddng pue s[euale 00000000-C1Z-00ZL-0000-00€4-0-0000-1010  99'L81 99°L81 MAVIVHEY  6£S0U66S
sorjddng pue s[euelEIN 00000000-700-0118-0000-00€+-0-0000-1010  69°Z8 6978 ONLINIYd 7 SNOIS XHINIS  8€S0U66S
sarjddng pue sjeualeN 00000000-Z11-001L-0000-00£7-0-0000-1010  00°9%C 00°9%2 LOMILSIA TOOHDS NOLYATINA  LESOU66S
sarpddng pue s[eu21EIN 00000000-5Z0-1118-0000-00€4-0-0000-1010  1Z9LT TTOLT ONIYVIS JUAL  SES0U66S
$90UR19JUOY) PUE [2ARIL, 00000000-210-001L-0000-00T$-0-0000-1010  00°SLT 00°SLT VINYOAI'TVD 40 SADIAYAS TOOHOS  +ESOU66S
soueusjuIely 10 sireday  00000000-#00-0118-0000-0£95-0-0000-1010  00'1LS' 00'TLS‘T YOUAIN 7 SSV'ID HALLLIHM LSVA  €€S0U66S
SoueuUIEI 10 S1EdSy  00000000-700-0118-0000-0€95-0-0000-1010  00°¥8¢€ 00°¥8€ UALLLIHM 40 ALID  T£50466S
PaIEOYNIO)) ‘PAIOOTTY ‘GAJO 00000000-0S6-0001-0T11-10LE-0-0000-10T0  00°000°00T  00°000°00T SUAATVD  8ISOU66S
A80Jouy3/598US0T 1010090C-€10-6101-0111-0185-0-91Z€-1010  00°000°€1 00°000°€T OTTONINUVATANIOVIL  LTISOU66S
senddng pue s[euelelN 00000000-110-0€0T-0111-00€%-0-1160-1010  00%19 00°'v19 ONILLNIYd ATTIVA VNAQEVD  97S0U66S
serjddng pue sfeuaieN 00000000-600-00L2-0000-00€7-0-6600-1010  L§'85S LS'8SS ONI SHNOX SYIOM TYNIOIIO  60S0466S
(durguoN)sI010eu0D) PUIAISUOD 00000000-0£0-00LE-0000-0585-0-0LES-ETEL  00°0ST'T1 00°0ST'TT SWVIYA ONIGIAS e4P SOV VIdAd  0€00N66S
NOILdTIDSAd LDUrdo YAGANN INONORY  TvIOL YOANAA  UIAINNN
INNODOV INAODOV 0od od

€207/0€/900.L £207/10/90 WOIA

£207/L0/80 ONLLAAN STALSOUL 40 AAvVOd

LIOdTY TIVLId JAAHO ASVHOUN
ds INIOL TTHMO'T



A3ojouyoa ],/sasuad1]
K3ojouyoa ] /sasuaor|
SYO0QIX],

soriddng pue sjeusjeN

dxg 12dQzA1953unnsuo)/Jo1d
KSojouyo9s ],/s95us01]

dxg 1odQmA1ag3unnsuo)/Joid

Sp1g Jo yuswoaordw] 29 3pid
3pid 3o yusweaoxdw] % 3pig
3pig jo usweaoidur] 29 3prg

3pid jo yuowanoxdwy 29 3pig
3p1d 30 yusweaoxduy % 3pig
3pig 3o uswoaoxdui] % Spig

soueuajuIeA 1o snedoy

dxg 1edpparagBuninsuo))yoid

€207/0€/900L £20T/10/90 WOYA

90100000-C10-0001-0111-0185-0-00£9-1010
90100000-Z10-0001-01 11-0185-0-00€9-1010
90100000-C10-0001-0111-0€15-0-00€9-1010
00000000-Z11-001£-0000-00€+-0-0000-1010
00000000-Z10-0611-09L5-0086-0-2059-1010
90100000-Z10-0001-0111-0185-0-00£9-1010
00000000-029-9701-9211-0085-0-009-C1Z1

00000000~110-0058-0000-0029-0-0000-0+0F
00000000-900-0058-0000-0029-0-0000-0¥0¥
00000000-100-0058-0000-0079-0-0000-0¥0¥

00000000-110-0058-0000-00Z9-0-0000-0%0¥
00000000-900-0058-0000-0029-0-0000-0¥0¥
00000000-100-00$8-0000-0029-0-0000-0+0¥

00000000-800-0118-0000-0£95-0-0000-1010
£0S00000-219-0001-15L1-0085-0-T9L9-1010

AN
INNODOV

€207/L0/80 ONILHANW SHILSAYL A0 AAvVOd

00'vbeTE
0S'ISL6
L6P1SOF
91°2¢
00°000°F
1S 1LYTE
00°009°1¥
P8 EIH 1
P6L9°T-
6S°6TFSI
P8 ECIF]
PP SL9T-
65°6TH'S1
0009
00°00%

INNONWV
INNODIV

8V LI9V8H'T
86'P9L‘LTS
1S°106
00°S00°70€
00701¥°91
00°LYFTY
66°880°S67

00'vYETE

LY'997°9S
9IT'cE
00°000‘y
IS'TLYTE
00°009°T¥

66'L9TPT

66'LITV1
00°09
00°00¥

TV1OL
Ood

:SIIPIQ ISEYIINJ JO JUnomWy [ejo],

‘[ej0L 0y pung
‘eIl [T puny
‘[e30L v1 punjg
‘8oL €1 punyg
‘[el0L T1 puny
‘T80l 10 punyg

ONINAVAT HOVONID

LANOIDAVH NI'TAATIA NOLHONOH
SSHAAXA NVOIFANY

YALNTD AdVIHHL S4vA A'TLLI'T
ONINI VAT IDVONID

IS ALINNAWOD VI4dVH V140 ALLD

ONI SHIALSNANI FHVAAOH

ONI SHIILSNANI QdVMOH
ANVAINOD ADIAYTS SOI
LSIA TOOHDS HOIH NOINQ WITHVYNV

JOANTA

LIOdTI TIVLAA ¥AA@JO ASVHOUNd
ds INIOTL TTHMO'I

ST00d661L

90001661
LOOOIN66.L
Y£00X66S
6550U66S
8€50U66S

9SS0 66S

SEC0U66S
PsS0d66S
£€5S0U66S

HHINNN
Od



61:8p:01 LY JUILINY 8 1215139y Y09T) POYEPI[OSUOD) (SO0ENE  Idoday
€T0Z/97/L0 1B JUdlIn) aSeg ZOpURUISH 2Ud[Ie( - ZHANVNITHA 1981

1L 16£'660°C [e30], puel’)
1L 16£660'C ([B10 ] MURH 66
junowry }93y) smeyg 2dAL e [P2ue) A NI sqng IUAIYOY e a9ked 1 2oLeg b oElife)

£202/0€/9 03 £T0T/1/9 oy
J9)SISaY YI3YD pajepIjosuo)
ds INIOI TTIMOT



6118701 PWILL JudLIM) I 12315139y 3094 PajEpIIosuU0)) 100ENd  1doday
£207/97/L0 398 JUIIIND adeq zapueussy dusle( - ZAANVNITHA :42s0)
961§ SI MW €202/90/90 HO  £T0TYTE VANVD ZANILIVIN NVILSTYHO ¥S700664 8¢€9¢0000 66
£€7¢61°7C SI M €202/90/90 HO 0STErIIg ONINYIVATHDOVONHD LE00066A L£9€0000 66
69°S6L°T SI M £207/90/90 HO YrZE99STIv "ONI 4'1ddV ST00066A 9€9¢0000 66
0£'696°C SI M €207/90/90 HO 056991 LIOdSNVIL TVOINIHD ddDONVAAV 70000664 €€9¢0000 66
00°06 S MNN £€202/90/90 HO 96576 AHdOWYL NOILOV  LO00066A 7£€9¢0000 66
7S°6£T°8C SI M €207/50/90 HO 1€T€TS0 SNOIS TOOHDS TAINO STTE066A £€9€0000 66
S8’ Sy SI MW £€202/50/90 HO €T0TL1ISO ZANLLIVIA VOINOYJdA 01200664 7£9¢0000 66
P 601 SI M £202/50/90 HO £207/61/50 SIAVA VNILSTIHO S¥000664d 1€9€0000 66
SP'LES SI MW €207/50/90 HO 0£68505¢66 VI-SSHTIIIM NOZTHAA 600006601 0£9¢0000 66
00°009°9 SI MK €207/S0/90 HO 6TL1 A YALNHD TVINLTND YAdTVHLNIYONN SPE066A 629¢0000 66
00°S€6°L SI M £€202/20/90 HO 7L9Y8 dNOYD VINId  0910066A 879¢€0000 66
¥0'801 SI M €202/70/90 HO £0-989¢6C1 "ONI 0D TIVMATIVH NOLONILNAH L£000664 LT9¢0000 66
18 1LY9 SI M £207/20/90 HO eCIddY ANVANOD ATddNS JAdVd I ®d  6000066N 979¢0000 66
00°SS SI M €202/20/90 HO Sre6vl LIWIAL TVINGANOUYIANA SONH AAV] S¥000664 ¢79¢0000 66
007081 SI M £€20T/70/90 HO €CINddV dI'1d HN4d 71000664 ¥29¢0000 66
€T610°1 SI M £€202/70/90 HO AOOUHAVIN VNID ‘AVAINTIL 11000661 £29¢0000 66
00°005°¢ SI M €207/70/90 HO  SOAS €20T AVIA VANIT ‘SOVIV.L S8YE066A 779¢0000 66
L8'¢€91 SI M £202/T0/90 HO £20TS012+0 dTId0ON-L 800006601 179€0000 66
10°€95°9 SI MW €207/20/90 HO LE69TTIL008T SIWHILSAS J4LVM NVEINANS 900006611 079¢0000 66
£9°966°C SI M £202/70/90 HO £€8S9T-ANI OTT ALINIANALS 019¢066A 619£0000 66
6y SI M €207/20/90 HO 0€T DS AJOSNAS VINKOAITYD N-HHLNOS TSSE066A 819¢€0000 66
A SI M €202/70/90 HO £TTTSOrTI0 NOSIAA VINYOAITYD NIIHLNOS $0000661 L19€0000 66
90°88¢€°¢ SI MW €207/20/90 HO JAT1898LTSH SANIZVOVIN DLLSVIOHOS  vTTE066A 919¢0000 66
000¥8°1 SI M €20¢/20/90 HO SdASIIETr0 SNOILONAOYd % HONVJ HINY 1910066A ¢19¢0000 66
00°06C SI M £€207/20/90 HO gs6eTy "ONI NOILLdO LSdd £5000664 ¥19€0000 66
00°00L SI MW £€207/20/90 HO 7590 JINI VNNOT/ VNOTINVd 91000661 £19¢0000 66
00°00S SI M €202/20/90 HO €720S0 ANITAAVIN AYVIN ‘ZHAVAN  S1¥E066A ¢19¢€0000 66
00000 SI M €707/T0/90 HO  €TOTAVIW-HUEVO NOYVHS ‘ XATISNAH  98S£066A 119€0000 66
65°8S SI M €202/20/90 HO 1LSL9T100L6 JIDNIVID  085€066A 019€0000 66
00°ZIS°1 SI M €202/20/90 HO €207 AVIA 800 YAWNNS ‘SIAVA [£SE066A 609¢0000 66
00°061 SI M €207/20/90 HO 65899 dI'’d bng ¥1000664 809¢0000 66
4852 SI M €20T7/20/90 HO 76£801 ‘ONI M ONNMVT LS9 11000664 L09€0000 66
€0°S01 SI M €207/20/90 HO L8BBLE6OYS dANOZO1INV L0000664 909¢0000 66
£6'1L1°1 SI MIN £T07/10/90 HO VOEPEEE ATddNS ADONVNALNIVIA AHSVID E£000664 S09€0000 66
junowy 294D smeys AdA], e [PIUR) e YYD sqn§ Uy aweN 2ade] Ay 24eg b eE)i g

€£207/0€/9 03 £20T/1/9 Wwoly

J9)SISAY I3y D PIjepIfosuo)

ds INIOf TTHMOT



61:8%:0] :AWILL JUdIIND z 1018185 ¥99YD) ParepLosuo) 1500 d 31oday
€707/97/L0 93BQ JUALIND ageg ZopuewIoH duajie( - ZAANVNYIHA :13s0)
ShvLl SI  MIN €702/80/90 HO dNIHY dXd VESD THINVA IV 86000664 TL9€0000 66
YLOLT SI M €207/80/90 HO 199€£50-50¢T ANVINOD HAIVMATIVH SHINV( 0000664 1L9€0000 66
7€8LIY SI M £€207/80/90 HO 9€SETOTOTLANT "ou] suonedunuwoy 0J1.0H 9LEL066A 0L9£0000 66
00°STI°TI SI M £€207/80/90 HO 16¥91 "DNI ONILTASNOD WSO 8Y00066A 699€£0000 66
98'LE SI MW £€207/30/90 HO 1£0961 VIAVH V1 TIVATIVH SONINNVO 1000664 899¢0000 66
61'6CC SI MW £207/80/90 HO 123 24Ul ONI ¥HMOWNWNMVT LSHd9d 11000664 L99€0000 66
76'¢Cl SI M €202/80/90 HO 79£96£661¢ ANOZOLNY L0000664 999¢€0000 66
$6'995°6C SI MW €707/80/90 HO JAALTANNL AAd00D 404 STOOHDS 40 AONVITIV ~ 0100066A $99¢£0000 66
6T°L6T9 S M €207/80/90 HO ASAETANNS 4400 IO STOOHOS 40 HONVITIV ~ 0100066A +¥99€0000 66
IARYAN SI MW €70Z/80/90 HO  NIAITAECANNS MAd00D 404 STOOHIDS 40 HONVITIV ~ 0100066A £99¢£0000 66
LT 1Y SI MW £202/80/90 HOIWIAY dXH £THTS0 HONOd VNVIIAV £0000664d 799£0000 66
08°7L8°91 SI MW £€707/90/90 HO 86¢€S SLOALIHOUV NONNVH HAOVLVHD 11006664 199€0000 66
00°57¢’S SI M €207/90/90 HO 0L€€TT-£0 DALIHOYY ALVLS dHL 40 NOISIAIA ~ 6500066A 099¢0000 66
€0'1es SI M €202/90/90 HO €CIT1S00LST69 STVIIALVIN ONINIVAT JIOHSHNVT €010066A 6S9€0000 66
LS'8SS SI M €202/90/90 HO NI-1dTSS$89 ONI SYNOA SIOM TVNIDIFIO £€9€066A 869€0000 66
¥6'vS SI M €202/90/90 HO 8SIVISH6 400 PET0066A LS9€0000 66
9L'Eve SI M €207/90/90 HO 98¥VISt6 400  vE10066A 969€0000 66
81°€16°1 SI MW €202/90/90 HO LY0TE8IT "ONI NOSHYVAd SON  6C10066A $69€0000 66
YT 61TSE SI M £207/90/90 HO £O€T-ZTOTN LSIA TOOHODS AAIAINN OTTAGALNONW SLSE066A $$9¢£0000 66
658 SI M €202/90/90 HO -S 1SVAd-SIMTd SHINOOD NIf 8000664 £69¢0000 66
00°S1T SI M €207/90/90 HO €TT0-Sv1 NOLLOHLAA LSHNOIALNI 2600066A 759£0000 66
¥0'€07'Cl SI MIN €207/90/90 HO [T9¢LIN SINANNALSNI ANVE TVIIddNI 8800066A 169€0000 66
00'v19 SI M £€202/90/90 HO Pyree DNILNTId AHTIVA VNAQIVD CLTE066A 059€£0000 66
00°00S SI MW €202/90/90 HO 9t08¢OS I'TVO OS 40 ODNJAOW ONVId HI00ONd  0¥9£066A 6¥9¢£0000 66
00'¥6¥°1 SI M £€202/90/90 HO 9¢T61 JOWIIN % SSVIO YHILITHM ISVA L7000664 8%9€0000 66
8L ESH8Y SI M €202/90/90 HO ¢0-£7-720Td LONLLSIA TOOHDS JAIJINA AANMOA  #LSE066A LY9£0000 66
PP 1TLT9 SI M €207/90/90 HO TO-€¢-TT0Td IONRILSIA TOOHDS AAIAINN AANMOA  PLSC066A 9¥9¢0000 66
90°T¢l SI M €202/90/90 HO €707T-TC-S HONN'T O.LOS dSINdd 85000664 S$¥9€0000 66
09°71+°C SI M €207/90/90 HO PSyTes00dd VINIOAITVD 40 TVINAA VI1dd  9500066A ¥r9£0000 66
L1616 SI MW £€207/90/90 HO 00L8910L901 ‘TONILANIVIN TTdA T9E£L066A £¥9€0000 66
88°LSET SI M €207/90/90 HO Vo8¢E1¢ES INAWAINOT ITMOAA  8STE066A 7v9£0000 66
6EVSTY ST M £202/90/90 HO NI-£8¢€CC SNOISSHAdI V.LVAd £S00066A 1¥9£0000 66
L6'SEY SI M €202/90/90 HO 9791¢T SATAONY SOT 40 ALNNOD 8E9C066A 0¥9€£0000 66
00 TH81 SI MW £20T/90/90 HO 18+88ETHTV MAVOL ADdTI0D 0v00066A 6£9£0000 66
junowy Yo3y) smujg AdA], ajed PoUR) e YPYD sqns ERLIEREIEN | e\ aaked al 234eq b bElife)

€£20T/0€/9 03 £T0T/1/9 Wwoay
J9)SISAY Y99y PIjepIosuo)
ds LNIOL TTIMO'I



61:SH:01 WY, JUILIND ¢ 1938139 o9y PAlepIosuo)) :500ENd  3doday
£20Z/9T/LO 19IEQ IUBLIND aled ZopuewIsH sualie( - ZAANYNIYAHA 495

0S¢l SI M €20T/71/90 HO VIITO £TOTAVIA NAg1Id “1T1dSSNd 8TEC0661 90L£0000 66
05°79¢ SI M €207/¥1/90 HO YLS6V0ANI "ONI 001 YA LSHHDO™ £9T10066A S0LE0000 66
00°0Z5°C SI M €207/¥1/90 HO asr1ecoeso SNOILLONAO0¥d % HONVA HWYd 1910066 A ¥0LE0000 66
16°01S ST M €20T/¥1/90 HO 1T 1S66N "ONI VSN ONISVAT LNAIavVNO 67 10066A €0L£0000 66
TLOTE ] SI M €207/¥1/90 HO LOS891T10000LTHM "ONI VSN FONVNII LNFIaVNO 8YT0066A 20L£0000 66
79'1788 SI M £€202/¥1/90 HO L38T8L TVINTY INFNAINOG 0dd 25000664 10L£0000 66
00°0¥T°6 SI MW €207/¥1/90 HO LTLT AYAINAD TVINLTND JHTVHLNAMNONN SYPE066A 00L£0000 66
8¢°LY SI M €20Z/¥1/90 HOIWIAY dXd €T€CS0 ISINOWTH ALVITIVIN 8¢€100664 669£0000 66
000051 SI MW €20T/¥1/90 HO 6L0 THAINNAL “TAINTI [SSE066A 869¢€0000 66
£8°€96 SI MW €207/¥1/90 HO V8TLEEE ATddNS HONVNALNIVIA AdSVIO ££000664 L69¢£0000 66
00°000°001 SI M €207/¥1/90 HO 810881.L100000001 SYHLTVO LEPE066A 969£0000 66
00°5L2°C SI M €207/¥1/90 HO C€TAVIN-4Hd 10 SILINY “TTAMSOd 7SSE066A S§69£0000 66
8¥'LES SI MW €207/¥1/90 HO “NVI-NVAIOf NOSYIHO.LNH dIDNV 10000661 $69£0000 66
9800692 SI M €207/¥1/90 HO €70TI9YHILLIHM SSTAIXH NVOIJHINV £100066A £69¢£0000 66
000 dA WA €202/¥1/90 HO HOANLLNOD qmg panunuoy) - pIcA[INOD dIOA 769£0000 66
7Ts9 SI M £202/80/90 HO AAAETANNS YAd00D 404 STOOHOIS 40 HONVITIV 0T00066A 169€0000 66
gsel SI M £€207/30/90 HO ASACTANNSL JAJd00D 404 STOOHDS 40 dONVITIV ~ 0100066A 069€0000 66
09°9¢H°S1 SI M €202/80/90 HO ECOTAVIN VZZ1d VINYOII'TVD NJFHLNOS €100066N 689€0000 66
66'801°9 SI M £€207/80/90 HO €COTAVIN ANVIANOD ATddNS YAdVd I ®d  6000066N 889¢€0000 66
00°SS SI M £207/80/90 HO 8916C LIIANAL TVINFIWNOYIANA SOHNE AdVT S#000664 L89€0000 66
8V 1TT6T SI M £202/80/90 HO €COTAVIA SAO04 IVLS ATOD LO00066N 989€0000 66
7€79TS1 SI MW £207/80/90 HO €COTAVIN AdIVA AOOMIATEId  +#000066N €89¢0000 66
16°€80°CT SI M €207/80/90 HO ¢COCAVIN S9feS [eIuaUNUOy) ST00066N +¥89€0000 66
00°081 SI M £€207/30/90 HO €TOTAVIN dI'ld HN4d 71000664 £89€0000 66
6V'619°1 SI M £207/80/90 HO 00-€6EVSIL SATVS NOLLOV 1000066N 789€0000 66
078596 SI M €207/80/90 HO 0S TPl TVSOdSIATIVM  0100066N1 189€0000 66
L1VTET SI MW £207/80/90 HO £00°8166S1€£T1S DIALDHTd ATVSHTOHM SddLIVM 69000664 089¢£0000 66
60°CL1 SI M €207/80/90 HO 0-¥IL9 ‘00 SIWVITTIM-NIMIAHS HHL 09000664 6L,9¢£0000 66
LT ST SI MW £€207/80/90 HO L8TS6ELN SANIZVOVIA DILSVIOHDS YTTE066A 8L9€0000 66
L6'681 SI MW €207/80/90 HO LETISLTILIEY LHOIA LI AVS 1T9€066A LL9€0000 66
0T'120°1 SI M £€207/80/90 HO 1D696A LNANJINOT NOLATY ¥000666S 9L9¢0000 66
6°LTIT SI M £€207/80/90 HO 100°9698L9001S LATLNO FTVSHTOHM ONIFNNTd ¥$00066:1 GL9E0000 66
00°1S¢S SI M £€207/80/90 HO €TES8L TVINTY LNFNAINOG Odd 75000664 ¥L9€0000 66
00°020°1 ST MIN £207/80/90 HO DASLOMIND €71 AALNAD AIVITHL SAvd H1LLIT 89S€066A EL9E0000_ 66
junowy o3y smeyg 2dAL, e [PdUR) e YIRYD SqnS ouIdY auwre) dLed QI 994egq YD)

£207/0€/9 03 £70T/1/9 WOy
J9)SISAY YI3YD PajepIosuo))
ds INIOf TTIMO'1



61:8b10] WL JULIND ¥ 1338135y 392U Patepr|osuo)) :6ooedd  3aoday
€T07/9T7/L0 :938(Q IUIIND agdeq ZdpueuloH dudlie( - ZHANVNIIHA 138N}

1590 474 SI M €202/91/90 HO  €TP0906LBYELST SLIATMAVIS 08T0066A 0rL£0000 66
£8°616 SI M €207/91/90 HO 05¢£9S88ETS "ONI VSl VAONOS S000666S 6€L£0000 66
00'0SS SI MW €202/91/90 HO NI-€9L6CTM VINAHOAITVYD J0 SADIAYAS TOOHOS CLT0066A 8€LE0000 66
000561 SI MW £€207/91/90 HO 09611 ALISTAAINN SASNOXH ON  £€T10066A LELEOO0O 66
00°SL8°L SI M €202/91/90 HO 18Z81/08C81 OYDIN % OUDIN 1€10066A 9¢L€0000 66
00°0STLT SI M £€202/91/90 HO S6SY SYATVIL TIIdING ANVINI  $9EC066A GELEO000 66
00°000°€T SI MW £€207/91/90 HO 9900¢¢€ DTTONINGVATANIOVINL  #0rE066A YELE0000 66
00°000°¢ SI M €207/91/90 HO 8071t AdOH J0d SNOILLNTOS HAILVAID  679t066A £€LE£0000 66
05°755°C SI M €207/S1/90 HO 761556 ONILSAL % ONIIJHENIONT AdN0A 7000664 TELEO000 66
8l SI M €207/S1/90 HO €20ZeTANNS JAWTVd LHIVOIVIA $€100664 1€L£0000 66
00°SL SI MW €207/S1/90 HO £2£090%050 dTIFON-L 800006601 0£L£0000 66
9€°9¥T 1 SI M €207/S1/90 HO 09506150081 SIWALSAS JHLVMA NVEINANS 90000661 6CL£0000 66
70°796°C SI M £€207/51/90 HO €2L0906050 NOSIAd VINYOAI'TVD NIHHLNOS 700006601 8TLEO000 66
61°8€€°EEl SI M €207/S1/90 HO 100¥L99¢18C1 H NOLLVONAA TOOHIDS TIIH-MVIODN  81T0066A LTLEO000 66
ST8YY SI M €207/S1/90 HO  9006T00000NLS q 40 401440 AILNNOD SHTADNYV SOT SY9L066A 9TLE0000 66
00'56C SI M €207/S1/90 HO ¥TST dNT10 AYV.LOY VIAVH V1 1010066A STLEO000 66
00%19°8 SI M £€20T/S1/90 HO LSPS819 ONI NOLLVONAdd ANV dOIAVHAL 1000666S $TLE0000 66
00°005°C SI MW €202/¥1/90 HO 99L JINI VNOI'T/ VNAT1OVd 91000661 £TLE0000 66
000018 SI M €20T/¥1/90 HO  £€70T AVIN-IVIA SINVAIJ DNIAd4d eqp SONV vdgdd 90000661 ZTLEO000 66
6T611 SI M €207/¥1/90 HO €9vSL9099891¢¢CTI SSHYJXH NVOIJAINY  €100066A 1ZL€0000 66
69°LIET SI MW €207/¥1/90 HO SYAMOd €TANN( AT1ddNS TOOHODS LSAMHLNOS 6L10066A 0TL£0000 66
00°S6£°01 SI M €20T/¥1/90 HO €20T-5Sd 0D v4d D11 SHSRIJIHLNT VNVIAVL  0TSE066A 61,£0000 66
61°LEE SI M €20T/¥1/90 HO LdLEESITOIET SSTAIXH NVOTIHINVY €100066A 81L£0000 66
79°09%°S SI MW €20T/¥1/90 HO (42 Y4 NOILLVONAA HAILDV ~ TSEL066A LTLEO000 66
677968 SI M £202/¥1/90 HO 910-TT00X66S VNID ‘AVAINTIL 11000661 91,0000 66
€9'156°S SI M £20T/¥1/90 HO CO8I1L8YL NOILNLILSNI Odd 10ddd 9NOH HHL 65000664 SILE0000 66
99°75S°S SI M €20Z/¥1/90 HO 1€956S€00181 SINALSAS JALVM NVINANS 90000661 PILE0000 66
¥0'S8T SI MK €20T/¥1/90 HO £T9TS0LTYHO 00 SVD VINIOAI'TVD N-FH.LNOS 00006601 €1L£0000 66
YT 6TIL SI M £€20T/¥1/90 HO £Tr090¥050 NOSIAA VINIOAI'TVD NddHLNOS  +00006611 CILE0000 66
[4744A\ SI M €20T/¥1/90 HO CLIOYC-S0¢€T 12Na0¥d NOLLDNYLSNOD LSVAHLNOS LS000664 T1L€0000 66
86°LELT SI M £€202/¥1/90 HO 06L8SL8ETS "ONI VS1 VAONOS S000666S 01.£0000 66
L6°580°T SI MKW £€207/¥1/90 HO Ly DONILNTYd 2 SNDIS AdINAS SLT0066A 60L£0000 66
00°01IL SI M £€coT/v1/90 HO NI-6T8LETO VINMOAI'TVD 40 SHIIAYHES TOOHOS TLT0066A 80L£0000 66
6L 676 SI MWW £CT0T/F1/90 HO ELTESTO-ECS SA00gALVd TO0OHIS 6910066A LOLEDDOO 66
junowy YPay) smeyg 2L, Aw POUER) AN HIIYD SqnS QUAIY aweN 3Led I 24eg b eklife)

€207/0¢/9 03 £€20¢/1/9 Woly

I3)SISIY Y9y PIjepIjosuo))

ds LNIOf TTAIMOT



61:8F01 PWILL JUILND S 1218132 }09y0) parepljosua) :c00ENd  Ioday
£207/97/LO ¥ IUILIND aged zopueuIsY ouspeq - ZIANVNYAHA 198
61°0¢ SI M £202/97/90 HO 210 YANTIVD NOST'TV 07700664 YLLEOOOO 66
$L°896°501 SI M €202/17/90 HO I# ddV AVd ONI "00 NOILOMYLSNOD "D4dS 665€066A €LLE0000 66
00°5L9°981 SI M €2027/17/90 HO 1 #ddV AVd DATd 2 SNOLLVOINNININOD HAVM ddd 865C066A CTLLEOO0O 66
6€'1HTTST SI M €202/17/90 HO I# ddV AVd ‘00 NOILLOMYWLSNOD "'SO¥d LSOd 909€066A 1LLEO000 66
00°00Z°S SI M €202/17/90 HO 90¢£81 OYDIN % OUDIN T€10066A 0LLE£0000 66
0ST19°6¥C SI M £207/17/90 HO [#ddV AVd ONI ONIFINNTd I TTIN IdN T09€066A 69L£0000 66
00'ZIL61 SI M €207/17/90 HO 99¥ ANVJINOD H4dNVH £1006664 89L£0000 66
05°1£€9 SI M €207/17/90 HO 65¢€S SLOALIHOYY NONNVH HAOVLVHD 11006664 L9L£0000 66
0L°829°$91 SI M €207/17/90 HO Ci# ddV AVd NOLLDOMILSNOD TIVH-NOSYONRH 010066694 99L£0000 66
1S°106 SI M €202/17/90 HO 10L690-D voNad 40 INHIWLEVJAd VINIOAITVO 8LTE066A $9L£0000 66
12483 SI MIN €202/17/90 HO £2079TS0 SIAVA VNILSTIHD $1¥000664 ¥9L£0000 66
L6'TY SI M €20Z/17/90 HO -S HSAYAHI-SdN SOVIAVL AINLIHM 1200664 £€9L£0000 66
06'689°1 SI M €202/17/90 HO £ee DS AMOSNAS VINYOAITVD NIdHLNOS TSSE066A 79L£0000 66
6978 SI M €207/17/90 HO 60vy DNILLNTId % SNOIS AYLNHIS SLT0066A 19L£0000 66
0S'L6L SI M £€207/17/90 HO CIVISOANI "ONI 00T J4LSHHOOY €9T0066A 09L£0000 66
96°¢S SI M £€202/17/90 HO HOVATIN ZANOSVA IANVY £€910066d 65L£0000 66
00°009 SI M €20Z/17/90 HO C10SISY6 4d00 PE10066A 8SL£0000 66
00°0S SI M €207/17/90 HO 8L8VIST6 d4d00 FE10066A LSLE0000 66
6SLLLT SI M €20T7/17/90 HO ovevl ALISYIAINN SASNOXH ON £ET0066A 96L€0000 66
18°0%S°1 SI M €202/17/90 HO 21¢e9 SHIOIAYES d4Avdl YOT0066A SSLE0000 66
(41113 SI M €20Z/127/90 HO T0TLOLYLTI DI SAINOOD NI 8000664 FSLEOO00 66
0508 SI M €20Z/17/90 HO ThSLEOT SHIDOTONHOHL LNIId! €0£E066A £6LE0000 66
05°966 SI M €20¢/127/90 HO S9111ISTC LOMILSIA TOOHDS NOLYdTINA LLOO066A TSLE0000 66
00°'TLST SI M £€207/12/90 HO 6vC61 FOWIIN 2 SSVIOD YALLLIHM LSVH L7000664 I[SL£0000 66
9y €9L°T SI M €202/17/90 HO VZ10e€es INANJINOT ITN0AA 8STLO66A 05.£0000 66
00'¥8¢ SI M £202/12/90 HO 6209000101 YALLLIHM A0 ALID SI9€066A 6¥L€0000 66
0076671 SI M €20T7/17/90 HO (48294 ‘ONI LNOAVdId LrEE066A 8¥LE0000 66
61°¢e SI M £202/17/90 HO MHS TOH-dd NONNVHS ‘Dddd 9¥9¢066A L¥LE0000 66
919¢€°l SI M £€202/17/90 HO STSILSST MIVIAVIV 9100066A 9vLe0000 66
00°128°91 SI M £202/17/90 HO €207 AVIN-1€€T NOLLVONAd FALLOY CSEL066A SPLEO000 66
00°00L°C SI MW €207/91/90 HO 18781/08C81 OUDIN % OUDIN I1€10066A L0000 66
0005901 SI M £€202/91/90 HO 9SLS900ANI SdVIAN ONIPINIHL S610066A €vLE0000 66
00°0¢9 SI MIN £€202/91/90 HO 1274% DdV INISSOd OV.L LSTE066A PLE0000 66
0S'ZLT91 SI MW £20Z/91/90 HO LTLELY ATHAM SHIANLS £310066A 1FLE0000 66
junowy 9ynH smeyg 2dAL, e PIUe) e I3 sqng DUAIIIY sweN 2048d QX 34ed HIRYD

£207/0€/9 0 €707/1/9 Woy

J9)S139Y Y99y pajepIjosuo))

ds INIOfL TTEIMOT



61:8p:0] :dWI] JUdLIN) 9 1915183y H09y)) PAjepI{osuo) :c00eNd :3d0day
£€20T/97/L0 e IWdLIND adeg Zspueulsy dusjie( - ZHANVNITHA 43801
L9°L98 SI M £202/97/90 HO 80£68L TVINDY INFANAINOT Odd 75000664 808¢0000 66
00'+9€°S SI M £207/97/90 HO 8ETOV STVINAY LNJAH LIFIO  9¢TL066A L08E0000 66
8T'8SET SI M €202/97/90 HO €COTATINL ALIHM ADNVN 60000664 908£0000 66
00°0%8 SI M €202/97/90 HO T€L1 A YAINGD TVINLTND Y TVHINIMDNW  Stre066A S08¢0000 66
[4X4! ST M €207/97/90 HO 6£100160% ANVANOD NOZIJHA VIO  £000066() #08€0000 66
¥9°€09 SI M €202/97/90 HO €COTATNL DVAVINNA LHIVOIVIN  £100066d £08€0000 66
60°6L SI M €207/97/90 HO DOTdVT-096C06 SHMOT L¥000664 708£0000 66
¥9°¢09 SI M £207/97/90 HO €COTAINS NVINSTIV NAYHLVI  S100066d 108¢0000 66
S1'601 SI M £207/97/90 HO SNHIXHETOTANNS SHNOO0D NII 8000664 008£0000 66
¢C101 SI MIN £207/97/90 HO 210 NOSHOV[ ddAINNAL 12200664 66L€0000 66
SL'8T SI M £€207/97/90 HO JNTFIETS 190 ONIAFYL HLLANVHL  16CE€066A 86.,£0000 66
06°T1 SI M £202/97/90 HO 156¥750-90€T ANVANOD HIVMAUVH SHAVI 01000664 L6LE0000 66
£Tv9e SI M £€207/97/90 HO 8YELOEANI SSANISNG 4O THIVIdV dDVINI  L800066A 96L£0000 66
05°18¢ SI M £202/97/90 HO CELLE ANVJINOD HIIAYHS SOI 8€000664 S6L£0000 66
TE6IS°T SI MIN £€202/927/90 HO SE06¥9£09 17 SUOHEIIUNWWIOdI[3 ], ULl  OTHE066A ¥6L£0000 66
0€'18€°€ SI MW €202/97/90 HO Veolvee ATddNS AONVNILNIVIN ASVTIO ££00066d €6L£0000 66
20'69C SI M £€202/97/90 HO €COTAINS SYIO0T HTIAVD  L000066Yd T6LE0000 66
SLISLT SI MIN £207/97/90 HO ¥ET0IS0L ISIA SH NOINN INIOf NOLYFTINA  9L00066A 16L£0000 66
20°9S SI M £202/97/90 HO £260600190 YHILNOYA 700006601 06L£0000 66
9T ¢9¢ SI M £207/97/90 HO $0001TL8ITOA HSNOHOHVTIL  6VEL066A 68L£0000 66
007891 SI M £202/9t/90 HO 6V6rC8I1LOTLL XHadd  1L00066A 88L£0000 66
¥9°¢09 SI M £202/92/90 HO €C0TAINL VDIA Adad 1000664 L8LE0000 66
T€'9T6'%T SI M £€202/97/90 HO NI-+8¢£¢CC SNOISSHUJdNI VIVA  €S00066A 98L£0000 66
TL'E66°T ST MIN €202/97/90 HO £25090£050 WLV 4LV VIEGVH V140 ALID 100006601 $8L£0000 66
YL'TLTT SI  MIN £202/97/90 HO AVOrS-¢THT VIdvH V140 ALID 61000664 ¥8L€0000 66
97'9€9°C ST MIN £202/97/90 HO SLO-ETTT LOTLSIA TOOHDS VITVEINAD  €F9£066A £8L£0000 66
8T'8SE°T SI M €207/97/90 HO €TOTATA ANV NATOUVD  LPTE066d 78LEO000 66
60°9¢ SI M £202/927/90 HO 21D UuosyoLy 118D 65700664 18L€£0000 66
88611 SI MIA €207/97/90 HO £T0TYCSSHIdV.LS NOSYHLSIIHD NIdVD 2000664 08L£0000 66
60°LS SI M €202/927/90 HO LETI6V VI4VH VI TIVATEVH SONINNVO $1000664 6LL€0000 66
00°00¢ SI M £202/9¢/90 HO LSOLY dI'ld ONd 1000664 8LLEOOOO 66
$9°€09 SI  MIN €202/927/90 HO £COTAINS NVIWSTIV INJJd 10000664 LLLEOOOO 66
TL88 SI M €202/97/90 HO 966801 ‘ONI JIMONNMYVT LS3d 11000664 9LL£0000 66
0S8 Trbpl SI  MIN £T0T/9T/90 HO £TOT AVIN T¥9E€R9 ¥ dNNY VAOTNOSTHANY NOSNIDLLY  0T00066A SLLEOODO 66
junowry Y3dypH smyeyg 2dAY e PIUE) e HIIYD SqNS UIYFY suieN dahed a1 34keq ARYD

£207/0€/9 03 £207/1/9 Woyy

19)SI39Y }I9YyD pIjepIjosuo))

dsS LNIOf TTAMO'T



61:3p:01 :AWILY JUILIND L 125139y 305y pasepriosuo) :500edd  eday
£207/9T/L0 2B JUILIND adeq zopueussH sudled - ZAANVNIIHA 1980
1L 16€660°C -panss|
00°S¥8°S SI M £€202/87/90 HO S6S1¢T ONI ONILTNSNOD HOd1-V 6STEL066A 6£8¢0000 66
0000861 SI M £€202/97/90 HO €Cddd-1.ddS TOOHOS HOIH NVILSIYHO YHILLIHM  0LPE066A 8€8€0000 66
9L €SET SI M €202/97/90 HO 79168 dNOYH VINY 0910066A LE€8E0000 66
05°2ss°01 SI M €207/97/90 HO 69¢S SIOALIHOYY NONNVY HdOVIVHD 11006664 9€8€0000 66
¥79°€09 SI M £207/97/90 HO €CoTAINS OTIILLVd 20144 20000664 $€8€0000 66
0T EV9‘1 SI M €207/97/90 HO £2OTANNL VZZ1d VINYOAI'TVDO NJdHLNOS £100066N £8£0000 66
96°0%8 SI MW £€207/97/90 HO €20TANNS ANVINOD ATddNS YAdVd 4 % d 6000066N £€8€0000 66
9CHTLY SI M €207/97/90 HO £20TANNC SAOO0d ¥v.LsS A'1I0D LO00066N 7£8€0000 66
€S°€ST1T SI MW €207/97/90 HO €20TINNSL AIVA dOOMIATIA  #000066N 1£8£0000 66
05 1841 SI M €207/97/90 HO £TOTANNL S9fes [ejusunuon) ST00066N 0£8¢£0000 66
6¢£'CST SI M €207/97/90 HO AVOrS-¢CHT VIIVH V140 ALID 61000664 623£0000 66
00°081 SI MK €207/97/90 HO €COTINNT dI'1d ©ONd ¥1000664 878£0000 66
STSIL'TY SI MIN €207/97/90 HO WUHddOTHETAVIA ALNNOD HONVIO 40 VOWA [ZSEL066A LT8E0000 66
8T'18 SI M £€202/97/90 HO -SHSNAdXH LSAId NVA LLODS 78100664 978£0000 66
£C06 SI M €202/97/90 HO £€8L90T1dI0 ‘00 % TIIDOVIN'A WVITIIM 600066 A $78¢0000 66
0S'LLSE SI M €707/92/90 HO €7/TT-TITHMOTAL TOOHOS HOIH NVILSTYHO ¥AdLLLIHM  L0Z0066A $78£0000 66
01°506 SI M £€702/97/90 HO  $00°8¥866S1€TIS OIALDATE ATVSHTOHM SEdLTVM 69000664 €78€0000 66
0L'618°8 SI M £207/97/90 HO 10-TT8VLTL ONIYIVLS SINL 9000664 7T8L0000 66
£9°16C SI M €202/92/90 HO L-€9L9 ‘0D SINVITIIM-NIMYIHS HHL 09000664 178£0000 66
L6'€90°T S MIN €207/97/90 HO T1L80CISL NOLLNLILSNI Odd 10ddd 3IINOH dH.L 65000664 078¢£0000 66
00°0SY SI M £€202/97/90 HO Sivy DdV INISSOd OV.L LSTE066A 618€0000 66
¢rolt SI M £€207/92/90 HO VLE8618C SNOLLVOI'TdNd ¥ddNd d4d1S ¥810066A 818€0000 66
STILS SI M €207/97/90 HO €T9190L1S0 0D SVD VINIOAITVD NYdHLNOS 00006601 L18€0000 66
€570 11 SI M €207/97/90 HO €CI1901150 NOSIAH VINIOJITYD NMHHINOS 00006611 918€0000 66
+¥9°¢09 SI M €207/97/90 HO €TOTATINL JAIVIN A TTdHS 2100066d SI18£0000 66
9¢'¢81 SI MW £€207/97/90 HO S100LTH0180¢ OTT1 ALTVIDAdS TOOHDS 66CL066A 180000 66
00°S6C SI M £€207/92/90 HO NI-€CTTEIM VINYOATTVD 40 SHOIAYAS TOOHDS ZL10066A €18€0000 66
¥0°689 S M €202/97/90 HO €COTATINS HJdTOANVI A'TVNOY 1100066¥ 718€0000 66
0L°L91 SI M £€202/97/90 HO ¢8€1797¢004€T FTLSAN A9 HSTIATIAAVHII  vS10066A 118€0000 66
00°06C SI MIN £€207/97/90 HO [44:35474 "ONI NOILdO 1S3d £5000664 018€0000 66
8T'RSE' ST MIN £20T/9¢/90 HO ECOTATINL MOFIHOUHAVIN ANNHL 0100066Y 608£0000 66
junowry }Pay) smeyg ALY e PIUER) Ned HIYD sqn§ soudIRfY auIgN 234ed 1 d94Led ) rELlfo)

£207/0€/9 03 £TOT/1/9 WOy
J91SISAY I3y PIjepIosuo))
ds INIOIL TTIMO'1



PuIL, JUSIIND 8 1218189y ¥o9YyD) PAAEPIIOSUO)) :GOOENT  310day

61:8%°01
£207/97/L0 :d3EQ JULIN) adeq zopuelIsH dudlie( - ZHANVNIIHA 3950
1L 16£660°C [ero], puer)
L 16E°660°T Je10 L quey 66
junowry }day) smeyg 2dAy e PIUE) e YYD sqng ERIEIEIE) | =1 ILINERTN S | A1 ?24Aeg 23y)

£207/0€/9 03 £70T/1/9 W01y
J9)SISAY YI9YD pIjepIosuo)
ds INIOIL TTIMOT



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYER-EMPLOYEE RELATIONS/PERSONNEL REPORT 2023/24 #1

August 7, 2023
L. CERTIFICATED EMPLOYEES

A. RESIGNATION
FECTIVE
NAME DATE SITE COMMENTS
Evenson, Amanda 07/20/2023 MG Resignation. Meadow Green Teacher
B. RETIREMENT
NAME EFFECTIVE SITE COMMENT
DATE
Needham, Deborah 07/01/2023 MA Retirement Option I. Correction of EER #12 2022-2023
C. 2023/2024 CONTRACTS
EFFECTIVE CLASS/COL/
NAME DATE SITE COMMENTS
STEP
McCoy, Stacey 08/14/2023 C3/81 MG Temporary Contract. Meadow Green

TK/K Combo Teacher.

* It is further recommended that these individuals be approved for substitute teaching at the rate of $200.00 per day
and/or $50.00 an hour rate (not to exceed six hours) as applicable and to include: Professional Development, Saturday
School, Site Support Duties, Intervention, and PowerSource, Power Up, ESY

**[t is further recommended that the individuals listed in Certificated Salaries for 2023-2024 is approved to instruct in
the Intervention Programs. The rate of pay is $50.00/hour and will be paid from Title I or LCFF Supplemental Grant
Funds.

**1t is further recommended that individuals listed in Certificated Salaries for 2023-2024 serve as home school teachers,
if needed, for the 2023-2024 school year at a rate of $50.00/hour, not to exceed five hours per week, per student. Mileage
will be paid at the IRS Standard Mileage Rate for the 2023-2024 school year.

D. Employment of substitutes effective 07/01/2023 for the 2023-2024 school year @ $200 per
day and $100.00 per half day rate, $250.00 long term sub rate, and $50.00 per hour* (not to exceed six
hours) as applicable and to include: professional development, Saturday school, site support duties,
Saturday School. Intervention, PowerUp, ESY and Power Source.

Allsman, Brent Hall, Benjamin Ocanas, David
Anderson, Tammy Harding, Savannah Ontiveros, Christine
Azucar, Nicole Head-Shahrestani, Courtney Osborn, Elizabeth
Barber, Alexandra (Alex) Hernandez, Veronica Patel, Kunal
Barcenas, Deejay Hsu, Wiseman Perez, Jennifer
Belk, Juliette Jaber, Adla Peterson, Monica
Bell, Jessica Jacobsen, Brennan Petrakis, Aly
Bishop, Davette C Jarvis, Melanie Plant, Gillian
Brooks, Edward Jimenez, Alyssa Quinlan, Dyana

X-B1-2



Buckner, Hope
Buckner, Iris
Calleros-Wiltzen, Esther
Campbell, Kevin
Carbajal, Betty
Carr, Candice
Chen, Marcia
Chevallier, Michele
Childress, Whittany
Conforti, Tammy
Correa, Jose
Dankert, Marian
Davis, Eloisa
DeBruijn, Lisa

De Silva Jayasinghe, Kevin
Dowell, Austyn
Fuller, Duke

Gaber, Michael
Galvan, Diana
Gamez, Kimberly
Garcia, Mailey
Garcia, Patricia
Garcia, Tom
Gonzales, Ilene
Gonzalez, Alma
Gonzalez, Leslie
Green, Georgia

Guillen, Jennifer

Jimenez, Ieneke
Johansen, Amanda
Jones, Lillian

Kato, Cathy

Killeen, Isabel
Kimes, Betty

Kjer, Kevin

Ko, Kevin

Lawton, Amber

Lee, Joshua

Lees, Debra

Linta, Vicki
Magdaleno, Michael
Mangold, Hannah
Manriquez, Gina
Martinez, Amy
McCullough, Jennifer
Melgar, Tania
Mendoza, Hannah
Mendoza, Jacob
Mgrdichian, Jennifer
Milton, Lisa
Milward, Catherine
Mohler, Megan
Montemayor, Kathleen
Morales, Ivan
Nordell, Karen
Nunez, Kayla

28 SUBSTITUTE CHANGE OF PAY

NAME EFFECTIVE
DATE
Garcia, Patricia 08/14/2023
Carbajal, Betty 08/14/2023
Rouse, Christine 08/14/2023

II. CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES

END DATE

SITE COMMENT

Rohrbach, Judy
Rouse, Christine
San Martin, Jerry
Sauceda, Antoinette
Schulze, Jennifer
Scott, Susan
Seleznoff, Tamara
Silva, Kathie
Solorzano, Karina
Stepehns, Patricia
Stephenson, Rebecca
Stoermer, Bryce
Stonesifer, Skyler
Sturgill, Berea
Tyner, Bonnie

Van Vliet, Ronita
Vega, Sandy
Villarino, Jill
Warner, Ellie
Wesley, Esther
Windust, Julie
Wood, Lauren

Wu, Crystal
Wybaczynsky, Neely
Zarate, Laurie

Zazueta, Jacqueline

05/30/2024 DO To be paid Long term rate of $250 daily as Intervention

DLIJO

05/30/2024 DO To be paid Long term rate of $250 daily as Intervention

MG

05/30/2024 DO To be paid Long term rate of $250 daily as Intervention OL

August 7, 2023
X-B1-3



A. MONTHLY — GENERAL FUND

B. HOURLY — GENERAL FUND
NAME/ EFFECTI END

EMPLOYEE ID# VE DATE
DATE
Anaya, Arlene 7/13/23
Balzano, Christina 7/25/23
Cardenas, Eva 7/11/23
Cardenas, Eva 7/11/23
Cardenas, Eva 7/11/23
Chavez, Diane Marie 6/21/23
Coombs, Tanner 6/21/23
Diaz, Angelica 7/6/23
Diaz, Angelica 8/3/23
Gonzalez, Kayla 8/14/23

Hernandez, Frances 6/5/23 6/30/23
Long-Gomez, Stephanie 7/13/23
Long-Gomez, Stephanie 7/17/23
Mendez, Brittney 8/15/23

Montanez, Laurie 6/5/23 6/30/23
Obezo, Brittney 7/18/23
Parikh, Purvi 5/30/23
Parikh, Purvi 5/30/23
Ponce, Adriana 7/1/23
Rodriguez, Beatriz 7/5/23
Shaw, Shannon 7/6/23

RANGE/
STEP

R20/54
R23/81

R30/S3

R29/86

R23/85

X-B1-4

SITE
DO
MA
DO
DO
DO
DO

M&O
DO

OL

MA
JO

DO
DO

DO
DO

MG
DO
DO
DO

DO
OL

COMMENTS

Additional Assignment: Substitute
Child Development Assist
Resignation: Instructional Aide Early
Learning

Additional Assignment: Substitute
District Office Receptionist
Additional Assignment: Substitute
Child Development Assistant
Additional Assignment: Substitute
Clerk Typist

Additional Assignment: Substitute
Child Development Assist 3

New Hire: Summer Custodian Intern

Additional Assignment: Substitute
Instructional Aide

Resignation: From Permanent Noon
Duty Aide to Substitute Noon Duty
Aide

New Hire: Preschool Teacher
Additional Assignment: Substitute
Summer School Office Manager
Additional Assignment: Substitute
Café Worker

Additional Assignment: Substitute
Child Development Assist

New Hire: SLPA

Additional Assignment: IA ESY
Summer School

Resignation: Instructional Aide SE-
Mod

Additional Assignment: Substitute
Clerk Typist

Additional Assignment: Substitute
Café Worker

OOC as Information Systems
Specialist

Step Increase: Fiscal Service Clerk

Resignation: Instructional Aide SpEd



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Resolution 2023/2024 No. 900 Proclaiming September ACTION/
17 —23, 2023, as “Constitution Week” (RESOLUTION)

It is recommended that Resolution 2023/2024 No. 900 proclaiming September 17 — 23, 2023, as
Constitution Week be approved. All citizens, parents, staff members and students are encouraged
to reflect during that week on the many benefits of our Federal Constitution and American
citizenship, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the resolution.

Attachment

Superintendent’s Comment:
ADOPTION BY MAJORITY ROLL CALL VOTE.

V-Al-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION 2023/2024 NO. 900

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT,
LOS ANGELES AND ORANGE COUNTIES, CALIFORNIA,
PROCLAIMING SEPTEMBER 17-23, 2023, AS
“CONSTITUTION WEEK”

WHEREAS, our Founding Fathers, in order to secure the blessings of liberty for
themselves and their posterity, did ordain and establish a Constitution for the United States of
America; and

WHEREAS, it is of the greatest importance that all citizens fully understand and
appreciate the philosophical foundation of the Constitution as well as the provisions and principles
contained in the Constitution in order to support, preserve, and defend it against all encroachment;
and

WHEREAS, the anniversary of the Signing of the Constitution provides a historic
opportunity for all Americans to realize the achievements of the Framers of the Constitution and
the rights, privileges, and responsibilities it affords; and

WHEREAS, the independence guaranteed to American citizens, whether by birth or
naturalization, should be celebrated by appropriate ceremonies and activities during Constitution
Week, September 17-23, 2023, as designated by proclamation of the President of the
United States of America in accordance with Public Law 915.

THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that we, the Board of Trustees of the
Lowell Joint School District, do hereby proclaim September 17-23, 2023 as:

CONSTITUTION WEEK

And urge all citizens, parents, staff members, and students to reflect during the week on the many
benefits of our Federal Constitution and American citizenship.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 11™ day of September 2023, by the following vote:
AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:



I, Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School District of Los
Angeles and Orange Counties, California, hereby certify that the above and foregoing resolution
was duly and regularly adopted by the said Board of Trustees at a regular meeting thereof held on
the 11™ day of September, 2023, and passed by a unanimous vote of those present.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 11" day of September
2023.

Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Resolution 2023/2024 No. 901 Designating October 2023 ACTION/
as “Character Education Month” (RESOLUTION)

Character Education Month is to ensure that the development of strong and moral character
and the promotion of responsible, ethical, civic-minded behavior are well and thoroughly
integrated into the schools’ curricula and instructional activities.

It is recommended that Resolution 2023/2024 No. 901 supporting October 2023 as “Character
Education Month” be approved, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to
execute the resolution.

Attachment

Superintendent’s Comment:
ADOPTION BY MAJORITY ROLL CALL VOTE.

V-Bl-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION 2023/2024 NO. 901

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
OF LOS ANGELES AND ORANGE COUNTIES, CALIFORNIA,
DESIGNATING OCTOBER 2023 AS
“CHARACTER EDUCATION MONTH”

WHEREAS, the American heritage and laws reflect a common core of religious, personal
and social values that hold the citizens of this democracy responsible for acting morally and
ethically, being actively involved in school and community, resolving differences peacefully, and
respecting the rights, dignity and property of others;

WHEREAS, the character of our state is only as strong as the character of each individual
citizen;

WHEREAS, although character development is, first and foremost, an obligation of
families and the efforts of religious communities, schools, and youth, civic and human service
organizations also play a very significant role in supporting family efforts by fostering and
promoting good character;

WHEREAS, the State Board of Education believes that all educators are obliged to
inculcate in our youth the moral and ethical virtues that build a fundamental strength of character;

WHEREAS, the common core of personal and social values, including honesty,
trustworthiness, respect, responsibility, fairness, caring, citizenship, civic virtue, and personal
responsibility, should be emphasized consistently and comprehensively in all curricula and
instructional activities;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the State Board of Education recognizes
October 2023 as Character Education Month and encourages local educational agencies
throughout California to commemorate Character Education Month and otherwise help ensure
that the development of strong moral character and the promotion of responsible, ethical, civic-
minded behavior are well and thoroughly integrated into the schools’ curricula and instructional
activities.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 117 day of September 2023, by the following vote:
AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:



I, Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School District of Los
Angeles and Orange Counties, California, hereby certify that the above and foregoing resolution
was duly and regularly adopted by the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held on the 1 1% day
of September, 2023, and passed by a unanimous vote of those present.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 11" day of September 2023.

Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Approval of the Lowell Joint School District’s Response to ACTION/
the 2022-23 Orange County Grand Jury Report: “Russian (RATIFICATION)

Roulette: Fentanyl in Orange County”

Lowell Joint School District’s Response to the 2022-23 Orange County Grand Jury Report:
“Russian Roulette: Fentanyl in Orange County”.

In accordance with California Penal Code sections 933 and 933.05, the Orange County Grand
Jury has requested that the Lowell Joint School District respond to findings and
recommendations in the 2022-2023 Orange County Grand Jury report entitled “Russian Roulette:
Fentanyl in Orange County,” published on June 21, 2023. Below are the responses of the Lowell
Joint School District, as approved by the Board of Education on September 11, 2023.

FINDINGS:
Finding 2: Illicit fentanyl is a pervasive problem in Orange County.

Response to Finding 2:
The Lowell Joint School District agrees with this finding.

Finding 7:  Orange County will benefit by establishing a chartered multi-agency Task
Force to address the fentanyl crisis in Orange County.

Response to Finding 7:
The Lowell Joint School District agrees with this finding.

Finding 8:  Aslong as there is a demand, producers will find ways to supply drugs. Orange
County cannot law enforce its way out of the fentanyl crisis. Education, prevention, and
treatment are critical to reducing demand.

Response to Finding 8:
The Lowell Joint School District agrees with this finding.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

V-Cl-1



Finding 9:  There is a need to increase public awareness and acknowledgement of the risks
of illicit fentanyl.

Response to Finding 9:
The Lowell Joint School District agrees with this finding.

Finding 10: Some educational institutions are not participating in available educational
and preventive fentanyl/drug programs.

Response to Finding 10:
The Lowell Joint School District agrees with this finding.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Recommendation 1: By January 1, 2024, the Orange County Board of Supervisors should
charter a multi-agency Task Force to address the fentanyl crisis. (F2, F7, F8, F9)

Response to Recommendation 1:
The recommendation has not yet been implemented, but will be implemented in the future,
with a timeframe for implementation. The Lowell Joint School District will participate
should the Orange County Board of Supervisors form a charter a multi-agency task force
to address the fentanyl crisis and should the Lowell Joint School District be invited to join
the task force.

Recommendation 5: By January 1, 2024, the Orange County Department of Education
should develop a model fentanyl/opioid prevention educational program to be offered to all
K-12 school districts in Orange County. (F2, F8, F9, F10)

Response to Recommendation 5:
The recommendation has been implemented, with a summary regarding the implemented
action. The Lowell Joint School District would accept an offer from the Orange County
Department of Education should it develop a model fentanyl/opioid educational program
and offer it to K-12 school districts in Orange County.

Recommendation 6: By October 1, 2023, the Orange County Department of Education
should promote the use of currently established and in-place fentanyl and drug-related
educational programs offered by OC agencies such as Health Care Agency, OC Sheriff's
Department, and non-governmental organizations to all K-12 school districts in Orange
County. (F2, F8, F9, F10)

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

V-C1-2



Response to Recommendation 6:
The recommendation has been implemented, with a summary regarding the implemented
action. The Lowell Joint School District would be receptive should the Orange County
Department of Education promote the use of currently established and in-place fentanyl
and drug-related educational programs offered by OC agencies and non-governmental
organizations to all K-12 school districts in Orange County.

It is recommended to approve the responses of the Lowell Joint School District recommendations
in the 2022-2023 Orange County Grand Jury report entitled “Russian Roulette: Fentanyl in Orange
County,” published on June 21, 2023, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to
execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

V-CI1-3



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Approval of Agreement with PQBids for Web- ACTION/
Based Program used to Prequalify Contractors (RATIFICATION)

Prequalification is required for certain contractors when a school district project involves an
expenditure of over $1,000,000 and plans to use or be reimbursed with state funds. The
California Public Contract Code sets forth guidance on developing the process to prequalify
bidders before submitting a bid. The prequalification process is intended to ensure that
contractors have, among other things, the appropriate experience, qualifications, and capacity
for the projects.

The prequalification process involves a questionnaire to be made available to bidders at one
or more of the following intervals: project-by-project, quarterly, or annually. Bidders then
submit applications and, if the bidder is successful based on a uniform system of rating, the
bidder is qualified for a period of one year.

The PQBids web-based service provides the means to prequalify the necessary contractors.
It is recommended that the Agreement with PQBids for Web-Based Program used to
Prequalify Contractors for the period of September 12, 2023 through September 11, 2024, at

a rate not to exceed $15,000, be approved, and that the Superintendent or designee be
authorized to execute the necessary documents.

DB/ds

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

VI-Al-1



=] 12711 Newport Ave. Ste. G

. Tustin, CA 92780
1 S Tel 888-218-4173

PQBids.com

rusuc Amnt‘!lf:%lkl CONTRACTOLS - SUD CONTRACFORS

-
"

Lowell Joint School District

July 17, 2023

Prequalification of contractors - Option 1

We at PQBids propose the following services to Lowell Joint School District in the amount of:

1 year: $15,000
2 years: $28,500
3 years: $40,500

. To utilize our online automated prequalification web-based services for your school district.
. Pre-qualify contractors using the DIR approved questionnaire.

. Conducts interview process of two (2) prior projects.

. Verify contractors past two (2) years of audited, or reviewed, financials by our in-house CPA.
. Verify their surety letter and their accountant release letter.

. Verify all contractors licenses.

. Verify all contractors DIR Registration.

. View all approved general contractors and sub-contractors on your homepage.

W 00 ~N O U1 B~ W N

. We will provide all technical support.
10. Contractors are approved for a term of 1 year from the date approved.

11. Appeal procedures noted on our website and through our tutorials. PQBids excludes all appeals
procedures.



Additional CUPCCAA software

Option A
PQBids manages CUPCCAA software which includes the following:

Verify all contractors’ licenses.

Verify all contractors DIR Registration.

Verify contractors have the necessary insurance to work.

We will additionally advertise once a year to designated approved construction trade journals for
the districts, inviting all licensed contractors to register as well as all contractors that are already in
PQBids database. PQBids alone has over 4000 contractors.

5. We will approve the contractors so all you would have to do is login and see your full list of
contractors populated.

& o =

Additional $3,000 per year (Normal price $4,500 per year if no AB2031 Option)

Option B
District manages CUPCCAA software including approving and denying contractors.

$4,500 per year.

AB2031 Option 1 & CUPCCAA Option A

1 year: $18,000
2 years: $34,500
3 years: $49,500

Print Name:

Signature:

Date:

Authorized signature only

All agreements are subject to our terms and conditions and policies per website pgbids.com



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Approval of Piggyback Contract with CN School & ACTION

Office Solutions, Inc. for Furniture: Systems and
Stand Alone (San Bernardino County Unified School
District Bid #23/24-0005)

Public Contract Code Section 20111 (a) provides that the governing board of any school dis-
trict shall let any contracts involving an expenditure of more than $109,300 for any of the
following:

(1) The purchase of equipment, materials, or supplies to be furnished, sold, or leased to the
district.

(2) Services, except construction services.

(3) Repairs, including maintenance as defined in Section 20115, that are not a public project
as defined in subdivision (c) of Section 22002.

Contracts shall be let to the lowest responsive responsible bidder or else reject all bids. Pur-
chases of equipment, materials, supplies, services, and repairs/maintenance in amounts less
than $109,300 need not be bid.

As part of the District classroom furniture refresh, there is a need at all elementary school sites.
San Bernardino City Unified School District (San Bernardino County) awarded a competi-
tively-bid contract for Furniture: Systems and Stand Alone to CN School & Office Solutions,
Inc. at its regularly-scheduled Board meeting on June 27, 2023. The contract was awarded
through June 30, 2024.

The special provisions of the San Bernardino City Unified School District bid/contract provide
that the “SBCUSD” and any other school or community college district will have the oppor-
tunity to order from this bid in quantities necessary to maintain its operations. Pursuant to
Public Contract Code Section 20118, the District can utilize contracts awarded by another
school district for the purchase of equipment, materials, supplies, and other personal property
under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the awarding school district’s contract when
provided for in the awarding school district’s bid documents. This practice of utilizing another
district’s competitively-bid contract is known as “piggybacking.”

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

VI-B1-1



District staff members determined that the Furniture Systems identified in the bid/contract
awarded to CN School & Office Solutions, Inc. met the needs of the District. District staff
members reviewed the terms and conditions of the bid/contract, assessed the prices to be fair,
reasonable, and competitive, and find that it is in the best interest of the District to approve a
piggyback agreement with CN School & Office Solutions, Inc. for the purchase of classroom
furniture. The savings to the District are between 5-52% off list prices.

The proposal from Culver Newlin is $426,011.75 for furniture in the 2023-24 school year (5-
6" grades).

This agenda item seeks approval of a piggyback agreement with CN School & Office Solu-
tions, Inc. for the purchase of furniture. CN School & Office Solutions, Inc. has proposed to
provide these products under the same terms and conditions as the contract awarded to them
by “SBCUSD”.

It is recommended that the Piggyback Contract with CN School & Office Solutions, Inc. for
Furniture: Systems and Stand Alone for an amount not to exceed $450,000.00 be approved and
that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

DB/ds

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

VI-B1-1



The Bids are due to the Front Desk Receptionist
at the time and date specified within the Bid
document. Electronic submission of the Bid will
NOT be accepted.



NOTICE CALLING FOR BIDS

FURNITURE: SYSTEMS AND STAND ALONE
BID NO. 23/24-0005

BID DEADLINE: Wednesday, June 21, 2023 2:00 P.M.

PLACE OF OPENING: San Bernardino County SUPERINTENDENT of Schools
ATTN: Front Desk Receptionist
760 East Brier Drive
San Bernardino, CA 92408

Notice is hereby given that the San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools hereafter called
SUPERINTENDENT, will receive sealed bids up to, but not fater than, the time fixed above for procuring
furniture: new or refurbished, systems, stand alone and classroom furniture as required by the
SUPERINTENDENT.

All bids shall be made on the bid form furnished by the SUPERINTENDENT.
Each bid must conform and be responsive to all pertinent Bidding and Contract Documents.

Bids shall remain open, valid and subject to acceptance anytime within ninety (90) days after the bid opening
date and time unless otherwise stipulated.

The successful VENDOR may be required to furnish a Performance Bond in the amount at a level to be
determined by the SUPERINTENDENT.

Sealed bids will be received by the Front Desk Receptionist, 760 East Brier Drive, San Bernardino, CA
92408, on or before the time and date stated above. Bids will remain sealed until the time and date stated.
Bids must be sealed and clearly marked on the outside of the envelope in the lower left-hand corner “BID
ENCLOSED - #23/24-0005 Furniture: Systems and Stand Alone”

No VENDOR may withdraw his bid for a period of 90 days after the date set for the opening thereof.
To request a copy of the Bid document, please contact Procurement and Warehouse Services at (909) 386-

9508 or visit hitps://www.sbcss.k12.ca.us/index.php/business-services/business-support-
services/procurement-and-warehouse-senvices/bids-upcoming

ELECTRONIC SUBMISSION OF BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.
Respectfully,

Amber L Arias, Manager Procurement Services

Advertisement #1: May 30, 2023

Advertisement #2: June 6, 2023

Questions Due;  June 13, 2023

Bids Due: June 21, 2023 2:00 p.m.
Bid Opening: June 21, 2023 2:15 p.m.



San Bernardino

kCou Nty
Superntandent of
Schools

FURNITURE: SYSTEMS AND STAND ALONE
BID NO. 23/24-0005

The San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools (SUPERINTENDENT) is seeking a VENDOR(s) to
supply furniture: new or refurbished, systems, stand alone and classroom furniture as per the requirements
of the SUPERINTENDENT. Please see Attachment A for FAQs.

1. INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS

VENDORS shall conform to instructions provided in the bid document. All bids must be in a sealed
envelope bearing the name and address of the VENDOR and must clearly state on the outside of the
envelope in the lower left-hand corner “BID ENCLOSED #23/24-0005 Furniture: Systems and
Stand Alone”.

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

1.7

Delivery Address

San Bernardino Superintendent of Schools
Front Desk Receptionist

760 East Brier Drive

San Bernardino, CA 92408

Bid Opening

VENDORSs must submit all required documents prior to the deadline. Bids received after the
deadline will be deemed non-responsive as not meeting with statutory requirements. Bids
are due to the Front Desk Receptionist at 2:00 p.m. on Wednesday, June 21, 2023 Bids
will be opened and read at 2:15 p.m. via Zoom Please email amber.arias@sbcss.net if
you are interested in receiving an invitation and call in information for the virtual bid opening.

Erasures

Erasures and “whiteouts” are not permitted. Mistakes may be crossed out. Corrections will
be noted in the margin and initialed in ink by the person signing the bid. Bids cannot be
withdrawn or corrected after being opened. SUPERINTENDENT will not be responsible for
errors or omissions on the part of VENDORs in making up their bids.

Withdrawal of Bids
Any VENDOR may withdraw their bid, by written request any time prior to the scheduled
opening date and time. All bids received shall become the property of SUPERINTENDENT.

Bid Preparation Cost
Costs for preparing bid response and any other related material is the responsibility of the
VENDOR and shall not be chargeable in any manner to SUPERINTENDENT.

Questions Regarding Bid
Questions should be reduced to writing and e-mailed to Amber Arias, Procurement
Services at amber.arias@sbcss.net or (909) 386-9508.

Bid Content — All bids submitted shall include:

«  Signature Page/Bid Form

Non-Collusion Declaration

Workers Compensation Certification

Drug Free Workplace Certification

Resellers Permit and/or manufacturer authorization letter




2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

INTERPRETATION OF DOCUMENTS

Any interpretation or correction of the bid documents will be made only by addendum duly issued
and a copy of such addendum will be delivered to each person receiving a set of the bid documents.
No person is authorized to make any oral interpretation of any provision in the bid documents to
any VENDOR and no VENDOR is authorized to rely on any such unauthorized oral interpretation.

Changes in, or additions to, the bid form, recapitulations of work bid upon, alternative proposals or
any other modification of the bid form which is not specifically called for in the bid documents may
result in SUPERINTENDENT'’S rejection of the bids as not being responsive. No oral or telephonic
modification of any bid submitted will be considered.

AWARD

SUPERINTENDENT reserves the right to reject any or all bids, or to waive any irregularities or
informalities in any bids or in the bidding. The award, if made by SUPERINTENDENT may be to
more than one VENDOR who meets all requested criteria, based on the needs of the
SUPERINTENDENT.

VENDORS INTERESTED IN MORE THAN ONE BID
No person, firm or corporation shall be allowed to make, file or be interested in more than one bid
for the same project unless alternate bids are specifically called for.

LENGTH OF CONTRACT
Length of contract shall be for a period of one (1) year with an option for up to two (2) additional one-
year renewals in accordance with provisions contained in Education Code Section 17596.

PRICES
6.1 Prices shall remain firm for the entire term of the contract.

6.2 Bid is structured as a percentage off current manufacturer's list price with items to be
ordered on an as needed basis.

6.3 Bid prices are to include shipping, F.O.B. San Bernardino County Superintendent of
Schools, except when District’s shipping destination is a radius of 100 or more miles from
Bidder's distributing warehouse. Awarded VENDOR shall deliver and install all office
furniture, classroom furniture, accessories, and sundries at no charge to the
SUPERINTENDENT. Any additional installation charges (ie., stair carry, wall attachment,
in-ground bench placement) must be disclosed in writing and approved at the time of
purchase. No additional delivery or installation charges will be paid for by the
SUPERINTENDENT.

TAXES

If under federal excise tax law, any transaction hereunder constitutes a sale on which a federal
excise tax is imposed and the sale is exempt from such excise tax because it is a sale to a state or
local government for its exclusive use, SUPERINTENDENT upon request will execute a certificate
of exemption which will certify that SUPERINTENDENT is a political subdivision of the state for the
purposes of such exemption and that the sale is for the exclusive use of SUPERINTENDENT. No
excise tax for such materials shall be included in any bid price. California State Sales Tax should
not be included in the VENDOR’s quotation. Public school districts are exempt from Federal Excise
Tax.

INVOICES AND PAYMENTS

Invoices shall be submitted under the same firm name as shown on the purchase order. Invoice
format shall be approved by SUPERINTENDENT’S authorized representative.
SUPERINTENDENT shall make payment for materials, supplies or equipment furnished under the
purchase order within a reasonable and proper time after acceptance.

DELIVERY

Destination will be designated within the boundaries of the San Bernardino County Superintendent
of Schools. Actual delivery dates should be coordinated with the SUPERINTENDENT. All shipments
shall be accompanied by a packing slip. Purchase order number shall appear on all packing slips,



10.0

12.0

13.0

14.0

15.0

16.0

invoices, and packages. There shall be no minimum quantities required in order for the
SUPERINTENDENT to place orders as needed. Bid all items F.O.B., San Bernardino County
Superintendent of School. Destination will be designated within the boundaries of the San
Bernardino County SUPERINTENDENT of Schools.

The right is reserved to reject and return at the risk and expense of the VENDOR such portions of
any shipment which may be defective or fail to comply with specifications without invalidating the
remainder of the order.

BRAND NAMES

This bid is a percentage off VENDOR’s catalog pricing. VENDOR will provide a list of
manufacturers and/or manufacturer's products, with a percentage discount off of their current
catalog pricing.

SAMPLES

Samples, when requested, must be furnished at no expense or obligation to SUPERINTENDENT.
Samples should be plainly marked with VENDOR name, item number and description. The return
of samples (if not destroyed in testing) shall be arranged by the VENDOR at no cost to
SUPERINTENDENT.

In addition, any and all product tests performed by SUPERINTENDENT are, and will be, considered
sufficient to meet the terms of this section.

RESOURCE CONSERVATION

SUPERINTENDENT is fully committed to providing a safe and healthy school or work environment
for students, families and staff. SUPERINTENDENT wili promote the conservation of resources
through “Green Practices” and take a proactive and preventative approach in the areas of
purchasing, new construction, maintenance and operations. A form for this purpose will be provided
to the awarded VENDOR(s).

QUANTITIES
SUPERINTENDENT does not guarantee quantities.

SAFETY REQUIREMENTS

All items proposed in response to this bid must conform with the Safety Order of the State of
California, Division of Industrial Safety and CAL-OSHA regulations in effect at the time of bid.
VENDORS receiving awards of items subject to Chapter 4 (Industrial Safety Orders) California
Administrative Code, Title 8, Division of Industrial Relations, must submit to the Procurement Office
of SUPERINTENDENT, Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) for those items, when requested.

HOLD HARMLESS

VENDOR agrees, at its own expense, cost and risk, to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless
SUPERINTENDENT, its agents, employees and officers against any and all personal injuries,
damages, liabilities, costs, suits or expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, arising out of
any act or omission or the condition of any property owned or controlled by the VENDOR in the

performance of this contract. It is understood that employees of the VENDOR in its performance
under this contract are not agents or employees of SUPERINTENDENT.

DEFAULT BY VENDOR

If the successful VENDOR fails or neglects to furnish and/or deliver the supplies at the prices
quoted, or at the times and places agreed upon, or otherwise fails to comply with the terms,
conditions and specifications of this bid document in its entirety, SUPERINTENDENT reserves the
right to cancel existing orders of any items affected by such default; and procure the supplies from
other sources and deduct from any unpaid balance due to the successful VENDOR or collect
against his sureties. The price paid shall be considered the prevailing market price at the time such
purchase is made.



17.0

18.0

19.0

20.0

21.0

22.0

23.0

240

25.0

26.0

ASSIGNMENT

VENDOR shall not assign this contract or any part thereof without prior written consent of
SUPERINTENDENT. Any assignment of money to become due under this contract shall be subject
to a prior lien for services rendered or materials supplied for performance of work called for under
said contract by all persons, firms or corporations rendering such services or supplying such
materials to the extent that claims are filed pursuant to the Code of Civil Procedure and the
Government Code.

NOTICE OF TERMINATION

SUPERINTENDENT shall have the right, upon ten (10) days prior written notice to VENDOR, to
terminate this Agreement at any time and without cause prior to complete delivery. Such
termination shall be without any obligation or liability to VENDOR other than payment of outstanding
invoices for products delivered prior to notice of termination.

Any notice from one party to the other under the contract shall be in writing and shall be dated and
signed by party giving such notice or by duly authorized representative of such party and sent
certified mail.

CLAIMS/DISPUTES

Claims, disputes, or other matters in question between the parties to the contract or breach thereof
shall be subject to mediation under the auspices of a recognized, neutral third party professional
mediation service, or other mediation method acceptable to both parties, prior to undertaking any
legal action. The cost of the mediation services shall be borne equally by the parties.

OTHER AGENCIES: PIGGYBACK CLAUSE

Other public entities in the State of California may procure items off this bid under the same terms
and conditions stated in the bid, pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 20118 and 20651 to
20659. Said public entities shall process their purchase orders and warrants directly to the
successful VENDOR upon agreement by the public entity and the VENDOR.

SEVERABILITY

If any provision of the Agreement shall be unlawful, void, or for any reason, unenforceable, it shall
be deemed severable from, and shall in no way effect the validity or enforceability of the remaining
provisions of this Agreement, which shall remain valid and enforceable according to its term.

GOVERNING LAW
This Agreement shall be governed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of
California.

PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW DEEMED INSERTED

Each and every provision of law and clause required by law to be inserted in this contract shall be
deemed to be inserted herein and the contract shall be read and enforced as though it were
included herein. If through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not inserted, or is not correctly
inserted, then upon application of either party the contract shall forthwith be physically amended to
make such insertion or correction.

AMENDMENTS
No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by duly
authorized representatives of both parties.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains all of the understandings between the parties with respect to the subject
matter. Any prior agreements, representations, statements, negotiations or undertakings whether
oral or written are superseded hereby. Nothing modifying the terms and conditions will be binding
unless made in writing and agreed to by both parties.

EFFECT OF WAIVER

No term or provision shall be waived, and no breach excused, unless consent is in writing and
signed by both parties. Any consent to waive or excuse shall not constitute consent or waiver of
any other subsequent breach.



27.0

28.0

29.0

30.0

31.0

32.0

COVENANT AGAINST GRATUITIES

VENDOR warrants by signing hereon that no gratuities (in the form of entertainment, gifts, or
otherwise) were offered or given by the VENDOR or any agent or representative of the VENDOR,
to any officer or employee of SUPERINTENDENT with a view toward securing the contract or
securing favorable treatment with respect to any determinations concerning the performance of the
contract. For breach or violation of this warranty, SUPERINTENDENT shall have the right to
terminate the contract, either in whole or in part. Any loss or damage sustained .by
SUPERINTENDENT in procuring on the open market any items which VENDOR agreed to supply
shall be borne and paid for by the VENDOR. The rights and remedies of SUPERINTENDENT
provided in the clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law or under the contract.

PROTEST

VENDORSs may protest the recommended award, provided the protest is in writing, contains the
bid number and is delivered to the address listed for submission of bid documents, and submitted
within five (5) calendar days of the date on which the bid was opened.

Grounds for a protest is that SUPERINTENDENT failed to follow the selection procedures and
adhere to requirements specified in the RFB or any addenda or amendments; there has been a
violation of conflict of interest as provided in California Government Code Section 87100 et. Seq.;
or violation of any State or Federal law. Protests will not be accepted on any other grounds. All
protests will be handled by a panel comprised of SUPERINTENDENT staff.

SUPERINTENDENT will consider only these specific issues addressed in the written protest. A
written response will be directed to the protesting VENDOR within seven (7) calendar days of
receipt of the protest, advising of the decision with regard to the protest and the basis for the
decision.

NON-COLLUSION

Any efforts to restrain competition and the making of false sworn statements in connection with the
submission of bids are unlawful. Public Contract Code 7106 requires all VENDORSs to submit a
non-collusion declaration. A form for this purpose is furnished with the bid documents.

PERFORMANCE BOND
Performance Bond may be required to be maintained during the life of the contract at the level to
be determined by SUPERINTENDENT. A form for this purpose is furnished with the bid documents.

FINGERPRINTING REQUIREMENTS

This bid is subject to the provisions of Education Code Section 45125.1 and 45122.1. VENDORS’
employees are required to submit fingerprints to the Department of Justice where an employee may
come into contact with students at any site. The Department of Justice will ascertain whether the
employee has a pending criminal proceeding for a violent or serious felony or has been convicted of
a violent or serious felony as they are defined in Penal Code Sections 667.5¢c) and 1192.7c),
respectively. VENDOR shall not permit an employee to come in contact with students until the
Department of Justice has ascertained that the employee has not been convicted of a felony.
SUPERINTENDENT may request the removal of an employee from a site at any time. Failure to
comply with this provision may result in termination of the contract. Acknowledgment of the
fingerprinting requirements is included in the bid documents as Certification Page 14.

PUBLIC LIABILITY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE INSURANCE

VENDOR shall take out and maintain during the life of the contract such public liability and property
damage insurance as shall protect him and SUPERINTENDENT from all claims for property damage
arising from operations under the contract.

All policies shall contain additional endorsements naming the SUPERINTENDENT and its officers,
employees, agents and volunteers as additional insured with respect to liabilities arising out of the
performance of services hereunder.



33.0

34.0

35.0

36.0

37.0

WARRANTY/QUALITY
VENDOR shall guarantee the product or service performed against all defects or failures of materials
and workmanship for a minimum period of one (1) year from the actual delivery date.

PREVAILING WAGES

The assembly and delivery required in this bid will NOT generally require the payment of prevailing
wage. If the VENDOR or SUPERINTENDENT determines that a service falls within the labor code
section 1773 or SB 854, Prevailing wage labor may be deemed necessary. When prevailing wage
labor is needed, a separate quote for said labor will be provided by the VENDOR at that time.

MANUFACTURER AUTHORIZED RESELLER DISTRIBUTOR

VENDORs must be either manufacturers or factory authorized resellers/distributors for brands they
are bidding and must be able to show proof of information (submit with bid). The manufacturer's
letter(s) shall indicate authorization to market, sell, distribute, warrant, or supply any product or service
offered by the manufacturer through the VENDOR named in the bidding documents. If VENDOR is
not an authorized dealer and is not in good financial standing, the line and/or catalog discount will not
be awarded to the dealer and will result to the next lowest bidder whom is authorized to represent the
specific manufacturer. The SUPERINTENDENT reserves the right to disqualify the entire bid of the
dealer if they misrepresent pricing or falsely claim to be an authorized dealer.

UNFORESEEN CONDITIONS STORAGE

After an order is placed, an unforeseen circumstance could occur where the location for delivery is
not clean, safe, or properly prepared to receive delivery (construction delays, force majeure, etc.).
SUPERINTENDENT asks for the option to store the order in VENDORSs bonded, insured warehouse
facility no longer than 60 days.

REFUSE/DUNNAGE REMOVAL
No additional charges will be allowed for refuse/dunnage removal during delivery. VENDOR will be

responsible for removing cardboard, packing materials, pallets, etc. offsite at no additional cost to
SUPERINTENDENT.



SIGNATURE PAGE/BID FORM
(Please type or print)

The undersigned having carefully examined the Notice Calling for Bids, the Specifications, and all
contract documents for the proposed furniture: new or refurbished, systems, stand-alone and classroom

furniture bid the following:

ADDENDA: The undersigned has thoroughly examined any and all Addenda issued during the bid period
and is thoroughly familiar with all contents thereof and acknowledges receipt of the following Addenda:

(VENDOR to list all addenda).

Addendum No.

Date Received

Addendum No.

Date Received

Addendum No.

Date Received

Addendum No.

Date Received

BID AMOQUNT: Please provide percentage discount and name of manufacturer below.

% off

manufacturer's list price

% off

manufacturer’s list price

% off

manufacturer’s list price

% off

manufacturer’s list price

% off

manufacturer’s list price

% off

manufacturer’s list price

* |labor and installation fees

* Stair carry fees

distribution

YES

NO

warehouse)

* shipping costs (if over 100 miles from

* Unforeseen Conditions storage per 36.0

* Required information — even if the answer is Zero (0), bidder must fill out all lines marked with an asterisk

IF VENDOR CARRIES MORE LINES, PLEASE INDICATE MANUFACTURER NAME AND
PERCENTAGE OFF THEIR PRODUCT AND ATTACH TO BID FORM.

COMPANY INFORMATION

Company Name:

Authorized Representative:

Company Address:

(Please type or print)

Telephone Number: (

)

Fax Number ( )

E-mail Address:

Authorized Representative’s Signature:




NON-COLLUSION DECLARATION
(To Be Submitted with Bid)

The undersigned declares:

| am the of , the party making the foregoing bid.

The Bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership,
company, association, organization or corporation. The Bid is genuine and not collusive or sham. The
VENDOR has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other VENDOR to put in a false or sham bid.
The VENDOR has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived or agreed with any VENDOR or
anyone else to put in a sham bid, or to refrain from bidding. The VENDOR has not in any manner, directly
or indirectly, sought by agreement, communication or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the
VENDOR or any other VENDOR, or to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the bid price, or of that of
any other VENDOR. All statements contained in the bid are true. The VENDOR has not, directly or
indirectly, submitted his or her bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divuiged
information or data relative thereto, to any corporation, partnership, company, association, organization,
bid depository, or to any member or agent thereof, to effectuate a collusive or sham bid, and has not paid,
and will not pay, any person or entity for such purpose.

Any person executing this declaration on behalf of a VENDOR that is a corporation, partnership,
joint venture, limited liability company, limited liability partnership, or any other entity, hereby represents
that he or she has full power to execute, and does execute, this declaration on behalf of the VENDOR.

| declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
is true and correct and that this declaration is executed on:

, at ; . (date)
(city) (state)




WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CERTIFICATION
(To Be Submitted with Bid)

Labor Code Section 3700:

Every employer except the State shall secure the payment of compensation in one or more of the following
ways:

(a) By being insured against liability to pay compensation in one or more insurers duly authorized to
write compensation insurance in the State.

(b) By securing from the Director of Industrial Relations a certificate of consent to self-insure, which
may be given upon furnishing proof satisfactory to the Director of Industrial Relations of ability to
self-insure and to pay any compensation that may become due to his employees.

| am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every employer to be insured
against liability for worker’s compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions
of that code, and 1 will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this
contract.

Date: VENDOR

By:

Signature

(In accordance with Article 5 (commencing at Section 1860), Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 of the Labor
code, the above certificate must be signed and filed with the awarding body prior to performing any work
under this contract.)



CERTIFICATE REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE
(To Be Submitted with Bid)

This Drug-Free Workplace Certification form is required from all successful VENDORs pursuant to the
requirements mandated by Government Code Section 8350 et seq., the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990
requires that every person or organization awarded a contract or grant for the procurement of any property
or service from any State agency must certify that it will provide a drug-free workplace by doing certain
specified acts. In addition, the Act provides that each contract or grant awarded by a State agency may
be subject to suspension of payments or termination of the contract or grant, and the contractor or grantee
may be subject to debarment from future contracting, if the contracting agency determines that specified
acts have occurred.

Pursuant to Government Code Section 8355, every person or organization awarded a contract or grant
from a State agency shall certify that it will provide a drug-free workplace by doing all of the following:

a) publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the person’'s or
organization’s workplace and specifying actions which will be taken against employees for
violations of the prohibition;

b) establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about all of the following

I) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

2) the person’s or organization’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

3) the availability of drug counseling, rehabilitation and employee-assistance programs;
4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.

c) requiring that each employee engaged in the performance of the contract or grant be given a copy
of the statement required by subdivision (1) and that, as a condition of employment on the contract
or grant, the employee agrees to abide by the terms of the statement.

I, the undersigned, agree to fulfill the terms and requirements of Government Code Section 8355 listed
above and will publish a statement notifying employees concerning (a) the prohibition of controlled
substances at the workplace, (b) establishing a drug-free awareness program, and (c) requiring that each
employee engaged in the performance of the contract be given a copy of the statement required by Section
8355(a) and requiring that the employee agrees to abide by the terms of that statement.

| also understand that if the SUPERINTENDENT determines that | have either (a) made a faise certification
herein, or (b) violated this certification by failing to carry out the requirements of Section 8355, that the
contract awarded herein is subject to termination, suspension of payments, or both. | further understand
that, should | violate the terms of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990, | may be subject to debarment in
accordance with the requirements of Section 8350 et. seq.

| acknowledge that | am aware of the provisions of Government Code Section 8350 et. seq., and hereby
certify that | will adhere to the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990.

Date:

Signature, Vendor



PERFORMANCE BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That WHEREAS, the San Bernardino County SUPERINTENDENT of Schools identified
as "SUPERINTENDENT", has given to, hereinafter designated as the "Principal®, a
Notice of Intentto Award Contract for the work described as follows:

FURNITURE: SYSTEMS AND STAND ALONE
BID NO. 23/24-0005

WHEREAS, said Principal is required under the terms of said Notice to furnish a Bond for the faithful performance of such Notice.

NOW THEREFORE, we, the Principal and as Surety, an admitted Surety insurer pursuant to
Code of Civil Procedure, Section 995.120, legally doing business in California at , are
held and

firmy bound wunto the SUPERINTENDENT, inthe sum of DOLLARS

(S ), lawful money of the United States of America, for the payment of which sum weliand truly to be
made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if the above bound Principal, his or its heirs, executors, administrators,
successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by and will and truly keep and perform, the covenants, conditions and
agreements as defined in the said contract and any alteration thereof made as therein provided, on his or their part, to be kept and
performed at the times and in the manner therein specified, and in all respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shail
indemnify and save harmiess the SUPERINTENDENT, its officers and agents, as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall become
null and void, otherwise, it shall be and remain in full force and virtue.

As a condition precedent to the satisfactory completion of the Contract, the above obligation shall hold good for a period of one (1)
year after the acceptance of the Work by SUPERINTENDENT, during which time if Principal shall fail to make full, complete, and
satisfactory repair and replacements and totally protect the SUPERINTENDENT from loss or damage made evident during the period
of one (1) year from the date of acceptance of the Work, and resulting from or caused by defective materials or faulty workmanship, the
above obligation in penal sum thereof shall remain in full force and effect. However, nothing in this paragraph shall limit the obligation
of the surety and the obligation of the Surety shall continue so long as any obligation of Principal remains.

And the said surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the
terms of the Contract or to the work to be performed thereunder, or the specifications accompanying the same, shall in any way
affect its obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the
terms of the Contract, or to the work, or to the Specifications.

In the event suit is brought upon this bond by the SUPERINTENDENT and judgment is recovered, the Surety shall pay all costs
incurred by the SUPERINTENDENT in such suit, including a reasonable attorneys’ fee to be fixed by the court.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the Principal and Surety above named, on the day
of , 2020.
(Corporate Seal) PRINCIPAL,

BY

TYPED/PRINTEDNAME

(Corporate Seal)
TITLE

SURETY

BY

(Attach Attorney-in Fact Certificate)
TYPED/PRINTEDNAME

TITLE




SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION REGARDING BACKGROUND CHECKS

certifies that it has performed one of the following:

(Name of Contractor)

] Pursuant to Education Code Section 45125.1, Contractor has conducted criminal
background checks, through the California Department of Justice, of all employees
providing services to the San Bemardino County Superintendent of Schools, pursuant to

the confract/purchase order dated . and that nome have been
convicted of serious or violent felonies, as specified i Penal Code Sections 1192.7(c) and
667.5(c) respectively.

As further required by Education Code Section 45125.1, attached hereto as
Aftachment “A™ is a list of the names of the employees of the undersigned who may come
in contact with pupil!s.

OR

O Pursuant to Education Code Section 45125.2, Contractor will ensure the safety of pupils by
one or more of the following methods:

0 1) The instaliation of a physical barrier at the worksite to limit contact with puptls.

O 2) Continual supervision and monitoring of all employees of the entity by an employee
of the entity whom the Department of Justice has ascertained has not been
convicted of a violent or serious felony.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States that foregoing is irue and
comect.

Date

Name of Confractor

Signature



Q1.

Q2.

Q3.

Q4.

Q5.

Attachment A

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

Section 6.3 states that the “Awarded vendor shall deliver and install all office furniture, classroom furniture,
accessories, and sundries at no charge to the superintendent.” There is also a line for “Labor and Installation fees”
on the Signature Page/Bid From. Can you please clarify the purpose of the “Labor and installation fees"?

SUPERINTENDENT may opt to purchase additional items from VENDOR that are not included in the awarded
group of manufacturer's products.

Also, Section 6.3 states “Bid prices are to include shipping, F.O.B. San Bernardino County Superintendent of
Schools, except when District's shipping destination is a radius of 100 or more miles from Bidder's distributing
warehouse. Awarded VENDOR shall deliver and install all office furniture, classroom furniture, accessories, and
sundries at no charge to the SUPERINTENDENT. Any additional installation charges (i.e.., stair carry, wall
attachment, in-ground bench placement) must be disclosed in writing and approved at the time of purchase. No
additional delivery or installation charges will be paid for by the SUPERINTENDENT.”

Please notate on the bid form if there are any conditions where VENDOR may charge “Labor and Installation
Fees”, and what those fees might entail (hourly rate, flat fee based on thresholds of dollar amount purchased, etc.).

Section 34 states that when prevailing wage is required, a separate quote for the prevailing wage labor will be
provided by the vendor at that time.

= Does this mean prevailing wage labor is considered separate from the “labor and installation fees”
line on the Bid Signature Page?

= Will vendors be allowed to provide a quote for prevailing wage labor for each separate prevailing
wage job at the time of the order? If so, should we note on the Signature Page/Bid Form that all
prevailing wage labor will be quoted and provided to the purchaser at the time of purchase?

The “labor and installation fees” line on the Bid Signature Page refers to any additional labor charges for delivery
as described in Question 1.

SUPERINTENDENT may purchase modular or cubicle furniture that would fall under prevailing wage labor
requirements described in labor code sections 1773 or SB 854. In this circumstance, a quote will be
requested of the VENDOR for prevailing wage labor, as described in Section 34.0 PREVAILING
WAGES. It is not necessary to note on the Signature Page/Bid Form that prevailing wage labor will be
quoted/provided at time of purchase.

Will a Vendor's answer to Section 36: Unforeseen Conditions Storage impact whether or not the manufacturer/bid

is awarded to the vendor?

No

Please confirm if this is only a catalog bid or a catalog and line item bid.

This is only a catalog bid, with costs based on a percentage off current catalog pricing.

Is a Manufacture able to submit a proposal and assign Authorized Resellers that would be able to Receive, Deliver
and Invoice Purchase orders on our behalf? Currently we have several of our Resellers working with the San
Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools and would like them all to be able to continue to offer their services.

This bid is for authorized VENDORS to provide pricing based on a percentage of the manufacturer’s list or catalog
price. We would ask your resellers to provide a response to Bid 23/24-0005.



San Bernardino

: i,CounTy
* Superiniendent of
~*Schools

FURNITURE: SYSTEMS AND STAND ALONE
BID# 23/24-0005

ADDENDUM #1
June 14, 2023

The San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools (SUPERINTENDENT) has received the following questions
regarding Furniture: Systems and Stand Alone bid. The questions and answers are as follows:

Question 1.

Question 2.

Question 3.

Question 4.

Question 5.

Question 6.

Question 7.

Per Section 6.3; is all product drop shipping direct to SBCSS warehouse? Or should it be shipped to the
dealer warehouse and then delivered and installed at SBCSS?

Answer: Product should be delivered to dealer warehouse and then delivered and installed at SBCSS sites
unless otherwise noted when purchased.

Are we able to charge Technical Specification fees? This would apply when field measurements, space
planning, renderings and finish selections are involved.

Answer: These types of Technical Specification fees/charges would not be included as part of this bid and
would be at the discretion of the vendor. Additional installation charges (i.e., stair carry, wall
attachment, in-ground bench placement) must be disclosed in writing and approved at the time of
the purchase. No additional delivery or installation charges will be paid for by the
SUPERINTENDENT.

Per the Performance Bond form, the form is requesting a dollar amount to be listed; however, our bid
proposal is a percentage discount rather than a lump sum. What is required to be listed in dollar amount on
this form?

Answer: A Performance Bond is not required at the time of bid. Once awarded, a Performance Bond may
be required to be maintained during the life of the contract at a level determined by the
SUPERINTENDENT. The form furnished in the bid documents is for your future reference.

Is fingerprinting required in order to bid?

Answer: Fingerprinting is not required at the time of bid. Fingerprinting will be required once awarded and
if the vendor or its employees may come into contact with students at any site while delivering and

installing product.

Do we need to publish? Where? San Bernardino Sun? For how long? What does the Proof of pubtication
have to include (see first page of the bid form)?

Answer: There is no need to for the vendor to publish anything in relation to this Bid or award of contract.
The dates listing on the bottom of the Notice Calling for Bids is to notify potential bidders the
SUPERINTENDENT's schedule for the bidding process.

Are there any meetings we need to attend?

Answer. There are no meetings required in order to submit a bid.

Is the application filled out in Blue or Black ink?

Answer: The bid forms can be submitted using blue or black ink but forms must contain original signatures.



Question 8. Is the attached bond the Performance bond that you need?

Answer: Once awarded, a Performance Bond may be required to be maintained during the life of the
contract at a level determined by the SUPERINTENDENT. The form furnished is for your future
reference.

Question 9. Is a Performance Bond necessary for Bid No. 23/24-00057

Answer: A Performance Bond is not required at the time of bid. Once awarded, a Performance Bond may
be required to be maintained during the life of the contract at a level determined by the
SUPERINTENDENT. The form furnished is for your future reference.

Question 10. Per page 4, paragraph 6.1: “Prices shall remain firm for the entire term of the contract.” Since this bid is a
percentage discount off of manufacturers’ current catalog/price list pricing, will SBCSS accept updated
manufacturer price lists during the 15t year of the contract and throughout the 2 renewal terms, if the
percentage discounts remain firm?

Answer: Yes, since this is a bid is a percentage discount off the manufacturers’ current catalog, updated
manufacturer price lists are accepted as long as the percentage discount remains in effect.

Question 11. As a Furniture Manufacturer we work through multiple dealers. Can multiple dealers represent the
manufacturer on this bid? Or will only one vendor be awarded a manufacturers line?

Answer: Yes, multiple dealers can represent the manufacturer on this bid.
Question 12. Is it necessary to bid in order for SBCSS to do business with a vendor?

Answer: Although submitting a bid to SBCSS is not required for the SUPERINTENDENT to do business
with a particular vendor, purchases made through a vendor that is not awarded the bid, would be
limited to the annual bid limit, and purchases cannot exceed the bid limit amount in a fiscal year
(July 1 — June 30). The bid limit is set in Public Contract Code (PPC) Section 20111(a) and
adjusted annually by the State Superintendent of Public Instruction. As of January 1, 2023, the
current bid limit is $109,300.00.



o San Bernardino County
Superintendent of Schools County Supérintendent

Transforming lives through education

June 27, 2023

CN School & Office Solutions, Inc.
ATIN: Devyn Goss

500 E. Rincon St.,

Suite 100

Corona, CA 92879

NOTICE OF AWARD
BID 23/24-0005
FURNITURE: SYSTEM AND STAND ALONE

Dear Devyn Goss

Thank you for your participation in the San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools
bid process. CN School & Office Solutions, Inc. is one of the successful bidders for
BID#23/24-0005 Furniture: Systems and Stand Alone and is hereby awarded on July 1,
2023, and will expire on June 30, 2024 and may be extended for up to two (2} additional
one-year renewal by mutual written consent of both parties.

A purchase order will be issued as needed for purchases throughout the term of the
agreement.

Please sign below for acceptance of the term as well as complete and sign Attachment

A. A fully executed contract will be returned to you for your records upon acceptance
of both parties.

~
M s 2l23 Devyp Poaa /2712023

Signature "/ Date Sighatye ¢/ Date
VICE PRESIDENT
Title
Kevin Garcia, Program Manager Devyn Goss
Procurement & Warehouse Services CN School & Office Solutions, Inc.

Business Services ¢ Richard De Nava, Chief Business Officer

Business Support Services * Katie M. Hylton, Director
760 East Brier Drive * San Bernardino, CA 92408 ¢ P: 909.386.9649 » F: 909.386.9507 » www.sbcss.net



Attachment A

Education Department of General Administration Regulation (EDGAR)

Federal Funding Contract Compliance Form

The following provisions are required and apply when federal funds are expended by San Bernardino County Superintendent
of Schools for any contract resulting from this procurement process. San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools is the
sub grantee or sub recipient by definition.

In addition to other provisions required by the federal agency or non-Federal entity, all contracts made by the non-Federal
entity under the Federal award must contain provisions covering the following, as applicable.

BREACH OF CONTRACT BY EITHER PARTIES

(A} Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at $250,000 which is the inflation adjusted amount
determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council {Councils) as authorized
by 41 U.S.C. 1908, must address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach
contract terms, and provide such sanctions and penaltles as appropriate.

Pursuant to Federal Rules (A} above, when federal funds are expended by San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools, the
Superintendent reserves all rights and privileges under the applicable laws and regulations with respect to this procurement in
the event of breach of contract by either party.

DG

Does vendor agree? YES Initials of Authorized Representative of Vendor

TERMINATION FOR CAUSE OR FOR CONVENIENCE

(B) Termination for cause or for convenience by the grantee or sub grantee including the manner by which it will be affected and
the basis for settlement. (All contracts in excess of $10,000)

Pursuant to Federal Rules (B) above, when federal funds are expended by San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools, the
Superintendent reserves all rights to immediately terminate any agreement in excess of $10,000 resulting from this procurement
process In the event of a breach or default of the agreement by Vendor, in the event vendors fails to: (1) meet schedules,
deadlines, and/or delivery dates within the time specified in the procurement solicitation, contract, and/or a purchase order; {2)
make any payments owed; or (3) otherwise perform in accordance with the contract and/or the procurement solicitation. San
Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools also reserves the right to terminate the contract immediately, with written notice
to vendor, for convenience, if San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools believes, in its sole discretion that it is in the
best interest of San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools to do so. The vendor will be compensated for work performed
and accepted and goods accepted by San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools as of the termination date if the contract
is terminated for convenience of San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools. Any award under this procurement process
is not exclusive and San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools reserves the right to purchase goods and services from
other vendors when it is in the best interest San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools.

DG

Does vendor agree? YES Initials of Authorized Representative of Vendor



RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT AGREEMENT

(C) Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract Agreement. If the Federal award meets the definition of “funding agreement”
under 37 CFR §401.2(a) and the recipient or sub recipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit
organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research
work under that “funding agreement, “; the recipient or sub recipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401,
“Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and
Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

Pursuant to Federal Rule (C) above, when federal funds are expended by San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools, the
vendor certifies that during the term of an award for all contracts by San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools resulting
from this procurement process, the vendor agrees to comply with all applicable requirements as referenced in Federal Rule (C)
above.

DG

Does vendor agree? YES Initials of Authorized Representative of Vendor

CLEAN AIR ACT (42 U.5.C.7401-7671q.)

(D) Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), as amended -
Contracts and sub grants of amounts in excess of $250,000 must contain a provision that requires the non-Federal award to
agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act {42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q)
and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal
awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency {EPA).

Pursuant to Federal Rule (D) above, when federal funds are expended by San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools, the
vendor certifies that during the term of an award for all contracts by San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools resulting
from this procurement process, the vendor agrees to comply with all applicable requirements as referenced in Federal Rule {D)
above.

Does vendor agree? YES 0G Initials of Authorized Representative of Vendor

DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

(E) Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689) - A contract award (see 2 CFR 180.220) must not be made to
parties listed on the government wide exclusions in the system for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB
guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989
Comp., p.235), “Debarment and Suspension”. SAM exclusions contain the names of parties debarred, suspended or otherwise
excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order
12549.



Pursuant to Federal Rule (E) above, when federal funds are expended by San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools, the
vendor certifies that during the term of an award for all contracts by San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools resulting
from this procurement process, the vendor certifies that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed
for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation by any federal department oragency.

Does vendor agree? YES DG Initials of Authorized Representative of Vendor

BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT (31 U.S.C. 1352)

(F) Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352) - Contractors that apply or bid for an award exceeding $100,000 must file
the required certification. Each tier certified to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to
pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal
contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds
that take place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the non-
Federal award.

Pursuant to Federal Rule (F) above, when federal funds are expended by San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools, the
vendor certifies that during the term and after the awarded term of an award for all contracts by San Bernardino County
Superintendent of Schools resulting from this procurement process, the vendor certifies that it is in compliance with all applicable
provisions of the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352). The undersigned further certifies that:

a. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid for on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of a Federal contract, the making of a Federal grant, the
making of a Federal loan, the entering into a cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

b. if any funds other than Federat appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with this Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit
Stand Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying”, in accordance with its instructions.

¢.  The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all covered sub-
awards exceeding $100,000 in Federal funds to all appropriate tiers and that all sub recipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly.

DG

Does vendor agree? YES Initials of Authorized Representative of Vendor

RECORD RETENTION REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTS PAID FOR
WITH FEDERAL FUNDS -2 CFR § 200.333

When federal funds are expended by San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools for any contract resulting from this
procurement process, the vendor certifies that it will comply with the record retention requirements detailed in 2 CFR § 200.333.
The vendor further certifies that vendor will retain all records as required by 2 CFR § 200.333 for a period of three years after



grantees or sub grantees submit final expenditure reports or quarterly or annual financial reports, as applicable, and all other
pending matters are closed.

DG

Does vendor agree? YES Initials of Authorized Representative of Vendor

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE ENERGY POLICY AND
CONSERVATION ACT

When federal funds are expended by San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools for any contract resulting from this
procurement process, the vendor certifies that it will be in compliance with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy
efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation
Act (42 U.S.C. 6321, et seq.; 49 C.F.R. Part 18; Pub. L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871).

DG

Does vendor agree? YES Initials of Authorized Representative of Vendor

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH BUY AMERICA PROVISIONS

Vendor certifies that vendor is in compliance with all applicable provisions of the Buy America Act. Purchases made in accordance
with the Buy America Act must still follow the applicable procurement rules calling for free and open competition.

Does vendor agree? YES DG Initials of Authorized Representative of Vendor

CERTIFICATION OF NON-COLLUSION STATEMENT

Vendor certifies under penalty of perjury that its response to this procurement solicitation is in all respects bona fide, fair, and
made without collusion or fraud with any person, joint venture, partnership, corporation or other business or legal entity.

Does vendor agree? YES DG Initials of Authorized Representative of Vendor

Vendor agrees to comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances, as applicable. It is further
acknowledged that vendor certifies compliance with all provisions, laws, acts, regulations, etc. as specifically noted above.

Company Name: CN SCHOOL OFFICE SOLUTIONS INC

Address: J00 E. RINCON ST. SUITE #100

City: CORONA _ State: CA Zip: 92819

Phone Number: 949-597-0123 Fax #:

Email Address; DEVYN@CULVER-NEWLIN.COM

Printed Name of Authorized Representative: DEVYN GOSS

Signature of Authorized Representative: @?& gad.df Date: 06/27/2023



SIGNATURE PAGE/BID FORM
(Please type or print)

The undersigned having carefully examined the Notice Calling for Bids, the Specifications, and all
contract documents for the proposed furniture: new or refurbished, systems, stand-alone and classroom

furniture bid the following:

ADDENDA: The undersigned has thoroughly examined any and all Addenda issued during the bid period
and is thoroughly familiar with all contents thereof and acknowledges receipt of the following Addenda:

(VENDOR to list all addenda).

Addendum No. \ Date Received lp_" tlﬂ ‘ _bq Addendum No. Date Received
Addendum No. Date Received Addendum No. Date Received

BID AMOUNT: Please provude percentage discount.and name of manufacturer below.

&l
? "% off 0" Wm manufacturer's list price

% off manufacturer’s list price
% off manufacturer’s list price
% off manufacturer’s list price
% off manufacturer’s list price
% off manufacturer’s list price

_9" * labor and installation feesiﬁdud[d n ?(\b()
—£F * Stair carry fees “‘().\Jd(d N\ ?(\L&
m ()L}UJFC’/" shipping costs (if over 100 miles from

warehouse)

distribution

YES NO * Unforeseen Conditions storage per 36.0

* Required information — even if the answer is Zero (0), bidder must fill out all lines marked with an asterisk

IF VENDOR CARRIES MORE LINES, PLEASE INDICATE MANUFACTURER NAME AND
PERCENTAGE OFF THEIR PRODUCT AND ATTACH TO BID FORM.

COMPANY INFORMATION

Company Name: CN School & Office Solutions Inc.
Authorized Representative: Devyn Goss
(Please type or print)

Company Address: __500 E Rincon St., Suite 100

Telephone Number: Q49 597-0123 Fax Number (__ ) N/A

E-mail Address: Dewn@culver-newhngom /\

7 \l \ \: //
AN i
Authorized Representative's Signature: ' —

\y




$s3J21440

IDIY1SIAQ 3HL O1 A1LD341a NO SSvd THM IM HIIHM
‘ANNODSIA ¥3d33Q V O3 AINYND AV SYIAHO ALILNYND 39V :3LON 35¥I1d

§$T00HIIS

¥y04

38N LINYNI

NITMIN-Id3IATND

%S¢
%S
%0S'T
%0
%S
%0E
%SE
%S¢T
%ST
%0€
%0
%St
%ST
%St
%01
%0E
%0S
%0¢
%S¢
%0E
%S+ ISy
%0t
%0t
%0t
%0€E
%ST
%0t
%SE
%S¢
%S¢
%S
%SE
%87
%0t
%0Z
%S+ 15!
%ST
%ST
%ST
%0V
%0S
1511 30 adejuadrsagd

SUHIOM

5049 ASUNYM
Jouadng / 1203gap
4dUag UISuoIsim
SA

wefua)

o0dAe)

walsAs yws
01§

034e5

3jauy 1yBjy
|ensiA wnuneld
uo)|nueH Jawjed
SdN
SHIOM-OZNIN
033100\
NIURAB
diody3n

0153

ISt

yennuor
S|easuewny
HdH

UoH

YsilH

ysd
3100wWo4

Bupyaiy
yaayoiny
aJ00u3j

adi3
payisiang
adpue))
poompa)
430

spiy ¢ s1adie)
adedsizzng
xadouy
eipeasy
juwn|y

S016
Jainpenuey



NON-COLLUSION DECLARATION
(To Be Submitted with Bid)

The undersigned declares:
CN School &

lamthe__President of  Office Solutions , the party making the foregoing bid.

The Bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership,
company, association, organization or corporation. The Bid is genuine and not collusive or sham. The
VENDOR has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other VENDOR to put in a false or sham bid.
The VENDOR has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived or agreed with any VENDOR or
anyone else to put in a sham bid, or to refrain from bidding. The VENDOR has not in any manner, directly
or indirectly, sought by agreement, communication or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the
VENDOR or any other VENDOR, or to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the bid price, or of that of
any other VENDOR. All statements contained in the bid are true. The VENDOR has not, directly or
indirectly, submitted his or her bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divuiged
information or data relative thereto, to any corporation, partnership, company, association, organization,
bid depository, or to any member or agent thereof, to effectuate a collusive or sham bid, and has not paid,
and will not pay, any person or entity for such purpose.

Any person executing this declaration on behalf of a VENDOR that is a corporation, partnership,
joint venture, limited liability company, limited liability partnership, or any other entity, hereby represents
that he or she has full power to execute, and does execute, this declaration on behalf of the VENDOR.

| declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
is true and correct and that this declaration is executed on:

June 19, 2023, at Corona _CA . (date)
(city) (state)




WORKERS' COMPENSATION CERTIFICATION
(To Be Submitted with Bid)

Labor Code Section 3700:

Every employer except the State shall secure the payment of compensation in one or more of the following
ways:

(a) By being insured against liability to pay compensation in one or more insurers duly authorized to
write compensation insurance in the State.

(b) By securing from the Director of Industrial Relations a certificate of consent to self-insure, which
may be given upon furnishing proof satisfactory to the Director of Industrial Relations of ability to
self-insure and to pay any compensation that may become due to his employees.

I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Cade which require every employer to be insured
against liability for worker's compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions
of that code, and | will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this
contract.

Date:___June 19, 2023 VENDOR

By: _ Heather Bushem i m,— -
Signature = ~— \—J

(In accordance with Article 5 (commencing at Section 1860), Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 of the Labor
code, the above certificate must be signed and filed with the awarding body prior to performing any work
under this contract.)




CERTIFICATE REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE
(To Be Submitted with Bid)

This Drug-Free Workplace Certification form is required from all successful VENDORs pursuant to the
requirements mandated by Government Code Section 8350 et seq., the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990
requires that every person or organization awarded a contract or grant for the procurement of any property
or service from any State agency must certify that it will provide a drug-free workplace by doing certain
specified acts. In addition, the Act provides that each contract or grant awarded by a State agency may
be subject to suspension of payments or termination of the contract or grant, and the contractor or grantee
may be subject to debarment from future contracting, if the contracting agency determines that specified
acts have occurred.

Pursuant to Government Code Section 8355, every person or organization awarded a contract or grant
from a State agency shall certify that it will provide a drug-free workplace by doing all of the following:

a) publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the person’s or
organization’s workplace and specifying actions which will be taken against employees for
violations of the prohibition;

b) establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about all of the following

1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

2) the person’s or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

3) the availability of drug counseling, rehabilitation and employee-assistance programs;
4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.

c) requiring that each employee engaged in the performance of the contract or grant be given a copy
of the statement required by subdivision (1) and that, as a condition of employment on the contract
or grant, the employee agrees to abide by the terms of the statement.

I, the undersigned, agree to fulfill the terms and requirements of Government Code Section 8355 listed
above and will publish a statement notifying employees concerning (a) the prohibition of controlled
substances at the workplace, (b) establishing a drug-free awareness program, and (c) requiring that each
employee engaged in the performance of the contract be given a copy of the statement required by Section
8355(a) and requiring that the employee agrees to abide by the terms of that statement.

| also understand that if the SUPERINTENDENT determines that | have either (a) made a false certification
herein, or (b) violated this certification by failing to carry out the requirements of Section 8355, that the
contract awarded herein is subject to termination, suspension of payments, or both. | further understand
that, should | violate the terms of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990, | may be subject to debament in
accordance with the requirements of Section 8350 et. seq.

I acknowledge that | am aware of the provisions of Government Code Section 8350 et. seq., and hereby
certify that | will adhere to the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990.

~___June 19th, 2023




PERFORMANCE BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That WHEREAS, the San Bemardino County SUPERINTENDENT of Schools identified
as “SUPERINTENDENT", has given to hereinafter designated as the "Principal’, a
Notice of Intentto Award Contract for the work described as follows:

FURNITURE: SYSTEMS AND STAND ALONE
BID NO. 23/24-0005

WHEREAS, said Principal is required under the terms of said Notice to furnish a Bond for the faithful performance of such Notice.

NOW THEREFORE, we, the Principal and as Surety, an admitted Surety insurer pursuant to
Code of Civll Procedure, Section 995.120, legally doing business in California at \ are
held and

firmly  bound wunto the SUPERINTENDENT, Inthe sum of DOLLARS

(% ), lawful money of the United States of America, for the payment of which sum welland truly to be
made, we bind ourselves, our helrs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if the above bound Principal, his or its heirs, executors, administrators,
successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by and will and truly keep and perform, the covenants, conditions and
agreements as defined in the said contract and any alteration thereof made as therein provided, on his or their part, to be kept and
performed at the times and in the manner therein specified, and In all respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shall
indemnify and save harmless the SUPERINTENDENT, its officers and agents, as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall become
null and void, otherwise, it shall be and remain in full force and virtue.

As a condition precedent to the satisfactory completion of the Contract, the above obligation shall hold goad for a period of one (1)
year after the acceptance of the Work by SUPERINTENDENT, during which time if Principal shall fail to make full, complete, and
satisfactory repair and replacements and totally protect the SUPERINTENDENT from loss or damage made evident during the period
of one (1) year from the date of acceptance of the Work, and resulting from or caused by defective materials or faulty workmanship, the
above obligation in penal sum thereof shalf remain in full force and effect. However, nothing in this paragraph shall limit the obligation
of the surety and the obligation of the Surety shall continue so long as any obligation of Principal remains.

And the said surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the
terms of the Contract or to the work to be performed thereunder, or the speclfications accompanying the same, shall in any way
affect its obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the
terms of the Contract, or to the work, or to the Specifications.

In the event suit is brought upon this bond by the SUPERINTENDENT and judgment is recovered, the Surety shall pay all costs
incurred by the SUPERINTENDENT in such suit, including a reasonable attomeys' fee to be fixed by the court.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the Principal and Surety above named, on the day

o , 2020.
(Corporate Seal) PRINCIPAL

BY.

TYPED/PRINTEDNAME
(Corporate Seal)

TITLE

SURETY,

BY

(AttachAttomey-in Fact Certificate)
TYPED/PRINTED NAME,

TITLE




SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION REGARDING BACKGROUND CHECKS

CN School & Office Solutions Inc_certifies that it has performed one of the following:

(Name of Contractor)

Pursuant to Education Code Section 45125.1, Coniractor has conducted criminal
background checks, through the California Department of Justice, of all employees
providing services to the San Bemardino County Superintendent of Schools, pursuant to
the contract/purchase order dated . and fhat nome have been
convicted of serious or violent felonies, as specified in Penal Code Sections 1192.7(c) and

667.5(c) respectively.

As further required by Education Code Section 45125.1, attached hereto as
Attachment “A” is a list of the names of the employees of the undersigned who may come
in contact with pupx$

OR

Pursuant to Education Code Section 45125.2. Contractor will ensure the safety of pupils by
one or more of the following methods:

O 1) The installation of a physical barrier at the worksite to limit contact with pupils.

O 2) Continual supervision and monitoring of all employees of the entity by an employee

of the entity whom the Department of Justice has ascertained has not been
convicted of a vialent or serious felony.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States that foregoing is true and
correct.

Date June 19, 2023 CN School & Office Solutions Inc.

Name of

Signature



CULVER-NEWLIN

FURNITURE FOR SCHOOLS & OFFICES

CN School & Office Solutions is an authorized agency of the Department of Justice. All
employees are put through a Live Scan finger printing process as part of general employment
with the company.

Below is a list of CN employees:

Keith Hutcheson
Devyn Goss
Heather Bushem
Clarence Amaral
Kim Amaral
Kristopher Amaral
Brandon Bernal Moran
Yohana Bustillos
Tara Carlson
Daniel Cervantes
Gustavo Del Cid
Luke Diller

Onel Flores Garcia
Salvador Garay
Maria Garcia

Zoila Garcia
Baltazar Gonzales
Kelsey Laraba
Vincent Lopez
Jennifer Lorenzo
Rosa Delgado



N CULVER-NEWLIN

FURNITURE

CONTINUED TO PAGE (2)

CONTINUED...

Narciso Martinez

Calvin McCarty

Christian Miranda

Leonardo Miranda

Ismael Morales

Dana Spicer

Alfie Reodica

Pablo Rodriguez Ovieda
Jonathan Santiago

Abraham Natanael Santos Barragan
Damien Santos

Kimberly Smith

Sandra Kathleen Stemwedel
Devi Susanto

Chad Toth

Sandra Urias

Enrique Valencia

William Wells

Joshua Wheeler

Tyler White

F

0

SCHOOLS

&

O FFICES



Wednesday, June 7, 2023

RE: San Bernadino Schools Bid No. 23/24-005
To Whom It May Concern:

9to5 Seating is a vertically integrated manufacturer specializing in the design and production of
ergonomic office seating to accommodate the rigorous demands of today’s office environments. While
9to5 Seating has many years of experience manufacturing, we truly differentiate ourselves from our
competitors by using vertical integration within our own manufacturing facilities. We are proud to be a
United States based manufacturer with a facility in Hawthorne, CA.

Please accept this correspondence as confirmation that the following furniture dealer is an authorized
servicing dealer approved to represent, specify, quote, sell and service 9toS Seating’s products, and is in
good standing with 9to5 Seating:

Culver-Newlin
500 E Rincon Street, Suite 100,
Corona, CA 92879

Please feel free to contact me directly if you have any questions or concerns regarding this submission.
9to5 Seating looks forward to serving you through this agreement’s forthcoming term.

Kind regards,

Joni D. Stafford

Contract Specialist

9to5 Seating LLC

Phone: 812-766-3736

Email: Joni.Stafford @9to5Seating.com

PHONE FAX ADDRESS
888.925.SEAT 866925 SEAT 3211 Jack Northrop Ave. Hawthorne, CA 90250 9to5seating.com



Junel, 2023

To whom it may concemn,

In reference to commercial furniture, Systems and Standalone BID NO. 23 / 24 - 0005, our
preferred dealer of choice is Culver-Newlin. They focus entirely on K-12 clients and we have worked
successfully with them on a previous piggyback contract that is similar in nature to this bid. They are
authorized to sell Artopex products in California and they meet all of your bid requirements, including:

-Having a local warehouse and a local showroom

-They employ their own installers and all Culver-Newlin employees are fingerprinted and
background-checked through the DOJ

As of June 1, 2023, they are in good financial standing with Artopex and we do not
anticipate any changes thereof.

Please let me know if you have any further questions.
Thank you,

O Voo

Jeff Ebina
President

15130 Washington Street - Riverside, CA 92506 - (851) 538-5485 - Jeffe@rayandassociatesinc.com



MAVERICK

OFFICE BOLUYIONS | MADE IN YHE U.8.A

June 1, 2023

Culver Newlin
500 E. Rincon St. Suite 100
Corona, Ca. 92879

RE: Letter of Authorization for Culver Newlin
San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools Bid #23/24-0005

To Whom It may concern:

Culver Newlin is a preferred authorized dealer in good financial standing with Maverick Desk
and thereby authorized to market, sell, distribute, warrant, and supply our products.

Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Tony Pacheco
President

MAVERICK

seyiee soiuTines | wass mm rsm s

15100 South Agueroa St. | Gardena, California 80248
M: 310.251.5309 O: 310.438.6134 F:310.438.8135
maverickdesk.com | tpacheco@maverickdesk com

 flins]



June 14, 2023

Culver-Newlin Inc.

520 Rincon St. Suite 100

Corona, CA 92879

Attn: Devyn Goss, Vice President — Sales &
Marketing

RE: Dealer Authorization — San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools Bid — Bid
#23/24-0005 - Furniture Systems and Standalone Furniture

To Whom It May Concern:

This letter is to certify that Culver-Newlin, Inc. is an Authorized Dealer in Good Standing
with Alumni Classroom Furniture Inc. and is, thereby authorized to submit a proposal,
market, sell, distribute, and supply our entire product line for the above referenced
bid/contract.

As an authorized dealer of our products, Culver-Newlin, Inc. is also authorized to
provide installation services, warranty service work and/or maintenance services for
Alumni Classroom Furniture Inc. products.

Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions.

Sincerely,

/7 T

Joseph Campos

Relationship Support Manager
Alumni Classroom Furniture Inc.
Email: contracts@alumnicf.com
Tel: 1-(833)-939-9300 ext. 509

210 Regina St. N., P.O. Box 549, Waterloo, Ontario, Canada, N2J 3B6
Bus. (519) 888 9300 / Fax (519) 888 9395
www.alumnicf.com



900 Park Place
New Albany, IN 417150

Phone  800-457-2424 or 812-948-8400
Fax 800-227-7513

FireKing 2

June 9, 2023

To: San Bernadino County Superintendent of Schools
760 East Brier Drive
San Bernadino, CA 92408

RE: Authorization Letter for Culver-Newlin
Bid No. 23/24-0005 Furniture: Systems and Stand Alone

To Whom It May Concern,

Please be advised that Culver-Newlin, Inc. at 520 E. Rincon St. Corona,
CA is an authorized dealer in good standing with FireKing International,
LLC. Culver-Newlin is authorized to market, sell, distribute, or supply
the brands incorporated under the FireKing price list and product line
for all public sector and private sector bids; including Bid No. 23/24-
0005 Furniture: Systems and Stand-Alone. Please feel free to contact
me directly with any questions.

Sincerely,

Qo0

Darren Tandy | Regional Sales Manager
FireKing | 900 Park Place | New Albany, Indiana 47150
Direct: 812.542.3337 or 800.457.2424 Ext: 3337 | Fax: 800-227-7513 | www.fireking.com




()

N\
™ e

June 16", 2023
RE: San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools Bid No. 23/24-0005
To Whom It May Concern:

This letter is to confirm that Culver-Newlin, Inc., 520 E. Rincon Street, Suite #102, Corona, CA
92879 is an authorized dedler for BuzziSpace Inc.

As our deadler, Culver-Newlin, Inc. is authorized to warrant bids, distribute, market, and install our
full line of products for San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools Bid No. 23/24-0005.

Sincerely,

S,

Genevieve Lemire
Sales Director, North America
BuzziSpace

Genevieve.lemire@buzzi.space
248.787.0303

45 West 21st Street

NY, NY 10010




Carpete for

o ®
| .56t0

When Quality Counts!

June 13, 2023

In reference to: FURNITURE: SYSTEMS AND STAND ALONE BID NO. 23/24-0005

This letter shall serve as confirmation that Culver-Newlin is an authorized dealer of Carpets for
Kids to bid on FURNITURE: SYSTEMS AND STAND ALONE BID NO. 23/24-0005 in San

Bemardino County Superintendent’s Office.

Culver-Newilin is authorized to provide installation service, warranty service work and/or
maintenance service work.

Culver-Newlin is a dealer for our entire product line and not restricted in any way. They have a
great relationship and partnership with Carpets for Kids in selling and servicing our products
and is a dealer in good standing.

Please reach out to me should you need anything further.

Sincerely,

e & Pf e

Kelli McPhee

National Sales Manager
Campets for Kids
248-514-5303

©2021 Carpets for Kids, Etc...,, Inc. 311 B Avenue, Suite O, Lake Oswego, OR 97034  Customer Service (503) 232-1203  carpetsforkids.com



PHONE: 870-743-2200

PRODUCTS AND EQUIPMENT, INCORPORATED (800)434-4610
805 Cottonwood Rd Annex 3 FAX: 870-743-1908
HARRISON, ARKANSAS 72601

E-MAIL: claridge@clarldaeproducts.com

June 19, 2023

Culver-Newlin, Inc
520 E Rincon St.
Corona, CA 92879

Subject: San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools Bid No. 23/24-0005

To whom it may concern,

This letter is sent to confirm that the Company listed below is an authorized dealer in good
standing with Claridge Products & Equipment LLC.

Culver-Newlin, Inc are certified in the installation of Claridge Products and Equipment products
with the authority to preform warranty work as required.

If you need any additional information or if you have questions, please feel free to contact us.

Thank yo

Marcus McNew
President

CLARIDGE PRODUCTS AND EQUIPMENT, INC.







ar@dia ‘ @ Encore

June 12, 2023

Re: San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools
Furniture and Stand Alone, Bid No. 23/24-0005

To Whom It May Concern,

This letter serves as confirmation that as of June 1, 2023, Culver-Newlin is in good financial standing
and an Approved and Authorized Dealer with Arcadia Chair Company.

Culver-Newlin is permitted to purchase, sell, market, and warrant all Products within Arcadia’s &
Encore’s offerings and projects related to Arcadia Chair Company’s product catalogs.

Should you require additional information, don’t hesitate to reach out.

Sincerely,

gafnehrﬁnyeleor

Pamela Angeles
Contract Management Administrator
pam(@arcadiacontract.com

5692 FRESCA DRIVE, LA PALMA, CA 90623 | 800.585.5957 | ARCADIACONTRACT.COM | ENCORESEATING.COM



12th June 2023

Culver Newlin

500 E Rincon St, Ste 100
CORONA CA 92879
USA

To whom it may concem.

Femmasorscom  TTIUZO

In reference to: FURNITURE: SYSTEMS AND STAND ALONE BID NO. 23/24-0005

As of June 12023, Culver-Newlin is in good financial standing with Muzo and is authorized to sell and
service our product. We do not foresee any changes in this business relationship.

Please feel free to contact me directly if you have questions or concerns.

Best Regards
N\

Darren Buttle
CEO

Head Office

360 Kiwanis Bivd
West Hazleton
PA 18202

Tek: -2578

Sales
Interior Designer

Accounts
accounts@m!

General Inquiries

Production & Warehouse Manager
i m
Customer Service

d m WOor

Page 1/1



“DIVERSIFIED )

SPACES”

June 14, 2023

San Bernardino Cty Superintendent of Schools
Bid # 23/24-0005

RE: Letter of Authorization for Culver-Newlin

To Whom It May Concern:

Culver-Newlin is an authorized dealer in good standing for Diversified Spaces and, thereby
authorized to market, sell, distribute, warranty and supply our products on the above
referenced bid/contract for all 50 States.

Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions.

Sincerely,

nk Haaarn

Sarah Hanson
Contract Administration



RT DESIGN

HONS

June 13, 2023

To whom it may concern,

In reference to the furniture, systems and stand-alone Bid #23/24-0005, our preferred dealer of
choice is Culver-Newlin. They focus entirely on K-12 clients and we have worked successfully with
them on previous piggyback contracts that are similar in nature to this bid. They are authorized to
sell Ergonomic Comfort Design, Inc. products in California and they meet all of your bid

requirements.

As of June 13, 2023, they are in good financial standing with Ergonomic Comfort Design, Inc. and
we do not anticipate any changes thereof.

www.ECDergo.com
9140 Stellar Court #B, Corona, CA 92883
P: 1.888.244.8924 | E:info@ecdergo.com



June 15, 2023

RE: Letter of Authorization
San Bernardino County Schools
Bid 23/24 0005

Furniture: Systems & Stand Alone

To Whom It May Concern:

Culver Newlin is an authorized dealer in good standing for Hirsh Industries LLC and, thereby authorized
to market, sell, distribute, warrant and supply our products.

Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions.
Sincerely,

Jennifer Hester

National Sales Manager

Hirsh Industries

hesterj@ hirshindustries.com
(205)767-4930



June 13, 2023

RE: Furniture: Systems and Stand Alone Bid No. 23/24-0005

This letter certifies that as of June 1, 2023, Culver-Newlin is in good financial standing
with The HON Company and is authorized to sell and service our product. We do not
foresee any changes in this business relationship.

For more information about The HON Company, please visit our website at
www.hon.com.

Should you have further questions or need more information, please do not hestitate to

reach out me or our local representative Nik Weigand at 657-307-5767.

Sincerely,

Yo At

Sales Operations Manager
SalesOpsTeam@honcompany.com

The HON Company hon.com



Early Leaming KYDZ Fumiture
For leaming, for a lifetime?

Jonti-Craft, Inc.

171 State Highway 68
PO Box 30

Wabasso, MN 56293

June 13, 2023

RE: FURNITURE: SYSTEMS AND STAND ALONE BID NO. 23/24-0005

To Whom It May Concern:

As of June 1st 2023, Culver-Newlin is in good financial standing with Jonti-Craft and is authorized to sell
and service our product. We do not foresee any changes in this business relationship

Please reach out to me with any questions regarding this authorization.

Sincerely,
nerth Al

Matt Hinkle
National Sales Manager
Jonti-Craft, Inc.

507-342-6010
mhinkle@jonti-craft.com

171 Hwy 68, P.O. Box 30 - Wabasso, MN 56293

p - 507-342:5169

f- 507-342:5617
www.jonli-craft.com



E JSI fove whal, yeu: de-

June 19, 2023

RE: Letter of Authorization for Culver-Newlin in reference to: Furniture: Systems and Stand Alone Bid
No. 23/24-0005

To Whom It May Concern:
Please be advised that as of June 1, 2023, Culver-Newlin is a dealer in good financial standing with our
company, Jasper Seating Company, Inc (dba JSI/Jasper Group) and is authorized and approved as an
authorized dealer to quote, sell, and service JS! product. We do not foresee any changes in this business
relationship.
If you have any questions, or need anything further, please let me know. Thank you.
Sincerely,

. _—
Amanda Keithley
Contract Administrator

CORPORATE OFFICE 800.457.4511 TOLL FREE
225 CLAY STREET % 812.482.3204 OFFICE @ JSIFURNITURE.COM
JASPER, INDIANA 47546 812.482.1548 FAX



Lesro Industries, Inc.

1 Griffin Road South
Bloomfield, Connecticut 06002
Phone: 860.243.3226

Fax: 860.243.5392

www_lesro.com

NLesro

Seating the Way You Want It

June 8, 2023

RE: Letter of Authorization San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools Bid No. 23/24-0005

To Whom It May Concern:

This letter is to confirm that Culver Newlin of Corona, CA is an authorized dealer to market, sell, distribute,
warrant, and supply all products and services offered by Lesro Industries, Inc. on the San Bernardino
County Superintendent of Schools Bid No. 23/24-0005 furniture contract.

If I can be of further assistance, or if you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me
directly.

Sincerely,

AR

Mark Dunton
Technical Marketing Project Coordinator

mark@lesro.com
860-243-3226 ext.7015 (phone) | 860-243-5392 (fax)



-"r W'EI I I ( O I 1770 East Keating Avenue
. Muskegon, Ml 49442
SERVE. CREATE. INSPIRE. 231.366.4791

Jay L. Krause, National Contracts Manager
Tina M. Rader, Contracts Manager

June 13, 2023

San Bernardino City Unified School District
777 North “F” Street
San Bernardino, CA 92410

RE: Letter of Authorization / RFP - Contract #23/24-0005

Culver-Newlin

Dear Procurement Professional:

Please be advised that the aforementioned dealer is in “Good Standing” with our firm. This being the case, |
support their application for the contract listed above, and do hereby grant them permission to add their
company as an authorized agent (to include: sales, service, warranty, installation, etc.) on our behalf.

If you have any questions, or if | can be of further assistance in any other capacity, please do not hesitate to
contact me directly.

Sincerely,

c)ﬁq '

Jay L. Krause

fomcore@ironfurnace.com | 814-342-7000




Corporate HQ & Manufacturing
| 2885 Lorraine Ave. | Temple, TX 76601
P: B00.749.2258 | F. 866.888.7483

Showroom
4930 S. Congress Ave. #305 | Austin, TX 78745
ER P: 800.749.2268

June 13, 2023

RE: Letter of Authorization — Culver Newlin
San Bemadino County Schools - #23/24-0005 Furniture: Systems and Stand Alone

To Whom It May Concern,

Culver Newlin is an authorized reseller and installer, in good standing, on behalf of MooreCo, Inc. They
are authorized to sell, market, distribute, warrant and service our products and we hereby extend our full
warranty to Culver Newlin for all MooreCo, Inc. products they sell on the above referenced contract.
Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any questions or need any additional information.
Sincerely,

Knnstd Fapan

Kenny Fagan

Bid/Contract Manager

kfagan@moorecoinc.com
Direct #: 254.239.7810



800.261.4112

149 Entin Road, Clifton NJ 07014

www.nationalpublicseating.com

June 13, 2023
RE: FURNITURE: SYSTEMS AND STAND ALONE BID NO. 23/24-0005

To Whom it May Concern:

Please be advised that as of June 1st, 2023, Culver-Newlin, a preferred distributor, is in
good financial standing with National Public Seating and is authorized to sell and service
our product. We do not foresee any changes in this business relationship.

As a preferred distributor Culver-Newlin is recommended for industry leading service and
project management.

If | can be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact me directly.

Respectfully,

Leo Dred

National Public Seating
800-261-4112 x 105

National klz
CURGRANDS |s’ubI|( 9 &ugdhOm:I VOSEINE

eating




. . a q |
Flexible Furniture and Design for Flexible Spaces palmerH AMILTON

June 12, 2023

San Bernardino County SUPERINTENDENT of Schools
ATTN: Front Desk Receptionist

760 East Brier Drive

San Bernardino, CA 92408

Re: Bid #23/24-0005 for Furniture Systems and Standalone Furniture

To Whom It May Concern:

This letter is to certify that Culver-Newlin is an Authorized Dealer in Good Standing with
Palmer Hamilton, LLC.

Culver-Newlin is authorized to sell our products through Bid #23/24-0005 for Furniture
Systems and Standalone Furniture.

If you desire additional information, don't hesitate to contact me at 262-274-4903
at any time or visit our website at https://palmerhamilton.com. Thank you for your
interest in our product(s).

Sincerely,

sf—

Ty Maras

Vice President of National Sales, PHDesign, PHabLAB, INVENTORCLOUD
Palmer Hamilton, LLC

TMaras@palmerhamilton.com

o . 143 S. Jackson Street + Elkhom, WI 53121-1911
DGSIgn Toll Free: 800-788-1028 + Local: 262-723-8200 + Fax: 262-723-5180
palmerHAMITONDevign www.palmerhamilton.com



rightangle

RE: San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools Bid No. 23/24-0005

To Whom It May Concern:

This letter is to confirm that Culver-Newlin, Inc., 520 E. Rincon Street, Suite #102, Corona, CA 92879
is an authorized dealer for RightAngle™ Products by K & A Mfg., Inc. As our dealer, Culver-Newlin,
Inc. is authorized to warrant bids, distribute, market and install our full line of products for San
Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools Bid No. 23/24-0005.

Sincerely,

]
S.thAn
"= Beth Knighton
ra Vice President

RightAngle™ Products

Email: bethk@raproducis.com
Phone: 800-298-4351 ext.115

raproducts.com

6703 Zinser Street Schofield, Wl 54476 ¢ Phone: 800.298.4351 « Fax: 866.882.9475 = raproducts.com



SAFCO

June 7, 2023

Re: Bid No. 23/24-0005
To Whom It May Concern:

This letter confirms Culver-Newlin is an authorized SAFCO dealer in good standing. As such, Culver-Newlin
may market, sell, and install SAFCO products.

Please feel free to contact me with questions.

Sincerely,

Steve Fitzgerald

Division Manager

SAFCO Contract Furniture
612-817-8685

TEL FAX
Safco Products Company | 9300 West Research Center Road | Minneapolis, MN 55428 | 888.971.8225 | 763.9711525

AN LDI COMPANY



cef

INNOVATE.CREATE.REPEAT.
CEF-Custom Educational Furnishings

2696 NC Hwy.16S
Taylorsville, NC 28681

San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools
760 East Brier Drive

San Bernardino, CA 92408

Bid # 23/24 0005 Furniture: Systems & Stand Alone

June 14, 2023
Re: Letter of Authorization for Culver Newlin

To whom it may concern,

Please be advised that we hereby provide authorization to market, sell, distribute, warrant, or supply
any product or service offered by CEF (Custom Educational Furnishings) through Culver Newlin.

Sincerely,

Ty
Tracy Jahnke
Regional Sales Manager



SUPERIOR

RECREATIONAL PRODUCTS

To whom it may concern,

In reference to: FURNITURE: SYSTEMS AND STANDALONE BID NO. 23/24-0005

As of June 1#2023, Culver-Newlin is in good financial standing with Superior Recreational
Products and is authorized to sell and service our product. We do not foresee any changes in
this business relationship. They focus entirely on K-12 clients and we have worked successfully
with them on a previous piggyback contract that is similar in nature to this bid. They are
authorized to sell Superior Recreational Products in California and they meet all of your bid
requirements, including;:

-having a local warehouse and a local showroom

-they employ their own installers and all Culver-Newlin employees are fingerprinted and
background-checked through the DOJ

Sincerely,

Jarrod Collins

CSR / Account Manager
918-329-1014
Jarrod.collins@siibrands.com

770.832.6660 o
1.800.327.8774
770.832.6687 f

1050 Columbia
Drive
Caroliton, GA
30117
buysii.com



CETY

dn
A

B
1CC A GLOBAL COMPANY

June 14, 2023

San Bernardino City Unified

777 North F St.

San Bernardino, CA 92410-3017

RE: Letter of Authorization for Culver Newlin for FURNITURE: SYSTEMS AND STAND ALONE
BID NO. 23/24-0005

To Whom It May Concern:

As of June 1, 2023 Culver Newlin is in good financial standing and is an authorized dealer for
SICO America, Inc. and, thereby authorized to market, sell, distribute, warrant and supply our
products in the state of California. We do not foresee any changes in this business relationship.

Please feel free to contact me at 952.941.1700, should you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Hoid; L

Heidi Niesen
Vice President Sales and Marketing
SICO America, Inc.

Global Headquarters | 7525 Cahill Road, Minneapolis MN 55439 | 1.800.328.6138 | www.sicoinc.com | ©SICO® Inc.



9

June 13, 2023 erm—m————

San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools
760 East Brier Drive
San Bernardino CA 92408

RE: Manufacturer Letter of Authorization for Bid # 23/24-0005 Furniture — Systems and Stand Alone

To Whom It May Concern:

Culver-Newlin is an authorized dealer in good standing for Smith System Manufacturing and, thereby
authorized to market, sell, distribute, and supply our entire product line for the above referenced
solicitation/contract. This includes providing installation, service, warranty service work, and/or
maintenance service work for said product.

Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions.

Sincerely,

=

Lorrie Gibbs
Contract Manager

972-398-4067

Smith System’




jam
G

June 9, 2023

San Bernardino City Unified School District
777 North “F” Street

San Bernardino, CA 92410

RE:  Letter of Authorization for Culver-Newlin
Furniture: Systems and Stand Alone Bid No. 23/24-0005

To Whom It May Concern:

Culver-Newlin is an authorized dealer in good standing for Tenjam and, thereby authorized to

market, sell, distribute, warrant and supply our products and services as required on the above
referenced bid and resulting contract.

Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions.
Sincerely, <
Michael Collins

President

Direct: 678-777-0034
Email: mikec@tenjam.com

7790 Hastings Road, Baxter, Minnesota 56425
Made in the US.A. Tenjam.com 1-855-4-TENJAM



VS

VS America, Inc.
1940 Abbott Street
Unit 501

Charlotte, NC 28203

¥5 Amenca, Inc, Chmlote NC 25303

San Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools
601 North E Street
San Bernardino, California 92415
6/15/23

To Whom It May Concern:

In reference to: FURNITURE: SYSTEMS AND STAND ALONE BID NO. 23/24-0005
As of June 1st, 2023, Culver-Newlin is in good financial standing with VS America and
is authorized to sell and service our product. We do not foresee any changes in this
business relationship.

Best Regards,
VS America, Inc.

V4

Mark Harvey v
Chief Financial Officer



@
VWY
WHITNEY BROTHERS

EDUCATIONAL FURNITURE FOR CHILDREN

June 13, 2023

Ms. Devyn Goss, VP Sales & Marketing
Culver-Newlin, Inc.

520 E. Rincon Blvd, Ste 102

Corona, CA 92879

Reference: San Bemnardino County Superintendent of Schools Bid No. 23/24-0005 Furniture: Systems and
Stand Alone

Dear Ms. Goss:

This letter confirms that as of June 1, 2023, Culver-Newlin, Inc. of Corona, CA is in excellent financial standing
with Whitney Brothers® and is hereby authorized to sell and service our complete product portfolio to the San
Bernardino County Superintendent of Schools Bid No. 23/24-0005 Furniture: Systems and Stand Alone.

" Please know that because of its unique competency and proven customer-centric acumen, Culver-Newlin, Inc.

- carries the strongest recommendation from Whitney Brothers®for SBCSS to engage your organization on this
contract in order to provide access to our brand’s award-winning products at excellent prices.

After your review, | welcome your contact at any time if you have any questions or need additional information.

Our thanks again for Culver-Newlin's important business partnership ~
il ——

Brian Vaillancourt

VP Sales & Marketing
603.352.2610 x112

brianv@whitneybros.com
93 Rallroad St., Keene NH 03431
www.whitneybros.com

wmme! ayomsns’

AT R MR RS

93 Raliroad Street, Kesno, NH 08431 ¢ 603-352-2610 @ Fax 603-357-1609 @ Toll Free 800-225-5881 @ whitneybros.com



We Can.

DESIGN. BUILD. DELIVER.

A=y Pt

W8 Manufacturing LLC

June 14, 2023
San Bernardino Cty Superintendent of Schools
RE: Letter of Authorization for Culver-Newlin
Bid 23/24-0005 — Furniture: Systems and Stand Alone

To whom It May Concern:

Culver-Newlin, is an authorized dealer in good standing for WB Manufacturing and, thereby authorized to market, sell,
distribute, warranty and supply our products on the above referenced bid/contract.

Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Sonk Hararn

Sarah Hanson
Contract Administrator

507 E. Grant St. Thorp, W1 54771 - Phone - 800.242.2303 - Fax-715.669.5929 - wibenchmfg.com



ergonomics®
June 13, 2023

San Bernardino City USD

RE: Culver-Newlin Response to San Bernardino City USD FURNITURE: SYSTEMS AND STAND ALONE BID
NO. 23/24-0005

To Whom It May Concern,

As of June 1% 2023, Culver-Newlin is in good financial standing with Workrite Ergonomics and is
authorized to sell and service our product. We do not foresee any changes in this business relationship.

Please feel free to contact me if there are any questions.

Regards,

T .

Donna Bobalek

National Government Contract Manager
dbobalek@workriteergo.com
571.565.5077

2277 Pine View Way, Suite 100, Petaluma, CA 94954 www.workriteergo.com 800-959-9675




N CULVER-NEWLIN

FURNITURE FOR SCHOOLS & OFFI!CES

BID #23/24-0005 FURNITURE:
SYSTEMS AND STAND ALONE



DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION
CALIFORNIA NEWSPAPER SERVICE BUREAU
P.O. Box 54026 LOS ANGELES CALIFORNIA 90054-0026
PHONE: (213) 229-5300 FAX (213) 229-5481

FEDERAL TAX ID:95-4133299

Ordered by:

SAN BERNARDINO SUPERINTENDENT OF

S.B. COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
760 EAST BRIER DRIVE

SAN BERNARDINO, CA 92408 USA

LEGAL ADVERTISING
INVOICE

Invoice Number
B3705158

Customer Account Number
1124126731

Date
6/6/2023

Customer Payment Reference
PO230000
Special Project

For payment processing, please forward to:

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

S.B. COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
760 E. BRIER DRIVE

SAN BERNARDINO, CA 92408 USA

Page 1 of 1

DUE UPON RECEIPT.

Type Order No Description Amount
Invoice B3705158 BID #23/24-0005 FURNITURE: SYSTEMS & STAND ALONE
BID NOTICE INVITING BIDS
89900 SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY SUN 614.88
05/30,06/06/2023
$ 3.66 * * 84 AgateLines *2 Ins * 1 Cols 614.88
To pay online, go to adtech.dailyjournal.com/payment
PLEASE PROCESS FOR PAYMENT IMMEDIATELY. DUE UPON RECEIPT. ;“‘::ient 613-88
a 3 d
Please make check payable to: Daily Journal Corporation Plgya§g Pay: 614.88
To ensure proper credit please write your account number 1124126731 Invoice Date Invoice Number Customer Number
on vour check. Also, please detach and return this portion of the 6/6/2023 B3705158 1124126731
invoice with your payment. For account support, :
please et anhoy._gutirrez@dalyjouralcom 0 R
or call: 2132295584 * A 000006 330065 %
Government Advertising - Division 1124 Amount Due 614.88

DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION

CALIFORNIA NEWSPAPER SERVICE BUREAU
ATTN: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

PO BOX 54026

LOS ANGELES, CA 90054-0026

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
S.B. COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

760 E. BRIER DRIVE
SAN BERNARDINO, CA 92408 USA




This space for filing stamp only

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY SUN

473 E CARNEGIE DR #200, SAN BERNARDINO, CA 92408
Telephone (909) 889-9666 / Fax (909) 884-2536

SAN BERNARDINO SUPERINTENDENT OF

S.B. COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS SB #: 3705158

760 EAST BRIER DRIVE NOTICE CALLING FOR BIDS
FURNITURE: SYSTEMS AND

SAN BERNARDINO, CA - 92408 STAND ALONE BID NO. 23/24-0005

BID DEADLINE: June 21, 2023 2:00

P.M. PLACE OF OPENING: San

Bernardino County

SUPERINTENDENT of Schools

ATTN: Front Desk Receptionist 760

PROOF OF PUBLICATION East Brier Drive San Bernardino,

CA 92408 Notice is hereby given that

the San Bernardino County

Superintendent of Schools hereafter

(20155 C.C.P.) called SUPERINTENDENT , will

receive sealed bids up to, but not

’ . later than, the time fixed above for

State of California ) procuring  furniture: new  or
County of SAN BERNARDINO ) ss refurbished, systems, stand alone
and classroom furniture as required

by the SUPERINTENDENT . All

Notice Type:  BID - NOTICE INVITING BIDS A e TR LR L A
SUPERINTENDENT. Each bid

must conform and be responsive to

Ad Description: all pertinent Bidding and Contract
Documents. Bids shall remain open,
BID #23/24-0005 FURNITURE: SYSTEMS & STAND ALONE valid and subiect to acceptance

anytime within ninety (90) days
uf‘rler the Tbhid opening?_dmleforéd ‘rlrmhe
| am a citizen of the United States and a resident of the State of California; | am ;’Sc?esssf{’” ervvvllisﬁ D%IRp v Qnsm', bg
over the age of eighteen years, and not a party to or interested in the above required to furnish a Performance

entitled matter. | am the principal clerk of the printer and publisher of the SAN (?gt%?'r:'\qnigde amount %T a level T°Tﬁg
BERNARDINO COUNTY SUN, a newspaper published in the English language SUPERINTENDENT . Sealed bids

in the city of SAN BERNARDINO, county of SAN BERNARDINO, and adjudged will be received by the Front Desk

a newspaper of general circulation as defined by the laws of the State of Receptionist, 760 East Brier Drive,
California by the Superior Court of the County of SAN BERNARDINO, State of porreCinargine, Co Shus icd

California, under date 06/27/1952, Case No. 73081. That the nofice, of which  above. Bids will remain sealed until

i i i i i the time and date stated. Bids must
?he annexgd is a printed copy, ha.s been published in each regular and epure eV gleatana i lear iV marREd ot The
issue of said newspaper and not in any supplement thereof on the following outside of the envelope in the lower
dates, to-wit: left-hand corner “BID ENCLOSED -
#23/24-0005 Furniture: Systems and
Stand Alone” No VENDOR may
withdraw his bid for a period of 90
days_after the date set for the
opening thereof. To request a copy of
the Bid document, please contact
Procurement and Warehouse
Services at (909) 386-9508 or visit

https://www.sbcss.k12.ca.us/index.p

05/30/2023, 06/06/2023 hp/business-services/business-

support-services/procurement-and-

warehouse-services/bids-upcoming
ELECTRONIC SUBMISSION OF
E RéDS TWILL !\:0‘; BEMACCEUPTIEEO%

xecuted on: 06/07/2023 vertisemen 1+ ay ‘
Advertisement #2: June 6, 2023
At Riverside, California Questions Due: June 13, 2023 Bids
. . L Due: June 21, 2023 2:00 p.m.
| certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and  5/30, 6/6/23

correct. SBS-3705158#

Signature

6 3

3006 6 %

Email



Manufacturer
9to5

Alumnt

Arcadia
Artopex
BuzziSpace
Carpets 4 Kids
CEF

Certwood
Claridge
Diversifled

ECD

Encore
Eurotech
FireKing
Fomcore

FSR

Hirsh

Hon

HPFI
Humanscale
Jonticraft

sl

Lesro
LightCorp
Maverlck
Mooreco
Muzo-Works 10
NPS

Palmer Hamilton
Platinum Visual
Right Angle
Safco

Sico

Smith System
Tayeo

Tenfam

Vs

Wisconsin Bench
Webcoat / Superlor
Whitney Bros
Workrite

Percentage Off List
50%
40%
5%
25%
25%

list +5%
20%

40% PLEASE NOTE: LARGE QUANTITY ORDERS MAY QUALIFY FOR A DEEPER DISCOUNT, WHICH WE WILL PASS ON DIRECTLY TO THE DISTRICT

28%
35%
52%
25%
25%
35%
40%
15%
30%
40%
40%
40%
list +5%

30%
25%
20%
50%
30%
10%
45%
15%
45%
40%
30%
15%
25%
35%
30%
5%
40%
1.50%
5%
25%

N CULVER-NEWLIN

FURNITURE

FOR

SCHOOLS

0 FFICES



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject: Ratification of Agreement with Orbit Event Rentals, Inc. ACTION/
for the purchase and installation of Lunch Shelter Canopy (RATIFICATION)

Lighting and Accessories at Maybrook Elementary School
(Temporary Housing for Rancho Intermediate School)

Background and Current Considerations:

As the District prepares to move Rancho Starbuck Intermediate School to Maybrook, (Temporary
Housing for Rancho Intermediate School), for the 2023-24 school year, it was necessary to provide a
larger shaded area for the students to have lunch. A larger canopy will provide a safe, shaded eating
environment for students and staff. On August 7, 2023, the Board of Trustees approved the purchase
of a Lunch Shelter Canopy which was installed on the Maybrook campus for the benefit of the Ranch
Starbuck students. The District determined that additional lighting was needed to accommodate the
students throughout the year to support various programs. The additional lighting was installed with
the Canopy.

Financial Implications:

The cost of the equipment and installation from Orbit Event Rentals, Inc., is $1,242.79. Costs
associated with this agreement will be paid out of Fund 21.Measure LL General Obligation Fund 21.0.

Financial Impact: $1,242.79
Funding Source: Measure LL General Obligation Fund — Fund 21.0
Recommendation:

It is recommended that the agreement with Orbit Event Rentals, Inc., for the Purchase and installation
of a Lunch Shelter canopy lighting at Maybrook for Rancho Starbuck be ratified, and that the
Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

DB/cw

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

VI-C1-1



Remit To:

Orbit Event Rentals H

9525 Sorensen Ave. I nvoice

Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670

www.orbiteventrentals.com Closed InYGices
Wed 8/ 9/2023 51634

Bill to: Customer #: 22819 Job Descr:  50x100 CANOPY PURCHASE - MAYBROOK CAMPUS

LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT PO # T99F0007

A/P DEPT
11019 VALLEY HOME AVE. Date Out Wed 8/ 2/2023
Whittier, CA 90603
Terms Aging Date
Due upon receipt Wed 8/ 9/2023
Get your Party Off The Ground and into ORBIT!
Ordered By: DENISE M. SOTO 562 631-5440 Picked up by: DENISE M. SOTO
Sales Rep: Nori Guerrero  562-686-2247 nori@orbiteventrentals,com
Qty | Key Items Part# Status Event End Date Price
50X100X8 USED CANOPY PURCHASE
1| MSS 50x100x8 JUMBO ALUMINUM Sold Fri 7/21/2023 $30,195.00
FRAME
INCLUDES: 50X100 USED WHITE CANOPY TOP, PIPE, FITTINGS, STAKES, PINS. TENT
WALLS, TIE DOWNS AND WATER BARRELS ADDITIONAL.
30 | WBS5B-1 WATER BARREL 55 GALLON Sold Asset Tue 8/ 1/2023 $1,498.50
(BLUE)
FOR SAFE ANCHORING OF CANOPY.
30 | CSTRAP-1 CANOPY STRAP Sold Asset Tue 8/ 1/2023 $660.00
FOR ANCHORING TENT TO WATER BARRELS.
1 | |00ODEL FREIGHT/DELIVERY/INSTALLATI Sold Tue 8/ 1/2023 $500.00
ON

Delivery Wed 8/ 2/2023 8:00AM - 5:00PM
DENISE SOTO 562-902-4293

MAYBROOK SCHOOL
11700 Maybrook
Whittier, CA 90604

DELIVERY & INSTALL CANOPY WED. AUG 3

WATER SOURCE REQUIRED WITHIN 50FT OF TENT

- QUOTE IS BASED ON PURCHASE OF TENT ONLY, NOT RENTAL.

- USED/AS IS CONDITION. ALL SALES ARE FINAL. BUY BACK OPTION AVAILABLE, CALL FOR MORE INFO.

- DELIVERY & INSTALLATION NOT INCLUDED WITH SALE OF CANOPY BUT AVAILABLE FOR ADDITIONAL FEE.

- ONCE DELIVERED OR INSTALLED, CANOPY BECOMES PROPERTY OF LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT.

- OER WILL NOT BE HELD LIABLE FOR BODILY HARM OR PROPERTY DAMAGE DUE TO PURCHASED TENTS.

- IF TENT CANNOT BE STAKED IN THE GROUND, 55 GAL WATER DRUMS REQUIRED FOR ANCHORING TENT.

- 55 GAL WATER DRUMS AVAILABLE @50.00 EACH. MINIMUM 30 BARRELS RECOMMENDED FOR ANCHORING A

50X100 TENT.
- MONTHLY TENT SAFETY INSPECTION HIGHLY RECOMMENDED FOR LONG TERM USAGE

ALL SALES FINAL

Modification #8

~Mon-Fri 8:30am-4:30pm-~
Printed On Wed 8/ 8/2023 2:14:15PM Software by Point-of-Rental Software www.point-of-rental.com Contract-Params.mpt (8)



Invoice #: 51634 LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT Page 2 of 2

Payment Due upon receipt

Please pay from this invoice.

Rental and Sales: Sales Tax:
$36,208.50 $3,397.12
| Total Amount: $39,605.62 Discount: $3,355.00 Total Paid $0.00 Total Due $36,250.62
562-696-8875 www.orbiteventrentals.com 562-696-3862
Signature:

DENISE M. SOTO

~Mon-Fri 8:30am-4:30pm-~ Modification #8
Printed On Wed 8/ 8/2023 2:14:15PM Software by Point-of-Rental Software www.point-of-rental.com Conlraci-Params.rpt (8)



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Approval of Agreement with Orrick, Herrington & ACTION

Sutcliffe, LLP, to provide Bond and Disclosure
Counsel Services for the Possible Issuance of Future
General Obligation Bonds

The Board of Trustees desires to investigate the possibility of calling for a general obligation
bond election in the near future. The services of legal counsel with expertise in this area are
necessary. The Bond Counsel service fee is $60,000 for the first series of Bonds and $47,500
for each additional series of Bonds issued. Disclosure Counsel service fee is $27,500 for each
series of Bonds. There is also a fee of $2,500 for each series of Bonds to cover costs and
expenses (direct and indirect). Payment for services and out of pocket expenses is contingent
upon the successful issuances of general obligation bonds and payable from these bonds.

Based upon the criteria identified the District is recommending the selection of Orrick,
Herrington & Sutcliffe (“Orrick”) as Bond and Disclosure Counsel.

It is recommended that the agreement with Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe, to provide Bond
and Disclosure Counsel Services for the Possible Issuance of General Obligation Bonds be
approved, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary
documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

VI-D1-1



orrick

August 9, 2023 Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP
2050 Main Street

Via E-Mail Suite 1100

jcoombs@ljsd.org Irvine, CA 92614-8255
+1 949 567 6700
orrick.com

Jim Coombs

Superintendent Donald S. Field

Lowell Joint School District

E dfield@orrick.com
1 1919 Valley Home Avenue D +1 940 852 7727
Whittier, CA 90603 F +1 949 567 6710

Re: 2024 Election and General Obligation Bonds
Dear Mr. Coombs:

On behalf of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP (“Orrick”), | would like to express our appreciation for your
choice of our firm to serve as bond counsel (“Bond Counsel”) and disclosure counsel (“Disclosure
Counsel’) to Lowell Joint School District (the “Issuer”), in connection with the seeking of voter approval
and proposed issuance of general obligation bonds (the “Bonds”) to finance school facilities projects (the
“Project”). The purpose of this engagement letter and the attached Standard Terms of Engagement
(collectively, the “Agreement”) is to confirm the terms and conditions upon which Orrick will be providing
legal services to the Issuer. We believe that a mutual understanding of these terms and conditions at the
outset is fundamental to establishing a good working relationship.

Orrick’s services as bond and disclosure counsel to the Issuer in this transaction will consist of the
Customary Bond Counsel Services and Customary Disclosure Counsel Services described in the
Standard Terms of Engagement attached hereto and the following additional services to the Issuer with
respect to seeking voter approval of the Bonds: (i) coordination with the County of Los Angeles and the
County of Orange (the “Counties”) election officials to ensure that the necessary legal requirements are
satisfied, (i) preparation of the necessary resolution of the District's governing board (the “District Board")
required to call the election and request consolidation with any other elections to be held on the same
date, (iii) attendance at such meetings of the District Board and working group conference calls as Issuer
may request, and assistance to Issuer staff in preparation of such explanations or presentations to the
District Board as they may request regarding the election and proceedings therefor, (iv) preparation of the
form of the tax information statement required to be distributed to voters, (v) review of the bailot
arguments to be prepared by or on behalf of the Issuer, if requested, solely to evaluate whether or not
statements summarizing the legal terms of the ballot measure are correct, and (vi) consultation with the
Issuer and its staff, counsel, and financial advisor, and with the Counties and their staff, concerning the
election proceedings.

In consideration of the Bond Counsel services set forth above, the Issuer shall pay to Orrick a fee of
$60,000 for the first series of Bonds and $47,500 for each additional series of Bonds issued. In
consideration of the Disclosure Counsel services set forth above, Orrick shall be paid a fee of $27,500 for
each series of Bonds.

4165-0895-2393.1



~
(

orrick

Jim Coombs, Superintendent
Lowell Joint School District
August 9, 2023

Page 2

These fees are based upon the assumption that each series of the Bonds will be issued on a single date,
the scope of services will be limited and conform to the description thereof contained in this Agreement,
the transaction will not have an extraordinary number of problems/issues, the parties will work to minimize
the number of meetings, conference calls and document distributions, the Issuer will coordinate virtual
attendance at meetings of the District Board which Orrick is requested to attend, the purposes of the
financing and the structure of the transaction will not materially change after preparation of the documents
has commenced, and the Bonds will be issued not later than six months from the date initial drafts of any
of the bond issuance documents are distributed by Orrick. If any of these assumptions are incorrect, or if
any unusual or unforeseen circumstances arise, and occasions substantial additional work or
responsibility on the part of Orrick, Orrick will be entitled to seek additional compensation in such amount
as the Issuer and Orrick shall mutually agree to be appropriate.

In addition to the fee provided above, Orrick shall be paid a fixed amount of $2,500 for each series of
Bonds to cover costs and expenses (direct and indirect) incurred in connection with the services rendered
as set forth herein, including (without limitation) document reproduction and delivery, travel, long distance
telephone, telecopy, word processing, computer research, secretarial overtime and other similar
expenses; provided that legal publication charges and printing expenses shall be the responsibility of the
Issuer.

Orrick’s fees (together with expenses) shall be contingent and payable upon the issuance of the Bonds.

Invoices shall be payable by the Issuer upon issuance of the Bonds if payable from Bond proceeds and
otherwise within 30 days of receipt. The obligation to pay our invoices is solely the Issuer's and is not
contingent upon any right of the Issuer may have for reimbursement, indemnification or insurance; or the
Issuer's receipt of any other form of payment the Issuer may claim or expect to receive from some other

party.

This engagement letter and the attached Standard Terms of Engagement represent the entire
understanding and agreement between the Issuer and Orrick with respect to the subject matter referred
to herein. The Issuer acknowledges that this engagement letter and the attached Standard Terms of
Engagement have been carefully reviewed and their content understood and that the Issuer agrees to be
bound by all of the terms and conditions and represents that the person signing below has been
authorized to do so on behalf of the Issuer. Furthermore, the Issuer acknowledges that Orrick has made
no representations or guarantees to the Issuer regarding the successful issuance of the Bonds, the tax
status of interest on the Bonds or the time necessary to complete the issuance of the Bonds.

Nothing in the Agreement or in any of the documents contemplated hereby, expressed or implied, is
intended or shall be construed to give any person other than the Issuer and Orrick any legal or equitable

4165-0895-2393.1



&

orrick

Jim Coombs, Superintendent
Lowell Joint School District
August 9, 2023

Page 3

right or claim under or in respect of the Agreement or with respect to services contemplated hereby, and
the Agreement shall inure to the sole and exclusive benefit of the Issuer and Orrick.

The provisions of this engagement letter may only be amended in writing and signed by both parties.

The Agreement will take effect upon execution of this engagement letter, but its effective date will be
retroactive to the date Orrick first performed services. This engagement letter may be executed in
counterparts, and an electronically transmitted signature shall be deemed to be the legal equivalent of an
original signature.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact the undersigned. If the foregoing, together with the
attached Standard Terms of Engagement, is satisfactory, please sign and return a copy of this letter to
me. We look forward to working with you and to a successful completion of this transaction.

Very truly yours,

Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP

Donald S. Field

ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED TO:
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
By

Name: Jim Coombs
Title:  Superintendent

4165-0895-2393.1



STANDARD TERMS OF ENGAGEMENT

Except as modified in writing by the engagement letter accompanying these Standard
Terms of Engagement (the “Engagement Letter”) or in another agreement signed by Issuer (as
defined in the Engagement Letter) and Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP (“Orrick”) the
following provisions shall apply to the relationship between Orrick and Issuer.

1. Issuer

Orrick’s engagement is only on behalf of Issuer. In performing the services set forth in the
Engagement Letter, Orrick will act as special counsel to Issuer with respect to issuance of the
Bonds; Orrick will assist Issuer’s counsel in representing Issuer with respect to the Bonds in a
manner consistent with Orrick’s role set forth in the Engagement Letter. Orrick’s representation
of Issuer does not encompass any governing board member, officer or employee of Issuer; any
agency, department or office part of or affiliated with Issuer; or any other person or entity affiliated
with Issuer. If any of these persons or entities require the services of counsel in connection with
the Bonds, Orrick would be pleased to discuss whether Orrick might be able to represent any of
them, but any such representation would need its own engagement letter, and would depend on
Orrick’s review and disclosure to all concerned of any conflicts of interest that may arise in
connection with any such concurrent representation, and on appropriate consents being obtained
from Issuer and from those seeking such additional representation.

2. Scope of Engagement

The scope of Orrick’s representation of Issuer is limited to the specific services identified
in the Engagement Letter and such additional matters as Issuer and Orrick may in their mutual
discretion agree to in writing from time to time (collectively, the “Matter”). In each case, Orrick’s
agreement to any expansion of the scope of its representation of Issuer will be subject, among other
things, to such additional conflict checks, waivers, approvals and other arrangements as Orrick
may in its professional judgment deem necessary or appropriate in the circumstances and may be
conditioned upon such fee adjustments or retainers as Orrick may require. Except as otherwise
expressly provided in any written engagement letter (or a written amendment of a prior
engagement letter) between Orrick and Issuer entered into in connection with such expansion of
the scope of Orrick’s representation, the agreement reflected in these Standard Terms of
Engagement and in the Engagement Letter applies to Orrick’s current representation of Issuer and,
to the fullest extent practicable, to any subsequent matters that Orrick agrees to undertake on
Issuer’s behalf, Orrick’s services will not extend to other business or legal affairs of Issuer or to
any other aspect of Issuer’s activities. Orrick’s receipt or use of confidential or other information
from Issuer or others in the course of the representation described in the Engagement Letter does
not mean that Orrick will render any advice or services other than those described in the
Engagement Letter.

The parties agree that Orrick is not acting in a staff capacity or otherwise assuming the
responsibilities for any public official currently designated in Issuer’s conflict of interest code.

March 2021

4132-5821-2367.12



Page 2

The parties also agree that Orrick is not being retained to, has no duty to, and will not, advise
Issuer or otherwise be involved in Issuer’s decisions as to (a) whether Issuer should issue the
Bonds, (b) the principal amount, interest rate or other pricing terms of the Bonds, (c) what
project(s) is/are to be financed or refinanced through the issuance of the Bonds (the “Project”), (d)
whether Issuer should enter into contracts related to the possible issuance of the Bonds or (¢) the
financial terms to be included in the Bonds and/or any such contracts (collectively, the
“Governmental Decisions™). Instead, Orrick is being retained to advise and to render opinions as
to the validity of or other legal matters respecting the issuance or sale of the Bonds Issuer
determines to issue and certain contracts Issuer determines to enter into in connection with the
Bonds, as set forth in the Engagement Letter. Issuer also agrees that Orrick is not being retained,
and has no duty, to provide financial advice of any kind to Issuer in connection with the foregoing.
Issuer, through its governing board, staff and independent legal counsel, will be exercising its
independent judgment regarding the Governmental Decisions. Issuer acknowledges that Orrick
has not been involved with the preliminary discussions, evaluation, planning, drawing of plans and
specifications and solicitation of bids related to the Project.

Customary Bond Counsel Services

When Orrick’s role is Bond Counsel to Issuer, Orrick shall perform the following legal
services to Issuer:

(1)  Analysis of eligibility of the Project under state law and for interest on the Bonds
to excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

2) Consultation with representatives of Issuer, Issuer’s counsel, and any financial
advisor or underwriters, and others, with respect to the timing, terms, and legal structure of the
proposed Bonds.

3) Preparation of the resolution of the governing board of Issuer approving the
issuance and sale of the Bonds and the documents to be adopted or entered into by Issuer required
for the issuance of the Bonds, including the bond resolution or the indenture of trust or trust
agreement between Issuer and a trustee (or, if applicable, the supplement to an existing bond
resolution, indenture or trust agreement) (the “Major Legal Documents”).

(4)  If the Bonds are to be sold through a competitive sale, preparation of the official
notice of sale and the notice of intention to sell.

5) In the case of a refunding, preparation of the refunding escrow agreement.

(6) Preparation of summaries of the Major Legal Documents included in the official
statement for the Bonds (the “Official Statement”).

4132-5821-2367.12



Page 3

@) Participation in such meetings of Issuer and working group meetings or conference
calls as Issuer may request.

® Preparation of final closing papers to be executed by Issuer required to effect
delivery of the Bonds (including the Tax Agreement).

€)) Rendering of Orrick’s customary form of final legal opinion to Issuer on the validity
of the Bonds and the tax-exempt status of interest thereon, and, if required by the underwriters of
the Bonds, Orrick’s customary form of supplemental opinion to the underwriters on the accuracy
of summaries contained in the Official Statement of the Major Legal Documents and the tax
portion of said final legal opinion and certain other matters and, in the case of a refunding, Orrick’s
customary form of defeasance opinion.

(10)  Providing, in electronic form, closing transcripts.
Limitations

Bond Counsel services are limited to those specifically set forth above. For example, Bond
Counsel services do not include representation of Issuer or any other party in any litigation or other
legal or administrative proceeding, audit or investigation involving the Bonds or any use or
investment of the proceeds thereof, or any related matter. Additionally, Bond Counsel services do
not include any responsibility for the preparation or content of any Official Statement or other
disclosure document or presentation (other than preparation of a summary of the Major Legal
Documents and of the portion of the opinion to be rendered by Bond Counsel concerning certain
tax matters) or any rating agency or investor presentation or the preparation of any credit
enhancement agreement, investment agreement or swap agreement. Bond Counsel services also
do not include any responsibility for compliance with any federal or state securities laws,
environmental, land use, procurement, real estate, construction, insurance or (except as required
for tax exemption of the Bonds) tax laws or for title to, recording, filing or perfection or
continuation of any liens or security interests in real or personal property. It is not the role or
responsibility of Bond Counsel to assure that the interests of any parties other than Issuer are
addressed or that any conditions to closing the transaction, other than as necessary in Bond
Counsel’s judgment to render the legal opinions delivered by Bond Counsel, have been satisfied
or addressed. Neither Bond Counsel’s role in the Bond closing nor Bond Counsel’s provision of
closing transcripts shall imply the completeness or adequacy of any items included in the closing
transcript for any purpose other than as expressly addressed in the legal opinions delivered by
Bond Counsel. Bond Counsel services are limited to legal advice and do not include any financial
advice or analysis, including advice concerning whether or not to issue the Bonds, or adopt any
Bond related resolutions or enter into any Bond related agreements. Bond Counsel services do not
extend past the date of issuance of the Bonds and do not, for example, include services related to
rebate or other post-issuance tax compliance, continuing disclosure, amendments to any of the

4132-5821-2367.12



Page 4

Bond related documents, post-issuance investments, interest rate swaps or management contracts
entered into after the date of issuance of the Bonds, or redemption or defeasance of the Bonds.
Any involvement by Bond Counsel in any of the matters referred to in this paragraph shall not
constitute a waiver of any of the foregoing limitations on Bond Counsel’s responsibilities unless
otherwise agreed to in writing.

Customary Disclosure Counsel Services

When Orrick’s role is Disclosure Counsel to Issuer, Orrick shall perform the following
legal services to Issuer:

€)) Assistance in preparing a preliminary official statement (the “Preliminary Official
Statement”) and a final official statement (the “Official Statement”) for the Bonds. Such assistance
will consist of participation in conferences with the Issuer, the underwriters of the Bonds (the
“Underwriters”), their respective counsel, Issuet’s financial advisor and other relevant participants,
assistance in the preparation of information about the Bonds, Issuer and other material information
and assistance in coordinating posting, printing or reproduction of the Preliminary Official
Statement and the Official Statement, the cost of which shall be the responsibility of Issuer.

2) Rendering, in Orrick’s customary form, addressed only to the Underwriters, of a
so-called “10b-5 letter” (subject to customary limitations and exclusions).

Unless Orrick is also bond counsel, Issuer will rely upon, and Orrick will assume the
accuracy of, the opinion of bond counsel with respect to the validity of the Bonds and the Bond
documents, the federal and state tax-exempt status of interest on the Bonds, exemption from
registration of the Bonds under applicable securities laws, and other matters customarily covered
by opinions of bond counsel and counsel to other parties, and Orrick will not undertake any
independent consideration thereof or have any other responsibility therefor. Bond counsel will
also be responsible for preparing summaries of legal documents for inclusion in the Preliminary
Official Statement and the Official Statement and giving an opinion as to the accuracy of the
summaries of the legal documents and the Bonds and of Orrick’s tax opinion contained in the
Official Statement.

In performing Disclosure Counsel services, in addition to relying on the opinions described
above, Orrick will be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of information provided
and certifications made by Issuer, the financial advisor, consultants, accountants, the underwriters,
various counsel and other parties, without independent investigation or verification. While Orrick
will undertake certain activities in order to provide the negative conclusion that constitutes the so-
called “10b-5 letter”, such activities are inherently limited in character and in scope. They cannot
and will not encompass all of the activities an underwriter may be required to undertake in order
to establish a due diligence or reasonable investigation defense (if available), and the securities

4132-5821-2367.12



Page 5

laws do not permit an underwriter to delegate completely duties of due diligence or reasonable
investigation it may have to counsel.

Limitations

Disclosure Counsel services will be limited to those specifically set forth above and, for
example, will not include other services, including but not limited to matters relating to the mode
or manner of dissemination of the official statement, the accuracy of any printing or posting of the
official statement, registration or qualification of the Bonds under federal or state securities laws,
derivative products, regulatory matters (such as compliance with FINRA or MSRB rules or other
broker-dealer regulations) or independent investigation of prior compliance with continuing
disclosure undertakings, and will not include preparation or review of any rating agency or investor
presentation or representation in any litigation or other legal or administrative proceeding, audit or
investigation involving the Official Statement, the Bonds, the Project or any related matter.
Disclosure Counsel services do not include any financial advice or analysis. Disclosure Counsel
services are limited to legal advice and do not extend past the date of issuance of the Bonds and
do not, for example, include services related to any post-issuance amendment of or supplement to
the Official Statement or to any continuing disclosure. Any involvement by Disclosure Counsel
in any of the matters referred to in this paragraph shall not constitute a waiver of any of the
foregoing limitations on Disclosure Counsel’s responsibilities unless otherwise agreed to in
writing.

3. Costs and Expenses

Unless otherwise provided in the Engagement Letter, Issuer will pay Orrick for costs and
expenses (direct and indirect) incurred in connection with the services set forth in the Engagement
Letter, including (without limitation) filing and publication, document reproduction and delivery,
travel, long distance telephone, telecopy, word processing, computer research, secretarial
overtime, closing transcript and other similar expenses. Indirect costs, such as word processing,
document reproduction and transcript costs, shall be payable at Orrick’s standard cost recovery
rates from time to time in effect.

Any filing, publication or printing costs required in connection with the Bonds shall be
paid directly by the Issuer, but if paid by Orrick on behalf of Issuer, Issuer shall reimburse Orrick
for such costs upon demand.

If any claim or action is brought against Orrick or any of its personnel which alleges
negligence or wrongdoing of Issuer, or if Orrick or any current or former attorney or employee of
Orrick is asked or required by a third party to testify or produce documents as a result of Orrick’s
representation of Issuer, Issuer agrees to pay Orrick for any resulting costs or expenses, including

4132-5821-2367.12



Page 6

Orrick’s time, even if Orrick’s representation of Issuer has ended. This paragraph is not intended
to apply to any claim brought by or on behalf of Issuer alleging wrongdoing by Orrick.

4, Waiver of Conflicts of Interest

Orrick’s agreement to represent Issuer in connection with the Matter is conditioned upon
the understanding that Orrick is free to represent any clients (including entities that may be adverse
to the Issuer) and to take positions adverse to either Issuer or an affiliate in any matters (whether
involving the same substantive area(s) of law for which Issuer has retained Orrick or some other
unrelated area(s), and whether involving business transactions, patent prosecution and patent
validity and infringement opinion work, counseling, litigation or otherwise). Orrick agrees,
however, to not represent any party other than Issuer in connection with the Bond financing prior
to the date of termination determined in accordance with Paragraph 9 hereof without the consent
of Issuer. In this connection, Issuer should be aware that Orrick regularly provides legal services
for many private and public entities in connection with a wide variety of matters. (A summary of
Orrick’s current practice areas and the principal industries in which Orrick represents clients can
be found on Orrick’s web site at www.orrick.com.) For example, Orrick has represented, is
representing or may in the future represent other public entities, underwriters, trustees, rating
agencies, insurers, credit enhancement providers, lenders, borrowers, developers, contractors,
suppliers, financial and other consultants/advisors, accountants, investment and swap
providers/brokers, providers/brokers of derivative products and others who may have a role or
interest in the Bond financing or the Project or that may be involved with or adverse to Issuer. In
addition, Orrick’s wholly-owned subsidiary BLX Group LLC may provide financial advisory
services, including arbitrage rebate compliance and other post-issuance compliance services, to
other parties involved in the Bond financing and Orrick may provide legal advice to such other
parties in connection with such BLX Group LLC services. Orrick will, of course, hold in
confidence Issuer’s secrets and confidences. Similarly, Issuer understands that while Orrick may
obtain confidential information from other clients that may be of interest to Issuer, Orrick cannot
share such information with Issuer. Issuer acknowledges that it has had the opportunity to consult
with its counsel about the consequences of the waiver set forth in this paragraph. Issuer consents
to these other representations, agrees that it will not seek to disqualify Orrick from any such present
or future representations, and waives any actual or potential conflict of interest that might arise or
be deemed to arise, now or in the future, from this engagement of Orrick in the Matter and any
past, current or future representations.

S. Internal Communications

The occasion might arise for Orrick, at Orrick’s own expense, to consult regarding the
Matter or this engagement with its own counsel (e.g., Orrick’s General Counsel, other firm
lawyers working with Orrick’s General Counsel who do not perform work for Issuer in connection

4132-5821-2367.12



Page 7

with the services provided pursuant to this Engagement Agreement, or Orrick’s own outside
counsel). To the extent that Orrick is addressing its own rights or responsibilities, a conflict of
interest might be deemed to exist between Orrick and Issuer as to such consultation or resulting
communications, particularly if a dispute were ever to arise between Orrick and Issuer regarding
the Matter. A condition of this engagement is that Issuer hereby consents to such consultation
occurring, and waives any claim of conflict of interest based on such consultation or resulting
communications that could otherwise disqualify Orrick from continuing to represent Issuer or from
acting in Orrick’s own behalf, even if such consultation or communications might be deemed
adverse to the interests of Issuer. Issuer acknowledges and agrees that any such consulting and
communications are protected from disclosure to Issuer by Orrick’s own attorney-client privilege.

6. Responsibilities of Orrick and Issuer

Issuer shall have and will rely on Issuer’s elected, appointed or retained chief legal officer
or on outside counsel (other than Orrick) (“Issuer Counsel”) to render day-to-day and ongoing
general legal services and to advise Issuer with respect to all Governmental Decisions. Orrick
shall circulate documents to and coordinate its services with Issuer Counsel to the extent requested
by Issuer or Issuer Counsel. Orrick shall be entitled to assume that Issuer Counsel has reviewed
all documents and matters submitted to Issuer for adoption or approval or to officers of Issuer for
execution prior to such adoption, approval or execution.

In rendering opinions and performing legal services, Orrick shall be entitled to rely on the
accuracy and completeness of information provided and certifications made by, and opinions
provided by counsel to, Issuer and other parties, counsel and consultants, without independent
investigation or verification. Knowledge of attorneys and non-attorneys at Orrick not working
directly on the Matter will not be imputed to Orrick nor shall there be any duty on Orrick’s part to
make any inquiry of such other attorneys or non-attorneys.

Orrick will provide to Issuer legal counsel and assistance in accordance with the
Engagement Letter and this Standard Terms of Engagement. Issuer will not look to or rely upon
Orrick for any investment, accounting, financial or other non-legal advice or for any advice with
respect to Governmental Decisions, including without limitation any advice regarding the
character or credit of any person with whom Issuer may be dealing. Although Orrick will at times
communicate with Issuer by e-mail, letter, or other written form, Orrick may provide much of its
counsel and assistance in telephone conversations and meetings with Issuer. In addition, Orrick
shall have the right, subject to applicable rules of professional responsibility, to discard any files
or other materials relating to the Matter either before or after termination of Orrick’s representation
of Issuer.

For Orrick to represent Issuer effectively, Orrick needs Issuer to provide Orrick with
complete and candid information regarding matters relating to the Bonds and the Project, and, if

4132-5821-2367.12



Page 8

Orrick is providing Disclosure Counsel Services, regarding financial, operating and other
information material to prospective investors in the Bonds, to keep Orrick informed of relevant
developments, to make decisions necessary for Orrick to fulfill its responsibilities with respect to
the Bonds and otherwise to provide to Orrick Issuet’s reasonable assistance and cooperation.

Orrick shall maintain errors and omissions insurance coverage applicable to the services to
be rendered pursuant to the Engagement Letter.

The Engagement Letter and these Standard Terms and Conditions shall not be the basis of
any breach of contract claim that would have the effect of extending any statute of limitations
pertaining to legal malpractice to the statute of limitations pertaining to breach of contract.

Orrick will not be responsible for any services performed by, or acts or omissions of, any
co-counsel or other transaction participant.

7. Client Files (Cloud Storage, Retention and Disposition)

Orrick recognizes that cloud computing services offer valuable tools to its clients and has
entered into arrangements with certain providers of those services to host, process, and analyze
data, including client data. Orrick’s primary Data Management System is cloud based in all
permissible jurisdictions.

Unless otherwise required by outside counsel guidelines or specific client instruction,
Orrick will retain all hardcopy and electronic records for a period of years consistent with Orrick’s
internal records retention policy. When that time expires, Orrick’s policy is to destroy all records
related to the Matter in a manner that preserves confidentiality. Orrick will use its best efforts to
contact Issuer, using the most up to date contact information in Orrick’s possession, 60 days prior
to the destruction of any of Issuer’s records, so that Issuer may provide alternate retention
instructions as necessary. Issuer understands and agrees that records related to the Matter will be
destroyed in the absence of such alternate instruction or if Orrick is unable to establish contact
with Issuer. If Issuer has a records retention policy in place with which outside counsel will need
to comply, Issuer shall advise Orrick so that Orrick may so inform its records department.

Issuer understands that “materials” include paper files as well as information in other forms
of storage, including voicemail, e-mail, printer files, electronic document files, facsimiles,
dictation recordings, video files, and other formats. Orrick reserves the right, at Orrick’s expense,
to make copies of documents generated or received by Orrick in the course of Orrick’s
representation of Issuer. When Issuer requests copies of documents from Orrick, copies that
Orrick generates will be made at Issuer’s expense. Orrick will maintain the confidentiality of all
documents throughout this process.

4132-5821-2367.12



Page 9

Orrick’s own files pertaining to the Matter will be retained by Orrick (as opposed to being
sent to Issuer) or destroyed. These files include, for example, internal communications, firm
administrative records, time and expense reports, personnel and staffing materials, and credit and
account records. For various reasons, including the minimization of unnecessary storage expenses,
Orrick reserves the right to destroy or otherwise dispose of any of Orrick’s own files within a
reasonable time after Orrick’s engagement pertaining to the Matter has concluded.

Orrick will not retain, use, or disclose the personal information we receive in connection
with our representation of Issuer for any (i) purpose other than for the specific purpose of our
representing Issuer and for our performance under the Engagement Letter, or as otherwise
permitted by applicable privacy laws, or (ii) other commercial purpose unless otherwise required
or permitted by outside counsel guidelines or specific Issuer instruction.

8. Use of Artificial Intelligence Tools and Machine Learning

Orrick strives to maximize the benefits that innovative tools and approaches can provide
for Issuer. Orrick recognizes that cloud-based tools that use artificial intelligence or machine
learning can be used to improve the efficacy and accuracy of legal services. Use of artificial
intelligence and machine learning tools can also help to reduce the cost of providing legal services.
Orrick has entered into arrangements with certain providers of artificial intelligence and machine
learning tools to host, process, and analyze data, including client data, and, depending on the nature
of the matter, will assess whether the use of such tools would benefit Issuer. Like online services
or platforms, such tools are not immune from security or quality compromises, but all are subject
to Orrick’s cyber security vendor risk management program. Additionally, artificial intelligence
or machine learning tools may not be configured to the precise parameters of the required work,
as many have pre-built machine learning models that vary as the tool ingests data. Orrick may use
data gathered by using these tools to improve budgeting, precedent libraries, template documents,
and other data sets to improve client service. Data that is processed into artificial intelligence tools
may also be used to improve machine learning algorithms at Orrick or in the tools of third-party
vendors. If Issuer hereby consents to the use of cloud-based artificial intelligence or machine
learning tools unless Issuer has advised Orrick not to do so.

9, Termination

Issuer may terminate Orrick’s representation of Issuer at any time, with or without cause.
Orrick may terminate its representation of Issuer at any time, with or without cause, subject to
applicable rules of professional responsibility, including if, among other things, Issuer fails to
cooperate or follow Orrick’s advice on a material matter, or any fact or circumstance arises that,
in Orrick’s view, renders Orrick’s continuing representation unlawful or unethical. Orrick may
terminate or suspend its representation of Issuer, subject to applicable rules of professional
responsibility, if the Issuer fails to make timely payment on any invoice. In the event of

4132-5821-2367.12



Page 10

termination by either Issuer or Orrick, Issuer shall pay Orrick fees and costs for work performed
prior to termination and Orrick will have no responsibility or liability whatsoever for any
subsequent use of documents prepared or advice provided by Orrick prior to termination. Issuer
acknowledges that it has had an opportunity to consult with its counsel about the consequences of
Orrick’s disclaimer of responsibility and liability herein.

10. Date of Termination

Orrick’s representation of Issuer will be considered terminated at the earliest of (i) Issuer’s
termination of the representation, (ii) Orrick’s withdrawal from the representation, (iii) the
substantial completion of Orrick’s substantive work for Issuer; (iv) the issuance of the Bonds; or
(vi) the Issuer’s abandonment of the Bond financing.

11. Arbitration Right — Applicable to Engagements Governed by New York law

Please note that in the event that a dispute arises relating to Orrick’s fees, Issuer may have
the right to arbitration of the dispute pursuant to Part 137 of the Rules of the Chief Administrator
of the Courts, a copy of which will be provided to Issuer upon Issuet’s request.

12.  Disclosure for Promotional Purposes

Except as Issuer may otherwise inform Orrick, and subject to any confidentiality
arrangements or agreements of which Orrick is made aware between Issuer and any other party
with respect to the Matter, Issuer agrees that Orrick may include, in a list of transactions and
litigations which Orrick uses for promotional (including press releases and social media posting)
and internal purposes, a summary description of publicly disclosed aspects of the Matter.

4132-5821-2367.12



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Resolution 2023/2024 No. 902 for Approval to Delegate ACTION/

Authority to the Superintendent of Schools, or Designee, (RESOLUTION)
to Certify Documents, Act as a Liaison with the Office of

Public School Construction and Staff to the State

Allocation Board

On June 11, 2018, the Lowell Joint School District Board of Trustees approved Resolution
2018-19 No. 724 ordering a School Bond Election. On November 6, 2018, the Voters in the
Lowell Joint School District passed Measure LL. A part of Measure LL includes the repairs
and upgrades to District facilities.

The Board of Trustees and Lowell Joint School District will be requesting eligibility, Funding
and /or Certifying information for one or more SAB-administered program Projects pursuant
to, but not limited to, Chapter 12.5, Part 10, and Article7 Chapter 3, Part 10.5 under Division 1
and Title 1 commencing with Section 17070.10 et. seq. of the Education Code.

The Board of Trustees is required to identify School District Representatives that will sign,
submit and certify documents and act as liaison with the Office of Public School Construction
as staff to the State Allocation Board (SAB).

It is recommended that Resolution 2023/2024 No. 902 to Delegate Authority to the
Superintendent of Schools, or Designee, to Certify Documents, Act as a Liaison with the Office
of Public School Construction and Staff to the State Allocation Board, be approved, and that
the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the resolution.

Attachment

Superintendent’s Comment:
ADOPTION BY MAJORITY ROLL CALL VOTE RECOMMENDED.

V-El-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION 2023-24 NO. 902

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
OF THE LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
OF LOS ANGELES AND ORANGE COUNTIES, CALIFORNIA,
TO CERTIFY INFORMATION FOR STATE ALLOCATION BOARD
(SAB) ADMINISTERED PROGRAM PROJECTS

WHEREAS, Education Code established multiple programs to be administered by the Office of
Public Schoo! Construction, under the Department of General Services, as staff to the State
Allocation Board; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees and Lowell Joint School District will be requesting
eligibility, funding, and/or certifying information for one or more SAB-administered program
projects pursuant to, but not limited to, Chapter 12.5, Part 10, and Article 7, Chapter 3, Part 10.5,
under Division 1 and Title 1 commencing with Section 17070.10, et. seq. of the Education Code;
and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees is required to identify the School District Representatives that
will sign, submit, and certify documents and act as liaison with the Office of Public School
Construction as staff to the State Allocation Board; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees and Lowell Joint School District understand that the signing
and submittal of forms on behalf of the school district commits the school district to comply with
program requirements; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has identified the following positions, and the individuals
currently serving in that capacity, as the District Representatives:

¢ Superintendent - Jim Coombs

¢ Assistant Superintendent, Business Services — David Bennett

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED the Board of Trustees and Lowell Joint
School District authorizes the District Representative(s) to execute documents as necessary to
carry out the provisions of this resolution.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 11™ day of September, 2023.
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:



I, Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School District of Los
Angeles and Orange Counties, California, hereby certify that the above and foregoing resolution
was duly and regularly adopted by the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held on the 11t
day of September, 2023, and passed by a unanimous vote of those present.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 11" day of September
2023.

Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Resolution 2023/24 No. 903 Gann Amendment ACTION/
Appropriations Limit (RESOLUTION)

Government Code Section 7906(f) requires each school district to report the
Gann Amendment Appropriations Limit to the Superintendent of Public Instruction annually.
Each year, governing boards of school districts shall adopt a resolution identifying the actual
appropriations limit for the preceding year as well as the estimated appropriations limit for
the current year. Attached are calculations used in establishing the actual appropriations limit
for 2022-23 and the estimated appropriations limit for 2023-24.

Resolution 2023/24 No. 903 declares that the actual appropriations for 2022-23 in the
District’s budget and the estimated appropriations for the 2023-24 budget do not exceed the
limitations of Article XIII B (the Gann Amendment) of the California Constitution.

It is recommended that Resolution 2023/24 No. 903 Gann Amendment Appropriations Limit
be adopted, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary
documents.

DB/ds

Attachment

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
VI-F1-1



RESOLUTION 2023/24 No. 903

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT OF LOS ANGELES AND ORANGE
COUNTIES, CALIFORNIA,

GANN AMENDMENT APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT

WHEREAS, Article XIII B of the California Constitution provides certain
limitations and controls on the total annual appropriations of any school district; and

WHEREAS, Division 9 (commencing with Section 7900) of Title I of the
Government Code provides for the implementation of Article XIII B; and

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 7900 provides that the governing body
of each school district shall annually adopt a resolution to identify the estimated
appropriations limit for the district for the current fiscal year and the actual appropriations
limit for the district for the preceding fiscal year.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Trustees of the Lowell
Joint School District hereby resolves and declares as follows:

The actual appropriations limit for 2022-23 was $14,825,437.73 and the appropriations in
the 2022-23 budget did not exceed the limitations imposed by Article XIII B of the
California Constitution.

The appropriations limit for 2023-24 is estimated to be $15,429,494.26 and the
appropriations in the 203-24 budget do not exceed the limitations imposed by
Article XIII B of the California Constitution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the documentation used in determining the
appropriations limit shall be available to the public at 11019 Valley Home Avenue,
Whittier, CA 90603.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School
District the 11™ day of September, 2023.

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

I, Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School District of
Los Angeles and Orange Counties, California, hereby certify that the above and foregoing
resolution was duly and regularly adopted by the said Board of Trustees at a regular
meeting thereof held on the 11" day of September, 2023 and passed by a unanimous vote

of those present.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 11" day of
September, 2023.

Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Approval of Consultant Agreement with ACTION/
Brianna Velarde to Provide Graphic Design Work (RATIFICATION)

for District Communication of Programs and
Facilities for the 2023/24 School Year

Arrangements have been made with Brianna Velarde to provide graphic design work for
District Communication of programs and facilities for the 2023/24 school year. Mrs.
Velarde’s work for an amount not to exceed $3,500.00 for the school year. Funding for this
expenditure will be covered by the Fund 01 Account.

It is recommended that the consultant agreement with Brianna Velarde to provide graphic
design work for District communication of programs and facilities for the 2023/24 school
year, for an amount not to exceed $3,500.00, be approved, and that the Superintendent or
designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-Al-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Approval of Memorandum of Understanding Agreement ACTION/

between Chapman University and Lowell Joint School (RATIFICATION)
District, Effective August 1, 2023 through June 30, 2028

Chapman University is an institution of higher learning authorized pursuant to California law to
offer education programs. Including without limitation, District Student Placements and the
School Counseling Fieldwork Practicum/Internship, School Counseling PPS, Teacher Education
Programs, Teacher Education Intern Credential, School Psychology PPS Fieldwork Practicum/
Internship. This is to fulfill the credentialing requirements set forth by the California
Commission on Teacher Credentialing (the “Program”).

Lowell Joint School District operates schools which are suitable for the University's Program.
Chapman University desires to establish the Program at Lowell Joint School District for the
students of the University enrolled in the Program. Lowell Joint School District desires to
support the Program to assist in training students of University.

This MOU will be effective August 1, 2023, unless terminated upon mutual consent of both parties,
or through June 30, 2028, at no cost to the district.

It is recommended the Memorandum of Understanding with Chapman University, effective
August 1, 2023 through June 30, 2028 be approved, and that the Superintendent or designee be
authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-A2-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Purchase Order Report 2023/24 #2 ACTION/

(RATIFICATION)

In accordance with the law, Purchase Order Report 2023/24 #2 is recommended for approval.
The report lists all purchase orders issued July 1, 2023 through July 31, 2023.

DB: ds

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
X-Bl-1



60:85:¥1 ‘euILy, Juerm) <€0L0TO ToA> 0100d 1 Hoday
£207/10/60 ;1R UL 1 ON e8ed 66010Sd  :dlesn
$901A30G SED [BIMEN / SV 1D dVOT/SnIbN 0TSS 1870000010  00°00S°TT

$90IAISG SED [BIMEN / SV 1D dVOT/SoNIBN 07SS 0820000010 00000 00°0ST°LY 0D SVO VINYOAI'TVD NYAHLNOS  T0000166.L

sdiys1oquIa]y| pue san(y / 00£S L1£0000010  00°6¥€°TT 00°6HELT DOSSV S@IVOd TOOHDS VINYOATIVD  S900U661L

sorjddng pue s[eualep / 00€¥ L1€0000010  0S°ZI 0S°71 AHJOYL NOLLDV 7900661

sorjddng pue sjeusjepy / 00€¥ L1£0000010  OI't¥ 0r'vh QALIATINA SLDIOVE STI0dS  €S00U661L

S90UAIRJUOD) PuE [aAk1], / 3[qeorjddy JON-1SaIuN-4D 00TS 1L00000010  00°S6T 00567 VINMOAI'TVD 40 SHDIAYAS TOOHOS  7Z00U66.L

sdrys1oquIs|y| pue san(g / 00€S L1€0000010  00°09¢€ 00°09€ ANINOD 40 YAGIWVHD VANV VIGVH VT  17004661L

sdrysIoquisy| pue san(g / ojqedtjddy 10N-1sa1uN)-1D 00£S 900000010  00°€S 00°€HS TOOHDS ALVAOAAY Y04 NOLLI'TVOD 07004661

sdysIaquID] pue san(g / 00£S L1£0000010  00'6€S 00°6€S ADYANWINOD A0 YAGAVHD JALLLIHAM  ST00U66.L

serjddng pue sjeusiely / 00€¥ L1€0000010 0070091 00°009°T ONI ONIGFINNTd YATTIN-IAIA - LT00H66.L

A3ojouyoa [, /sosudIT / 0185 LI£0000010 00661 00°661 SSTAIXA NVOIIAWY  LI0OONG66L

sor[ddng pue s[eLorely / 00€¥ L1€0000010  ¥8°81% b8'81Y SSHAIXA NVOIIAINYV  $I00N66L

sorpddng pue sjeuajely / 00€¥ L1£0000010  98°0€8 98°0¢8 SSTALXA NVOIIAINY  9000IA66.L

sorjddng pue s[eLaiey / 00€¥ L1£0000010  00°000°€ 00°000°¢ SSAYIXA NVOIJANY  €000IN66.L

soriddng pue sjeuojejy / 2[qesriddy 10N-1sa1u)-1D 00£ 8600000010 66 T€EL 66°TEL ONI INAWAOVNYVIN MAN  9000466L

sorjddng pue sjeusje]y / ojqeorddy JoN-1sa1un- 10 00£ 8600000010  88'859°T 88'859°T *ONI 0D THVM@IVH NOLONILINAH  S000466.L
soueuduIE 10 sieday] / 9[qeoriddy JoN-1sa1uN-4D 0£9S ¥600000010  00°0LT‘E
soueudjuIely 10 s1iedey] / 9[qeoriddy JoN-1sa1UN)-1D 0€£9$ £600000010  00°SL8S

soueuRuIE 10 siteday / 9[qeotddy JON-121UN-1D 0€£9S 1600000010 007876
sougusUIRIAl 10 sireday / o1qeoriddy J0N-1s1UN -1 0£95 0600000010  00'¥9¥

soueUSUIEA] 10 siteday / ojqeoriddy JoN-1sa1uN-1D 0£9S 6800000010 00766 0067511 ADIAYAS ONLLSAL MOLDIOVE  $000466.1L

suuoiuy) / 8[qed1[ddy 10N-1s91uN-1D $68S 8600000010 679058 679058 SSANISAE YOI TAAVIAY ADVINL  €000466.L

SouBUSUIEIA] 10 si1eday / o[qedt[ddy JoN-1saIuN-gD 0£9S 7600000010  00'#9€°C 00'¥9€°T YOWAIA % SSVID YALLLIHM ISV 7000466.L

S0UBUSIUIRIA] 10 s1teddy / 9]qedr|ddy JoN-1sa1UN-4D 0£9S 0010000010  00°SZ89 005789 ANVJNOD ITAL LLANAD 10004661

NOILJTdDSAd IDArdO / 0aNdsd JAAIANN INNONWV TVIOL JOANTA  TIGINON

INNODDV INNODDV od od

€20T/1€/L0OL  €207/10/L0 WOUA

£207/11/60 ONILIAW STALSNAL JO @AVOL
LIOdT TIVLAd Y3dHO ASVHOANd

ds INIOf TTHMO'T



60:85:¥1 ;UL L, JUSNIND <€0L0T0 1PA> 0100d :dl Hodayg
€202/10/60 :21R( YURLIND 7 OoNZeqd 66010SA Al 198N
souruduIRIA 10 siredsy / 91qeorjddy JoON-1saIU)-1D 0£95 8600000010  00°000°T 00°000°1 ONI FJALLOWOLNYV SYAHLOYL  Z000Z66.L
fesodsiq s1sep / 91qea1ddy JoN-Isa1UN-ID 0955 ST10000010  00°000°S
Jesodsiq a1sep / 9]qeorddy JoN-IsaIuN-1D 095S €210000010  00°000°0T
[esodsi(q asep / 2[qedrddy JON-1seruN -1 09SS TZ10000010  00°008°C
[esodsi(] IseA / 91qednddy JoN-1sa1un-40 09SS 0210000010  00°00S°C
[esodsi(] a1sepy / 9qeatddy JoN-1se1un-1D 095S 6110000010  00°00S°€E
fesodsi ese / 21qednddy JoN-1sa1u)-1D 095S 8110000010  00°00S°€
Jesodsi( a3se M / 9[qeot[ddy JoN-1serun- 1D 09SS 9110000010  00°00S°€
[esodsiq s1sep / d1qedrddy JON-ISaIUN- D 09SS #110000010  00°00S°€
[esodsI( a1se / 9[qeorjddy JON-1saIun-JD 09SS TI10000010  00°00S‘E 00°008°LY TVSOdSId TAVA.  [000Z66.1L
sarddng pue sfensiel / 91qeotjddy JoN-Isa1u) - 1D 00£¥ 8600000010 0070051 00°00S‘T X1ddNS TOOHDS LSAMHLAOS  LO00X66.L
$IIAIRS ANo1o3[d / 9[qeot[ddy JoN-1se1un - 10 01SS $ZT10000010  00°000°01
saa1A108 AN101103[Y / 2[qeot[ddy JoN-IsaIun- 10D 01SS £210000010  00°000°001
sao1A18§ AJ101103] / 9[qeot[ddy JON-IsaIuN-I0 015S TZ10000010  00°000°6T
$S301AIRG AYOLIOAH / 9qeonddy 10N-1sa1uN-1D 01SS 0Z10000010  00°000°0€
s3014108 AyoLI0aly / 9]qeotddy JoN-Isarun- 4D 01SS 6110000010  00°000°€S
seo1a10g ANoL}oRlq / s[qeorddy JoN-1sa1un- 1D 01SS 8110000010  00°000°8S
$901AT0S ANO1I03[] / 9[qedt[ddy JON-IsaIuf)- 10D 01SS 9110000010  00°000°1S
seo1A10g ANIoL0a[q / 9[qednjddy JoN-Isarun- 1D 01SS #110000010  00°000°8T
$SAIALSS AOLIOA[Y / 9[qeotddy JON-ISaI1uN-ID 016S Z110000010  00°000°9S 00°000°St¥ NOSIAA VINYOAI'TYD NYAHLNOS  T000166.L
SIIAIRG SeD) [BIEN / SV [D dVIT/S2UINN 0TSS 8870000010  00°000°6
SOIAIAG SED [BIEN / SV [D IVOT/SNINN 0TSS L8T0000010  00°00S
SOOIAIAG SeD) [eIEN / SV 1D JVOT/SoniuNn 0TSS 9820000010  00°05T
SOOIAISG SBD) [BIEN / SV [D dVOT/5uI[uN 0TSS $8T0000010  00°009
SIIIAIAG SED [BIMEN / SV 1D JVDT/SBINN 0TSS 870000010  00°00£'8
SIVIAIAG SED [BIMEN / SV 1D JVII/SonInN 0ZSS £370000010  00°000°€
SPOIAIRS SBD) [BIMEN / SV 1D dVT/SnIIN 0TSS Z8Z0000010  00°000°01
sxx QAANLLNOD xxx 10000661
TA9AON INNOIV TVIOL JOANIA  TAIINNN
INNODDY INNODDV od od

€707/1€/L0OL  €207/10/L0 INOUA

£207/11/60 ONLLIZ STALSNAL 40 AAVOd
LIOdTY TIVLId HHAHO ASYVHOUN

ds INIOf TTIMO'T



€0T/TE/LOOL  €70T/T0/L0 NOYUA

€207/11/60 ONLLAAN STALSNAL 40 A4vVOod

LIOdMT TIVLId JHATYO ASVHOINd
ds INIOf TTIMO'T

60:8S 1 soui], JuaLN) <€0LOTO 1PA> 0100d ‘Al Hodey
£202/10/60 :91R( JUALIND ¢ ON o3ed 6601L0SA Al 19801
sarjddng pue sjenaiel / 9jqeorddy joN-1sa1un-1D 00€¥ 0600000010  00°00S
sarjddng pue sjeuaje]y / 9[qeonddy J0N-Isa1un- 10 00€¥ 6800000010  00°00S 00°00S‘y Odd DV  8000Z66L
sarjddng pue sjeueje]y / 9[qeot[ddy JoN-1sarun-19 00€¥ 8600000010 007008
saryddng pue sjeusiel / 21qed1ddy JoN-1sa1un-1D 00€Y 9600000010  00°008
sor1ddng pue sjeusjejy / o]qeorddy J0N-IsaIun)-1D 00€P £600000010  00°008
sar[ddng pue sjeusje]y / 9]qed1ddy JoN-151u0-1D 00€¥ 7600000010  00°008
sarjddng pue sjeuajely / 9jqedddy 1o0N-1s21u-1D 00€Y 1600000010  00°008
sorddng pue sfeusiel / a[qed1ddy J0N-1saIuN-1D 00£¥ 0600000010  00°008
sarjddng pue sjeusjejy / 9]qed1[ddy J0N-Isa1un-15 00€¥ 6800000010 00008 00°009°S UAS ¥ STTIVS YOLOW DIILOATA VYV  LOO0Z66L
sar[ddng pue sjeusjel / 2qea1ddy JON-IsaIUN-1D 00€Y 8600000010  00°000°C
sarjddng pue sjeueje]y / o[qeorddy JoN-1sa1u-40 00£¥ 9600000010  00°000°C
sarjddng pue s[eusjey / [qed1ddy JoN-1sa1UN-4D 00€Y $600000010  00°000°C
sarjddng pue sjendle / ajqesiddy JoN-1saIuN-1D 00€F £600000010  00°000°C
soryddng pue sjensjel / 9]qeoijddy J0N-1saIuN- 1D 00€¥ 7600000010 00°000°C
soddng pue s[ensiel / 2[qeorjddy 10N-1sauN-1D 00€Y 1600000010  00°000°C
sarjddng pue sjeueje]y / 9|qeorddy 10N-1saIUN-1D 00£¥ 0600000010  00°000°C
sarjddng pue s[eusjejy / dqeo1ddy J0N-1soIUN-1D 00€¥ 6800000010  00°000°C 00°000°01 SADIAYAS LIAAAD LOdAd ANOH  9000Z661L
sarjddng pue sjeusjejy / o[qesrddy J0N-IsaIun- 10 00€¥ 8600000010  00°000°L1
sarjddng pue s[eusyey / o[qeorjddy J0N-IsaIuN-D 00€+ 9600000010  00°000°CT
sa1ddng pue sjeusiely / 2]qednddy JoN-IsaIu-10D 00£¥ £600000010  00°000°CT
sarjddng pue s[eusje / ]qed1ddy JoN-1sa1un-15H 00€¥ 2600000010  00°000°CT
sarjddng pue sjenaepy / 9jqeorddy JON-1SaIUN-1D 00€¥ 1600000010  00°000°C1
sarpddng pue s[eLjejy / 9[qeorddy JON-IsoIuN- 1D 00€¥ 0600000010  00°000°CI
sarjddng pue sjeuojely / 9[qeorddy JoN-1saIuN-1D 00€¥ 6800000010  00°000°LT 00°000°%6 NOLLALILSNI Odd 1LOddd ANOH AHL  S000Z66L
110 pue [on ‘SAIL[, / 09€ TSO00TESET  00°000°C
[10 pue [on] ‘saxt], / o[qeorjddy 10N-1sa1un-4D 09¢¥ 8010000010  00°000°81
11O pue [on] ‘sa1], / o[qeat[ddy JON-1saIuN- 10 09€¥ 8600000010  00°000°81 00°000°8€ VI9VH V140 ALID  +000Z66L
so1ddng pue s[ensiel / 2[qeorjddy J0N-IsaIu)-1D 00€¥ 8600000010  00°00S°T 00°00SC "ONI '0D TIVM@IVH NOLONLINAH  £000Z661L
TITGANON INNOIV TVIOL JYOANTA  TAGIWNN
INNODOV INNODDV 0od 0od



608511 ;WL JULIN) <€0L0OT0 FPA> 0100d :al Hoday
£202/10/60 :alR( WALND p ON 98ed 66010SA Al 1s(]
[01U0D) 1834 / PAIOLISAIU() D 0LSS L110000010  00°00S
101U0D) 1534 / PADLISAIU() 1D 0LSS ST10000010  00°00L
[01U0D) 183 / PAAOLISAIU()-D 0LSS €110000010  00°00S 00°008‘y dI'liond  €100Z66.L
[01U0D) 1834 / PAOLNISAIU()-ID 0LSS T¥10000010  00°009
[01u0D) 1534 / PADLISAIUN~ID 0LSS 1¥10000010  00°009
[0Ruo)) 1534 / PIAOLSAIU[)~1D) 0LSS 610000010  00°009
[01U0D) 1834 / PAAOLISAIU() -0 0LSS LET0000010  00°009
[01U0D) 1834 / PADLISAIU()-JD 0LSS 1210000010 007009
[01u0D) 1534 / PADLISAIU()-1D) 0LSS L110000010  00°009
[o1u0D) 3834 / PAAOLISAIU()-D 0LSS ST10000010 007009
[01U0)) 1594 / PAIOLISAIU[)-1D 0LSS £110000010  00°009 00°008‘y A O0gd  TI00Z66L
sjoo/sireday / 91qear[ddy JON-ISIUN-ID €£96 8010000010  00°005°T 00°00S‘Y "ONI HAMONWNMVT LSAD  1100Z661L
[onuo)) 1834 / 9|qedddy JoN-IseIu) - 1D 0LSS 8010000010  00°00S
[onuo)) 1594 / a1qedniddy JoN-Iseruf) -0 0LSS 9010000010  00°00S
[onuo)) 1594 / 3qedrddy JON-IseIuN- 1D 0LSS SO10000010  00°00S
[onuo)) 1534 / 9[qearddy JoN-IsaIu()-JD 0LSS 010000010  00°00S
Jonuo)) 1834 / s]qeorjddy J0N-1saIu) - 1D 0LSS €010000010  00°00S
[onuo)) 1834 / 9[qeorddy JoN-1saIuN)-1D 0LSS TOT10000010  00°00S
[onuo)) 1534 / 31qednddy J0N-Iserun- 1D 0LSS 1010000010  00°00S
[01u0)) 1834 / 9]qeo1[ddy 10N-1saIUN- 1D 0LSS 0010000010  00°00S 00°000y ADIAYAS TVAOWAY A9 ANOD 49 0I00Z661L
sarddng pue seusieiy / 9[qeorjddy JoN-1saIun-10 00€¥ 8600000010  00°0SL 00°0SL ANOZOLOV  6000Z66L
sa1ddng pue sjeusiey / 2[qedrddy JoN-1sa1uN-15H 00€¥ 8600000010  00°00S
sarjddng pue sjensjel / 9qedddy JoN-1saIun-1H 00£¥ 9600000010  00°000°T
sarddng pue s[eLiajely / 9[qeol[ddy JON-1S21UN)-1D 00£¥ $600000010  00°00S
sarjddng pue s[eLose]y / 9[qedrddy JoN-IseIun-10 00£b £600000010  00°00S
sarjddng pue sjeLsjel / 21qedddy JoN-1saIuN-1D 00€¥ 2600000010  00°00S
sarddng pue sjeusiel / 9]qednddy JoN-1saxuN-1D 00€¥ 1600000010  00°00S
sxx UAANILNOD %% 8000Z66.L
TI9ANIN INNOIWV TVIOL JOANIA  UIIGINN
INNODDV INNODDV 0od od

€207/1€/LO0OL  €207/10/L0 NOIA

£207/11/60 ONILIAW STALSNUL 4O QIVOL
LIOdTA TIVLAA YHAHO ASVHOUN

ds LNIOf TTHMO'T



60:8S:¥1 [OUIL], JUSLIND <€0L0T0 ToA> 0100d :QI Hodoy
£202/10/60 :aje(] JUALIND g 'oN 8ed 66010Sd Al 1es)
souBRUSUIEAl 10 sireday / 9]qedl[ddy JON-ISaIUN- 1D 0£9S £600000010 0070051
souruUIRA] 10 sitedsy / aqest[ddy JoN-1sa1UN -0 0€9S 7600000010 0070051
soueuAuIE 10 siteday] / d[qeorjddy JoN-1s21uN-1D 0£9S 1600000010 0070051
souruduIE 10 siredoy / 9]qeor[ddy JON-1Sa1UN)-ID 0£9S 0600000010  00°005°T
sourUUIE 10 s1reday / 9qed1[ddy J0N-Ise1UN-1D 0£9S 6800000010 007005 00°000°CT YOWHIN » SSV'IO YALLLIHM LSVA  8T00Z661L
souguduIE 10 snedoy] / 2[qeor|ddy JON-1sa1uN-D 0£9S 8600000010  00°000°0T 00°000°01 ‘ONI ADIAYAS TALL STAINVA  LI00Z66L
souruduIE)N 10 siedoy / ojqeoriddy JON-1SaI1UN)-ID 0£9S 8600000010  00°000°T
souruBjuIEN 10 sieday / 9]qearddy JoN-Ise1un-1D 0£9S 9600000010  00°000°T
soueuUIEN 10 sireday / s[qeorjddy JoN-1seru)-1D 0€9S 600000010 007000
souBUAUIEA 10 s11eday] / 9[qeor|ddy JoN-1sa1uN)-1D 0£9S £600000010 007000
souruduIRA 10 siedoy / 2]qeorjddy J0N-1Sa1UN)-ID 0£9$ 7600000010 000001
souruduIEA 10 siredey] / 2]qeoriddy J0N-1s21UN)-JD 0€9S 1600000010  00°000°T
20uBRUSUIEA 10 s1reday / oqedt[ddy J0N-IsaIuN- 1D 0€9S 0600000010  00°000°T
soueudUIE 10 sireday] / o[qeoriddy JoN-1sarun-1D 0€95 6800000010  00°000°T 000008 ANVJNOD OTIONVA  9100Z66L
sorjddng pue sfeusje]y / 9[qesrjddy 1oN-1sa1uN)-1D 00£¥ 8600000010  00°00S 00°00S ANVJWOD SLAVd ASVD  ST00Z66L
sarjddng pue sjeusiel / ojqeoriddy JoN-1saIuN-15 00€Y 8600000010  00°00S
sorgddng pue sjeuele]y / o[qeolddy JoN-1soIun-ID 00€+ 9600000010  00°00S
sor1ddng pue sjeusjely / 9[qeor[ddy JoN-1saIuN-40 00€¥ S600000010  00°00S
sarjddng pue sjeuojely / 9[qeoriddy 10N-1s21u-10 00£¥ 2600000010  00°00S
sarddng pue senaiely / ojqeonddy JoN-IsaIuN-1D 00€Y 1600000010  00°00S
sarjddng pue s[euajejy / o[qeo1ddy JoN-samu- 1D 00€¥ 0600000010  00°00S
sayddng pue s[eusyepy / o[qeorjddy Jo0N-1saIu) - 1D 00 6800000010  00°00S 00°00S°€ VIIVH VI TAIVM@IVH SONINNVD  +#100Z66L
[00u0D) 183 / PALNSAIUN- 1D 0LSS TF10000010  00°00S
[0nu0D) 3594 / PAOLUSAIUN-ID 0LSS 110000010 00700
[01u0D) 159 / PAISLISAIUN -1 0LSS 6£10000010  00°000°T
[01U0D) 1534 / PAIOLISAIU() - 1D 0LSS LET0000010  00°00L
[00u0D) 3894 / PIIOLYSAIU()-ID) 0LSS 1210000010  00°00L
sxx HAANLINOD #xx €100Z661L
NOILATHDSAA IDATIO 7 OdANiaSd TAGINNN INOORV TvIiOoL JOANIA  TAFGINON
INNODDV LNAODDV od od

€207/1€/L0OL  €207/10/L0 INOUA €207/T1/60 ONILAAN STALSNAL 40 MIAVOd

LIOdT TIVLAd dHAHO ASYHOUNd
ds INIOf TTHMOT



60:8S'v1 oW, JuaUn) <€0L0T0 TA> 0100d :QJ Hoday
£202/10/60 :91B(] 1UBLINY 9 :ON 95ed 66010Sd Al s
satyddng pue s[eusiely / 9|qed1jddy J0N-1seIuN-D 00€¥ 8600000010  00°00S 00°00S SLUVd OLNV VAVN  ZT00Z66.L
sarjddng pue sjeuslel / 9[qeorjddy J0N-1sa1uN-4D 00€¥ 8600000010 00°000°T
sarjddng pue sjeuaiely / 3[qesrjddy Jo0N-1seIuf)-D 00£¥ 9600000010  00°000°T
sa1ddng pue s[ensiel / 9]qeorddy JoN-IsaIuN -1 00£F $600000010 000001
sarfddng pue sjeuselN / o]qeorddy JoN-1saIu)-1D 00€¥ £600000010  00°000°T
sorddng pue sjeuse / 9[qeoriddy J0N-1sa1uN-1D 00€Y 7600000010 00°000°T
sarjddng pue s[eL)ely / o[qeorjddy J0N-1seIu) - 00€Y 1600000010  00°000°T
sa1ddng pue s[ensiel / 91qeorjddy JoN-IsaIuN-1D 00£¥ 0600000010  00°000°1
sarjddng pue sfeusiey / 9[qeorddy JoN-1saIun-1H 00£¥ 6800000010 000001 00°000°8 SAMOT  T1Z00Z66.L
sarjddng pue s[euslepy / o[qeorjddy J0N-1seIuN-D 00£¥ 8600000010  00°000°T
sa1ddng pue sjesiejy / 9[qeoriddy JoN-IseIuN-JD 00€¥ 9600000010  00°000°T
sar[ddng pue sjeusjely / ajqeorddy 10N-IsaIUN-1D 00£¥ S600000010 007000
sarjddng pue sjeuajejy / ojqeonjddy JoN-1so1UN- 15 00€¥ £600000010 000001
sarjddng pue s[euojejy / 9[qeo[ddy JoN-1saIu-1D 00€¥ 7600000010  00°000°T
sarddng pue s[ensiely / o[qeorjddy JoN-1saIu) -1 00£Y 1600000010 00°000°T
sarjddng pue sjeuaely / ojqesiddy J0N-IsaIUN- 1D 00€¥ 0600000010 00000
sarjddng pue s[euselN / 9[qeorjddy 10N-1saIUN-1D 00£¥ 6800000010  00°000°T 0070008 ANVJNOD TIVM@IVH STINVE  0700Z66.L
sarjddng pue s[eusiey / JAASND-VIY 00EY £000001S8T  00°000°0T
sa1jddng pue sjenolE]N / JOOIGABIA/[RIPOISND-VINTY 00€¥ ZZOOO1S8I0  00°000°0C
sarjddng pue s[eLSIRIN / Q2 IN/281-[BIPOISND-JATY 00€¥ L10001S810  00°000°01
sar1ddng pue s[eLRIEIN / "0 AASND-VINII 00€Y 6000015810 00°000°01
sarjddng pue s[ensjely / ei[Q/ASN)-VIN I 00€¥ LO000ISSTIO  00°000°0T
sonddng pue sjensiely / DINASID- VI 00€¥ 9000015810  00°000°0T
so1ddng pue s[eLdjey / ASBIA-ISND/ VI 00€¥ S00001S810  00°000°0T
sorfddng pue s[eusIeIA / UEPIOfASN)- VAT 00¢¥ #00001S810  00°000°0T 00°000°0¥ L AT1ddNS IDNVNALNIVIN AASVTO  6100Z661L
soueuduIRA 10 siredey / ojqeoriddy J0N-1s21UN-dD 0£95 8600000010  00°00S°T
souruAuIE\ 10 sitedoy / 2]qeorddy JON-1S21uN- 1D 0£95 9600000010 0070051
sourUSIUIEIA 10 sireday / 2]qednddy JoN-IsaIuN-JD 0€9S #600000010  00°00S°T
»ex QAONLLNOD xxx  ST00Z66L
NOILJTIDSAd LOATdO / O dASd TIGANON INNOIV TVIOL JOANIA  TAIGIAON
INNODDYV INNODIV 0od od

€207/1€/L0O0L  €207/10/L0 WOYUA €707/11/60 ONILAIIN SHALSNIL 40 @IVOd

LIOdHTY TIVLAd ¥3AJ0 ASYHOINd
dsS LNIOf TTHMO'T



€207/1€/L0OL  €20T/10/L0 INOYUA

€20T/11/60 ONILIIW SHALSNUL 40 AAVOod

60:85:H1 ‘oIl L, Uy <€0L0OTO TOA> 0100d :q] Hodey
£202/10/60 :ere(] JULLIND L TON o3ed 660L0SA Al esn
sar1ddng pue seuajel / djqeorjddy J0N-1saIUN-1D 00€¥ 0600000010 00°000°C
sarddng pue sjeLdrely / 91qed1[ddy JoN-IsaIu- 10 00€¥ 6800000010  00°000°C 00°000°vT ‘0D SIWVITIIMNIMYAHS FHYL  8T00Z66.L
so1ddng pue s[eusiely / 9jqesriddy JoN-IsaIuN-15H 00€t 8600000010  00°000°1
sar1ddng pue s[eusjel / 9[qeoriddy J0N-1saIuN- 1D 00€¥ 9600000010  00°000°T
sarddng pue sjeusiepy / 9]qesrjddy J0N-1saIUN D 00€Y S600000010  00°000°T
sarddng pue sjeusiejy / o[qeorjddy J0N-1saIU) - 1D 00€¥ £600000010  00°000°T
sor[ddng pue sjeusje]y / sjqeo1jddy JoN-1saIuN-JD 00€¥ 2600000010  00°000°T
sar[ddng pue sjeusjely / 9[qes1jddy joN-1se1un-4D 00€Y 1600000010  00°000°T
sarjddng pue sjeusiel / Aqeo1ddy JoN-1sa5uN-1D 00€% 0600000010 00°000°T
sarjddng pue sjeusjey / djqeorddy JoN-1sarun-1D 00€Y 6800000010  00°000°T 00°000°8 LONAOYd NOLLDMILSNOD LSVAHLAOS  LT00Z66L
sarddng pue sjeusiepy / 9[qeorddy JoN-1sIuN-1D 00£Y 8600000010  00°00S°T
sarddng pue sjeusjepy / 91qed1jddy 10N-IsaIU)-4D 00£¥ 9600000010  00°005°1
so1iddng pue sjeLaje]y / 91qes1jddy J0N-1saIu()- 1D 00€H S600000010  00°00S°T
sarddng pue sjeusiely / o[qeorddy JoN-1sosun-1H 00€Y £600000010 0070051
sorddng pue sjeLsyely / dqeo1ddy JoN-1saIu- 1D 00€¥ 2600000010  00°00S°T
sarddng pue s[erdre]y / 2qeonjddy JoN-1sa1u)- 1D 00€Y 1600000010  00°00S‘T
sa1ddng pue s[ewrdjely / 9qedtjddy JoN-Isarun -1 00£¥ 0600000010 0070051
sarddng pue sjensiepy / ajqeorddy 10N-1so1u)- 1D 00£¥ 6300000010  00°00S°T 00°000°TT LATLNO ATVSATOHM ONIFINATd  9Z00Z66.L
[011U0)) 1834 / PAIIISAIUN)- 1D 0LSS LT100000T0  00°0SL
[o1u0y) 153 / PAILISAIUN)-TD) 0LSS STT0000010  00°0SL
[01U0D) 1834 / PARILISAIU() - 1D 0LSS £110000010  00°0SL 00°0SZ°T *ONI NOLLJO LSAd  ST00Z66.L
Joxu0)) 1894 / PRSI -D 0LSS 6£10000010  00°008
[oRuoY) 1894 / PAIOLNSAIU() -1 0LSS LET0000010 007008
[o1uOY) 1834 / PAdLUSaIUN-4D 0LSS 1210000010  00°008
[01u0D) 1594 / PAIILISAIU()-1D 0LSS LT10000010  00°008
[o1U0)) 1534 / PAIAIISAIUN) - 1D 0LSS STI0000010  00°008
[o1u0D) 1S9 / PAIIINSAIUN - 1D 0LSS €£110000010 007008 00°008‘ *ONINOILJO ILSHd  +700Z66.L
sosea] 7 s[e)usy / 9[qeorjddy J0N-1seru)- 10 019 8600000010  00°000°ST 00°000°ST TVINTY INTFAJINOT OAd  €700Z661L
NOITATIOSAd LOATdO 7 0dNaSd TIGNNN INNONV TVIOL YOANIA  UITIIANN
INQODDV INNODDV od od

LIOdTd TIVLAA JHAHO ASYHOUNd
ds LNIOf TTIMO'T



€207/1€/L0OL  €T07/10/L0 WOUA

€207/11/60 ONILTAN STALSNYUL 40 d4vO4d

LIOdT TIVLIA Jddd0 ASYHOANd
ds LNIOf TTIMO'1

60:8S:v1 [wi, jusuny <€0L0T0 1PA> 0100d a1 Hodoy
€202/10/60 :91e( JUSLIN) g 'ON3ed 66010Sd Al 1980}
souruaUIR 10 s1reday / 9[qednddy JON-Ise1uN-1D 0€9S £600000010  00°000°S
soueuduIely 10 sireday / o|qeonddy JoN-1se1un-1D 0£9S 7600000010  00°000°S
soueuRuIR)A 10 sireday / 9[qedtjddy JoN-1sa1uN-1D 0€9S 1600000010  00°000°S
souruaUIR 10 sireday / 9[qeor[ddy JoN-1seuN)- 10 0€9S 0600000010  00°000°S
souruauIEy 10 sueday / s[qeor|ddy JoN-1sarun- 10 0€9S 6800000010  00°000°S 00°000°€E ONIGINNTd SINYIA  PE00Z66.L
sa1ddng pue s[eusiel / 2[qeorddy JoN-IsIu)-1D 00€¥ 8010000010  00°000°0T 00°000°01 ONIUVIS LANL  ££00Z66.L
sourUSUIRIA 10 s1reday / 9[qedddy JON-IsaIuN)-1D 0£9S 9600000010  00°0SL
9oUBUSUIRIA 10 sireday / sjqeonddy JON-ISaIU()- 1D 0€9S €600000010  00°0SL
souruuIRIA 10 sxeday / o[qedrddy joN-1se1un- 10 0£9S 7600000010  00°0SL
soueudUIR 10 sireday / 9[qedrddy JoN-1sa1uN)-1D 0£9S 1600000010  00°0SL
souruajuIRI 10 s1reday / 9[qednddy JoN-1serun-JD 0€9S 0600000010  00°0SL
sourUUIBA 10 sueday / ojqesrddy JoN-1se1un-10D 0€9S 6800000010  00°0SL 00°00S‘¥ ANVAINOD ADIAYAS SOI  TE00Z66.L
saiddng pue sjeuaely / 91qeo1|ddy JoN-Iseruf) -0 00£Y 8600000010  00°000°S 00°000°S (VORIAIV HLYION) STVINTY AALINA  TE€00Z66.L
sa1ddng pue sjeudrely / 9]qesijddy JON-IsaIu)- 1D 00€Y 8600000010  00°000°T
sa1iddng pue s[eutely / djqedt[ddy JoN-IsaIu-1D 00€¥ 9600000010  00°000°T
sarddng pue sjeusiel / 21qednddy JoN-1serN-1D 00E¥ $600000010  00°00S
sa1ddng pue s[eLaiel] / 9qed1[ddy JON-ISIU()- 1D 00€¥ £600000010  00°000°T
sarddng pue sjeLarely] / 9qesrjddy JoN-1sa1uf)- 1D 00€¥ 7600000010  00°000°T
sarjddng pue s[eusely / 9jqeorddy JoN-1semun-1D 00€¥ 1600000010  00°000°T
sarddng pue seusiel / 91qeorddy JoN-1seruN -0 00€¥ 0600000010 00°000°T
sarjddng pue sjeusey / [qedddy J0N-1sa1uN)- 1D 00€¥ 6300000010  00°000°T 00°00S°L ONI NOLLVYAOIAAY GALINO  0€00Z66.L
sa1ddng pue s[eLayel] / 9]qeotjddy JON-IseIu()- 1D 00€¥ 8600000010  00°00S°T
sarddng pue sjeusiel / djqeorddy JoN-1serun-ID 00€¥ 9600000010 00°000°C
saiddng pue s[eLaIe / 21qed1|ddy JON-ISaIU() -5 00€Y S600000010  00°00S
sa1ddng pue s[eusiel / 91qeorddy JON-IsaIu) -1 00€¥ £600000010  00°000°C
saddng pue sjeusiely / 9|qes1ddy JoN-1serun-1H 00+ 7600000010  00°000°C
sa1yddng pue s[eniel / 9]qeoriddy J0N-ISaIuN-1D 00€¥ 1600000010  00°000°C
2xx AANLINOD #xx 8700Z66L
TIGINON INNOIV TVIOL JAOANAA UAGINN
INNOJDV INNODIV od od



€T0T/1€/LOOL  €207/10/L0 WOYA

€207/11/60 ONILIAW STALSNAL A0 @IVOL
LIO0d4dHd TIVLHd ¥3dd0 ASYHOUNd

dsS LNIOS TTHMO'T

60:85:¥1 ‘SWL, JUSLINY) <€0LOTO “IOA> 0100d I Hodoy
€202/10/60 :97e(] JUSLIND 6 ON °3ed 660L0SA Al 188}
sorjddng pue s[euajely / s1qeorddy JoN-1serun- 1D 00€¥ 0600000010  00°00S‘T
sa1yddng pue s[eusie|y / 9[qeorddy JoN-IsaIuf)-1D 00€¥ 6800000010  00°00S°T 00°00S‘p1 OIALDATI ATVSTTOHM SHALTVA  6£00Z66L
souRUUIRIA JO sireday / 9[qedtddy JoN-Iseru)-1D 0€9S 8600000010  00°000°T
souruUIRIA 10 sareday / o[qedrddy Jo0N-1sa1u)- 1D 0€9S 9600000010  00°000°C
souruduIRIA 10 siredoy / 9[qedrddy JoN-1s21un-10 0€9S S600000010  00°000°C
souruUIRIN 10 sireday / o[qedtjddy JoN-1se1uN-1D 0£9S £600000010  00°000°C
soueudUIBN J0 sireday / 9[qedrddy JoN-1se1uN-1D 0€9S 7600000010  00°000°C
sourUBUIRIA 10 s1reday / 9]qednddy JoN-IseruN-1D 0£9S 1600000010  00°000°C
souruRUIE 10 sireday / 2]qeanddy JoN-1se1un-4D 0€9S 0600000010  00°000°C
sourudUIRIN 10 sureday / o[qearddy JoN-1sa1u-1D 0€9S 6800000010  00°000°C 00°000°SY ONI ONIFINNT SHIV  LE00Z66L
sarpddng pue s[etejejy] / o[qeorddy JoN-1sa1uN- 15 00€¥ 9600000010  00°00S
sa1ddng pue s[eLdrely / 2qeot[ddy JoN-IseIuf)- 1D 00£¥ $600000010  00°00S
so1ddng pue seudyely / 91qeo1|ddy JoN-Iseru- 10 00£¥ £600000010 00700
sarjddng pue sfeusie / 9]qeorddy JoN-IsaIuf) -1 00£Y T600000010  00°00S
satddng pue s[eaiejy / 9[qed1[ddy JON-IsaIu() - 1D 00€Y 1600000010  00°00S
saddng pue s[eusiel / 9[qeorddy JoN-Iserun-15H 00€¥ 0600000010  00°00S
sorddng pue sjeLaiely / dqedtjddy JoN-1sa1uf) -5 00€¥ 6800000010  00°00S 00°00S‘€ AWLL NVOIIAWY  9€00Z661L
sanddng pue seusrely / 91qeor[ddy JoN-Iseru)-J0D 00£¥ 8600000010 00700
sariddng pue s[eajepy / 91qeo1[ddy JoN-1saIu- 1D 00€¥ 9600000010  00°00S
sariddng pue s[ewayely / 91qes1[ddy 10N-IsaIuf)- 10 00€¥ S600000010  00°00S
sa1ddng pue s[eusIEl / 2[qedrddy J0N-Iseru)- 1D 00€Y £600000010  00°00S
sa1ddng pue s[eLdIel] / d]qeorjddy JON-IseIu)- 1D 00€Y 7600000010  00°00S
sarddng pue sjeuasely / djqeot|ddy JoN-IseIu-10 00€Y 1600000010  00°00S
sa1ddng pue sjeuasely / 91qeor[ddy JoN-iserun-10 00€Y 0600000010  00°00S
sorddng pue s[euajepy / 91qes1[ddy JoN-1saIun -1 00€¥ 6300000010  00°00S 00°000°y YAONIVID  SE€00Z66.L
aourUSUIBN 10 sitedsy / 9[qedl[ddy JON-IsaIuf)-4D 0€9S 8600000010  00°00S°T
souruuIRIA 10 sireday / o[qedrddy j1oN-1se1un-JD 0€9S 9600000010  00°000°S
soueuduIRIA 10 siredoy / 9[qearddy JoN-1sa1uN)-1D 0£9S S600000010  00°00S‘T
sxx UANNIINOD sxx r€00Z66.L
NOIT4dTUDSHId LDATIO 7 0Odnasd YAGNON T NV Tviol JOANTA  TIAIINNN
INNODDV INNODDV od od



soriddng pue s[euaiely / ajqesrddy JoN-1s21U)}-ID
sa1pddng pue s[euayely / 9[qeorjddy 1oN-1se1un) - 10
soijddng pue srerrarely / 9jqeorddy JoN-1so1uN)- 1D
sorjddng pue s[euoely / 21qed11ddy J0N-IsaIU) - D)
sorjddng pue s[enajely / 21qes1ddy 10N-1sa1u) -0
sarpddng pue s[eusiely / 9[qeorddy JoN-IseIun-19
so1pddng pue sjeneiely / 9[qeot[ddy 10N-1sa1un-I0
soriddng pue srerrajey / o[qesrjddy 10N-1se1uN - 1D

sorpddng pue sferzajey / 91qestjddy 10N-1so1UN- 1D
sarjddng pue sjeuarely / 21qestddy J0N-IseIUN -0
sorjddng pue sjensyely / 9[qeorddy JON-1SoIUN - 10
sorjddng pue s[eusjely / 9[qeorddy JoN-Iseru-1H
sa1pddng pue sjeusyely / 9[qeorjddy J0N-IsaIun-10
sa1ddng pue sjeLajely / a1qesrddy 1o0N-1s21uU)- 1D

NOILdIIDSAA LOALHdO /

€20T7/1E/L0OL  €20¢/10/L0 INOYUA

00¢% 8010000010
00€t 9010000010
00<¥ ¥010000010
00tl £010000010
00¢¥ 2010000010
00¢¥ 1010000010
00¢t 0010000010
00¢t 9600000010

00¢¥ 8600000010
00¢¥ 9600000010
00¢€¥ $600000010
00€¥ €600000010
00¢¥ 2600000010
00¢t 1600000010

HHIINNN

INNODIV

00°005°S
00°00S
00°00S
00°00S
00°00S
00°00S
00°00S
00°00S
00°000°C
00°005°€
000051
000081
00°005°T
00°00S°T

INNOIWV
JINNODIV

9°9ST°760°T
00°000°02
00°000°T
9p*9ST°0L0°T

00°000°6

TV.LOL
O0d

£207/11/60 ONILAAW STALSNYUL 40 AAVOd
LIOdTY TIVLAd JHdHO ASVHOANd

ds INIOf TTIMO'T

:SIIPIQ) ISBYIINJ JO Junowy [Bjo],
[ejol. 81 punyg

‘830l €1 punyg
‘[ej0L [0 punf

‘ONI HIMONNMYVT LSHd 0+v00Z66.1L
xxx AAANILNOD #xx 6£00Z66L
JYOANIA  HHIIANNN

Od



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Consolidated Check Register Listing Report ACTION/
2023/24 #2 (RATIFICATION)

The Consolidated Check Register Listing Report 2023/24 #2 is recommended for approval.
The consolidated check register lists all warrants issued July 1 through July 31, 2023.

DB/ds

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
X-B2-1



00:Z0:ST WL }ua4an)y I 1035139 9yD) parepl[osuo)) :gooedd doday
€20T7/10/60 :31eqIud1Iny a3eq 010§ astud( - 660.10SA 13801

68°LT SI M €20T/P1/L0 HO  TVNIAETOTANNL SAOO0d dVLS dATOD LO00066N €L8€0000 66
S6'€S9 SI M €20T/¥1/L0 HO  TVNIAETOTANNL AdIvVA dOOM.LATEd 000066 N 7L8€0000 66
05°79¢ SI M €20T/P1/L0 HO  TVNIAETOTHANNL S9fe§ [ereunuon ST100066N 1L8¢0000 66
6L799C SI M €20T/v1/L0 HO 9NIFY "d VOINOY NOXIA VOINOY 8T9¢066A 0L8€0000 66
00'¥8t SI MW €CoT/v1/L0 HO H44 DI'T VII'IO SHOIAYAS TVIOOS 40 LNHINLIVJdIA 1S9€066A 698€0000 66
00°€9¢ SI M €20T/P1/L0 HO OITIOOUYdAVIN SHOIAYAS TVIDOS 40 "LdHd VO TS9E066A 898€0000 66
8S°LEEY SI MIN €20Z/v1/L0  HO V-L068971 TVSOdSIA dvVM 010006611 L98€0000 66
00°008‘1 SI M €20T/v1/L0 HO SRTSISY6 (ee]e PE10066A 998€£0000 66
00'SL1TE SI M €e0T/v1/L0 HO 10L0Z¢ DTTONINIVHTHNIDVINIL POrE066A §98€0000 66
8865 SI M €20T/v1/L0 HO 78780¢ SSANISNI YO THAVIdY dOVIAIL L800066A ¥98¢0000 66
00°00¢ SI M €20T/v1/L0 HO ¥CTO0TOHIANIT "ONI NOLLVDONdd dLVNINNTTI 9800066A £98€0000 66
TT081°C SI M €20T/¥1/L0 HO €0-18L66T1 "ONI 00 FIVMTIVH NOLONILINNH L£000664 798¢€0000 66
9L'1TC SI M €207/€1/L0 HO AVIPS-€CHT VAddvH V110 ALDD 61000664 198¢0000 66
oSl SI M €207/€1/L0 HO WDIIAT-8LTT06 SHMOT LYy000664 098€£0000 66
€€°6L9T SI M €207/¢1/L0 HO dVIPS-¢CHT VI4vH V140 ALID 61000664 658¢€0000 66
7T's9 SI MIN €202/C1/L0  HO dAdeCATNS YAdOO0D ¥04 STOOHOS 40 HONVITIV 0100066A 868€0000 66
GSEl SI M £207/C1/L0 HO ASACTATNL AdO00D Y04 STOOHODS 40 HONVITIV 0100066A LS8E0000 66
£0°02C°1 SI M €207/T1/L0 HO ANILIVINAILIINN SSHAIXHd NVIIIHINV £100066A 968¢€0000 66
L1°Z61 SI M £20T/TI/L0 HO €20TANNL ZAdOT VNILSTIHD 1€9€066A ¢¢8¢€0000 66
00°009 SI M £€20Z/C1/L0 HO 20 HOUNHD ALINOWNOD VHIY JdLLLIHM 109€066A ¥$8€0000 66
£6'708°8 SI M £€207/T1/L0 HO d-L0689C1 TVSOdSIA IIvVM 010006601 £68¢€0000 66
69'19 SI M €207/21/L0 HO 10097981v¢€TIS OTILDATH ATVSHTOHM STALTVM 69000664 768€0000 66
LS19¢ SI M £€20¢/T1/L0 HO P90€THLE66 VI SSHTdHIM NOZTIIA 60000661 158€0000 66
LTLITT SI MIN £20Z/C1/L0 HO ¥S88SLTSL NOILLNILLSNI Odd .LOdd3d HANOH dH.L 65000664 058£0000 66
¥0°€91 SI MIN £€20¢/C1/L0 HO £€207901¢250 HTIHONW-L 800006611 678¢0000 66
T ETTYI SI MW €207/C1/L0 HO L6ETTLO60081 SINHLSAS YdLVM NVEINdNs 900006611 8¥8€0000 66
I16'1SL SI M €207/C1/L0 HO €TLT909CS0 0D SVD VINFOATI'TVD NYHHLNOS $00006611 L¥8€0000 66
LTSLTTT SI M £€207/Cl/L0 HO €CLT900E£S0 NOSIOH VINJIOAITVO NYdHILNOS 0000661 98€0000 66
ov'evy SI M £€20T/C1/L0 HO VLSSPEE ATddNS HONVNHINIVIN AGSVID ££000664 S¥8€0000 66
80°SEY SI MIN £€20Z/C1/L0 HO 019801 DN IIMONWNMYT LSHL 11000664 y+8€0000 66
68°600°6 SI M €20T/T1/L0 HO ANNMHOMTSTHDS SSHAdXH NVOIIHINY €100066A £¥8€0000 66
$8°TLS 6T SI M €20T/T1/L0 HO dAAETATNS JAdO00D Y04 STOOHIS 40 HONVITIV 0T00066A Tr8¢0000 66
6T L6T9 SI M £20¢/C1/L0 HO ASAETATINS THAd00D Y04 STOOHDS 40 HONVITIV 0T100066A [78¢0000 66
9L'Z8T°1 SI M £207/T1/L0 _HO  NFATTAEZATINC AAJO0D MO4 STOOHDS 40 HONVITIV 0100066A 0+8£0000 66
junowy d3y) snyeyg AdLY, e Pdue) e MY sqng ERTTENEYEN | aure)N 93keg Al 294ed YD

£207/1€/L ©) £207/1/L W0y
19)S133Y Y99y pIjepIiosuo)
ds INIOIL TTAMOT



00:70:ST WL JUdLINY 4 1218130 20U PAEPL[OSUOD) (GO0ENT  1eday
£207/10/60 338 JudLIny) adeq 030§ astu_(J - 66010SA  -I3s)
66861 SI  MIN €T0T/YT/L0  HO ANIUHIMTSTHOS IA NIW 05100664 L06£0000 66
ge9¢e SI M €20T/YT/L0 HO9T-9 SMAYHLNITO SVNHOIVDI VNIIVIA 1SC0066A 906£0000 66
96'v6Y SI M €T0T/¥T/L0  HO ANNHDOMTISTHOS SHNOO0D INIf 8000664 S06£0000 66
01°ZTI SI MIN £20T/¥T/L0 HOTI9DOSSVAHSIAT SHNOOD NI 8000664 706£0000 66
61°THLY SI MW €T0T/¥T/L0 HO £70T HNNI-L08989 2 ANNA VAOTNOSTAANY NOSNIZILY  0Z00066A £06£0000 66
06081 SI M £202/17/L0 HO £L68EY ONI HYOLS AYVILITHHL ~ 0610066A 206£0000 66
00°8¢ SI M €207/17/L0 HO 660£991006 dSSVN  LTI0066A 106£0000 66
00'0L6°T SI M €207/17/L0 HO 811 our ppop ATeIqrT  8THE066A 006£0000 66
00°09¢ SI MIN €20T/17/L0 HO 638VL HANWOD 40 Yd9INVHD VHIV VIdVH VT 6600066A 668€0000 66
857€8¢€°L SI MIN £202/17/L0  HO 1€09 OTTOI LNAJIONI  0600066A 868¢£0000 66
00700S°T1 SI  MIN £20T/81/L0 HO 89 ANVJIANOD H44NVH £10066649 L68¢0000 66
00°0S1°81 SI MW £20Z/81/L0 HO €900¢1 TOOHOS HOIH NVILSTYHD YdILLIHM  0LPE066A 968£0000 66
STISS'SS SI M €20T/81/L0 HO 0TPTTI-£0 -THIAV ONI "OD NOLLOIYLSNOD "DddS 665E€066A $68£0000 66
SL'89S°LST SI M €T0T7/81/L0 HO  0TPTTI-£0 TddV DdTd % SNOILVIINNNNOD HAVM ddd  86S£066A ¥68€0000 66
00°TIL61 SI M £207/81/L0 HO L9V ANVJINOD 440 VH £1006664 £68£0000 66
00°059°T SI MIN €207/81/L0 HO  €T0T AN 90-€T SINVHIA DNIdFdd 8qp SOWV vVIgdd 90000661 768£0000 66
00°6¢S SI  MIN £€20¢/81/L0 HO 09ty HOUYIWINOD J0 YHEINVHD JdILLIHM  90C0066A 168¢0000 66
6v'S SI MIN €20T/81/L0 HO [MIETTOLOGLBYELST SLLATAVAS  08T0066A 068€0000 66
00°016°S SI  MIN £207/81/L0 HO CLOSSTSANI "ONI ONINYVHTHONVSSIVNIY ~ 9ST0066A 638¢0000 66
S6'190°T SI M €207/81/L0 HO T1L0S891TM-£T-S-9 "ONI VS HONVNIL LNAIAVNO  8%10066A 888¢€0000 66
SYev SI M €20Z/81/L0 HO HNIHd dXH3-dd IO VANHIOIE A TIHIINTA 1100664 L88€0000 66
00°098°T SI M €20T/81/L0 HO S9ETISTT LONILSIA TOOHOS NOLJHTINA  LLOO066A 988¢0000 66
00°000°F SI MIN €20¢/81/L0 HO 06L1 Twopedy % [euonowy [erolaeyeq  8%9E066A $88£0000 66
61'885°C AL MIN £207/81/L0 HO -S4Nd ¥T/€T V TOOHDS "AI'TVD 40 NOILVIOOSSVY  9000066A ¥88€0000 66
00°00¥% SI. MW £207/81/L0 HO 18S0IS¥9 18I(J [00YOS YSIH UOIU() WIAYRUY  (6SE066A £88€0000 66
0S°LOLST SI MW £C0T/LT/L0 HO PSESS6 DNILSHL % ONITIIINIONT AdN0N 000664 288¢0000 66
YLYITT SI M €CoT/LT/L0 HO PeviLyed ‘ONIL HDIMdONOWW  £T10066A 188€0000 66
00°09 SI M €e0T/LT/L0 HO 019LE ANVJNOD HIIAYHES SOI 8€000661 088€0000 66
65°€98°C€ SI M €20T/¥1/L0 HO  0TYTTI-L0-T#ddV ‘0D NOLLOMMELSNOD 'SOdd ISOd  909¢066A 6L8€0000 66
$0'8TS°S S MIN €20T/v1/L0 HO ¢-ddv ONI ONIFINNTd JHTTIN-TdAN - T09€066A 8L8¢0000 66
8L¥P9 SI M €20T/v1/L0 HO 20-989¢6C1 "ONI "0D HIVMTIVH NOLONIINNH L£000664 LLBEO000 66
00°051°91 SI M €20T/¥1/L0 HO £T07979 OQ-DVAH ONI ONINOLLIANOD dIV HLITd  655€066A 9L.8€0000 66
00°SLEE SI M £2c0T/v1/L0 HO DN ONI ONINOILIANOD dIV HLITH  6SSE066A §L8£0000 66
00°S¢ SI M £20%/¥1/L0  HO LYSOST JINTHL TVINTNNOYIANY SONE AdV'T $¥000664 ¥L8£0000 66
junowry a3yg) snjels on%_.—._ e Paue) ANed YY) sqng NUAIJIY JWeN oo%«n— a1 ovh«h HIYD

€20T/1E/L 03 £20T/T/L Woxy

J93S139Y YYD PIjepIosuo)

ds LNIOS TTIMO']



00:70:S1 W], judrIn) € 1918150y }o0yD) parepijosuo) :500eNg  :1doday
£207/10/60 938 JUALINT ey 030§ 8137 - 660.L0SA 13811
8L 90V SI M £207/8¢/L0 HO 86¢9 SHOIAYAS ¥dAvdT  ¥0T0066A 1¥6£0000 66
ISTLYTE SI MW £€207/8¢/L0 HO S6L6EVI8 ONINIVATHADVONED  LEO0066A 0r6£0000 66
75'89¢€°c Ad MIN €20T/LT/L0 HO 0TYTTl-c0-T#ddV V XVL A0 INHANLIVIEA VINIOII'IVD ~ 6666666A 6£6£0000 66
67'9L6Y SI MIN £207/LT/L0 HO SLS61d-988¢Y ONI ddddIMA  THIt066A 8€6£0000 66
00'009°1¥ SI M €207/Lt/L0 HO T -TToTrel YdS ALINNWNOD VIEVH VT J0 ALLD  #S9E066A LE6E0000 66
08°L89°E SI MIN €207/LT/L0 HO 891SISY6 400  VET0066A 9¢6£0000 66
[4A %14 S MIN €20T/LT/L0  HO ANNHIOMTSTHOS MAHAVIN AI'T0 68000664 SE6£0000 66
LT6EL'E SI M €20T/LT/L0 HO 67801 dVIHHL DLVIAAd YHHDVTIVD 20006668 $€6£0000 66
00'%9€°C SI  MIN €20T/LT/L0 HO 99761 FOTIIN % SSV'ID YHILLIHM LSVH LT000664 £€6£0000 66
69'100°1 SI MIN £207/LT/L0 HO C68870HIM V XVL 40 INHIWLIVJAd VINJOIITVD  6666666A 7£6£0000 66
000 adA NA €T07/LT/L0 HO dNNIINOD qmi§ panunuoy - proAIINOD AIOA 1£6€£0000 66
000 aA NWA €207/LT/L0 HO HANNIINOD qu§ panunuoy - proALLNOD dOA 0€6£0000 66
000 aan Wna £C0T/LT/L0 HO HANILNOD qmy§ panunuo) - prOALLNOD dIOA 626£0000 66
000 aan na €207/LT/L0 HO HANLLNOD qm§ penunuoy - pIoA LLNOD ' dIOA 876£0000 66
000 aA WNWA €20T/LT/L0 HO HANILNOD qm§ panunuoy - PIOALLNOD dIOA LT6£0000 66
007991 SI MIN £20T/LT/L0 HO L8999 dI'7d Ond 71000664 976£0000 66
7891 SI M £20Z/LT/L0 HO 865801 ‘ONI JHMONNMYVT 1534 11000664 $76£0000 66
00'606°8 SI M £207/LT/L0 HO §S180¢9 ONI NOILVINdd ANV d0IAVHIL 10006668 $26£0000 66
85°SSO°T SI  MIN €e0Z/LT7/L0 HO LO8LYS HALL NVOIIHAV  £0006664 £26£0000 66
Y0'8ES SI M €T07/LT/L0  HO ANNHOMTZSTHOS FHNAIVD NOSI'TV 0200664 TT6£0000 66
0T €9°1€ SI MIN £207/LT/L0 HO S19¢€T0T dO~0D "AY¥HES HAILLVILSININAY  8000066A 126€0000 66
66'680°F SI M £207/9T/L0 HO 100-2L695+0TT (VOIddNY HLYION) STYINTY 41NN 99000664 076£0000 66
STIeE SI M £202/9¢/L0 HO €Ce1L0ETo0 0D SVD VINYOAI'TVO NIFHINOS  $00006611 616£0000 66
65°S9¥°0C SI M £202/9¢/L0 HO £CCILOTI9 NOSIAH VINIOAI'TVD NYHHLNAOS  #00006611 816£0000 66
01'068°1 SI M £202/9¢/L0 HO 1LPE8L TVINAI LNINJINOF O0ad 75000664 L16£0000 66
6V 781 SI  MIA £202/97/L0 HO 10-68L90¢1 "ONI 0D HYVMAIVH NOLONILNOH L£000664 916£0000 66
88°I¢ SI MIN €20T/97/L0 HO OPELTYY96 YIDNIVID  085€066A S16£0000 66
£8°79¢ SI  MIN €207/sT/L0 HO £6LL08SS6 LANODYVH NI'TI4dIN NOLHONOH ~ ¥800066A ¥16£0000 66
0087961 SI MIN €20T/¥T/L0 HO TT1TSH- [ ddVAVd SNOIS TOOHOS TdINO  STTE066A €16£0000 66
760699 ST MIN €207/¥7/L0 HO dDddOTHETINNAL ALNOOD HONVHO 40 VOWA  T1TSE066A ¢16£0000 66
LL'OVS SI MIN €T0T/YT/L0  HO ANNHDMISTHIS SOVIVL AGNLIHM 1200664 116€0000 66
12> SI MIN €C0Z/vC/L0 HO 793dD0dDVHTIN VTIIAVd VIAN 15100664 016£0000 66
00°LIT‘8 SI M £20T/¥T/L0 HO £50°€20C ONI TIOMLAN DIVSON  ¥CT10066A 606¢0000 66
£6'98Y°¢ SI M £20T/ve/L0 _HO SBTEVSET ONI HOTIJONOW __ £Z10066A 806£0000 66
junowry 329y smeyg 2dAL e [Paue) e HIYD sqns UIIIY oureN dkeq a1 4ed A9RYD

€20T/1E/L 03 £20T/1/L Woly

J9)SISY YI9YD pPI)repIjosuo))

ds LNIOS TTIMO'T



00:Z0:S] :PWIL] JUdLIN) % 1918189y M2eyD) pAIEpIIosuUo)) :S00edd  3d0day

£207/10/60 :31EQ IUB1IND) a3eq 010§ 251U - 660L0SA 1981

$5°60L°006 [BI0[ puery)

$5°60L°006 ey, ued 66

1L°956°S 1PasIdaAdYy

¥8°TSL V68 :paunssy
¥9°¢09 SI M €20T/1¢/L0 HO £20THNV OTIILLVd 30N4d 2000066d 196€£0000 66
¥L0¥9 SI MIN €202/1¢/L0 HO 8SCE6LOE6O VI-SSHTHAIM NOZIFHAA 600006601 096£0000 66
6L0L1 SI MIN €207/1€/L0 HO  €O-P£TT6¥0066d @IOJIIVH dHIL  8810066A 656£0000 66
00°SL SI M £202/1¢/L0 HO £2¢0L01090 ATIG0ON-L 800006611 866£0000 66
6L'9S1 SI M £€20T/1¢/L0 HO €T61L06190 0D SVD VINMOAI'TYD NMAHLNOS $000066N1 LS6£0000 66
¥9°€09 SI M £20T/1€/L0 HO £20T DNV FIIVIN AHTTHHS 21000661 9¢6£0000 66
00°008 SI M £€20T/1€/L0  HO 00L1¥T q 40 901430 ALNNOD NINOVOL NVS 9910066A GS6£0000 66
10°689 SI M £€202/1¢/L0  HO £20C DNV HdTOANVYE ATVNOYI 11000664 ¥$6£0000 66
87'8G€°1 SI M €20T/1¢/L0 HO £20T DNV OHHOYHAVIN ANNHd 01000664 £56£0000 66
87°85¢°1 SI MIA €207/1¢/L0  HO €207 DNV dLITHM ADNVN 60000664 ¢S6£0000 66
¥9°¢09 SI M £207/1¢/L0 HO €207 HNV DVAVINNG LTIVOIVIN £1000664 166£0000 66
¥9°€09 SI M £€20T/1¢/L0 HO £20T HNV NVIANSTIV NAYHLV S100066d 056£0000 66
£€°07S°T SI M £207/1¢/L0 HO 61¥9L6809 D171 SUCHEBIIUNUWIWIOd[ST, aNuel)  OTFEL066A 6¥6£0000 66
20'69C SI M €20T/1¢/L0 HO £20T ONV SYHDOT ATAVD L000066d 8¥76¢0000 66
£8°6C SI M £20T/1¢/L0 HO £260800190 YHILNOYd 700006601 LY6£0000 66
¥9°€09 SI M €207/1¢/L0 HO €207 HDNV VDAA Adad 71000664 9r6£0000 66
87°8S¢°T SI M €20T/1¢/L0 HO €207 ONV ANV NATOUVD L¥7e066d S¥6£0000 66
¥9°¢09 SI M €20T/1¢/L0 HO £20T DNV NVINSTIV LNdJd4d 10000664 ¥y6£0000 66
66'L9TP1 SI M £€207/87/L0 HO 009+8500-£T ONI SHIMLSNANI QIVMOH $800066A €F6£0000 66
70°6£6°1 SI M £202/82/L0 _HO 9£9950C¢C ‘ONI NOSIVH SON  6Z10066A Zr6£0000 66
junowy 2340 smyeyg 9dA], 9je( PaUR) 9E( WY Sqng Uy sweN 4ed 1 92Led NYD

£T0T/TE/L 03 €T0T/T/L Woa}
J9)SI33Y 9y Pajeprjosuo)
ds INIOIL TTIMOT



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Acceptance of Notice of Completion, Tricore Enterprises Inc., ACTION

dba Quiel School Signs for Marquee Installation at El Portal
Elementary School

Background:

Public Contract Code Section 7107 defines the District’s obligation for final payment on a public
improvement project. The District must pay to a contractor all undisputed amounts within 60 days of
completion of a project. A Notice of Completion is not mandatory, nor does the date of its filing define
the completion of a project. Once a District does file the Notice of Completion with the County
Recorder’s Office, however, subcontractors and suppliers are allowed 30 days to file a valid stop notice
against any funds held by the District for final payment to the general contractor. Not filing the Notice
of Completion allows the 30-day window to extend to 90 days or more. If a valid stop notice is filed,
the District must withhold 125% to 150% of the value of the stop notice until a release is filed or other
legal resolution is reached.

Current Considerations:

On May 2, 2022, the Board of Trustees approved a construction contract with Tricore Enterprises
Inc., dba Quiel School Signs for Marquee Installation at El Portal Elementary.

This work is completed at El Portal Elementary and has been accepted by the District.

Financial Implications:

Financial Impact: $20,682
Funding Source: Fund 40.0 - Special Reserve for Capital Outlay Projects
Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees accept a Notice of Completion, Tricore Enterprises Inc.,
dba Quiel School Signs, El Portal Elementary, $20,682, and that the Superintendent or designee be
authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-B3-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject: Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report ACTION/
2023/2024 #2 Which Includes Hiring, Resignations, (RATIFICATION)

Contract Adjustments, and Retirements for
Certificated, Classified, and Confidential Employees

The attached Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report 2023/2024 #2, which includes
hiring, resignations, contract adjustments, and retirements for certificated, classified, and
confidential employees has been completed without irregularities and in compliance with the
law, District policy, administrative regulations, rules, procedures, and direction of the
supervisor and all information has been fully disclosed.

It is recommended that Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report 2023/2024 #2,
which includes hiring, resignations, contract adjustments, and retirements for certificated,
classified, and confidential employees, be ratified.

Attachment

JC/me

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-Cl1-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
EMPLOYER-EMPLOYEE RELATIONS/PERSONNEL REPORT 2023/24 #2

September 11, 2023
L. CERTIFICATED EMPLOYEES

A. CHANGE OF STATUS
EFFECTIVE END
NAME DATE DATE SITE COMMENTS
Van der Lee, Michelle 08/14/2023 09/25/2023 MG (AB3 75) FMLA Medical Leave
Simons, Rebecca 08/14/2023 10/06/2023 MG (AB375) FMLA Baby Bonding Leave
Simons, Rebecca 10/09/2023 12/23/2023 MG (AB375) FMLA Leave of Absence
Okoorian, Naomi 08/21/2023 08/25/2023 MG (AB375) FMLA Personal Necessity Leave
Rutledge, Stephanie 09/01/2023 10/01/2023 MA (AB375) FMLA Medical Leave
Russell, Anne 11/30/2023 12/15/2023 OL (AB375) FMLA Personal Necessity Leave
Cacioppo, Bianca 09/22/2023 09/29/2023 EP (AB375) FMLA Baby Bonding Leave
Cacioppo, Bianca 11/27/2023 23/22/2023 EP (AB375) FMLA Baby Bonding Leave
Razo, Becca 11/13/2023 11/17/2023 EP (AB375) FMLA Personal Necessity Leave
Liles, Amy 09/20/2023 09/28/2023 10 (AB375) FMLA Medical Leave
B. CERTIFICATED SALARIES
EFFECTIVE END DATE
NAME DATE SITE COMMENTS
Gonzalez, Leslie 08/14/2023 05/31/2024 EP Class 2 / Step 1. Units to move. Correction of
EER #11 2022-2023
Valdez, Michelle 08/14/2023 05/31/2024 MA Class 5 / Step 10. Units to move. Correction of
EER #11 2022-2023
C. CONTRACTS
EFFECTIVE END
NAME DATE DATE SITE COMMENTS
Takacs, Linda 08/01/2023 05/31/2024 DO Induction Program Coordinator
Hensley, Sharon 08/01/2023 05/31/2024 DO CARE Intern Program Coordinator
D. 2023/2024 Stipends
EFFECTIVE CLASS/COL/
NAME DATE — SITE COMMENTS
Peloquin, Karen 08/14/2023 05/31/2024 OL To be paid $300.00 per month, not to exceed

$3,000.00 for serving as an Intervention
Coordinator. To be paid from Supplemental
Funds

X-C1-2



Takacs, Linda

Hensley, Sharon

08/01/2023

08/012/023

05/31/2024

05/31/2024

To be paid $4,000.00 per month, not to exceed
$40,000.00 for serving as Induction Program
Coordinator. To be paid from General
Fund/Educator Effectiveness Grant.

DO To be paid $4,000.00 per month, not to exceed
$40,000.00 for serving as Intern Program
Coordinator CARE. To be paid from Out of
Home Care Funds

DO

* 1t is further recommended that these individuals be approved for substitute teaching at the rate of $200.00 per day and/or $50.00 an hour rate
(not to exceed six hours) as applicable and to include: Professional Development, Saturday School, Site Support Duties, Intervention, and
PowerSource, Power Up, ESY
**[t is further recommended that the individuals listed in Certificated Salaries for 2023-2024 is approved to instruct in the Intervention Programs.
The rate of pay is $50.00/hour and will be paid from Title I or LCFF Supplemental Grant Funds.

**1t is further recommended that individuals listed in Certificated Salaries for 2023-2024 serve as home school teachers, if needed, for the 2023-
2024 school year at a rate of $50.00/hour, not to exceed five hours per week, per student. Mileage will be paid at the IRS Standard Mileage
Rate for the 2023-2024 school year.

E.  Employment of substitutes effective 07/01/2023 for the 2023-2024 school year @ $200 per day and $100.00 per
half day rate, $250.00 long term sub rate, and $50.00 per hour* (not to exceed six hours) as applicable and to
include: professional development, Saturday school, site support duties, Saturday School. Intervention, PowerUp,
ESY and Power Source.

Bolanos, Vanessa

Venegas, Kristen
Shupe, Violeta

Laws, Paige

Villanueva Ramirez, Anthony

Ducoulombier, Jennifer

F.
NAME
Carr, Candice
Carr, Candice
Shupe, Violetta
Bukcner, Iris
Montemayor,
Kathleen
Vega, Sandy
Sturgill, Berea

Kang, Janice

Kang, Janice

Santillan, Ana
Behura, Alexander
Villa, Xiomara
Bement, Michael
Allsman, Kathryn

Russell, Joshua

SUBSTITUTE CHANGE OF PAY

EFFECTIVE
DATE

08/14/2023

10/09/2023

08/21/2023

08/14/2023

09/01/2023

11/30/2023

08/21/2023

09/22/2023

11/27/2023

END DATE

10/06/2023

12/22/2023

09/25/2023

05/30/2024

09/29/2023

12/15/2023

08/25/2023

09/29/2023

12/22/2023

SITE

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

X-C1-3

Buechler, Cary
Abarcha Hildago, Arely
Kang, Yisul (Janice)
Hunter, Abigail

Craton, Cole

Valdez, Bob

COMMENT

To be paid Long term rate of $250 daily as sixth grade teacher at
MG

To be paid Long term rate of $250 daily as sixth grade teacher at
MG

To be paid Long term rate of $250 daily as 4" grade teacher MG
To be paid Long term rate of $250 daily as Intervention OL

To be paid Long term rate of $250 daily as Virtual Academy
Teacher Macy Elementary

To be paid Long term rate of $250 daily as Special Education
Teacher Olita Elementary

To be paid Long daily rate of $200 daily as First Grade Teacher
Meadow Green Elementary

To be paid daily rate of $200 daily as Special Education Teacher
El Portal Elementary

To be paid Long term rate of $250 daily as Special Education
Teacher El Portal Elementary



Kang, Janice

Warner, Ellie

G.

11/13/2023 11/17/2023

09/20/2023 09/28/2023

CERTIFICATED JOB DESCRIPTIONS

Addition: Board Certified Behavioral Analyst

II.  CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES September 11, 2023

DO

To be paid daily rate of $200 daily as Special Education Teacher

El Portal Elementary

DO

To be paid Long term rate of $250 daily as 2 / 3 combo teacher at

Jordan Elementary

A. MONTHLY — GENERAL FUND
B. HOURLY — GENERAL FUND
NAME/ EFFECTIVE END RANGE/
EMPLOYEE ID# DATE DATE STEP SITE

Abbond, Karey 8/14/23 RS
Allsman, Katelyn 8/16/23 R16/S2 RS
Allsman, Marcella 8/16/23 R14/S5 OL
Allstun, Brenda 8/31/23 RS
Anaya, Arlene 8/10/23 R14/82 EP
Anaya, Arlene 8/16/23 R14/S2 EP
Aparicio, Gina 8/16/23 R15/82 MG
Armijo, Jessica 8/7/23 R21/88 RS
Barahona, Krystina 8/3/23 R18/S8 MA
Brena, Lisa 8/5/23 R23/86 MG
Brown, Matthew 8/16/23 JO
Brown, Matthew 8/16/23 JO

X-Cl1-4

COMMENTS

Resignation: Cafeteria Worker
Step Increase : Instructional Aide
Step Increase : Instructional Aide
Retirement : Instructional Aide

SE/MOD

Promotion: Instructional Aide to
Instructional Aide Early Learning TK
3.75 hours/5 days/ 10 months

Step Increase : Instructional Aide

Step Increase : Instructional Aide

Step Increase: Day Custodian

Step Increase: Night Custodian

Step Increase : Office Manager

Longevity : 10 years Classified

Step Increase : Day Custodian



Cacioppo, Sherrie 8/14/23

Cantrell, Kristen 8/1/23
Cardenas, Eva 8/15/23
Cardenas, Lauren 8/15/23
Cardenas, Marina 8/29/23
Castro, Claudia 8/10/23
Coelho, Julie 8/15/23
Connolly, Luz 7/31/23
Coronado, Jessica 6/2/23
Costello, Jennifer 8/17/23
Costello, Jennifer 8/11/23
Coutts, Carrie 7/27/23
Coutts, Carrie 08/15/2023
Cramer, Samantha 8/8/23
Cunningham, Susan 7/27/23
Daleo-DeSmith, Janet 08/20/23
Del Cid, Maria 8/17/23
Delorbe, Ruth 8/14/23
Dominguez, Martin 8/1/23
Dorling, Jane 8/14/23
Espinoza, Karina 8/14/23
Espinoza, Karina 8/15/23
Fonti, Caitlian 8/2/23
Fonti, Caitlian 8/16/23
Garica, Melissa 8/16/23
Garcia, Olivia 7/27/23
Gaitan, Wendy 8/15/23

R7/87

R14/82

R14/S1

CONF N/S7

R16/82

R18/82

R16/S1

R20/S2

R15/54
R18/S3

R18/S6
R20/S3

R18/S1

R15/81

R14/81

R7/S6

CL MG
R7/82

X-C1-5

MG

MA

JO

MA

DO

OL

DO

JO

MG
DO

DO

EP

JO

DO
DO
JO
RS

JO
RS

EP

EP

DO

MA

JO

MG

OL

Step Increase: Cafeteria Worker

Resignation: Noon Duty Aide

Promotion: Substitute Instructional Aide
to DLI Instructional Aide 3.75 hours/5
days/10 months

Promotion: Café Worker to Child
Development Assistant

Step Increase: Administrative Assistant
— Administrative Services/CL Personnel
Step Increase: Clerk Typist

Reclass: Expanded Learning Site
Coordinator

Additional Assignment: Substitute
Bilingual Instructional Aide
Resignation: Child Development
Assistant

Step Increase: Satellite Cafeteria Worker

Additional Assignment: Substitute
Expanded Learning Site Coordinator
Additional Assignment: Substitute
Health Tech

Promotion: Noon Duty Aide to
Instructional Aide ABA

Step Increase : Preschool Teacher

Resignation: Substitute Noon Duty Aide
Resignation: Substitute Noon Duty Aide
Step Increase: Instructional Aide

Promotion: Café Worker to Cafeteria
Manager
Step Increase : Night Custodian

New Hire: Library Media Technician 8
hours/5 days/1 1months

New Hire: Expanded Learning Site
Coordinator

Resignation: Expanded Learning Site
Coordinator

Additional Assignment: Substitute
Instructional Aide

Promotion: Substitute Noon Duty Aide
to Permanent Noon Duty Aide 1.50
hours/5 days/ 10 months

Step Increase: Cafeteria Worker

Resignation : Instructional Aide
SE/MOD

Step Increase: Site Supervisor/Preschool
Teacher Preschool



Gomez-Longo, Stephanie

Gonzalez, Kayla
Hernandez, Frances
Hernandez, Frances
Hoffman, Tabatha
Hoffman, Tabatha
Kim, Elizabeth

Kim, Hannah

Kennedy, Joelle

Lord, Dixie

Lujano Arteaga, Jose Raul

Marquez, Francisco

Martin, Jordan
Mize, Kelly

Mora, Jill
Mularkey, Elaine
Munoz, Rae-Lynn
Nunez, Marie
Ortiz, Irene

Osorio, Diego Leon
Carmona

Padilla, Yvette

Pardo, Cristian

Paz, Carrie

Perez, Shari

8/15/23

8/14/23

8/18/23

8/9/23

8/3/23

8/28/23

8/22/23

8/9/23

8/7/23

8/7/23

8/22/23

8/15/23

8/12/23

8/14/23

8/16/23

8/16/23

8/16/23

8/15/23

8/22/23

8/26/23

8/7/23

8/16/23

8/16/23

8/17/23

R14/S1

R20/S3

R18/23

R23/S1

R14/S1

R16/S2

R23/87

R15/82

CL MG
R4/87
R14/S7
R14/82
R14/82
R14/82

R14/82

CL MGNT/S5

R15/82

R14/83

X-C1-6

EP

OL

MG

JO

OL

DO

DO

OL

OL

RS

OL

DO

EP

JO

OL

JO

DO

OL

DO

DO

MG

OL

Promotion: Noon Duty Aide to
Instructional Aide Early Learning TK
3.75 hours/S days/10 months

New Hire: Preschool Teacher 8 hours/5
days/10 months

Step Increase : Clerk Typist
Long Term Sub: Office Manger

Resignation: Instructional Aide
SH/MOD

Rehire as Substitute Instructional Aide
SESA

Additional Assignments: Substitute
Instructional Aide

Promotion: Substitute Clerk Typist to
Permanent Clerk Typist 3.75 hours/ 5
days/10 months

Resignation : Instructional Aide SESA

Step Increase : Office Manger
Longevity : 10 years Classified

Promotion: Substitute Instructional Aide
to Permanent Instructional Aide
SE/MOD

Step Increase : Occupational Therapist

Step Increase: Instructional Aide
Step Increase : Instructional Aide
Step Increase : Instructional Aide
Step Increase : Instructional Aide

New Hire: Child Development Assistant
3.75 hours/5 days/10 months

Additional Assignments: Substitute
Instructional Aide

Longevity : 10 years Classified

Resignation : Substitute Instructional
Aide

New Hire: Network & Data Systems
Technology Supervisor 8 hours/5
days/12 months

Step Increase: Health Tech

Step Increase: Instructional Aide



Perez, Stephanie
Qureshi, Lovely
Ramirez, Donald

Rodia, Susan
Rodriguez, Sierra
Sainz, Geana

Sanchez, Alexandra
Sanchez, Kris
Sanford-Williams, Carol
Sato, Kay

Schafer, Michelle

Scott, Susan

Solorzano Fonseca, Casta
Spurgeon, Tamera

Straffon, Santy

Vazquez, Maricela
Vibanco, Andrea

Villarino, Pilar

Westerhold, Paul

Winik, Rebecca
Yamamoto, Yumi
Zarate, Laurie

Zepeda, Jennifer

8/1/23

8/16/23

8/2/23

8/29/23

8/16/23

8/15/23

8/16/23

8/14/23

8/29/23

8/16/23

8/15/23

8/29/23

8/16/22

8/16/23

8/15/23

8/12/23

8/14/23

8/15/23

8/15/23

8/29/23

8/12/23

8/15/23

8/11/23

CL MGNT/S1

R15/82

R14/S1

R16/84

R14/82

R14/S6

R14/82

R14/S2

R14/82

R14/S3

R15/S8

R16/S6

R20/S3

R15/85

R14/S2

R14/S8

C. CLASSIFIED JOB DESCRIPTIONS

MA

OL

DO

OL

OL

EP

OL

MA

MA

OL

RS

MG

JO

RS

MA

MA

RS

RS

JO

JO

DO

New Hire: Site Supervisor/Preschool
Teacher

Step Increase: Health Tech

Additional Assignment: Substitute
Expanded Learning Site Coordinator

Longevity : 20 years Classified

New Hire: Child Development Assistant
3.75 hours/5 days/10 months

New Hire: Instructional Aide ABA 3.75
hours/5 days/ 10 months

Step Increase : Instructional Aide

Step Increase: Satellite Cafeteria Worker
Longevity : 20 years Classified

Step Increase : Instructional Aide

New Hire: Instructional Aide SESA 3.75
hours/5 days/10 months

Longevity : 20 years Classified
Step Increase: Instructional Aide
Step Increase: Instructional Aide

Change of Assignment: Instructional
Aide SESA to Early Learning
Instructional Aide DLI

Step Increase: Instructional Aide

New Hire: Preschool Teacher 8 hours/5
days/ 10 months

Change of Assignment: Instructional
Aide SE/MOD and increase in FTE 5.5
hours

Promotion: Substitute Instructional Aide
to Permanent Instructional Aide
SE/MOD

Longevity : 20 years Classified

Longevity : 10 years Classified

New Hire: Child Development Assistant
3.75 hours/5 days/10 months

Additional Assignment: Substitute
Instructional Aide

Addition: Revised Cafeteria Manager Job Description (Reduced to 5 hours)

X-C1-7



Lowell Joint LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT | @ @

School District B we
. ———— BOARD CERTIFIED BEHAVIOR ANALYST @ @
A Tradision of Excellence Since 1906
“Stame of Schalons and Champions”
DEFINITION

Under direction of the Director of Special Education, provides and coordinates consultation, support and
advisory services to District personnel regarding the planning, designing, and monitoring of the
implementation of positive behavior interventions and supports for all students within the District,
including students with behavior needs that are receiving special education and related services through
an Individualized Education Program (IEP). Provide training and support in appropriate behavior
intervention management techniques, Applied Behavior Analysis (ABA), data collection and analysis and
support strategies.

REPRESENTATIVE DUTIES

Develop, implement, coordinate, monitor, revise, document, evaluate and provide consultation and
technical assistance to faculty and staff with the development and implementation of behavior plans,
ABA programs and other appropriate programs for all students that present behavior/learning challenges;
Conduct functional behavior assessments (FBA) of behaviors for students with complex and/or severe
behaviors; Coordinate, plan, revise and oversee the development and implementation of programs,
policies, and best practices related to instruction using the principles of PBIS, ABA, and Evidenced-
Based Practices for all students receiving special education services, as well as students on 504 plans and
general education students.

Perform a variety of specialized duties in the monitoring, analysis, and treatment of identified students
with behavioral challenges; assure programs meet the intensive and changing needs of students; establish
and maintain behavioral goals and objectives for individual students; Participate, interpret, evaluate, and
write detailed and concise Behavior Support Plans (BSP), Behavioral Intervention Plans (BIP’s) and
Individualized Educational Programs (IEP’s) to meet individual student needs, strategies, goals and
objectives; prepare and maintain various records and reports related to assigned activities.

Conduct classroom observations, collect data, and prepare a variety of reports for the purpose of
documenting case history, need for services, and progress towards goals. Observe and analyze student
behavior in the classroom; assess classroom structure, and existing behavior management systems;
develop and implement treatment plans according to individual student behavioral challenges, needs and
issues. Develop, implement, train, and monitor appropriate behavior management plans and crisis
prevention and intervention plans for students. Coordinate, Plan, develop and implement procedures and
best practices with the implementation of response to intervention.

Manage assaultive behavior. Provide Crisis Prevention Institute (CPI) and/or other evidenced-based
methodologies related to addressing the needs of students with behavior difficulties; Design and deliver
behavior intervention plan training and other related in-service programs, including student-specific
intervention training to staff; prepare and deliver oral presentations; prepare and distribute related training
and informational materials. Provide behavioral assessments and reports for individual students. Develop
materials and provide professional learning to administrators, educators, paraprofessionals, and
parent’s/guardians in Applied Behavior Analysis (ABA).

Participate in the development and implementation of behavior management communication systems,
methodologies, theories, and techniques; assist in evaluating and developing curriculum standards to meet
student needs. Provide technical information and assistance to the Director regarding assigned functions
and related needs and issues; assist in the formulation and development of policies, procedures, and

Board Approved: September 11, 2023



programs. Communicate with District personnel, outside agencies, families and the public to exchange
information, coordinate activities and resolve issues or concerns.

OTHER RESPONSIBILITIES

Participate in faculty meetings and committees
Work in a collaborative setting within the school setting
Perform other related duties as assigned

KNOWLEDGE OF

Federal and state laws that apply to the assessment of students referred due to disruptive or
assaultive behaviors; IDEA and Behavior Analyst Certification Board (BACB) guidelines to
address behavior and develop positive behavioral support plans.

General Education and Special Education classroom environments and standards of learning.
Non-violent crisis intervention techniques, including verbal de-escalation and physical
interventions.

Characteristics of various special education eligibilities, and possible social, emotional or
behavioral manifestations of specific disabilities.

Principles of behavioral management and Applied Behavior Analysis (ABA).

ABILITY TO

Conduct assessments that conform to the IDEA and Behavior Analyst Certification Board
(BACB) to address behavior, including functional analysis assessments, and functional behavior
assessments.

Provide recommendations to the IEP team based on the findings of each assessment and specific
to the identified disability of the student as it relates to the classroom performance and ability for
the student to access the core curriculum.

Collaborate professionally with administrators, teachers, paraprofessionals, parents and other
team members.

Develop, implement, and conduct in-services and training sessions.

Provide consultation and technical assistance concerning behavior management strategies.
Perform clerical duties related to assessment, preparing reports, and maintaining records.
Effectively work independently with little direction and as a member of a team.

Interpret and apply District policies, procedures, laws, rules, and regulations using good judgment
in a variety of situations.

Communicate effectively both orally and in writing.

Maintain acceptable standards of physical health, energy, and emotional adjustment to the job
environment.

Perform the essential duties of the job with or without reasonable accommodation

EDUCATION/EXPERIENCE QUALIFICATIONS:

Possession of a Master’s Degree or higher from an accredited institution of higher learning.
BCBA Certification Required.

Experience working in K-12 educational setting within the specialized field of Applied Behavior
Analysis, with increasing levels of responsibility.

Possession of California Pupil Personnel Services Credential or Education Specialist Credential
preferred.

Must have a valid California Driver's License and a reliable means of transportation.



@ Lowell Joint ‘ LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT @ @

School District we
: BOARD CERTIFIED BEHAVIOR ANALYST @ @
A Tradition of Excellence Since 1906
“HMHome of Scholars and Champions”

PRE-EMPLOYMENT REQUIREMENTS:
e Current and valid Tuberculosis (TB) clearance.
e Fingerprint clearance for school personnel.
e Appearance, grooming, and personality which establish a desirable example for students

PHYSICAL STANDARDS

The work environment and physical demands of the position as described is representative of those that
must be met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions under this position. The
information is not an exhaustive list of duties performed, additional duties may be assigned. These
physical standards are generic in nature and tasks may vary dependent on school site, department area
or specialized department as assigned. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals
with differing abilities to perform the essential functions.

WORK ENVIRONMENT

While performing the duties of this job, the employee works in several environments including
classroom, indoors and outdoors environments. The employee’s primary responsibility is working with
students in the office, a classroom, and/or resource/pull-out environment. Employees in this position may
have higher level of exposure to infection from students. There is also frequent contact with staff and
public and the need to meet multiple demands from several people. The noise level may be moderate to
noisy.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS

The physical demands of this position include frequent sitting and standing for extended periods of time.
Dependent on class/student assignment, the employee my occasionally lift, push, pull, and/or move up to
50 pounds. Repetitive bending at the waist, as well as kneeling, stooping, crouching to assist students is
also required. Employees may reach overhead, above the shoulders, and horizontally. Dexterity of hands
and fingers to demonstrate activities or run equipment is required as is hearing and speaking to exchange
information, make presentations, hear in a noisy environment and locate the source of a sound. Seeing to
read a variety of materials and monitor student activities is also required.

SALARY RANGE
Appropriate placement on the Certificated Management and Supervisory Salary Schedule

PERIOD OF SERVICE
Work Calendar as adopted by the Board of Trustees. 187 days of the year with the option of an additional
30 days of service at the position daily rate.

Board Approved: September 11, 2023



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAFETERIA MANAGER
Classified Salary Schedule
Range 18

JOB SUMMARY: Under general supervision of the Director of Nutrition Services, using highly
significant food service related skills to coordinate food production and distribution to school sites of all
meals from the central kitchen. Manage the daily operation of the central kitchen and assist in the
preparation of meals.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS:

The duties listed below are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may be
performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position if the
work is similar, related, or a logical assignment fo the class.

- Ensures that all meals served in the school nutrition program meet the current nutrition standards
and meal pattern requirements including children with special needs diets.

- Maintains integrity and accountability of the school nutrition program though compliance with all
Federal, State, and local regulations.

- Responsible for portion control as established by the Federal and State Nutrition Guidelines.

+  Provide leadership to ensure a safe work environment.

»  Responsible for skilled preparation of food items on the menu.

« Interprets and reconstructs standardized recipes.

- Responsible for receiving, storing, rotating and care of food supplies and equipment.

«  Responsible for preparation and packaging of foods to be used in satellite schools.

. Responsible for scheduling, preparing, and serving food for nutrition break at the intermediate
school.

- Requisitions food, supplies, and equipment. Orders food and supplies from approved vendors.

- Prepares and maintains written records on amounts of food planned and served to be used during
SNP coordinated reviews.

- Prepares and follows work schedules that promote organized workflow and development of
employee skills.

. With assistance frorn the Director of Nutrition Services, trains and provides input for personnel
evaluations.

.+ Maintain accurate records of student accounts. Generate computerized reports upon request.

- Collects and counts money. Prepares cash reports and enters data into sales record keeping.

»  Supervises and trains student helpers and volunteers.

. Conducts short training sessions to keep employees informed of school events as well as to develop
employee knowledge and skills.

»  Performs related duties as assigned.



QUALIFICATION GUIDELINES:

Knowledge of:
Current USDA nutrition standards that apply to meals served in the SNP (School Nutrition
Program).

« Importance of the marketplace’s influence on food trends and availability and how they relate to
menu planning.

«  Appropriate system for documenting staff development and training.
Use of technology as an SNP management tool.

+  Use of commodities to manage food costs.
Principles of Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point (HACCP) system.
Principles of preplanning, planning and scheduling food production to maximize efficient use of
time and equipment and minimize production challenges.

. Safe use, care and cleaning methods of equipment in the school cafeteria.
The importance of cross-training to enhance employee productivity and a more efficient workplace
Procedures involved in ordering, receiving and storing of food services supplies.
Health and safety rules and regulations that pertain to the operation of a school food service
program.

«  Methods of assessing the skill level needs of the SNP personnel as well as self-evaluation.

Ablllty to:
Follow the menu planning guide and other appropriate USDA resources for SNP when involved
with menu planning.

- Create promotional activities that motivate and support student selection of meals that promote
good health.

Prepare reports and keep records making simple arithmetical computations.
Enforce rules of health, cleanliness, personal habits, and proper clothing to ensure clean and healthy
food handlers.
Operate machines found in a school kitchen, including a POS computer.
Maintain a safe work environment and follow District procedures for reporting accidents and
injuries.
Maintain appropriate storage areas according to Federal, State and local guidelines.
- Interpret data and sales history of food items for ordering and forecasting production.
Administer food preference surveys and analyze resulting data.
Implement methods for increasing productivity and decrease waste.
Encourage cooperation between food service staff and teaching staff in promoting higher student
participation in lunch, breakfast and other supporting food programs.
Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with others.
« Lift and move items weighing up to 25 pounds.

Education/Training/Experience:
Equivalent to completion of high school or General Education Diploma (GED). Minimum of two to
three years’ experience and/or training in school or institutional food services; completion of Food
Safety Manager Certification and California School Nutrition Association (CSNA) courses related to
the food service program in public schools. At least one year in a lead or supervisory capacity.



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAFETERIA MANAGER
Classified Salary Schedule
Range 18

PHYSICAL STANDARDS AND WORKING CONDITIONS:

The physical and mental demands and work environment described here are representative of those that
must be met by employees to successfully perform the essential functions of this class. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

These physical demands are generic in nature and tasks may vary dependent on specific trade and or
specialized work assignment.

Physical Demands:

Physical demands of this position include standing for extended periods of time. The employee is
required to frequently walk, stand or stoop, bend at the waist and reach at or below the shoulders.
Continuously uses hand strength to grasp objects and tools and operate nutrition service equipment.
The employee must lift and/or move items weighing up to 25 pounds. These objects include bags of
milk or juice, cases of fruit, pans of food, etc. Specific vision abilities required by this job include
close vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception, and the ability to adjust focus.
Employees may use vision to monitor food quality and quantity and may also serve students, order
supplies, collect money, etc. Also required are hearing and speaking abilities to exchange information.

Mental Demands:

Employee must be able to comprehend and follow written and oral instructions; read and interpret
data, information and documents; interpret policies and procedures; work under deadlines with
interruptions; and interact cooperatively with District staff, students and parents.

Work Environment:

While performing the duties of this job, the employee regularly works in an indoor kitchen
environment with exposure to heat from ovens, hot foods and steamers and cleaning chemicals, fumes,
equipment, and metal objects. Employees also work around knives, dicers, mixers, slicers and other
sharp objects. Work surfaces may be slippery. The noise level in the work environment is usually
moderate but may be loud dependent on specific work site and/or equipment operation.

The information contained in the physical standards description is for compliance with ADA and is
not an exhaustive list of duties performed. Individuals who hold this position may perform additional
duties and additional duties may be assigned.

WORK PERIOD:

10 months per year, 5 days per week, 5 hours per day

Board Approved: October 2007; May 7, 2012;
Revised: March 2012; June 2023



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Approval of the 2022-2023 Classified Management ACTION/

Salary Schedule, Effective August 1, 2023, with the (RATIFICATION)
Addition of the Network and Data Systems Technology
Supervisor Position

The 2022-2023 Classified Management salary schedule, effective August 1, 2023, with the
addition of the Network and Data Systems Technology Supervisor position is submitted for
Board approval.

It is recommended that the 2022-2023 Classified Management salary schedule, effective
August 1, 2023, with the addition of the Network and Data Systems Technology Supervisor
position, be approved, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the
necessary documents.

JC/me

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-C2-1



000'2% sies\ 02 £20Z 11 1aqueldes ‘'zg0z 'zl Jequenaq ‘2z0z 'L 19qWIBAON paolddy pieog

000'9$ SIESA GL

000'G$ Sles) 0l
e .wu 000'v$ SlesA G ;10 uone|dwon Jaye 'sjes Buimoljo} 2yl Je pajesuadwod Ajjeuciippe aq leys 821AI8S Jo yjbus
cz) " ﬂ ALIAZONO1
-Jeak Jad uonesea shep zz aaledal saakoldws Juswabeuely PaYISSE]D YIUOW-aAjam |
9€0's 16.'v 198y LGE'Y 124487 ov6'e looyosald - Jayoea | Josiaedng als
¥2s'9 €12'9 L16'S GE9'S L9€'S LLL'S 898'v 9e9'y Josintedng sadIARS UORIINN
YA YA 6..'9 oy’ 0509 GLL'S 66€'S 00l'S Josinedng suoneladQ '3 @dueusjule|y
zse's 086°2 vSy'L Zro'L €59'9 G8Z'9 8¢6'S 0L9's Josinuadng ABojouyosj swialsAg eyeq pue YlomaN

suolisod Josialadng
evL'6 6.2'6 888 olLy's 9108 €€9'. 892'/ €269 (syuow | |) 1sidesay] [euoyednooQ
8080} €290l 1S¥'0L zl2'01 Q0L‘0t 6€6'6 GGL'6 weiboid pooyp|iyd Aped Jo Jojeulpiood
G06'8 095’8 €ee's z68'. ¥15', 692’/ G00'. 9¢el'9 Jebeueyy aoueldwod Buunosdy pue syoenuod puog
sveLl 1080} €590l L0G'0L 8ve'ol G610} Zrool 888'6 S9OIAIaS |Beds| JO J0Jo3lIQ JUE)SISSY
G0.'€l 60S°cl ole'el ocL'el ve6'Cl evi'el zes'e) 09g'ClL S9JIAIeg |edsld jo Jojoalld
G0L'el 60S'cl oLe'cl ocL'el v€6'Cl evL'T) 41 ] 09g'Cl ABojouyos | uojjewlIoju| B [BUOHEINPT JO J0JORIIQJ
oey'sl €65°/1 L1191 126'GlL €91'Gl BEY' vl zsL'el 160°¢lL S92IAI9S SARJSIUILIPY JO Juspudjuuadng JUelsissy
661'61 12G'8l 189'/1 G¥8'ol £v0'9l 6.2'Gl 9LS'YL 68.'cl S92)AI9S SssaulIsng Jo Juspusjuladng juelsissy
8 L 9 1°] 14 € c }
JONVY | JONVY | IONVY | 39NV | IONVY | IONVY | IONVY | JONVY SRS Od SEREDRIE

Josiruedng ABojouyds SWesAS ejeq pue YIoMSN MIN €202 ‘L 1snbny aAljosyT
ajnpayas fuefes Josiuadng SaoIeS UORIIINN MBN £20Z ‘9 Yoiel aAljoay3
ainpayas Alejes Josinadng suoneiadQ pue sauBUdJUIRIN MBN 2202 ‘TL 18quisdsq anjosys
ainpeyas Aiejes Juspusjuuadng JUBISISSY MON 2202 '/ 19qQUIBAON BAlJO84T
ainpayos Alejes 10j9s8.iQ JUBJSISSY M8 Pue 8inpayos Alejes s.10j0aiig MON Z20Z 'L Jequejdes aAloayg
(uoneiaunuwal Jayjo pue spusdys Bujpnjoxa) sBuiuses Aiejes aseq 0 aSBaIoU) %05 '€ B ana0al jleys seakojdwe ‘2Z0e | Ainr aAnjosy3

I7NAIHOS ANVIVS LNJWIOVNVIN A31dISSVTO €202/2202
1O141SId TOOHOS LNIOr T13aMO1




LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Approval of the 2022-2023 Certificated Management and ACTION/
Supervisory Salary Schedule, Including the Addition of (RATIFICATION)

the Board Certified Behavioral Analyst position, effective
September 1, 2023.

The 2022-2023 Certificated Management and Supervisory salary schedule effective July 1,
2022, is submitted for Board approval. The Certificated Management and Supervisory salary
schedule includes the addition of the Board Certified Behavioral Analyst position, effective
September 1, 2023.

It is recommended that the 2022-2023 Certificated Management and Supervisory salary
schedule effective July 1, 2022, including the addition of the Board Certified Behavioral
Analyst position, effective September 1, 2023, be approved, and that the Superintendent or
designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

JC/me

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-C3-1



e

A\ /—Q

€207 'TT Jaqualdas ‘zz0T ‘v Iudy :(eaciddy pieog

000'%$ sreak 07 000°L$ sreak 07
005'€$ sreak G 000'9% sreaf g
000'¢$ sreak 01 000°'s$ mumum 01 :Alejes |enUUE 1I9Y3 O3 UOIMIPPE Ul ‘pa1s)| SE sjunowe
005°2§ s1eak ¢ 000'%$ sreaf g
SSTATSAG JTSUISSETER 3M923 ||IM S1eaA JO Jaquinu Suimo||oy 3yl Ajideded 1ey) U paauas aAey oym sasAoidwy Alosialadng pue ssaAojdw3 Juawadeuey
9SZ'0€T SST'8CT 550'92T 096'€CT 798'1CT S9/6TT LL9'LTT 014 ¥s1je1dads weidoid
€69°6CT 9/¥'LTT 08¥'seT €97'€CT 897'1CT €LT6TT 9S0LTT 0T oJeasay-saneleniu] {euolleanp3 pue sjueis Joj JO)eulpioo)
£69'67T 9Ly LTT 08v'sTT £9z'¢2T 89Z'121 €LT'6T1 950°/1T ¥0¢ weidoid saunuoddQ 3uiules] papuedxd Jo J0JeUIPI00)
£69°67T 9LY'LTT 08Y'STT £92°€TT 897'TCT €LT'6TT 950LTT 0T weigouq pooypiiy) Aj1e3 o Jojeuipioo)
€LT7°8TT 00T'STT STTETT SLT'TIT S0Z'60T 87’01 LLT'SOT (8T (vaog) ishjeuy |esoineyag payiua) pieog /15180j0ydAsd
SNOILISOd AHOSIAYAANS
€0T29T T08'6ST €15°/ST PT2'SST 616°CST S79°0ST (742121 L1T S301AU3S [eUOIIEINPT JO 103I3UIQ
€0T29T T08'6ST E1S4ST ¥TT'SST 6T6'CST 579'0ST [ £4°%:14 LTT uoneanp3 |eads Jo J03aI1Q
£69'6CT 9l¥'LTl 08¥'STT €9z'eet 897121 €/T6TT 9S0°LTT v0¢ |edidulg juessissy
609°9€T LYI'VET 6/9'CT¢ET 6TL'0ET ¥SL'8CT 68,971 9281l 00t Jedidund Atejuaws|3
8TLTST £9S'6VT T LYT 9L7'SYT 1Z4%32" 6/6'0VT 878'8€ET L1T fediould a1eIpauLIBIv)
79v°061 09.'L8T 690'58T L€T8T vL9'6LT 086'9LT 8LTVLT 8ve S3JIAIIS [2UO13RONPT JO Juspudluladng JURISISSY
L 9 S b4 € 4 1
SNOILISOd INIWIDVNYIN
NIWNT0D | NIAINTOD | NWN1OD | NWN10D | NIANTOD | NIWNT10D | NIWN10D | SAvVa

3|npays A1pjos 03 pappy uonIsod (Ydg) ISAouY [010IADYaG Paifilia) pioog MaN €207 ‘T 4aquaidas ani1daff3
(uonipiaunwai 13410 puo spuadils Buipnjoxa) sbuiLIDa A1D|DS 350G 01 3SDIIIUI %S °E D IN3I31 [|pYs saakojdwa ‘7z0z ‘T AInr anoaff3

ZZ0T ‘T AInf aAnday3

3INQIHIS AYVIVS AHOSIAYIANS ANV INIWIDVYNVIN QILVIIHILYID €2/2202
12141510 TOOHIS LINIOr T13MO1




LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Approval of  Agreement with  Franchise ACTION

Consulting/Derek Francis to Provide Professional
Development during 2023-2024 School Year to
Rancho-Starbuck Staff

Franchise Consulting/Derek Francis will provide a total of three sessions of Professional
Development during the 2023-2024 school year to the staff of Rancho Starbuck. The first
session is on September 11, 2023 titled “Understanding Race and Identity and Building Cross
Cultural Relationships With Humility.” The second session to be presented on October 16,
2023 titled “Combating Bias in School Education and Proactive Inclusion Strategies.” The
third session will be presented on February 5, 2024 titled “Talking about Race and Racism
With Students and The Community.”  This Professional Development series will be
provided at a cost not to exceed $17,000.00 and will be covered by Rancho Starbuck Site
funds.

It is recommended that the contract with Franchise Consulting/Derek Francis be approved
and the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
X-D1-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Approval of Agreement with Shane Twamley to ACTION/
Provide Intervention and Saturday School Sessions (RATIFICATION)

during 2023-2024 School Year to Rancho-Starbuck

Shane Twamley will provide Intervention and Saturday School sessions to Rancho-Starbuck
students during the 2023-24 school year. Shane’s contract amount is $3,000.00 per month at
a cost not to exceed $30,000.00 and will be covered by ESSER funds.

It is recommended that the contract with Shane Twamley be approved and the
Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
X-D2-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Approval of Consultant Agreement with Summer Davis to ACTION

provide “Digging with Mrs. Davis” Gardening/Science
Enrichment Classes for PowerSource during the 2023-24
School Year

Arrangements were made with Summer Davis to provide Gardening & Science Enrichment
PowerSource Classes for the 2023-24 school year. These classes will be provided at various
Lowell Joint elementary sites on a rotation basis, beginning with Olita and Macy Elementary
Schools. Summer Davis’s contract amount is $35.00 per hour, not to exceed $3000.00.
Funding for this expenditure will be covered by Fund 12 ELOP funds.

It is recommended that the consultant agreement for Summer Davis to provide Gardening &
Science Enrichment for the PowerSource Expanded Learning for Lowell Joint School
District during the 2023-24 school year, at an amount not to exceed $3,000.00 to be paid by
Fund 12 ELOP funds, be approved and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to
execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
X-D3-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Approval of Ratification of Agreement #14082 ACTION/
with Thinking Maps Inc. to Provide Professional (RATIFICATION)

Development During the 2023-24 School Year

Thinking Maps Inc. provided a full day of on-site Professional Development on August 14,
2023 per Agreement #14082. The original contract was for in-person training for a cost of
$3,500.00. The session had to be changed to a virtual training with Ms. Lisa Pagano
providing the training. The fee for virtual training is less therefore the cost is $1,800.00.
Funding for this expenditure will be covered by LCAP Supplemental.

It is recommended that the agreement with Thinking Maps Inc. to provide on-site
Professional Development during the 2023-24 school year at a cost NTE $1,800 per
Agreement #14082 be ratified and approved and that the Superintendent or designee be
authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
X-D4-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Approval of Agreement #14179 with Thinking Maps Inc. to ACTION

Provide Professional Development on November 1, 2023

Arrangements have been made with Thinking Maps Inc. to provide a full day of on-site
Professional Development on November 1, 2023 per Agreement #14179. Lauren Loper of
Thinking Maps will provide the training for a cost not to exceed $2,200.00. Funding for this
expenditure will be covered by LCAP Supplemental.

It is recommended that the agreement with Thinking Maps Inc. to provide an on-site
Professional Development on November 1, 2023 per Agreement #14179 be approved and that
the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
X-D5-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Approval of Short Term Rental Agreement with ACTION
Whittier College

Arrangements have been made with Whittier College for the use of their facilities for Rancho
Starbuck’s Christmas Programs on December 14, 2023, 5:00pm - 9:00pm at a cost of
$3,400.00. The contract also allows for Dress Rehearsal on December 13" from 9:00am —
3:00pm. A 10% deposit of $340.00 is due immediately and the balance of $3,060 is due after
completion of the performance. Funding for this expenditure will be covered by 6762 — Arts
& Music Block Grant.

It is recommended that the Short Term Agreement with Whittier College at a total cost of
$3,400 be approved and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the
necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
X-D6-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
September 11, 2023

To: President Shaw and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Approval of Agreement with All American Officials ACTION/
to Provide Referee Services for After School Sports (RATIFICATION)
Programs

A contract is needed to provide referee services for the After School Sports Program at
Rancho Starbuck for the 2023/2024 school year.

It is recommended that the agreement with All American Officials for Referee Services be

approved at the rate not to exceed $5,000, and that the Superintendent or designee be
authorized to execute the necessary documents.

CE/mc

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-El-1



	Minutes 3.pdf
	LCFF Budget Overview for Parents
	Budget Overview for the 2023-24 School Year
	Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the LCAP for the 2023-24 School Year

	Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2022-23

	Local Control and Accountability Plan
	Plan Summary [2023-24]
	General Information
	Reflections: Successes
	Reflections: Identified Need
	LCAP Highlights
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Schools Identified
	Support for Identified Schools
	Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness


	Engaging Educational Partners
	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2022-23]

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2022-23]

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2022-23]

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2022-23]

	Goals and Actions
	Goal
	Measuring and Reporting Results
	Actions
	Goal Analysis [2022-23]

	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students [2023-24]
	Required Descriptions

	2023-24 Total Expenditures Table
	2023-24 Contributing Actions Table
	2022-23 Annual Update Table
	2022-23 Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	2022-23 LCFF Carryover Table
	Instructions
	Introduction and Instructions
	Plan Summary
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions

	Engaging Educational Partners
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions

	Goals and Actions
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions
	Focus Goal(s)
	Broad Goal
	Maintenance of Progress Goal
	Required Goals
	Measuring and Reporting Results:
	Goal Analysis:


	Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students
	Purpose
	Requirements and Instructions

	Action Tables
	Data Entry Table
	Contributing Actions Table
	Annual Update Table
	Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	LCFF Carryover Table
	Calculations in the Action Tables
	Contributing Actions Table
	Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
	LCFF Carryover Table







